






n n 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6 .  

This is an application for 4 (check one): 

0 

Original certificate (new company). 

Approval of assignment/transfer of existing certificate: 
Example, a non-certificated company purchases an existing company and 
desires to retain the certificate of authority rather than apply for a new 
certificate. 

Approval of transfer of control: 
Exam&, a conipany purchases 51% of a certificated company. 
Commission must approve the new controlling entity. 

The 

Name of company: 

Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. (“Birch”) 

Name under which applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

Same as above (Applicant will not use a fictitious name). 

Official mailing address (induding street name & number, post office box, 
city, state, zip code): 

2020 Baltimore Avenue 
Kansas City, Missouri 64108 

{ 8 16) 300-3247 (fax) 
(8 16) 300-3000 

Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, 
zip code): 

Select type of business ‘your company will be conducting (check al l  that apply): 

Pacilities-based carrier - company owns and operates or plans to own and 
operate telecommunications switches and transmission facilities in Florida. 

Operator Service Provider - company provides o r  plans to provide 
alternative operator services for IXCS; or toll operator services to call 
aggregator locations; or clearinghouse services to bill such calls. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (l2/96) 
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0 

0 

Reseller - company has or plans to have one or more switches but primarily 
leases the transmission facilities of other carriers. Bills its own customer base 
for services used. 

Switchless Rebiller - company has no switch or transmission facilities but 
may have a billing computer. Aggregates traffic to obtain bulk discounts 
from underlying carrier. RebilIs end users at a rate above its discount but 
generally below the rate end users would pay for unaggrcgated traffic. 

Multi-Location Discount Aggregator - company contracts with unaffiliated 
entities to obtain bulk/volume discounts under multi-location discount plans 
from certain underlying carriers, then offers resold service by enrolling 
unaffiliated customers. 

Prepaid Debit Card Provider - any person or entity that purchases 800 
access from an underlying carrier or unamiatcd entity for use with prepaid 
debit card service and/or encodes the cards with personal identification 
numbers. 

7. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual 
( d ) Foreign Corporation 
( ) General Partnership 
( Other 

8. If individual, provide: 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

City/State/Zip: 

Telephone No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

Pax No.: 

( 1 Corporation 
( ) Foreign Partnership 
{ ) Limited Partnership 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 
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25-24.471, and 25-24.473,25-24.480(2). Page 3 of 16 
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orated m Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

The Florida Secretary of State Corporate Registration number: N/A 

Iffsmign co rpu thn ,  provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

See Exhibit A. 

The Plorida Secretary of State Corporate Registration number: 

F00000002797 

usi--e-d,/b/a provide proof of compliance with fictitious . .  
name statute (Chapter 865.09, PS) to operate in Florida: 

W A  

The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 

N/A 

4, provide proof of registration to operate in 
Florida: 

. .  . . .  

N/A 

The Florida Secretary of State registration number: 

W A  

If a p a f a d u p  ’ , provide name, title and address of all parttlers and a copy of 
the partnership agreement. 

N/A 
Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

City/State/Zip: 

Telephone No.: 
FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 
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Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

Pax No.: 

14. If' a foreign limited partmxddp, provide proof of compliance with the foreign 
limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.169, PS), if applicable. 

W A  
(a) The Florida registration number: 

15. Provide P.E.I. Number (if'applcable): 

43-1877678 

16. Provide the following (if applicable): 

(a) Will the name of your company appear on the bill for your services? 

(b) If not, who will bill for your services? 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

City/State/Zip: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

( c )  How is this information provided? 

17. Who will receive the bills for your service? 

( d ) Residential Customers 
{ 1 PATs providers 
( Hotels & motels 
( 1 Universities 
FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 
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Other: (specify) 

18. Who will sene as liaison to the Commission with regard to the  following? 

(a) 

Name: Valerie M. Furman, Esq. and Jacob S .  Farber, Esq. 

Title: 

Address: 

City/State/Zip: 

Telephone No.: 

Dickstein Shapiro Morin & Oshinsky LLP 
2101 L Street, N.W. 

Washington, DC 20037- 1526 

(202)833-5017 (voice) 
(202)887-0689 (fax) 

Internet E-Mail Address: FurmanV@dsmo.com 

Internet Website Address: www.dsmo.com 

Fax No.: (202)887-0689 

(b) Offi- of comLt for the an_p o i n ~  operations o f the company 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

City/State/Zip: 

Telephone No.: 

Pax No,: 

Gregory C .  Lawhon, Esq. 

Senior Vice President 

Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. 
2020 Baltimore Avenue 

Kansas City, Missouri 64108 

(816) 300-3225 

(816) 300-3247 

Internet E-Mail Address: glawhon@birch.com 

Internet Website Address: www. birch.com 
FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 
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(4 G- . ’  ficustomers: 

Name: Charles Fuller 

Title: 

Address: 

Vic:e President of Customer Service 

Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. 
2020 Baltimore Avenue 

Kansas City, Missouri 64108 City/S tate/Zip: 

Telephone No.: (800) 772-4724 

Fax No.: (816) 300-3247 

Internet E-Mail Address: cfuller@birch.com 

Internet Website Address: www. birch.com 

List the states in which. the applicant: 

has operated as an interexchange telecommunications company. 

Applicant is a newly formed corporation, and is currendy in the process of filing 
appIications for authority to provide interexchange telecommunications services in 
the Bell South Region states. However, applicant’s sister corporations, Birch 
Telecom of Missouri, IIIC., Birch Telecom of Kansas, Inc., and Birch Telecom of 
Texas, Ltd. LLP - currtmtly offer this service in Missouri, Kansas, Texas. 

has applications pending to be certificated as an interexchange 
telecommunications co mpany. 

Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and 
Tennessee. 

is certificated to operate as an interexchange telecommunications company. 

has been denied authority to operate as an interexchange telecommunications 
company and the circumstances involved. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12,461 
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None. 

( e )  has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 
statutes and the chcurristances involved. 

(f) has been involved in c i d  court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, 
local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the 
circumstances involved. 

20. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previously been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or of 
any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. If 
so, please explain. 

21. 

a. 

an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. E no 
longer associated with company, give reason why not. 

The applicant will provide the following interexchange carrier services (check 
ail that apply): 

b. 

MTS with distance sensitive per minute rates 

Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 

4 Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

MTS with route specific rates per minute 

Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 
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C. 

d. 

4 Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

MTS with statewide flat rates per minute  (Le. not d i s t a n c e  sensitive) 

Method #of access is FGA 
Method lof access is FGB 

4 Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

d MTS for pay telephone service providers 

e. 4 Block-of-time CalIing plan (Reach Out Florida, Ring America, etc.) 

f. 

h. 

1. 

j. 

k. 

4 800 service (toll free) 

WATS type service (bulk or volume discount) 

Method of access is via dedicated facilities 
4 Method of access is via switched facilities 

4 Private line services (Channel Services) 
(For ex. 1.544 mbs., DS-3, etc.) 

Travel service 

Method of access is 950 
4 Method of access is 800 

900 service 

Opera tor services 

d Available to presubscribcd customers 
Available to non presubscribed customers (for-example, to patrons 
of hotels, students in universities, patients in hospitds). 
Available to inmates 

1, Services included are: 

4 Station assistance 
4 Person - to-person assistance 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 ( 12/96) 
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4 Directory assistance 
d Operator verify and internipt 
4 Conference calling 

22. Submit the proposed tariff under which the company plans to begin operation. 
Use the format required by Commission Rule 25-24.485 (example enclosed). 

Please see Exhibit B. 

23. Submit the following: 

A. Pinancial capability. 

The application should c o r n  'n the applicant's audited financial statements for the most 
recent 3 years. if the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall so be 
stated. 

The unaudited fmancial statements should be signed by the applicant's chief executive 
officer and chief hancial officer stateme nts are true and 
wrrect and should include: 

1 . the balance sheet; 

2. income statement; and 

3. statement of retained earnings. 

NOTE: This docmnentatian muy include, but i s  not limited to, financial stutemcnts, u 
projecreed profit mzd loss s6aatememt, credit references, credit bweute rcpom, and 
Bescriptiom of bwsimss relationships with financial i m t i t h o m  

Birch is a newly-formed corporation, incorporated on February 8, 2000. As such, 
Birch does not yet have any of its own financial statements. Birch intends to rely on the 
financial resources of its parent corporation, Birch Telecom, Inc., for its Florida operations. 
As evidence of its more than sufficient financial resources and qualifications to provide the 
local exchange telecommunications services proposed herein within the State of Flmida, 
Birch has attached hereto as Exhibit C the 1999 SEC Form lO-K/A and the first quarter 
2000 SEC Form 10-Q of its parent, Birch TeIecom, Inc. 

The f i n a n d  information attached as Exhibit C confirms that Birch has the financial 
resources necessary for its proposed Florida operations. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 
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Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be provided: 

1 .  A written -n that the applicant has suficient financial capability to 
provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served. 

Please see Exhibit C .  

2 .  

3. 

4. 

A -1 that the applicant has suficient financial capability to 
maintain the requested service. 

Please see Exhibit C .  

A- ’ that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to meet 
its lease or ownership obligations. 

Please see Exhibit C .  

Managerial capability; give resumes of employees/officcrs of the company that 
would inhcate sufficient managerial experiences of each. 

Birch’s officers and directors have extensive experience providing 
telecommunications services and operating telecommunications companies. As 
stated above, Birch’s sister corporations are currently authorized to provide local 
exchange and long distance services within the states ofMissouri, Kansas, Texas and 
Oklahoma, and currently provide such services in the states of Missouri, Kansas and 
Texas. As stated above, Birch has been granted authority to provide interexchange 
{toll) telecommunications services in the Commonwealth of Kentucky and currently 
has applications for authority to provide intrastate interexchange (toll) 
telecommunications services pending in the states of Alabama, Georgia, Mississippi, 
North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee and Louisiana. In addition, its sister 
corporation, Birch Te1ec:om of the Great Lakes, TIIC., has been granted authority to 
provide such service in the states of Indiana and Michigan, and has applications for 
authority to provide interexchange {toll) telecommunications services pending in the 
state of Illinois, Ohio and Wisconsin. Birch has also been granted authority to 
provide resold and ficilities- based local exchange telecommunications in the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky and currently has applications for authority to provide 
resold and facilities-based local exchange telecommunications services pending in 
the states of Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Mississippi, North Carolina, South 
Carolina, Tennessee and Louisiana. In addition, Birch’s sister corporation, Birch 
Telecom of the Great Likes, Inc. currently has applications for authority to provide 
resold and/or facdities- based local exchange telecommunications services pending in 
the states of Illinois, Indiana, Michigan, Ohio and Wisconsin. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (l2/96) 
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Birch has attached hexto  as Exhibit D biographical descriptions of the company 
officers who wilI have primary management responsibility for Birch’s business 
operations, as evidence that Birch’s management team possesses more than sufficient 
technical and managerial expertise to provide the local exchange 
telecommunications services proposed herein to customers in the State of Florida. 

5 .  Technical capability; give resumes of employees/officers of the company that 
would indicate sufficient technical expcriences or indicate what company has been 
contracted to conduct te:chnical maintenance, 

Please see Exhibit D. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 
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VERIFICATION 

State of %QUAL 1 

County of adcswn 1 
) ss. 

I, Gregory C. Lawhon, being duly sworn, declare that: 

(1) I am Senior Vice President of Birch Telecom of the South, Inc.; 

(2) I am authorized to make the following verification on behalf of Birch Telecom of the 
South, Inc., the Applicant: in the foregoing application; 

(3) I have read the foregoing application and exhibits, and that the same are true and correct 
to the best of my knowledge, information, or belief; and 

Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. will comply with all Commission rules, regulations and 
orders. 

(4) 

Senior Vice President 
Birch TeIecorn of the South, Inc. 

,2000. + Sworn and subscribed before me this I 9  day of 

CHERn A. BROGAN 
Notary Publlc - Sate of Miss& 

Commlsalcmned In Lackson County 
My comnlission expires Comm'ssron Wrras 29* 2m 

1149529 ul : -MZDOI ILDOC 
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EXHIBIT A 

Certificate of Authority to Transact Business in Florida 



FLORIDA DEPPARTMENT OF STATE 
Katherine Harris 

Secretary of State 
May 18,2000 

TAMARA ODOM 
csc 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 

Qualification documents for BIRCH TELECOM 
May 18,2000 and assigned document number 
number whenever corresponding with this off ice, 

OF THE SOUTH, INC. were filed on 
F00000002797. Please refer to this 

Your corporation is now qualified and authorized to transact business in Florida as of 
t h e  file date. 

A corporation annual reportluniform business report will be due this office between 
January 1 and May 1 of the year following the calendar year of the file date. A Federal 
Employer Identification (FEI) number will be required before this report can be filed. If 
you do not already have an FEI number, please apply NOW with the Internal Revenue 
by calling 1-800-829-3676 and requesting fom SS-4. 

Please be aware if the corporate address changes, it is the responsibility of the 
corporation to notify this office. 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please telephone (850j 487- 
6051 , the Foreign QualificationTax Lien Section. 

Buck Kohr 
Corporate Specialist 
Division of Corporations 

Account number: 072100000032 

Letter Number: 400A00028357 

Account charged: 70.00 
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APPLICATION BY FOREIGN CORPORATION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO TRANSACT 
BUSINESS IN FLORIDA 

iN COMPLIANCE WiTH SECTION 607.1503, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE FOLLOWING IS SUBMI7TED TQ 
REGISTER A FOREIGN CORPORATION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA. ... 

, ?  , -  
y * : 
/ /  

J ,  
. .  

1. Birch Telecom of t h e  Sou th ,  I n c .  %A ;, - .  - 
c 

VA ',' (Name of corporation; must include the word I' INCORPORATED", "COMPANY", "COWORATION" or 
words or abbreviations of like import in language as will clearly indicate that it is a corporation instead of a 
natural person or partnership if not so contained in the name at present.) 

/ '  

A 
a '  ," I 

+ -+ ' 
- 7 -  

$ '!<. 
2. Delaware 3, 4 3 - 1 8 7 7 6 7 8  5 ?, 

(State or country under the law of which it is incorporated) (FEI number, if applicable) 

February 8 ,  2 0 0 0  5. Perpetual - 4. 
(Date of -. incorporation) (Duration: Year COT. will cease to exist or "perpetual") 

6. Upon approval 
(Date first transacted business in Flori&.:I (SEE SECTIONS 607.1501, 607.1502 and 817.155, F.S.) 

2 0 2 0  Baltimore Avenue 7. 
Kansas City, MO 64108 

(Curwit mai 1 ing address) 

8. Provision o f  telecommunication services 
.. . .  . -. . .  

(Purpose(s) of corporation authorized in 'iome state or country to be carried out in state of Florida) 

9. Name and street address of Florida registered agent: (P.0. Box or Mail Drop Box NOT acceptable) 

Corporation Service Company Name: 

1201 Hays Street 
Office Address: 

,Florida, 32301 Tallahassee 
(zip code) 

10. Registered agent's acceptance: 

Huving been named as registered ugenr and ro accept service of process for the abovkstaied corporation ai the place designated in 
this applicdon, I hereby accept the appointment i ~ s  registered agent and agree tu act in thhis capacity. I further agree to comply 
with lhe pmviswns of all sfacutes relah've to the proper a d  complete performance of my duties, and I am familiar with and accept 
the obligations of my position as registered agent. 

Corporation Service Company 
R h  &d.& 

tered aient's signadre) 

1 1. Attached is a certificate of existence duly authenticated. not more than 90 days prior to delivery of this application to the 
Department of State, by the Secretary of Stare or other official having custody of corporate records in the jurisdiction under the law of 
which it is incorporated. 

12. Names and addresses of officers andor directors: (Street address ONL,Y - P.O. Box NOT acceptable) 
.~ -. 



A. DIRECTORS (Street address only - P.O. I3ox NOT acceptable) 

-. D i r e c t o r :  David E. S e c l t t  

~ d d ~ ~ ~ ~ :  2020 Baltimore Avenue 

Kansas City, MO 64108 

: Director: Bradley A *  Moline 

Address: 

Director: 

Address: 

Director: 

Address: 

2 0 2 0  Baltimore Avenue 
9 ". .. ,, . ?  
r -, < Kansas City, MO 64108 

2020 Baltimare Avenue / 
CT 

A& \ /- Kansas City, €40 64108 
" -  

- 2 l,' 

E. OFFICERS (Street address o d y  - P.O. Box NOT acceptable) 

president: David E. Scott: 

Address: 2020  Baltimore Avenue 

Kansas City, MO 64108 

Vice President: 

Address: 

secretary: Si Senior Vice President: Gregory C. Lawhon 

Address: 2020 Baltimore Avenue 

Kansas City, MO 64108 

T ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ :  & Senior V i c e  President: Bradley A .  Moline 

Address: 2 0 2 0  Baltimore Avenue 

Kansas City. MO 64108 

NOTE: If necsssary, you may attach an addendum to h e  application listing additional officers andor directors. 

13. 
($gnaphre of Chairman, Vice (:hairman, or any officer listed in number 12 of the application) 

14. Gregory C. Lawhon, Senior V i c e  President 
(Typed or printed name and capacity of pcrson signing application) 
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EXHIBIT B 

Proposed Initial Tariff 
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BIRCH TELECOM OF THE SOUTH, LNC. 

a 

FIorida Tuiff No. 1 

Original Sheet No. 1 
NTRASTATE LONG DISTANCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

TITLE SHEET 
of 

TARIFF NO. 1 
BIRCH TELECOM OF THE SOUTH, INC. 

This Tariff, filed with the Florida Putdic Service Commission, contains the rates, terms and conditions 
applicable to the provision of intrastate! interexchange telecommunications services in the State of Florida 
provided by Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. with principal offices at 2020 Baltimore Avenue, Kansas City, 
Missouri 64108. This tariff is on file with the Florida Public Service Commission, and copies may be inspected 
during normal business hours ai the Company's principal place of business. 

The Company's telephone numbers are: 
(8 16) 300-3000 (telephone) 
(8 16) 300-3247 (facsimile) 

Issued: June 20,2000 Effective : 
Issued by: Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. 

David E. Scott, President 
2020 Baltimore Avenue 
Kansas City, MCI 64108 

1161 374 VI: -W4#01 I. W C  
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BIRCH TELECOM OF THE SOU lT€, INC. Florida Tariff No. 1 

Original Sheet No. 2 
INTRASTATE LONG DISTANCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

PAGE 

TITLE SHEET ..........................1....11........................................,,..,,.,....................,...,..,,.,...................,.,,..,..,..,................., 1 
TABLE OF CONTENTS ...... . , , .. , .. . . . . . .. . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . .. , . . , , .. . . . . . __. . . . . . . . . . , , . . , , . , , . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. , . . , , . , , . , , .. , .. . . . . . . . . __. .. . .. , .. , . , , . , . . , . ._. . - 2  
CONCURRING CARRIERS ...... , .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . , , .. , , . . . .. . . . . . . . . . __. . . , . .. , . . , , .. , , . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . .. , , .. , .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , , . , , . , , . , , . , . .. . .4 
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2. APPLICATION OF TARLFF ..... . .. , , .. , .. . . . . . .. . . . . . ._. . . . . . . , . .. , . . , , . , , . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . , , . . . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . . .. . .. , .. , , . , , . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . _. .6 
3. DEFINITIONS ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 
4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE ............................................................................ 8 

4.1 General ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 
4.2 Rules and Regulations ................................................................................................................................. 8 

4.2.1 Undertaking of the Company .... . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . .. , . . , , ,. . . . . . .. . . . . . .. , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... . . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . ............... . . .8 
4.2.2 Limitations of Service! .................................................................................................................. 3 

Issued: June 20,2000 Effective: 
Issued by: Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. 

David E. Scott, President 
2020 Baltimore Avenue 
Kansas City, MCI 64108 

1151 374 VI : -W4W1 LDOC 
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BIRCH TELECOM OF THE SOW E€. INC . 
n 

FIorida Tariff No . 1 

Original Sheet No . 3 
lNTRASTATE LONG DIST-ANCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) 
EBsiE 

4 . PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.2 Rules and Regulations (continued) 

4.2.3 UseofService ............................................................................................................................. 9 
4.2.4 Liability ....................................................................................................................................... 9 
4.2.5 Interruption of Service .............................................................................................................. 1 1  
4.2.6 Responsibility of the Customer ................................................................................................. 1 1  
4 -2.7 Responsibility of the Company ................................................................................................. 16 
4.2.8 Restoration of Servicr: ............................................................................................................... 18 
4.2.9 Taxes and Surcharges ................................................................................................................ 18 
4.2.10 Start of Billing ........................................................................................................................... 18 
4.2.1 1 Terminal Equipment ................................................................................................................. 19 
4.3 Service Offerings ...................................................................................................................... 19 
4.3.1 Toll Service ............................................................................................................................... 19 
4.3.2 Travel Card Service ................................................................................................................... 19 
4.3.3 800Service ................................................................................................................................ 19 

4.3.5 Conference Service ................................................................................................................... 19 
4.4 Service Rates ......................................................................................................................................... 20 

4.4.1 Toll Service ............................................................................................................................... 20 
4.4.2 800 Service ................................................................................................................................ 20 
4.4.3 Travel Card Service ................................................................................................................... 20 
4.4.4 Directory Assistance ................................................................................................................. 21 
4.4.5 Conference Service ................................................................................................................... 21 
4.4.6 Birch Basic Business :Line and Trunk ....................................................................................... 21 
4.4.7 Birch Voice TI Service ............................................................................................................. 22 
4.4.8 Birch Integrator Business Package ............................................................................................ 23 
4.4.9 Birch Business Volume Commitment Plans - Rates ................................................................. 24 

4.5 Promotions ............................................................................................................................................. 26 

4.3.4 Directory Assistance ................................................................................................................. 19 

Issued: June 20. 2000 
Issued by: Birch Telecom of the South. Inc . 

David E . Scott. hesident 
2020 Baltimore Avenue 
Kansas City. MO 64 108 

Effective: 

1161374 ul: -W4#3Il.DOC 
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BIRCH TELECOM OF T H E  SObTH, INC. 

n 

Florida Tariff No. 1 

Original Sheet No. 4 
INTRASTATE LONG DIST,4NCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE - 

Issued June 20,2000 Effective: 
Issued by: Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. 

David E. Scott, President 
2020 Baltimore Avenue 
Kansas City, MO 641 08 

1161374 VI; -W4#01 I.OOC 
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BIRCH TELECOM OF THE SOUTH, INC. 

n 

Florida Tariff No. I 

Original Sheet No. 5 
INTRASTATE LONG DISTANCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

1.  EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS 

The following symbols shall be uried in this Tariff for the purpose indicated below: 

Moved From Another Tariff Location 

Delete or Discontinue 

Change Resulting In An Iricrease To A Customer's Bill 

New 

Change Resulting in a Reduction to a Customer's Bill 

Change In Text Or ReguIation But No Change In Rate Or Charge 

"When used in reference to a rate, the symbol (C) indicates rhat a change in the method of applying a 
rule which will result in either an inereme or a decrease for certub customers. 

Issued June 20,2000 Effective: 
Issued by: Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. 

David E. Scott, President 
2020 Baltimore Avenue 
Kansas City, MO 64 108 



-# 

BIRCH TELECOM OF THE SObTH, INC. 

n 

Florida Tariff No. 1 

Original Sheet No. 6 
INTRASTATE LONG DIST,4NCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

2. APPLICATION OF TARIFF 

The service rates and regulations st:t forth in this Tariff are generally applicable to the provision of 
intrastate interexchange telecommunications services and non-switched local exchange 
telecommunications services by Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. (the "Company"). 

- 
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3. DEFINITIONS 

As used in this Tariff, the followinj: terms shall have the following meanings unless the context 
otherwise requires: 

Comnanv,the - Birch Telecom of the South, Inc., unIess the context indicates othenvise. 
. .  Comrmsslon - Florida PubIic Service Commission, unless the context indicates otherwise. 

Customer - The person, firm, corporation or other legal entity which contracts with the Company to 
receive telecommunications services from the Company. 

- One Customer Premises is all space in the same building occupied by a Customer 
and all space occupied by the same Customer in different buildings on the same property. 

Circuit - A communications path of a specific bandwidth or transmission speed between two or more 
points of termination. 

Facilities - All Company-owned 0.r operated equipment and Cable Facilities used to provide 
telecommunications services. 

Case Basis - A service arrangement in which the conditions, rates, and charges are 
developed based on the specific circumstances of the case. 

LATA - Local Access and Transport Area 

Premises - A building or structure on property not separated by a public right-of-way. The property 
may be divided by a private right-0.f-way or easement, such as a railroad right-of-way. 

h m n a l  Account Code - A numeric or aipha-numeric sequence which uniquely identifies a travel card. 

&mite Line Service - An unswitchad full-time transmission service utilizing the Facilities to connect 
two or more designated locations ofthe same Customer or User. 

. .  . . .  - All equipment placed in a structure that converts the transmitted signal to a 
requested service type, connects the: structure to the Company’s network and provides a point of 
interfacelconnection to whch the Customer can connect its equipment. This may include electronic 
equipment, cable, wiring, connecting panels and blocks. 

m r  - A person, firm, or corporation designated as a user of common carrier services furnished to the 
Customer. A User must be specifically named in the Customer’s application for services. 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE 

4.1 The Company shall provide intrastate interexchange telecommunications service to Customers 
according to the terms and conhtions of this Tariff. 

4.2. b and Re- 
4.2. f Undertaking of the Company 

A. The Company undertakes to furnish telecommunications service pursuant to the terms 
of this Tariff in clmnection with one-way and/or two-way information transmission 
between points in hfferent exchanges within the State of Florida. 

B. The furnishing of‘ service under this Tariff is subject to the availability on a 
continuing basis of a11 the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the 
Company’s facilities as well as facilities the Company may obtain from other carriers 
to furnish service from time to time as required at the Sole discretion of the Company. 

C. The Company res,erves the right to limit or to allocate the use of existing facilities, or 
of additional facilities, offered by the Company, when necessary because of lack of 
facilities, or due to some other cause beyond the Company’s control. 

D. The Company ma.y undertake equipment OT facilities additions, removals or 
rearrangements; routine preventive maintenance; or other service-affecting activities 
that may occur in normal operation of the Company’s business. Generally, such 
activities are not apecific to an individual Customer but affect many Customers’ 
services. No spec:ific advance notification period is applicable to all service activities. 
With some emergency or unplanned service-affecting conditions, such as an outage 
resulting from wiling or equipment damage, notification to the Customer may not be 
possible. 

E. Applications for initial or additional service made verbally or in writing become a 
contract upon the establishment of the service or facility. 

4.2. + (continued) 

4.2.2 Limitations of Service 
A. Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities and equipment, 

necessary arrangements with other carriers and billing capabilities, and is subject to 
the provisions of h i i s  Tariff. The Company reserves the right not to provide service 
to or from a location where legally prohibited. 

B. The Company reserves the right to discontinue furnishing service when necessitated 
by conditions beyond its control, or when the Customer is using the service in 
violation of any provision in this Tariff, the rules and regulations of the Commission, 
or the law. 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.2. Rules ' (continued) 

4.2.3 Use of Service 

4.2.4 

A. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

Permitted Uses 

Services provided under this tariff may be used for any lawful purpose for which the 
service is technic,slly suited. 

Minimum Service Period 

The minimum period of service is one month (30 days), unless otherwise stated in this 
Tariff. 

Fixed Service Period 

If Customer and the Company have agreed to a specified term of service, then 
following expiration of the initial term of service, or any extension thereof, service 
shall continue on a month-to-month basis at the then current rates unless terminated 
by either party upon 30 days' written notice. 

Termination 

Any termination shall not relieve Customer of its obligation to pay any charges 
incurred under this Tariff or in any service order prior to termination. The rights and 
obligations which. by their nature extend beyond the termination of the term of the 
service order shall survive such termination. 

Liability 

A. The liability of the Company for any claim or loss, expense or damage, due to any 
interruption, deIa:y, error, omission, or defect in any service, facility, or transmission 
provided under the Tariff shall not exceed the amount of the credit allowance 
described in Section 4.2.5 herein. The extension of credit allowances as described in 
Section 4.2.5 shall be the sole remedy of Customer and sole liability of the Company 
for any interruption, delay, error, omission, or defect in any service, facility, or 
transmission provided under the Tariff. In no event wiIl the Company be liable for 
any direct, indirect, consequential, incidental, exemplary, punitive, or special 
damages, or for m y  lost income or profits, even if advised of the possibility of the 
Same. 

- 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.2. ’ (continued) 

4.2.4 Liability (continued) 

B. The Company sh.all not be liable for any claim or loss, expense, or damage, due to 
any interruption, delay, error, omission, or other defect in service, facility, or 
transmission provided under this Tariff, if caused by or resdting from: any person or 
entity other than h e  Company; any malfunction of any service OT facility provided by 
any Person other than the Company; labor difficulties; fire, flood, earthquake, or any 
other act of God; explosion; war; riot OT civil disturbance; any law, order, regulation, 
direction, action or request of any federal, state or local government or any 
department, agaxy, commission, bureau, or other instrumentality of federal, state or 
local government; or by any other cause beyond the Company’s control. 

C. The Company shdl not be liable for and shal1 be fully indemnified and heId harmless 
by Customer against any claim of loss, expense, or damage, including indirect, 
special, or consequential damage for: 
I .  

2. 

3. 

Defamation, libel, slander, invasion of privacy, infringement of copynght or 
patent, unauthorized use of any trademark, trade name, or service mark, unfair 
competition, interference with or misappropriation, or violation of any contract, 
proprietary or creative right, or any other injury to any person, ptoperty, or entity 
arising from the material, data, information, or content revealed to, transmitted, 
processed, handled, or used by the Company under this Tariff; 

Any claim, loss, damage, expense or liability for infringement of any copyright, 
patent, trade secret, or any proprietary or inteIlectua1 property right of the 
Company or any third party, arising from any act or omission by the Customer, 
includmg, without limitation, use of the Company’s services and facilities in a 
manner not contemplated by this Tariff or any agreement between the Customer 
and the Company; or 

Any personal injury or death of any person or for any loss of or damage to 
Customer Prt:mises or any other property, whether owned by Customer or others, 
caused directly or indirectly by the installation, maintenance, location, condition, 
operation, failure, presence, use, or removal of equipment or wiring provided by 
the Company, if not caused by gross negligence of the Company. 

D. No agent or emphyee of any other carrier shall be deemed to be an agent or 
employee of the Company. 

E. THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTY REGARDING THE PROVISION OF 
SERVICE PURSUANT TO THIS TARIFF, INCLUDWG BUT NOT LIMITED TO 
THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.2. Rules and Re- (continued) 

4.2.5 Interruption of Service 

Customer will be entitled to a credit allowance for an intemption of service whch is not 
caused by or does not result from the negligence or act of Customer or to the failure of 
channels, equipment, power supplies, andor communications systems provided by 
Customer or Persons other than the Company. A credit allowance is subject to the 
provisions of this section and the other sections of this Tariff, including, but not limited to, 
the general liability provisions set forth in Section 4.2.4 herein and the kms of Section 
4.2.6 herein. Customrx is obligated to notify the Company immediately of any 
interruption in service for which the Customer desires a credit allowance. 

4.2.6 Responsibility of the Customer 

A. All Customers assume general responsibilities in connection with the provisions and 
use of the Company’s service. When facilities, equipment, andor communications 
systems provided by others are connected to the Company’s facilities, Customer 
assumes additional responsibilities. Customers are responsible for: 

1. Placing orders for service; paying all appropriate charges for service rendered by 
the Company; complying with the Company’s regulations governing the service; 
and assuring that its users comply with regulations. 

2. Providing: 

(a) the name(s> and address(es) of the person(s) responsible fox the payment of 

(b) the name:(s), telephone number(s), and address(es) of the Customer contact 
service charges; and 

person( s). 

3. Paying the Company for the replacement or repair of the Company’s equipment 
when the danlage resuhs fiorn: 

(a) the negligence or willful act of Customer or user; 

(b) improper use of service; or 

(c )  any use of equipment or service provided by others. 

4. A Customer who subscribes to the Company’s intrasbte interexchange services 
and resells thase services to others shall be responsible for complying with all 
laws and regulations of the State of Florida, which relate in any way to its 
provision of intrastate interexchange telephone service, including, but not limited 
to, laws and regulations regarding consumer protection, billing and collection 
practices, tariffing obligations, and payment of applicable taxes. 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 

4.2. Bules a- latiom (continued) 

4.2.6 Responsibility of the Customer (continued) 

B. Credlt Allowanccis 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Credit for failure of service will be allowed only when failure of service is caused 
by or occurs in facilities or equipment owned, provided and billed for, by the 
Company. 

Credit allowmces for faiIure of service starts when Customer notifies the 
Company of the failure or when the Company becomes aware of the failure and 
ceases when the operation has been restored and an attempt has been made to 
notify Customer. 

Customer shall notify the Company of failures of service and make reasonable 
attempts to ascertain that the failure is not caused by Customer Provided 
Equipment, any act or omission ofthe Customer, or in wiring or equipment. 

Only those portions of the service disabled will be credited. No credit allowances 
will be made for: 

(a) interruptions of service resulting from the Company performing routine 
maintemtnce; 

(b) intemptions of service for implementation of a Customer order for a change 
in the service; 

(c) interruptions caused by the negligence or willful act of omission of 
Customer or its authorized user; or 

(d) interruptions of service because of the failure of service or equipment 
provided by Customer, authorized user, or other carriers. 

The Company’s liability for damages arising out of mistakes, interruptions, 
omissions, de:lays, errors, or defects in transmission which OCCUT in the course of 
furnishing service or facilities, in no event shall exceed an amount equivalent to 
the proportionate charge to the Customer for the period during which the faults in 
transmission occur. 

C. Cancellation by Customer 

1. Customer may cancel service any time after meeting the minimum service 
period. 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 

4.2. ’ (continued) 

4.2.6 Responsibility of the Customer (continued) 

D. Payment and Chmges for Service 

1. Charges for 5;ervice are applied on recurring and nonrecurring bases. Service is 
billed on a monthly basis on or about the same day each month. Service 
continues to be provided until canceled by Customer or by the Company in 
accordance with provisions of this Tariff. 

2. The Company will not alter the residential billing cycle unless affected customers 
are sent a bill insert or other written notice explaining the alteration not less than 
30 days prior to the effective date of the alteration. Such notification Is not 
required when a customer requests a number or billing change or when the 
customer disconnects and reconnects service or transfers service from one 
premises to another. 

3. Payment will be due pursuant to applicable Commission rules. The Company 
includes its name and its toll-free telephone number on all invoices. 

4. The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for service furnished to 
the Customer, including, but not limited to all calls originated at the Customer’s 
number(s); received at the Customer’s number(s), e.g., collect, BOO; billed to the 
Customer’s number(s) via third-party billing; incurred at the specific request of 
the Customer; or placed using a calling card issued to the Customer. Charges 
based on actual usage during a month will be billed monthly in arrears. All fixed 
monthly and nonrecurring charges for services ordered will be billed monthly in 
advance . 

5 .  Service may ’be denied pursuant to the Commission’s rules regarding 
disconnection of service for nonpayment. Restoration of service will be subject 
to all applicalile installation charges. 

6. Customer is liable for all costs associated with collecting past due charges, 
including all attorney’s fees. 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 

4.2. Rules and Re- (continued) 

4.2.6 Responsibility of the Customer (continued) 

D. Payment and Charges for Service (continued) 

7. The Company sets forth the following on residential bills: 

(a) the numlier of access lines for which charges are stated. 
(b) the beginning or ending dates of the billing period. 
(c) the date the bill becomes delinquent if not paid on time. 
(d) the unpaid balance (if any). 
(e) an itemkition of the amount due for toll service, including the date and 

duration of each toll call. 
(0 an itemiration of the amount due for taxes, franchise fees, and other 

surcharges as may be necessary and appropriate. 
(g) the total amount due. 
(h) if applicable, the amount of a deposit and interest accrued on a deposit which 

has been credited to the charges stated. 
(i) a telephcm number where inquiries may be made. 
(j) if a deposit is held by the company. 

8. If notice of a dispute as to charges is not received in writing, in person or via 
telephone message by the Company within 30 days after billing is received by the 
Customer, the invoice shall be considered correct and binding on the Customer, 
unless extraordinary circumstances are demonstrated. Any disputed charges that 
cannot be resolved between Customer and the Company may be appealed to the 
Commission. 

E. Deposits and Advance Payments 

1. Advance Payments 

The Company may require a Customer or applicant for service to make an advance 
payment ( I )  if the applicant is unable to establish that he had a previous account 
with a telephone utility for a period of at least 12 months for which all undisputed 
charges were satisfactorily paid, or (2) if the applicant has had no previous 
telephone service or has had previous telephone service of less than 12 months, the 
applicant’s credit record will be accessed and evaluated by means of a mechanized 
retrieval systcm between the Company and national recognized credit bureaus. No 
security payment will be required of those applicants who meet the Company’s 
criteria, as evaluated by the scoring model. The criteria used in assessing a score is 
as follows: collection judgments, written-off accounts, outstanding collection 
accounts, various degrees of delinquency history from 30-180 days and not paid in 
fuIl or current at the time of scoring, bankruptcies, liens, other public records. The 
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4. PROVISION OF LNTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.2. (continlied) 

4.2.6 Responsibility of the ICustomer (continued) 

E. Deposits and Advance Payments (continued) 

1. Advance Payments (continued) 
advance payment will not exceed an amount equal to all nonrecurring charges and 
two month’s estimated recurring charges, as a condition of continued or new 
service. 

The advance payment will be credited to the Customer’s initial bill and, to the 
extent that a credit balance remains after the amount of the initial bill has been 
satisfied, then the credit balance wilI be applied to subsequent bills in the same 
manner until there is no balance remaining on the advance payment. 

2. Deposits 

The Company reserves the right to examine the credit record of all service 
applicants as stated above and require a security deposit, not to exceed two 
month’s estirnated recurring charges, when determined to be necessary to assure 
future payment. The security deposit will be computed by the Company in 
accordance with Commission rules and regulations. 

Deposits held will accrue interest at a rate which is no higher than seven percent 
(7%). All Customer deposits will be governed by Rule 8 of the General Rules of 
the Florida Public Service Commission. 

If Customer pays all undisputed charges for 12 consecutive billing cycles, the 
deposit shall be promptly refunded along with accrued interest, or credited to 
future charges on subsequent bills. 

F. Bad Check Charge 

The Company will bill Customer a one-time charge of $25.00 if Customer’s check for 
payment of service is returned for insufficient or uncollected funds, closed accounts, 
or any other insufficiency or discrepancy necessitating return of the check at the 
discretion of the clrawee bank or other financial institution. 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 

4.2. & a nd Rem W (continued) 

4.2.6 Responsibility of the Customer (continued) 

G. Late Payment Charge 

The Company miy apply a late payment charge if any portion of the Customer’s 
payment is received by the Company after the payment due date, OT if any portion of 
the payment is received by the Company in funds which are not immediately 
available upon presentment, The late payment charge shall be applied to the portion 
of the payment not received by the date due, multiplied by a factor. The late factor 
shall be 1.5% per month. 

Collection procedhres are unaffected by the application of the late payment charge. 
The late payment charge does not apply to final amounts. 

4.2.7 Responsibility of the Company 

A. Provision of Services 

The Company shdl use reasonable efforts to make services avaiIable to a Customer 
on or before a particular date, subject to the provisions of and compliance by the 
Customer with the regulations contained in this Tariff and applicable rules of the 
Commission. 

B. Credit Allowance - Information Records 

For listings in alp.habetica1 te Lephone directories and information records, no liability 
shall be attached 1:o the Company. 

C. Cancellation Credlit 

Where the Company cancels a service and the final service period is lass than the monthly 
billing period, a credit will be issued foT any amounts billed in advance, prorated at 113Oth of 
the monthly recurring charge for each day after the service was discontinued. This credit will 
be issued to Customer or applied against the balance remaining on Customer’s account. 

D. Disconnection of Service by the Company 

The Company may discontinue service or cancel an application for service, pursuant 
to applicable Corrunission rules, including Rules 12 and 13 of the General Rules of 
the Florida Public Service Commission, without incurring any liability for any of the 
following reasons: 

1. Nonpayment of an unhsputed delinquent charge; or 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.2. - a nd Rep- ’ (continued) 

4.2.7 Responsibility of the Company (continued) 

D. Disconnection of Service by the Company (continued) 

2. Without notioe for tampering with the Company’s equipment, hazardous concbtions, or 
Customer USI: of equipment where it adversely affects the Company’s equipment or 
services; or 

3. Without notice in the event of a violation of any law, rule, or regulation of any government 
authority having jurisdiction over the service; or 

4. Without notice in the event the Company is prolubited from furnishing services by order of 
a court or other federal, state or local government authority, bureau, agency or commission, 
or 

5. Without notice if the Customer refuses to furnish information to the Company regarding 
the Customer’s credit-worthiness, its past or current use of common carrier 
communications services or its planned use of service(s); or 

Without notice if the Customer provides false information to the Company regarding the 
Customer’s identity, address, credit-worthiness, past or current use of common carrier 
communications services, or its planned use of the Company’s service(s); or 

6 .  

7. Without notice if the Customer states that it will not or fails to comply with a request of the 
Company for security for the payment for service(s) or advance payments, as specified in 
this Tariff; 01’ 

E, Without notice if the Customer uses service to transmit a message, locate a person or 
otherwise give or obtain information without payment for the service; or 

Without notice if the Customer uses, or attempts to use, service with the intent to avoid the 
payment, eithler in whole or in part, of the tariffed charges for the service by using tricks, 
schemes, false or invalid numbers, false credit devices, electronic devices, or other means; 
or 

9. 

10. Without notice if the Customer’s use of equipment adversely affects the Company’s service 
to others or endangers public safety or health; or 

1 1. Without notice if upon condemnation of any material portion of the Customer’s facilities 
used by the Clompany to provide service to the Customer or if a casualty renders all or any 
material portion of such facilities inoperable beyond feasible repair; or 

12. Without notice for fraudulent use of the Company’s network. 

Residential service may not be discontinued by the Company €or failure to pay charges not 
subject to the Conmission’s jurisdiction unless specifically authorized in the Company’s tariffs 
approved by the C:ommission. 
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4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 

4.2. Rules ’ (continued) 

4.2.7 

4.2.8 

4.2.9 

4.2.10 

Responsibility of the Company (continued) 

D. Disconnection of Service by the Company (continued) 

Residential service may be discontinued during normal business hours on or after the 
date specified in h e  notice of discontinuance. Service shall not be dmontinued on a 
day when the offices of the Company are not available to facilitate reconnection of 
service or on a da.y immehately preceding such a day. 

Residential custoiners shall have a minimum of 21 days from the rendition of a bill to 
pay the charges srated. Five (5) days written notice must be given prior to 
disconnection of :service. 

Restoration of Service! 

If service is disconnected for nonpayment, service will be reestablished only upon receipt 
of payment of all charges due, which indude charges for service and facilities during the 
period of disconnection and which may indude a service restoration fee. If the Customer 
has a history of paymtmts returned for insufficient funds, the Company m y  require 
payment by cash, mortey order, personal check or certified check. If payment is made by 
personal check, restorilltion will be effected upon clearance of the check. When a 
Customer’s service has been disconnected in accordance with this Tariff and the service 
has been terminated though the completion of the Company’s service order, service will 
be reestablished only lipon a basis of an application for new service. 

Taxes and Surcharges 

A. Customer will be billed and is responsible for payment of applicable federal, state and 
local taxes, fees, assessments and surcharges assessed in conjunction with service 
used. All charges and fees subject to Commission jurisdiction, except taxes and 
franchlse fees, will be submitted to the Commission for prior approval. 

B. All taxes, surchaqes and assessments (i.e., sales tax, municipal utilities tax, franchise 
fee, etc.) will be Listed as separate line items and are not included in the quoted rates. 

Start of Billing 

For billing purposes, t.he start of service is the day of acceptance by the Customer of the 
Company’s service or equipment. 
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Original Sheet No. 19 
INTRASTATE LONG DISTANCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4 -2.1 1 Terminal Equipment 

The Company’s facilities and service may be used with or terminated in Customer 
provided terminal equipment or Customer provided communications systems, such as 
PBX, key systems or other telecommunications devices. Such terminal equipment shall 
be furnished and maintained at the expense of the Customer. The Customer is responsible 
for all costs at its premises, including personnel, wiring, electrical power, and the like, 
incurred in the use of the Company’s service. When such terminal equipment is used, the 

equipment shall comply with the generally accepted minimum protective criteria standards 
of the telecommunications industry as endorsed by the Federal Communications 
Commission. 

4.3 Service Offerlnes 

4.3.1 

4.3.2 

4.3.3 

4.3.4 

4.3.5 

Toll Service 

Provides facilities to complete interLATA, intrastate or intraLATA, interexchange calls 
between two points. Customer makes call by diaIing directly or with operator assistance. 
Direct Dialing includes 1 + Area Code (where necessary) $. telephone number, or, in some 
cases for EntraLATA, users must access the Company’s network by dialing 1010678 then 
1 + Area Code + Number. For operator assistance a customer dials 0 only, 0 + telephone 
number or 0 + NPA 4- telephone number for IntratATA calls. 

Travel Card Service 

Travel card service provides facilities to complete interLATA and intraLATA calls 
between two points when the Customer is away from hisher premises. The requesting 
Customer is provided with a travel calling card which includes instructions for its use. 

800 Service 

800 Service provides For facilities for the Customer(s) to receive interLATA and 
intraLATA calls. The Customer will be assigned unique 800 number(s) that, when dialed, 
will be routed via the IZompany’s network and terminate at Customer’s designated local 
access line(s). 

Directory Assistance 

The Company furnishr:s Directory Assistance Service whereby Customers may request 
assistance in determining telephone numbers in accordance with the rates and terms stated 
in Section 4.4. Service: Rates. 

Conference Service 
Conference Service provides a simuItaneous connection between three or more points 
within the State of Florida. 
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Florida Tariff No. I 

Original Sheet No. 20 
INTRASTATE LONG DISTANCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

4 . PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 

4.4.1 Toll Service 

From Customer’s Preimises in Florida to any point in Florida: 

Per Minuk 

Business-1 Year Tern (I) 
Bus in e s s 
Residence 

4.4.2 800 Service 

.09 

.09 
-10 

Monthly minimum per 800 number(4) 
Monthly charge per 800 number 

6 seconds 
6 seconds 
1 minute 

From points in Florida to Customer’s Premises in Florida: 

Business-1 Year T’erm(1) 
Business 
Residence 

Pa Minute 

.09 

.09 
-10 

5.00 
5 .OO 

. .  Minimum R-~.r,crcm 

6 seconds 
4 seconds 
1 minute 

Payphone origination charge - $.30 per call 

( I )  Business customers subscribing to the Company’s local exchange service who commit to a one 
year service term as defined in the Company’s Local Exchange Services PSC Price List No. 1 
receive a discounted rate on their long distance service. Refer to the Company’s Local Exchange 
Services PSC Price List No. 1 for information on term cancellation penalties. 

4.4.3 Travel Card Service 

From any point in Florida to points in Florida: 

Business and Residence( 1) 
Residence 

Per Minute 

$ 2 5  
.25 

Minimum RlllmpInt;rement 

6 seconds 
1 minute 

Travel Card Operator Services - $.50 per call 
Payphone origination charge - $.30 per call 
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Florida Tariff No. 1 

Original Sheet No. 21 
INTRASTATE LONG DIST.4NCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

4. 
4.4 Service Rates (continued) 

PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 

4.4.4 Directory Assistance 

%.60 per call per inqufiry 

Minim- 
4.4.5 Conference Service 

Business 
Residence 

$.25 6 seconds 
.25 1 minute 

4.4.6 Birch Basic Business Line and Trunk (1) 

A. Toll Service 

From Customer’s Prr:mises in Florida to any point in Florida: 

Per M 
. .  inute Mini- 

$. 10 1 minute Business (2) 
.IO 6 seconds Business (3) 

Business- I Year Te:rm(3) -09 6 seconds 
-09 6 seconds Business 

B. 800 Service 

From points in Floricla to Customer’s Premises in Florida: 

Per Minute 

$.lo 6 seconds Business (3) 
Business-1 Year Tmn(3) .09 6 seconds 

.09 6 seconds Business 

Payphone origination charge - $.30 per call 

C. Travel Card Service 

From any point in Florida to points in Florida: 

Per Muuk Minimum B i b ?  Increment 

Business (2) $.25 6 seconds 
Business (3 )  .20 6 seconds 
Business-1 Year Teim (3) .20 6 seconds 
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Original Sheet No. 22 
INTRASTATE LONG DISTA4NCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.4 Service Rates (continued) 

4.4.6 Birch Basic Business Line and Trunk ( 1 )  (continued) 

Travel Card Operator Services - $.50 per call 

Payphone origination charge - $.30 per call 

{ 1) Business Customers subscribing to the Company’s local exchange business packages as 
defined in the Compaiiy’s Local Exchange Service PSC Price List No. 1 will receive a 
discounted rate on their long distance service. 

(2) Applies to Birch Business Packages Customers not subscribing to Birch Long Distance 
Service. 

(3) Applies to Birch Business Packages Customers subscribing to Birch Long Distance 
Service for IntraLATA, Intrastate and Interstate except Alaska and Hawaii. 

4.4.7 Birch Voice T1 Service ( 1 )  

A. Toll Service 

From Customer’s Premises in Florida to any point in Florida: 

Business (2) 
Business (3) 

$.lo 
.07 

inimm . .  R- . .  

1 minute 
6 seconds 

B. 800 Service 

From points in Florida to Customer’s Premises in Florida: 

Business (3) 
Business-l Year Term(3) 
Business 

$ . I O  
.09 
-09 

. .  . .  mmum Bi- 

6 seconds 
6 seconds 
6 seconds 

Payphone origiination charge - $.30 per call 

Jssued: June 20,2000 Effective: 
Issued by: Birch Telecom a€ the South, Inc. 

David E. Scott, E’resident 
2020 Baltimore Avenue 
Kansas City, MC) 64 I O 8  

1161 374 v l  : - W 4 W  ].DOC 



n 
BIRCH TELECOM OF THE SOU lTl, JNC. 

n 

Florida Tariff No. 1 

Original Sheet No. 23 
INTRASTATE LONG DISTANCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.4 Service- (continued) 

C. Travelcard 

From any point in Florida to points in Florida: 

Per M inu t e 

Business $20 6 seconds 

Travel Card Operator Services - $ S O  per call 

Payphone origination charge - $.30 per call 

(1) Business Customm subscribing to the Company’s Iocal exchange business service as 
defined in the Company’s Local Exchange Service PSC Price List No. 1 will received 
a discounted rate on their Iong distance service. 

Distance Service. 

IntnLATA, Intrastate and Interstate except Alaska and Hawaii. 

(2) Applies to Birch 13usiness Packages Customers not subscribing to Birch Long 

(3) Applies to Birch 13usiness Customers subscribing to Birch Long Distance Service for 

4.4.8 Birch Integrator 3usiness Package (1) 

A. Toll Service 

From Customer’s Premises in Florida to any point in Florida: 

Per Minute rement 

Business (2) 
Business (3) 

$. lo  1 minute 
-07 6 seconds 

B. 800 Service 

From points in Florida to Customer’s Premises in Florida: 

Per Minuk 

Business (3) $.lo 6 seconds 
Business- 1 Year Twm(3) -09 li seconds 
Business -09 6 seconds 

Payphone origination charge$.30 per call 
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Florida Tariff No. 1 

Original Sheet No. 24 
INTRASTATE LONG DIST.4NCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.4 (continued) 

C. Travel Card Service 

From any point in Florida to points in Florida: 

Business 

Per M i a  

$.20 

. .  Mini- 

6 seconds 

Travel Card Operator Services - $50 per call 
Payphone origination charge - $.30 per call 

(1) Business Customers subscribing to the Company‘s local exchange business package as 
defined in the Company’s Local Exchange Service PSC Price List No. 1 will receive a 
discounted rate on their tong &stance service. 

(2) Applies to Birch Busiiness Packages Customers not subscribing to Birch Long Distance 
Service. 

(3) Applies to Birch Busiiiess Packages Customers subscribing to Birch Long Distance 
Service for IntraLATA, Intrastate and Interstate except Alaska and Hawaii. 

4.4.9. Birch Business Volume Commitment Plans -Rates 

The volume commitment level can be met by a Combination of Toll, 800 and Calling Card 
Services usage. 

1. Toll Service 

- 5.00 Volumr: Comm iw 

Rate Per 

(1) 
Rate Per Minuk 

Intrastate $.OS 
Interstate .os 
Alaska, Hawaii, Virgin Islands 

. l l  
Total UuFe $100.00 Velum Rate Per Mi& 

and Puerto Rico 
- 

Intrastate 
Interstate 
Alaska, Hawaii, Virgin Islands 

and Puerto Rico 

$.07 
.07 

-11 

Increment 

Increment 

6 seconds 
6 seconds 

6 seconds 

Increment 

6 seconds 
6 seconds 

6 seconds 
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INTRASTATE LONG DISTANCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNCATIONS SERVICE 

4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE (continued) 
4.4 Service R m  (continued) 

4.4.9. Business Volume Comniitment Plans -- Rates (continued) 

T-lMCommitment I Rate Per Minute 
Increment 

Intrastate 
Interstate 
Alaska, Hawaii, Virgin Islands 

and Puerto Rico 

$1.065 
,065 

6 seconds 
6 seconds 

-11 6 seconds 

Total UaFe - S 1.000,OO Volume Cpmmibe nt Rate Per Minute 
increment 

Intrastate 
Interstate 
Alaska, Hawaii, Virgin Islands 

and Puerto h c o  

$.06 
.06 

6 seconds 
6 seconds 

, 11  6 seconds 

00.00 Vobtme CQ ” nt W e r  Minw 
Increment 

Intrastate 
Interstate 
Alaska, Hawaii, Virgin Islands 

and Puerto Rico 

$.055 
-055 

6 seconds 
6 seconds 

. I1  6 seconds 

(1) See Section 4.4 preceding for rate per minute. 
2. 80QService 

lv Usue for Vo1u-e nt Rate per mlnute 

No Volume Commitment 
$25.00 Volume Commitment 
$100.00 VoIume Commitment 
$500.00 Volume Commitment 
$1,000.00 Volume Commitment 
$2,500.00 Volume Commitment 

.09 
-09 
.OS5 
.08 
,075 
.07 
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INTRASTATE LONG DISTANCE MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

4. PROVISION OF INTRASTATE INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE {continued) 

3. Travel Card -- nt Rate per minute 

No Volume Commi&nent 
$25.00 Volume Commitment 
$100.00 Volume Comutment 
$500.00 Volume Commitment 
$1,000.00 Volume Corrmitment 
$2,500.00 Volume Comnitment 

$.20 
.20 
-20 
2 0  
.20 
-20 

4.5 P r o m o m  

From time to time, the Company may elect to offer special promotions to its customers. These 
promotions will generally consist of a reduced price, a waiver of installation charges, or a free 
service with a purchase of another service. 

Any promotional waiver or discounted rate will apply only one time per customer for each service 
in any given wire center prefix during the course of the promotional period, subject to prior 
notification and approval by the Commission. 

The Company will provide written notice to the Commission no less than seven (7) days prior to 
the beginning of each promoticin period identifying the promotion and the exchanges within which 
the promotion will be offered. If facilities permit, all residence and/or business customers will be 
offered the same opportunity to take advantage of the same terms and conditions under the 
promotions in which to subscribe to residence or business services. 
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us. a t r u n k  level one d i g i t a l  
tranernieaion link, d i r m t  inward 
dialing and number i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  
for inbaund calle 

INTERHBT 

Unlimited Internet access, t w o  
email boxes per account, remote 
aceeaa to emall v i a  t h e  web and 
five megabytea o€ storagsr apace 
plua any cuetomer-mtlcctcd 
f eaturco 

Dial plus extended period of 
inactivity before disconr~ect  

A dedicated integrated mrvices 
digital network, an on-premise 
inr-egratcd service d i g i t d l  network 
router.  up t o  2 5  tmail bcsxerr. 
dedicated Internet protocol 
addreeete for  p u b l i c  applicationa, 
netvork addrese trannlation, 
c u e t m  domain servicte, p lus  any 
cuatomcr-aclected feature8 

A eymnctric digital aubscriber 
line service, an on-premise 
router, up t o  100 email baxce, 
Internet protocol addres0,ea for 
public applications, n c t w l x k  
addreea translation, cuBtlm domain 
a e r v i c e a ,  p l u a  any c u e t o r w r -  
selected featurcm 

A two-way dedicated connection to 
us, an on-prernrae router,  up to 
100 m a r l  boxes, Internet  protocwl 
addrcasea f o r  public applications. 
n e t w o r k  addrees t r a n s l a t i o n ,  
custom domain s e r v i c e s ,  p:Lua any 
CUQ t omer - sc l  ec t ed feat ure!i 

A two-vay dedicated connection to 
us, an on-premlat integrated 
r o u t e r  f o r  v o l c e  and data, 
cuatnmer selectlon oE vo ice  and 
data channels t o  a max imum of 4 6 ,  
selected voice f e a t u r e e .  rip to 50 
email boxes. I n t e r n e t  prot.oco1 
addresses for public app11,cat ions .  
network addreail tranalat i n n ,  
cus tom domain s e r v i c e # ,  ~ 1 . ~ 9  any 
c u  3 t m e r  - sc 1 e c  t ed f e a t  ufeir 

D I U  COMPLETE 

ISDN COMPLETE 

DSL COMPLETE 

T1 COMPLETE 

THE XNTEGlLATOR 

WEB HOSTING - . .................................... 
SPACE GENIE 



online account s t a t u e  m p o r t ,  l i t e  
aubmiseion to major rearch 
engines,  curtom domain riervieta, 
10 email addreemes, 
au tore apondc re, auto€ orwa rde re and 
web-baaed management of  tmarl 
toola pluo any customer-relectcd 
feature8 

SPACE W E T  
Space Genie plus 2 0  additional 
mtgabytts of storage, 1,000 
additional megabyten of !monthly 
traffic, common gateway interface 
binary access, and scripl: library, 
web-baaed management of common 
gateway interface script 
auto-install and atatist:.cs p l u s  
any cuatomcr-selected f t zktur t s  
Additional optional features 
include encryption services 
aupport for real audio/video and 
support for Microsof t FrcrntPagt 
txttnsiona 

Space Cadet plum an additional 4 s  
megabytes of mtoragt, 3 , 0 0 0  
mcgabytte of monthly tra€fic, 1 0  
e m a i l  addressee, autorcapondtrs 
and autoforwardere and aupport for 
real audio/vidco 

SPACE HIX: 
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DELIVERY OF SERVICES 

We l e a e t  all of  the unbundled nttuork  elements necessary  to provide s e r v i c e  
from the incumbent local exchange carriers. We believe t h a t  o u r  I V N - P  s t ra tegy  
allows U B  to enter into new market@ mort quickly than if WE had Lnirially 
deployed our o m  network facilities This strategy also reduces initial capltal 
requirements in each market. allowing ua to focus our capital resources 
initially on ti.: critical areas of s a l e s ,  marketing and operations support 
s y s t e m s .  In addition, we believe W - P  will allow us to avoid f u r t h e r  deploying 
circuit ewitchts and maintain design flexibility fo r  t h e  next generation of 
te lecommuni c a t  iona techno 1 q y  . 

BROADBAND 

We intend to inscall d131tal subscriber line equipment at our collocaticn 
sites, at our switch s i t e s  and at o u r  customers'  locations *re belleve this 
equipment will allow us co deliver multiple voice calls and d a t a  traf€rc over 3 
single, standard telephone line and is expected to p r o v i d e  us w i t h  substantia; 
Cost savings Using DSL technology. ae believe w e  will increase c h e  a m o u n t  3 f  
:nfonnac~on ue c a r r j  on a standard telephone line. w h i c h  '"e refer  to as 
bandwidth. to up to 1 . 5  mlllion b i t s  per second The b a n d v l d t h  :s t h e  equ iva lecr .  
of 2 4  regular VDICC telephone linea Our d i q i t a ;  subscriber l i n e  equlpment wili 
be programmed to allocate the availab?e bandwidth 

We belleve chis rechnology wil? reduce o u r  costs sir.ce we wi:: lease a 
reduced number 3 f  standard telephone Lints p e r  customer from :he incumbent 
c a r r i e r  F 3 r  exar.p!e. i f  a cus romer  r=da:/ has  elqht 'doice :;nes. '*e m u s t  -'.rder 
from and  provision through t h e  :GckrLec: cdrr:er e l y t t  : n d : s ' i a u a l  standard 
telephone i : n c s  I f .  the same c u s t m w r  'were to 5 . ~ 7  our ser-::re wk.:c!, ' J S ~ S  d.g : ra :  
s i L b s c r i b e r  ; i n e  recbnc;ogy. w e  acuid c r d e r  a z d  pr:..': s ~ a r .  c7.e s tar .darz i  
:e:eFh;ne ;:ne from t.Se :ncurrker.: c d r r : e r .  Aiso. 'we expet-: tha:  f , J t J r e  F r n a J z t s  
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and aervicea designed to t a k e  advantage of the incrcaaed bandwidth provided by 
digital subscriber line tr:chnology vi11 allow U B  to generate incremental revenue 
with at t rac t ive  margins. 

CUSTOMER PREMISES EQUIPMENT 

We o€fcr our customtra equipment they need to r w  t h e i r  internal phone 
systems,  including data routera and wiring, telephone equipment and integrated 
aceeas devices.  W e  also s e l l  and service  standard key systems, p r i v a t e  branch 
exchanges and v o i c e - m i l  eyatcms, and provide inside-wire servicea  for 
comercia1 accounta, including wiring for data networking, i n  Kanaaa and 
Hisaouri. W e  are an authorized equipment distributor f o r  Northern 
TcIecorn, Inc., Toahiba America Information Symtrma, I n c . ,  NEC A m e r i c a ,  I n c . ,  
Executone Information Syetims,  Inc. and Tadiran Electronic Induatrics, Inc. 

SALES AND MARKETING 

SALES 

A s  of March 23, 2 0 0 0 ,  we had a direct  e a l t s  force of 170 rtpreecntatrvee 
operating f r o m  23 otficea t .hroughout Missouri, Kaneae and Texaa.  Of these 
representatives,  28  were primarily selling customer premises equipment and the 
remarning 1 4 2  were eelling local. long-dietance, data and Internee services. The 
sa le8  reprcacncativem are supported by sales managers. Over t h e  next 12 months. 
YC plan to increase uur  ale^ staff i n  e x i s t i n g  markets and open additional 
ealce offices in Texas and Oklahoma and in Amcritech'e and 8ellSouth's rcgiona. 
We supplement our aalee efforts through bxand auareneea tfforta including local 
and regional advcrtining, public relationa and local sponsorships. 

We seck to convert arnall to mid-sized business CUBtOmCrS from t h e  incumbent 
provider of  telecomunications rrervicea i n  the ir  market and to cstabiieh a 
aolid, long-term rtlationa i p  vith t h e m .  

6 

Our a a l t s  repreeentaeivea meet w i t h  prospective cuatomtra to gain a thorough 
underatanding of t h e i r  businems and telecommunications requirerncnta. Sales 
representatives then auggtst alternatives for o p e r a t ' m  enhancements and cost 
savinga based on our service packagea. 

We compensate our sales representatives with ;i competitive base  sa lary ,  
stock optione and commisarona based on sales results We use a revenue-based 
c ~ m m ~ s s i o n  s t r u c t u r e  that enables UJ to at trac t  productive s a l e s  people 
experienced in d i s c i p l i n e d ,  a c t i v i t y - b a s e d  sales. This commission s tructure  i s  
based on incremental r e v t n u c  and 1s n o t  aub]ect to a cup.  

we do not actively markset to residential customers. Nonetheless. w e  have 
f o u n d  that our sa le s  and prmsrnotlonal e f f o r t a  attract residential customers. many 
of dhom are owners or employees of businesses u s i n g  o u r  teleccrnmunication 
services. Residential custoinera tail o u r  customer service cen te r  to receive 
f o r m s  L O  a p p l y  for serv ice  We do not pay sales commissions f o r  residential 
sales. 

XDVERTISING MTD PROMOTION 

We conduct extensive marketing campaigns i f i  o u r  !=.tal markets. He make use 
of advertising and public r e l a t i o n s  tc attract small c o  m i d - s i z e d  business 
custcmers and contrast our 1 3 e r v i c e  atrribures wlch Southwestern Bell's. 3xr 
marketing campaign includee billboard, r a d i o  anr: p r i n t  advertising. a s  well a s  
sponsorship of malor local d?vct-,ts, affi:iatlons w i t h  local organizations and 
dire:: m a i l l f i g s  focusing cn public relations We a l s o  be1iei .e  c h a t  o u r  
willicqness t o  s e r v e  residenc:al c u s c o r n e r s - - ~ ~ n ! r k e  many o c h e r  competitrve local 
exchange carriers--creates qreater  :n~erest in c u r  deveioFren: among t t e  -e'ds 
m e d i a  a n d  genera!  publlc I n  t h e  p a s t .  c'1r T a r x e t  : a a n c r e s  Pdave a t t r a c r e d  
eKtens:.de Isca: media cover,ige. 

:r. keep:nq w i t h  ' 3 u r  phi:cscpty z f  t e i n g  ac;ess:3:e t: c '+r  r ~ s t z - e r s .  *e 



e- n 

BIRCH TELECDM INCIMO - lO-K4#S - AnnuaI Repor! Dare Fded Y3Oi2QIIO 

establieh local ealea and cumtomer Bcrvice afficcr in most of the c i t ies  and 
tovna that uc aefve.  In mamy of these citiea and t o m a ,  ut are the only provlder 
of local  telephone service t h a t  maintaine an office. Our offices art open to 
walk-in t r a f f i c  and o f t e n  arc located in high-profile areas. 

Becauac we are able t o  deliver a comprehensive net of products to o u r  target 
CUStOmCKS, YE believe we havt etrong customer loyalty. Our customer churn rate8 
havt generally been lees than 1 . 5 t  per month. 

PRICING 

We do not  intend to poilition ourselves a s  the cheapest p r w i d e r  o f  services, 
especially long distance  services. We target customers who value the convenience 
of o u r  service offerings and ptr8onalized customer B ~ N L C ~ .  customers who have 
the h i g h e s t  price aenaitivity are likely to move frequently among providera,  
driving up churn rateB.  However, we do met our pricing so that  our local 
busintee customers can gererally save from 101 t o  B O *  on the incumbent 
provider's ratee. Internet, long  distance and customer prtmiaee equipment arc 
generally priced at ratee competitive with that of other  service  providera. 
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OUR W K E T S  

The following chart s e t a  forth t h e  markets in which we provide service or 
expect to provide acrvicc by Uay 2 0 0 0 .  

... 

March 1990 
*.y 199. 
May 1 * 9 1  
May 1991 
May 1991  
May 1 9 9 9  
may 1 9 9 9  
nay 1 9 9 9  
Ray 1 9 9 4  

June 1999  
July 1999 
July 1999  

May 199s 

*ugu.r lg99 
i t o n l v  i a o o  
rebruary 1300 

* a r c h  1000 
April 2 0 0 0  
A p r i l  2000 

May 1 2 0 b  
Hay 2 0 0 0  

* Population data d e r ~ v c t l  from t h e  United States Bureau of t h e  Census. S t a t e  
and Metropolitan A r e a s  tiarebook 1997 to 1998. 

BACK OFFICE SYSTEMS 

Back o € € i c r  s y s t e m s  refe:r to c h e  h a r h a r e  ar.a software systema t h a t  s u p p o r t  
the p r i m a r y  functions of o u r  operatlong, including: 

. o r d e r  e n t r y  and provisioning; 

. b:l:ing, 

d a t a  cester 
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- trouble management; and 

- ralee  eupport. 

Our goal is to have a back office that allow8 un t o  convert our customera' 
serv ice  from t h e i r  current. local providers to our network8 caeily and quickly. 
Over time, ut strive to ha.vc "flow through" provisioning capabilities, al lowing 
aervices to be implemented. through a aingle systems i n t e r f a c e  that updatea all 
ordering, inventory, billing and monitoring syetems. 
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We have implemented thmc prrmry elements of  o u r  back office, including order 
e n t r y ,  provisioning, bi l l i , ?g  and network management. We believe w e  have aeltcted 
t h e  b e s t  application €or e w h  function. The following table describes our key  
back office aysterne t h a t  p::ovide crucial operational functionalrty, their 
purpose and timelint for irnpltmntation.  

Southwestern Bell 
V c r  igat e 

Savil le CBP ITH) 

MetaSolv TBS(THI 

Harris HNMITM) 

DSET 1TM.r) 

HNC ATACS I T M I  

TB D 

TBD 

TB D 

electronic direct ordering 
and provirioning for  
local telephone B C N ~ C C  

bi 11 ing 

order management 
inventory 
provieioninq 
trouble management 
cust.3rner service 

ne t w r k  managernen t 

e1tc:ronic bonding gateway to incumbent 
telei3hone company 

frauij management 

er.hanced call record mediation 

a p p l  icatrcn integration rniddleuare 

cu9 t m e  r care 
salt:3 force automation 

Ql 1998 

Q1 1999 

92 1999 

r4 1498 

42 2 0 0 0  ( e s t  ! 

42 2 C O O  l e s c . )  

Q3 2000 ; e s t  1 

Q4 2000 ( e s t . !  

9 4  2 0 0 0  ( e s t . 1  

ORCER E W R Y  AISG P R O V I S I O N I N G  

Order entry invoives chi! i n l t i a l  loading oL customer data i n t o  c u r  
information sysrcms. C u r r e n t l y ,  m r  sales  executives take  orders  and o u r  
customer care and p r o v i s i o n . t n g  representatives load t he  initial c u ~ c o m e r  
information into our S a v r l l t ?  billing s y s t e m  and car  MetaSc!v provisioning 
system. We i n t e n d  tc 1ncrea!3e t h e  efficiency and data accuracy of t h e s e  
p r o v i s i o n i n g  a c t i v i t i e s  by implcmenting a sales fo rce  automation syscem to be 
combined w i c h  Savi: le CBP and M e L a S o 1 - J  TBS t h r o u g h  appl:cation inrtqrarios 
m i d d l e w a r e  This s y s t e m  w:::L Lac:::rate e n r r y  of sa ie s  zrclers f r m  t h e  s a l e s  
c f f ~ r e s  ar.d t r a n s m i t  re:e-/a::: a t t z ~ ~ . ' ,  a:? c r d e r  :nforTar:c: :z Saville :BP ar,A 
Y e c a S o l v  f B S  1~pienent;ng !:.h.is system '-::I e:;r:nate sever*: nanda! s r e ~ s  if. 
t.he Frz*/:s:3c:r .n p r x e s s ,  



BIRCH TELECOM lNC /MU - f O-KlOS -Annual Reporr Date Filed 3/30/20011 

of each step in the proviriioning proccee.  When MttaSolv i s  coupled with 
capabilities of the DSET clectronie bonding ayetern, w e  believe we w i l l  be able 
t o  oubmit ordere to exterrral business partntrB,  including Southwestern Bell, 
electronically, thereby minimizing implementatlon t i m e .  coordinatlon 
complexitita and i n e t a l l a t , i o n  coBta. Currently, we provision orders 
electronically through Socthvestcrn Bell'8 electronic proviaionmg system, or 
V c r i g a r t  . 

In addition to the cost bcnefite aeeociated vith the electronic installation 
of access l i m e  and inventory management system, t h e  M t t a S o l v  syrrttm smprovca 
our internal procteats in varioua other waya, including: 

- directing electronic cuatomer ardcrs to the appropriate employee, 
prompting them to coinpleee required provisioning taSkB, including network 
component aeaignment13 and management of outaide vendor activities; and 
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- tracking order prPgrt!es and alerting operations personnel of steps 
required t o  fulfill cirdtrs w i t h i n  standard work intervala. 

The MetaSolv TBS syatcni cnablca a C U B E D ~ C ~  care coordinator to keep an 
installation on achcdulc and notify the customer of any potential delays. Once 
an order has been completed, ue update our billing ayetern to i n i t i a t e  billing of 
inetalltd services. 

BILLING 

The Saville billing ayetern provides our c u ~ t o ~ n c r s  w i t h  a consolidated 
invoice for all of our  acrvicca .  Cumtomer calls- generate billing records that 
&re transmitted from the c a l l  rccordr to the Saville billing ayetern. These 
rtcorde are then procesicd by t h e  billing software. which calculatea ulrage 
coitm, inttgrarea fixed monthly charges, calculates taxation and providtB t h e  
data ntceaeary t o  create a simple customer invoice. We provide invoice 
information to a t h i r d  party  p r i n t e r ,  uhich prepares and dimtribute8 bille to 
our customern. Our customera pay us directly. 

Thin Saville system a l l o w  us to add advanced features such as special 
discounts based on call volume, or number of s trv iceo  used, complex local 
taxation and diacrete b i l l i n g  options by t y p e  of service ordered. We btlreve 
these features are exceptionally important given o u r  sophisticated client base. 

TROUBLE W A G E M E m  

W e  u9c MttaSolv TBS-TM-, a customer care and trouble management system, to 
provide h i g h  quality C u B C o m e r  a e m i c e .  Our :rouble management aystem i s  
integrated into t h e  o p e r a t i , m a l  support s y s t e m .  I t  enables o u r  customer care 
personnel to track customer problem6 proactivcly, agslgn r e p a i r  work to t h e  
appropriate t e c h n i c a l  teama and provide employees and management a c c e s s  t o  
comprehensive r e p o r t s  on th,! statu9 of s e r v i c e  activity. 

NETWORK W A G E M E N T  

We use t h e  H a r r i s  Network Manage-ent system LQ c o n t i n u o u s l y  mcnitor and 
o p e r a t e  our s w i t c h  net ,dorks  T h e  inf3rnation p r o v i d e d  b y  t h e  Harris system 
allows o u r  network o p e r a t i o n s  s c a f f  ta quickly r e p a i r  p r c . b i e m s  i.? the networks. 
t h e r e b y  eliminating or m i n i ' n r z i n g  i m p a c t s  t o  o u r  zusrarner~.  . 

SOVTHWESTERN DELL E R I G . 4 T E  

Verigatc L S  t h e  Southwestern Bel; end-user interface 5 y s t e m  t h a t  allows o u r  
custzrntr servLce, croub:e m.3r.agement and s e r v : c e  prov is ion .cq  reprcser - ta t  i v e s  t~ 
a c c e s s  t t e  Scuthwescern Bell spe ra t : r . g  s y s t e m s  :'er;gate a::?.is >JS r: sead  !..acal 
sers ' lce r e v e s t s  to receive J r d e r  rscr.: t T , e n t 5  back from. :ese:-:c yes, :eleptcne 
numbers ' d l r h .  v : e u  ar. o r d e r ' s  Scatus a t ,  a n d  tes:. c r  r e F c r r  ~ , s T c m e ~  ~ r c b l e m s  t:r 
5cJ :hxes re rn  g e l :  
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DATA CENTER 

During the aecond quarter 2000, we plan to occupy an 8,000 square foot data  
center in Kansas City, M i s s o u r i .  We believe thin center has 9ufEaclent space to 
support significant increa~ees in our UCCCBB liner, customers and employees. 

NETWORK FhCfLXTIES 

LEASED FACILITIES 

During 1999, we began to leame substantially a l l  of t h e  network elements 
from Southweetern Bell and combine these elements into integrated Birch-branded 
voice acrvicca nithout deploying a awitch. By 
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ue icg  W E - P ,  we arc able ti) offer  our B C N L C ~ S  to a broader geographical area  
than we can by uaing our  ohm switches. Many of our competitors are limited to 
a t r v u a g  c u ~ t o m t r ~  that  are located near the ir  facilities. W E - P  allows ua to 
acme many customfa  in disiparatt geqgraphic areas. 

Where w e  have inetallcc switches, we l c a a e  tranemisaion facilitiea from 
Southwestern Bell to C O M t C t  our switches to our ccllocated equipment in 
Southwestern Bell's central of€icea and to unbundled loopa. Given the current 
capacicy of exieting local networka, we do not anticipate having to build l o c a l  
transmiseion facilitite in the future. Similarly, we believe that the capacity 
of exiet ing long-diitance network6 rendera direct owmerehip of long diBtance 
tranamieeion facilitiee unnccesrarj. 

Leaeing. rather than building, facilitice supporte our atrategy of rapid 
local market dtve lopmnt  becauae our eaLee activity i s  n o t  constrained by 
network txpenditurta. Horeovcr, by lca&ing tranarnassion facilitiea. u t  can offer 
our  ecrvicee throughout a metropolitan area and w e  are no t  constrained by the 
limited number of locatiom in which we could build tranamissicn facilities. 

OWNED F A c I L I r r E s  

We deploy data trdn#rni8;3iOn packet switches in most  o f  our markera. We use 
these packet swrtchee to t r d n m i t  data over our l eased transmission l i n e s  and 
p lan  to use theae packet  swrcchts t o  transmlt o u r  l o ~ g  drstanct v o i c e  t r a f f i c  
once OUT corivcraion plan 1s implemented. 

Ue currently operate  lot:al/long distance circuit switches i n  Kansas C i t y  and 
S t .  Louis, Missouri  and W i c h i t a ,  Kansas. We do not  intend to deplcy m o r e  c:rcu:t 
switches because we believe voice-capable packet s w i t c h e s  w i l l  be more 
economical to operate i n  t h e  € u t u r e  Additionally, w e  co l loca te  our electronic 
equipment at Southweitern B ~ 1 1 ' e  c e n t r a l  offices to support  f u t u r e  digital 
subscriber line services and e x i s t i n g  c i r c u i t  switches. Collocatlon allows us to 
c o n n e c t  to transmission ? L r . t : s  we lease from Southwestern Bell 

A t  the c u s t ~ r n e r ' s  premises, we connez' t  unbundled loops d i r e c t l y  t 3  

customer-omed equipment.  WE* may ais0 deploy e l e c t r o n i c  equipment !lnctlligant 
channe l  banks or a c c e s s  s e n e r a 1  chat concentrate d a t a  and voice t r a f f i c .  Th:s 
enables  us t o  o b t a i n  higher c a p a c i t y  f r o m  t h e  transmisalon :;ne of t h e  incumbent 
local exchange c a r r i e r  
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FIELD TECHNICAL OPERATIONS 

Our field ttchicians eervicc our facilities and cuecorner-owned facilitiea. 
Theme rechniciana inntall, rcpair and mainrain digital awitchea, Kranemiasion 
equipment, private branch exchanger, key nystemr. data equipment and ineidc 
viring, including wiring .Cor data networking. He bclitvt field technicians are 
o€tcn the moat reepected 13ource of telecommunications advice f o r  emall and 
mid-sized business cu8tom~rs .  We believe that having a skilled, in-demand group 
of technicians supports our cumtorner base, providee expertise €or data 
deployment and strengthen. customer loyalty. 
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COMPETITION 

The telecommunications industry i s  highly compet i t ive .  We believe ne compete 
principally on the basia of customer service, accurate billing, v a r i e t y  of 
cervices and, to a lesser extent, pricing l e v e l 8  and lese complex pric ing  
structurea. Our ability to compete effectively depend8 upon our continued 
ability to maintain high quality, market-driven services at  prices generally 
equal to or below t h m e  charged by competitors. To maintain our cornpeticive 
posture, w e  believe t h a t  w ' t  mu8t be a b l e  to provide h i g h  quality integrated 
communicationa scrvieea an13 ke poaitiancd to reduce our prices in responaa t o  
potential competition. Any of tht8t reduction8 could adversely affect  u0. Many 
o€ our current and pottnti4b1 compttitora have financial, technical, marketing. 
ptraonnel and other rceourcea, including brand name recognition, aubstantially 
greater than ours, a8 well an other competitive advancages over us. 

INCUMBENT TELEPHONE COMPANIES 

In our eiiatrng marketii, we compete principally with Southwestern Bell. AB a 
recent entrant in t h e  te1et:omunications mervLct8 induetry. we may not  achieve a 
aignificant market share for any of our serv ice6  in our markets. In particular, 
Souchwcatern Bell and other local telephone companic~ have long-standing 

lationehips w i t h  their customrs, have financial, technical and marketing 
ourcca aubstantially greater than ours, have the potential to subsidize 

.,ipetitrve eervices with revenue from a variety o f  bueinesaes  and currently 
Jenefit from existing rcgulations that favor these incumbent local exchange 
c a r r i c r a  over ua in  BO^ r e s p e c t s .  While recent regulatory initiatives, which 
allow competitive local exchange carrier6 such ua to interconnect with 
incumbent local exchange ca.rrier facilities, prov ide  increased bueinees 
opportunities f o r  U B ,  t h e s e  interconnection opportunitica have been, and likely 
will continue to be, accompanied by increased pricing flexibility for  and 
relaxation of regulatory ovcraight of t h e  incumbent local exchange carriere. 
Future regulator( dcciaiona c o u l d  grant incumbent local exchange carriers 
Lncrcaucd pricing flexibility or o t h e r  regulatory r c l l t f .  Thtae initiatives 
could also have a material adverse effect on us. 

COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS/ I K T E R E X C M G E  CARRIERS/OTHER MARKET 
EKiRANTS 

We also face cumpcticion from ocher c u r r e n t  and potential marke r  entrants 
These marker entrants include long distance carrlers that compete with our long 
distance scrvrces and seek to e n t e r .  r e e n t e r  or expand into t h e  local exchange 
market ATkT,  GTE. MCI WorldCorn and Sprint aie among these  c a r r i e r s .  Competitive 
local exchange carriers. resellera of local exchange serv ices .  competitive 
acccsa providers, c a b l e  television companies. electric utilitle:. microuave 
c a r r i e r s ,  w~reiess telephone s y s t e m  operators and private n e t w o r k s  b u i l t  by 
l a r g e  e n d  x s t r s  also compect with US In addition. conaol1dat;on and strategic 
alliances within ck,e te!ecommunicatione i n d u s t r f .  or the devc:opmenc of n e w  
technologies could put us a t  a competitive dlsadvantagc Nor only daes t h e  
Te!ezommunicarioss Ac: rmpcse r e g u l a t c r {  rezp irements  on a:! l o c a l  
te!ecomunicat~ons 13ervlcc providers, hut :: a l s o  g r a n t s  t h e  FCC expanded 
authority t~ reduct? t h e  ie..'e; c f  regu:atron app!icabie to a n y  celeccnmun1car:scs 
service ~ r c . J : d e r ,  inc1';d:r.q any  ~ 9 : ' J * s e ~ t  t e l e c m m u f i i c a t  : o z s  s e r i l c e  p r c v : d e r s  
,he mafiner i n  vb,,:c!: r k e s e  Frovl5:cr.s :f t h e  7e;ecornmuni:at:cns A c r  a r e  



implemented and enforced could  have a material adverec e f fect  en o u r  ability to 
Compete succesmfully againlit incumbent local exchange carrier6 and other 
telecommunications service providers. 

The changes in t h e  Tc1t:comunications A c t  radically a l t e r e d  the market 
opportunity for new tcleconmunicationa service providere. Because the 
Tclecommunicatione A c t  rcquirca local exchange carriers to unbundle their 
netvorke. ntv telccomunica~tions iervice providers arc able to rapidly  enter the 
market by inetalling ewitct i te  and leasing trunk and loop capacity. N e w e r  
providers, like ua and aome compttitorr that  we may encounter in ~ o m c  of our 
markets, will not  have to replicate cxieting facilities until traffic volume 
justifies building them, and can be more opportunistic in deeigning and 
implementing n e t w o r k s .  
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In addition to the new ttltcommunicationa service providers, interexchange 
carrier8 and other cornpetit,xi liatcd above, we may face competition from other 
market entrants such a a  clcl=tric utilities, cable television companies and 
u i r e l t a s  cornpanice. Electric  utilities have exiBting asseta  and Low cost ACCCB8 
to capital which could allow them t o  enter a market rapidly and accelerate 
network development. Cable c e l e v i s i e n  companiee are entering the 
tele6ommunications market bl upgrading the ir  networks with f ibtr o p t i c s  and 
inetalling facilities to provide fully interactive tranernisaion o€ broadband 
voice, vidto and data communications. Pinally, wirelc38 companies intend t o  
develop wirelens technolqy for d e p l o p n t  in the United States as a broadband 
aubstltute for traditional wireline local telephones. Somc Internet CompanicB 
are also developing applications to deliver w i t c h e d  voice communicationa over 
the Internet .  

LONG DISTANCE SERVICES 

The long dietance te1eccirrmunicationa industry has numtroua entities 
competing for t h e  same C U i t t C i r i ~ ~ r S  and a high churn fate, an cuatorners Zrequently 
change long dl8tanct providetra in rcaponae to offerings of lower rate8 or 
prornotioni ncent ives .  Prices in the long diatance market have declined 
aignifican in recent years and are expected t o  continue to decline. Our 
primary cc i tora  arc the mior  interexchange carrier8 and resellera of long 
distance L v ices .  We b e l i e v e  that pric ing  levcle arc a principal competitive 
factor in p r o v i d i n g  l o n g  diiitance service; however. w e  seck t o  avoid direct 
p r i c e  competition by packaging long d i n t a c t  B e m i t t ,  local  B C T V ~ C C ,  cuetorner 
p r t m i r t s  equipment and I n t e r n e t  access service together with a simple pricing 
plan. 

CUSTOMER PREH I SES EPUI PblENT 

We compete with numcrouil equipment vendors and installers and 
t e l ecommunicat ions  managemeric companies f o r  t h e  sale of custarner premises 
equipment and r e l a t e d  s e r v i c e s .  We generally offer o u r  products at prices 
coneistent w i t h  other p r o v i d e r s  and differentiate our Bervice through o u r  
product packages. 

CATA/KmERNET S E R V I C E S  

T h e  r n t e r n e t  s e r v i c e s  m d r k e t  1 5  h i g h l y  c o m p c t l c l v e ,  and w e  expect t h a t  
cornpet i t ion  will c o n t i n d c  t o  i n t e n s i f y .  I n t e r n e t  a t n i c e .  meaning b o t h  Internet 
a c c e s s  and on- 1 Ine  c o n t e n t  i i e r v i c e s ,  1s provided b y  I n t e r n e t  s e r v l c e  p r o v l d e r s ,  
s a t e l l i t e - b a s e d  companies. :.ong disrance carricra and cable television 
companies Many of t h e s e  cornpanlea provide d i r e c t  a c c e s s  to t h e  Internet and a 
wariecy of supporting services to bus:nessea and individuals. In addlclon. many 
sf t h e s e  companies, such  a a  America O n l i n e ,  Inc.. MSN. Prodigy S t r v i c t a  Company 
and WebTV N e t w o r k s .  offer o: i - l ine  content 9ew;ces  consisting of accesa to 
:;osed, proprietary i n f o r m a t i o n  n e t w c r k s  Lozq distance companies, aTong e t h e r s .  
are aggresaively en te r1 r .g  t h e  I r - ternet  a c c e s s  markets Lcng distance carrlers 
have subscanria; : ransmiss:o t  capabilities. t r a d i t  :onall.{ c a r r ' j  d a c a  to large 
n'dmhers 3 f  c i l s t o r n e ~ s  and h a J e  an e s t a b l i s h e d  k:::ins ~ ' ~ s t e a  : n f r a s t r u c t u r e  :ha: 
pern:rs chem c 3  add r.eu s e r . r : c e s  Sare!llte corr.par.:es a r e  offering broadband 



acctse to the Internet from dcaktop PCm. Cable companies u r e  starting to provide 
Internet aervices using c,iblc modem8 to CuOtomers in malor markets. Many of 
theme competitors have aulmtantially greater financial, tcchnolqics l ,  
marketing, pereonncl, nsm-brand x e e ~ n i t i o n  and other resources than thoat 
available to um. 

EMPLOY 68s 

A t  December 31, 1999, we employed 9 3 5  peraone.  Additionally. we occasionally 
hire temporary ernplayete. We are no t  party to any collective ba'rgaining 
arrangements and believe that our relatianship with our employees is good. 

1 3  

REGULAT I OH 

REGULATORY OVEUVIEW 

We arc subject to regulation by federal, a t a t e  and local government 
a w n c i e a .  Historically, t h c  FCC had juriadiction aver in ters ta te  long dirtarlct  
a e f v i c e s  and international f iervict8,  w h i l e  state regulatory commissiona had 
jurisdiction over local anti in trae ta te  long distance a e r v i c c a .  

In 1996, Congresr paame!d t h e  T c ~ C C O ~ ~ K I U A ~ C ~ ~ ~ O ~ S  A c t  of 1 9 9 6 ,  opening the 
l o c a l  market to  competition and allowing the Bell operating companies to compete 
for the first time in the I.ong distance market within the ir  local aervice 
regions once specified conditions were m e t .  The Telecommunication6 A c t  
fundamentally changed the way telecomnunicatione is  regulated i n  this country. 
The PCC W a 8  given a major role in writing and enforcing the rulti under which 
ncv competitors could compeitc in t h e  local marketplace.  Those rulee,  coupled 
with additional rules and clecimions promulgated by the various s t a t e  regulatory 
cmrnissions, form the core of the regulatory framework under vhich we operate in 
providing local exchange serv ice .  

With a few limited exceptione, the FCC continue8 to retain cxclusiv2 
juriediction over our v i s i o n  of interlrcatc and international long diatance 
acTyicc, and the a t a t e  rlatory commissions regulate our provision of 
intraatate local and 1 Jistance service. Additionally, municipalities and 
other local government gencies may regulate limited aspects  of our business. 
euch aa use of government-owed rights-of-way, and may require permits such as 
zoning approvals and building p e r m i t a .  

In t h e  aftermath of the Telecommunications A c t ,  t h e  regulation of t h e  
teltcomunicati~ns industry has been in a state of f r w .  The FCC and state 
r e g u l a t o r y  commissions have adopted many new rules to impiernent  t h i s  legislation 
and encourage competitron, but  t h a t  implemencation 1 s  ongoing. The following 
summary of regulatory developments doer n o t  p u r p o r t  to describe all Current and 
proposed federal, state and local  regulations and Legislation affectrng the 
te1ecorrununicat:ons industry. Many of t h c a e  a r e  currently the subject of ludicla; 
proceedings, legislative hearings and adminiscrative propo$ais, any of which 
c o u l d  change,  l n  varying degrees,  t h e  manner i n  which t h i s  industry sperates. We 
cannot  predict at t h l s  time t h e  outcome of these proceedings or their : m p a c t  
upon t h e  telecommunications industry or on us 

THE TELECOMMUNI CAT I O N 5  ACT 

THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT'S LOCAL COM?ETIT:ON FPAMEWORK 

Cne cf t h e  key goals of t h e  Telecommunizations A c t  is to encourage 
cornpe:ition i n  Lccal telephone serv ice  To do chis. t h e  Telecommunications A c t  
F r c v i d e s  three rnear.s by d h i c h  te;ecommunications service prov:ders can enter t h e  
loca: phcne servlct r%arke:Flace The t h r e e  modea of e n t r j  a x e  a s  follows 

PESALE Inc - rkenr  ~ c l c p h c n e  :r,npan:es a r e  ~ e q . . i r e d  t 3  permit n e r  
t e i e c c m r n L n l c a t i o n s  ser.,r:ce praviders tz p ~ r - h a s e  c h e i r  ser'Jice5 f c r  : e s a L e  

r t e  r n c u m b e r . t  r e r e p t c c e  c:rr~a?.:es 10 c t e : r  rera: ;  r ; s t x r e r s  

r -  _ y  :he pubiic a t  a dko1esa.e  rd:e :?,at ;s :ess :ban :he r a t e  ;kar.?er! 
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- ACCESS TO NETWORK ELEMENTS. Incumbent telephone companies arc required to 
least to new ttleconununications service providere t h e  varioug elementa in 
their network that dlre used to provide local telephone service.  The leaeed 
pares o f  the incumbent telephone companies‘ nctuorks are knoun as 
unbundled network elementi. The incumbent telephone companree must make 
unbundled network elemcnta available at rates that  are baaed on cheir 
forward-looking economic c o a t s .  

- CONSTRUCTION OF N E W  FACILITIES. New telecommunications aervice providers 
may also e n t e r  the l oca l  phone service market by building entirely new 
facilitica. The incuinbent telephone companies are required to allov new 
ttlecommunlcationa slervice providers to interconnect their 
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facilitita with the :tncumbcnt telephone company’s. so each carrier’s 
cuatorners can reach t:hc other’6. 

To facilitate new te1cr:ommunications aervlct  providere’ e n t r y  l n t o  local 
telephone market0  using onr: or more or some combination of these three mechods, 
the Telccorrdnunicatione A c t  impoaea on incumbent telephone companiea the 
obligation to open their ncbtworks and marketa to competltlon when requested by 
competitors, incumbent te lephone companies a r e  required to negotiate, i n  good 
faith, agreement6 that lay out t e r m  governing the interconnectLon of t h e i r  
network, aceeae to unbundled network clement8 and resale. Xncumbent telephone 
companies m ~ ~ t  a180 allow competing carrier8 to “collocate.” or place the ir  o m  
equipment in incurnbenta‘ central o f f  i c e s .  

In addition, a i l  local exchange carriers.  including both incumbent and new 
telccornmunicationa aervice providers,  a r e  subltct to the following rcquirernenta: 

- I K T E R C O N H B ~ I O N .  All local  tcleconrmunicationa 8crvict provider8 must 
permit their cumpetitors to interconnect with t h e i r  facilitice- either 
directly or indirectly. Incumbent telephone companies a r e  additionally 
obligated to permit intcrcc -+.ion at any technically feasible point 
within the ir  nctworka. on nt 7crirninatory t e f m r .  at p r i c e s  based on cost 
(which may include a t easor  - profit); 

- NCIMBER PORTABILITY. All local telecommunications service  providers must 
implement number portability t e c h n o l w y  tiiat allows a customer t o  r e t a i n  
i t s  exlstlng phone number i f  i t  suitchee from one local exchange carr ier  
to a competitor. This technology primarily benefits new telecommunications 
8 e r ~ 1 c e  providers, which can gather m a r k e t  share more easi:y :f cuscorncrs 
can  aritch t w  these carriers without changing telephone numbers: 

- RECIPROCAL COMPENSATION. All local celecommunications scrvice providers 
m u s t  complete l o c a l  caila originated by o the r  celecommunlcatlons servlce 
providers under reciprocal compensat ion arrangements, T h a t  is, t h e  local 
p r o v i d e r  terminating a local call is entitled to payment from the local 
provider originating a call, C h a r g e s  a s s e s s e d  by t h e  incumbent telephone 
company for terminating calls originated on a new telecommunicatrons 
service prov:dcr’a network must be baaed on a reasonable approximation of 
additional cost. The FCC recently dcrcmrntd t h a t  Internet service 
provider-bound traffic 1s interstate in nature, n o t  local, and i s  
therefore outside the scope of t h e  Telecommunicatrons Ac:’s reciprocal 
compensation provisions. The FCC has iniciaced a proceeding to determine  
appropriate carr:tr-to-carrier ccrnpensation for I n t e r n e :  s e r v i c e  
pr3vider.bour.d t r a f f i c .  A t  the same rime, :he FCC has dec;:ned c 3  o v e r t ’ d r n  
a multitude of s t a t e  decisions requiricg 1ncurnber.t telephone companies to 
pay r.eu :elecommur,icat~ons service p r o + J l d e r s  ccmpensat:cc f 3 r  delivering 
:r,:ernet traffic t o  I n t e r n e t  s e r v i c e  p r o ’ J i d e r s  t ca t  had se:ected a new 
:e;ecoT.mun;cat :or.s ser-:i;e p r o r : d e r  a s  ’.he;r !oca; ser ’ i lce  F r s v i d e r ,  :?.e 
F:C’s bet:s:::n is cn a p p e a l .  a n 3  :?.c.~nher.t : e i e~k .zr , e  ::~.pan:es i r e  a:sc 
expected :T a s k  states zr federa: c ~ l ’ j ~ t s  to reverse  :?.e ex:st:ng state 
determ:nat i cn5:  
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- DIALING PARITY. Require0 a l l  local ttlccommunicationa service providers 
to provide nondiscriminatory acctas to telephone numbers, operator 
aervicce, dlrcctory aaaiatnnce and directory liatrng with no unreaaonabls 
dialing delays. Local dialing parity eneurea that customera on one l oca l  
exchange carrier do not have t o  dial extra digits to reach customera on a 
different local or toll carrier's network; and 

- ACCESS TO RIGHTS-OF -WAY. Requires all local telecomunicatione service 
providers to permit competing providere accema to polc8, d u c t e ,  conduits 
and rights-of-way at: reaeonable and nondiecriminat~ry rates, terms and 
conditions. The FCC has opened a proceeding reeking to define i n  greater 
detail the  scope of t h e  incumbent telephone company's obligation to 
provide accts8  to righta-of-way that it om8 or controls, including those 
within ~ t e  own central offices and o t h e r  buildings, and buildings owned by 
pr ivate  third p a r t i e a .  
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Executing an interconnection agreement docs not guarantee a new 
telccomunicationa service provider unfettered accc is  to the incumbent telephone 
cornpany'8 market. Interconnection agreemente becwetn incumbent telephone 
companita and new telccommunicatiane service providera may have short terms, 
req-uring the new telecommunications rcrvice provider to renegotiate the 
agrecmcntm on a regular banis. Incumbent Celephonc companies may not provide 
timely provioioning or adcquuatt service quality, thereby impairing a new 
telceomunications eervice  provider'e reputation with CuBtomera who can caeily 
switch back to t h e  incumbent telephone company. In addition. the pricce B e t  in 
the  agreement8 or through iitata rcgulatorj comieaion arbitration proccedrnga 
may be subject  t o  changca mandated by mtate regulatory comiaaiona a8 they  
develop permanent rule. governing interconnection and may not in all inetances 
be m e t  at levels that a l low new telecormnunicatime Bernice providers to compete 
effectively. 

THE F C C ' S  RULES I M F L E M E ~ I l G  TWS TELECOMWICATIONS A C T ' S  LOChL COMPETITION 
PROV I S IONS 

In Auguet 1996,  t h e  FCC i a e u c d  an order 1 ntntinq the local  competition 
provisions o f  cht Telecommunications Act The eetablishcd rulea about how 
interconnection and collociktion were to be pr idtd. put Forth a mtthod t h a t  
s t a t e  c o m i a r r o n a  should utie t o  escablish p r i c e s  for interconnection and 
unbundled network elements, and apecificd w h i c h  p a r t s  of an incumbent's network 
must be made available as unbundled network tlernenta to cornpeti~g carr iers  The  
FCC alao held that incurbent telephone companies muat provide new 
telecommunications Btrvice providers w i t h  "combinations" of unbundled network 
e lements .  making it possible for new telecommunications service providers, in 
many inatancts, to provlde service  to customera by leasing all of the component 
unbundled network elentente From the incumbent telephone company This method of 
providing BerVice is known an t h e  unbundled network element platforn, or W E - P  
Specrfically, among other rules, t h e  FCC establlshtd a list of seven network 
elements,  comprising m o s t  of t h e  significant f a c i l i t i e s ,  features. 
functionalitits or capabilities of the netvork ,  that the incumbent telephone 
companies must unbundle I n  addition. the FCC mandated a particular 
forward- looking pricing met h o d a l q y  f o r  t h e s e  network elements t h a t  produces 
relatively lou element p r i m a  t h a t  are favorable to cornpet i tora  

After the FCC re leased i t s  r u l c a .  numcrouB parties challenged t h e  r u l e s  
before  t h e  United State8 C o u r t  of Appeals f o r  the E i g h t h  Circuit T h e  Eighth 
Circuic overturned many of t h e  FCC's r u l e s  on t h e  grounds t h a t  t h e  agency had 
exceeded i t s  au?hority and misinterpreted chc law 

On Januarf 2 5 ,  1999. the United S t a t e s  Supreme C o u r t  largely reversed t h e  
Eighth Circuit's decision. holdlng t h a t  t h e  FCC has general :urisdiction to 
implenenr the lscal comperi t icn pravisions 3f t h e  Tclecornmunicatrons A c t  ar.d 
reestab:;sh:ng t h e  v a l r d i c ) .  of many cf t h e  FZC's :nterczr.ncct isn r u l e 5  i n  5 C  

doing. tF.e S , ~ p r e m e  Cclur: sr.a:ed that :he ?CC n a s  au- ,hor : ty  t o  se: priclnq 
su;de! ines for unbundled n e t w o r k  eienent 5 ,  tc p r e v e n t  :r,cumbent re:cphone 
cornpanlea from separating r ' x i s t : r , ~  tOmk:natlor,s c :  r .e twcrk  eiements, a-d tt. 
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eatabliah "pick and choone" rules  regarding interconnection agreements. "Pick 
and choose" rules  would p < ? n i t  a carrier necking interconnection to pack and 
chooec among the t e r n  of service from other interconnection agrterncnta between 
t h e  incumbent and varioue new telecommunications gervica providers. 

Although it upheld t h e  FCC'8 jurisdiction to crtablioh unbundled network 
element pr ic ing  guideliner, the Supreme Court d id  no t  evaluate the epecific 
"Iorward-lmking" pricing methodolqgy adopted by t h e  PCC, and the case hae been 
remanded to the Eighth Circuit for further conrideration of t h a t  specific 
pricing methodology. Some incumbent telephone companies have argued that this 
pric ing  methodology does no t  allow adequate compensation €or t he  provision of 
unbundled network elements. The Eighth Circuit heard oral argument8 on t h i a  
pricing iseuc on September 16, 1999, but hao not  yet issued a ruling. We cannot 
predict the outcome of thi6 proceeding. If the Eighth Circuit fail8 to uphold 
the F C C ' e  forward-looking pricing methodology, i t  may materially adversely 
affect our business. 
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Additionally, t h e  Suprr!me Court vacated the FCC rulce defining what network 
elementa must be unbundled and made available to the new telecomunications 
a c r v i c e  providere by the iricumbcnts. The Supreme Court held that the FCC m u s t  
provide a stronger rational.@ t o  support the degree of unbundling ordered.  

Gn Novemkr 5 ,  1 9 9 9 ,  i n  renponst t o  the Supreme Court's ruling, the FCC 
released new rulce npecifying which portions o f  t h e  incumbent telephone 
companiee' networks m U 8 t  be made available am unbundled network elements. The 
FCC reaffirmed that incumbent telephone companito must provide unbundled acceaC 
to the following s i x  network eltmenta: 

- loops, including loops used t o  pxovidt high-capacity and advanced 
tclecomunicatian8 acrviccs euch a8  digital eubscriber l i m e ;  

- nttwoxk interface devices;  

- local c i r c u i t  awitching; 

- dedicated and shared transport; 

- signaling and call-related databases; and 

- operation8 support syetern~ 

The FCC removed from t h e  list of unbundled network elements operator s e r v i c e  
and directory a s a i a t d n c e .  The FCC concluded that t h e  market  has  developed 
sufficiently t h a t  new t e l ecomunrca t iong  service providers can and do 
self-provide t h t a t  services. or acquire them from alternative sources. T h e  FCC 
also noted that incumbent telephone companies remain obligated under t h e  
non-diacrirnination requlrements o€ the Communicatlana A c t  o f  1934 to comply with 
the reasonable request o f  a new te?ecommunications service provider that 
purchases  these s e n i c e s  from t h e  incumbent telephone companies to rebrand or 
unbrand those s e ~ ~ i c e s ,  and to provide d irectory  assistance llstlngs and bpdates 
in daily electronic batch files. In addition, the competitive checklr8t 
contained in sect ion 271 of the Communications A c t  of 1934 requlrcs Bell 
operating companiea to p r o v i d e  nond:scrirninatory access to r h e s e  services 

The FCC also modified t h e  local switching tlnbundled netuork e l e m e n t ,  
concluding t h a t  incumbents need not  prwvidt access to unbundled iocal circuit 
switching for customers ulth f o u r  or more lines thar a r e  located in c h e  densest 
p a r t s  3f t h e  top 50 metropolitan statisrical areas  s 3  long a s  the  incumbent 
makes  available an alternative arrangement f c r  reaching c u ~ t o r n e r s .  known as t h e  
enhanced extended link The enhan:ed extc7,ded l i n k  3; I c r s  r.er teiecommunlrat ~ 3 n s  
s e r v i c e  p r o v i d e r s  t3 ga:n access '.: zus:cmers vithout c 3 l l c c a r i n g  111 e'Jer;. 
c e n t r a :  off:ce, be,rause i t  ccmbines r k e  :oca: Loop u':th a a~:t;plexer a n d  
transport to t t e  n e w  ttieccmmunirat i o n s  ser-.':ce pro ' ; :der ' s  Local exlsting 
zollocated fac1:ities or s c i t c P 0 .  5o:v i rcstar .d ing :?,e F r y ' s  rL::r.q, ' ~ n r e s t r l c t e d  
access t o  m 3 u n d ; e d  s u i c c h ~ n g  is a:'a: :.aS:e LF. :exas,  ,wp.ere s ~ a t e  r';l . n q s  r e ~ ~ i  r e  
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incumbent ttltphane companies to make switching available as an unbundled 
network element. 

In addition t o  these changee, the FCC also: 

- Limited t h e  scope of t h e  shared transport unbundltd network clemnt, 
holding that the incumbent must only offer eharcd transport &E a unbundled 
network element where unbundled local circuit switching is provided. 

- Held that  incumbentti are not required to offer packet awitching a6 a 
unbundled network e l .emcnt  in moat cases.  

- Held that  both the loop and transport unbundled network elements include 
a c c e s ~  to "dark f i b e r . "  Dark fiber l a  disringuishtd from " l i t  fiber" 
transmission capacity in that  dark fiber is sold independently from t h e  
elcctronrce neceamry t o  "light" the fiber and transmit information. The 
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availability of dark fiber from incumbent8 a8 a unbundled netvork element 
could create an additional aource of  dark f i b e r  i n  the market. 

-* Ordered "sub-loop unbundling," which will allow n e w  telecommunications 
eervicc providers to connect at any fca8iblc p o i n t  a long  the local loop, 
and n o t  just a t  the c e n t r a l  office. In some incumbent networks, subloop 
unbundling will make i t  earrier for new telecommunication6 service 
providers t o  uat portione of the unbundled network element loop to offer 
advanced services, a'uch a a  digital aubocribtr lines. In a separate order, 
the PCC also ordered the unbundling of t h e  "high-frequency" portion of the 
loop, which alao makire it easier and ICSS expenaivt f o r  new 
telccormnunicationa sisrvict providers t o  uee unbundled network element8 to 
offer advanced servil:ca, such as d i g i t a l  subscriber linea. 

The FCC's  dccinion regiirding unbundled network cltmtnte i B  currently t h e  
subject of petitions f o r  reconsideration filed a t  t h e  FCC by various nartier, 
including us. Some incumbent telephone companies have asked the PCC -xpand 
the limitation on switchinq by, among other  t h i n g a ,  extending i t 8  ge 2hic  
scope. We and other new tc'ltcommunications service p r o v i d e r s  have a. t h e  FCC 
to e i ther  do away w i t h  the limitation or make it applicable to only  , ~ r g t r  
customera. We cannot p r e d i c t  t h e  outcome of t h i s  proceeding. I f  the FCC f u r t h e r  
restrict8 t h e  availability of unbundled switching, i t  could adversely affect OUT 

ability to nerve cuatomcrs efficiently. 

Another open question i a  whether incumbent telephone companies arc required  
to combine network e1ernent:a not currently combined i n  their networks for 
requtating new te1ecornmunrl:ations service  providers .  The FCC's r u l e s  r e q u i r i n g  
t h e  incumbent telephone coinpanles t o  do EO were vacated by t h e  Eighth Zircuit, 
but t h e  FCC and the new telecommunications service provider industry have asked 
t h a t  c s u r t  t o  relrstatt t h e  rules in t h e  wake of t h e  Supreme Court's decision. 
I f  t h e  rules are r e i n s t a t e l i .  i t  will significantly expand t h e  ability of new 
telecommunications service providers to p r o v i d e  s erv ice  to customers u s i n g  
network elements purchased from t h e  i n c u m b e n t  telephone companies, A l a 0  
unsettled 1 9  t h e  scope of the FCC's rule requiring incumbent celephone companies 
to p r o v i d e  requcscing n e u  telecommunications s e r v i c e  p r o v i d e r s  'dAth c o m b i f i a t i o n s  
o f  n e t w o r k  e1ement.a t h a t  are "currently combined" in the incurbent telephone 
company's network, The new telecommunications s e r v i c e  provider lndusrry has 
taken a broad view of this requiremer,t ,  ~ncerpretlng 1: fo mean that  new 
celtcommunrcat iona F C ~ V ' I C C  p r o v i d e r s  are tnt k t  led L O  pirchase network e lement  
combinations so 1or.g as they a r e  comblned anywhere I n  t h e  incumbent telephone 
company's netrnrk The incumbent telephone companies. by Contrast. have taken  a 
much narrower  v i e w ,  arguing t h a t  t h e  ru:e requires t h e  inc , Jmbent  telephone 
companres onl:i i s  provide comb;r.atrons cf ze tuDrk  elemencs c h a c  a r e  c u r r e n t  1:; i n  
ser i ' ;<e  tz a ~art:r-:ar c l s t o m e r  The  ul::nare res2 lu t :or .  zf t h : s  q - e s t : x  ?c>il5 
expand or restrict 3 u r  ak::ity !: ~ r : v : d e  service  to o u r  Z L S ~ . Z T , ~ : ~   sing r?r'-::-k 
elerezcs ~ u r ~ F . a s e 3  fr3m t h e  i n c , ~ n b e - c  r e l e ; n c n ~  csmpan,  

T h e  Elghch C:rcult is expected tz ir4;e :r :Le prizir.7 : s s ' ~ e  :r. '.te 7 . e ~ :  
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ecvcrnl months and may alrro rule on the incumbent telephone companiesi 
obligation to provide new network clement combinations in t h e  same decraion. It 
ia not clear when the FCC or rhc courte will act to def ine the scope of 
"currently combined." The poesible impact of the resolution of these  open issuce 
on cxiating interconnection agrccmence between incumbent telephone companies and 
new telecomunicatione service providers or on agreements that  may be negotiated 
in the Zutusc cannot be de!ttrmintd at thir t i m e .  

In addition to it8 rul inge  regarding interconnection and unbundled network 
clementa, the FCC has ieacled a seriee of orders on the ability of new 
telecommunications a e t v i c c  providers to provide digital subscriber linea and 
other high-bandwidth services to their cuatomcra for, amng other things, 
In t e rne t  acccsa. T h o a t  ordere have made clear C h a t  new telecomunications 
~ c r v i c c  providers are entitled to collocate the  equipment necessary to provide 
thoee services in incumbent telephone companies' Central Officca; t h a t  incumbent 
telephone companies m u s t .  where technically feasible, provide ncu 
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telecommunications service provrdera w i t h  high-quality loope capable of 
supporting d i g i t a l  eubscril~er l i n e a  and that  t h e  incumbent telephone companies 
must provide new telecommunlcations service providers w i t h  information 
concerning the make-up of t h e i r  network8 to allow t h e  new tclccommunications 
Bcrvice provider t o  determine if a particular customer can be served with 
digital subscriber line service.  However, many of  the details of t h e  orders' 
implementation are unect t l i?d  and w e  cannot aesure you that t h e  rules  are 
sufficient to ensure chat t h e  incumbent telephone cornpanics meet t h e i r  
obligationa. 

THE STATES' ROLE IN IMPLEHKNTfNG TKE LOCAL COMPETITION PROVISIONS 

Although che FCC cstabliehei nationvide guidelines governing e n t r y  by neu 
telecomwiicarionn e e r v i c e  providcra under the Tclccomuicationa A c t ,  utate 
regulatory commissions also have m ] o s  rolee in implementing the local 
competition provieions of t h e  a c t .  Among other things, B t a t e  regulatory 
cormnissiona muet approve or reJtct interconnection agreemento, and they have 
c h i e f  rteponeibrlity for arbitrating and mediating these agreements i f  t h e  
negotiating carricra cannot reach an understanding on t h e  agreement'e terms 
S t a t e  regulatory C O I I I ~ ~ B B L O I ~ B  are also charged w i t h  developing and implementing 
coat-baaed prices f o r  interconnection and unbundled network elements, in 
accordance with t h e  Teleconmnunications Act and t h e  forward-looking pricing 
guldtlrnca act by the FCC. State regulatory commlssiona are also ptrmictcd to 
establish additional unbundled network element8 consistent w i t h  federal lau and 
pol 1 cy 

BELL OPERRTINC COMPANNES EPTTRY I K T O  LONG DISTWCE 

T h e  Telecommunication8 A c t  also seeks to encourage local competition 
requiring the regional Bell operating companies to demonstrate on d 
state-by-state basis that t h e y  have adequately opened the ir  network and market 
to competitors before  t h e y  can prov ide  long distance service  to end users ~n 
t h e i r  odin local s e r v i c e  arc!as Speclfica::{. t h e  Telecommunications A c t  l a y s  0b.t 

a 14-point checkiist w h i c h  generallf requires a reqional Bell operating company 
to prove to t h e  FCC that i t .  has  complied with the  interconnection and n e t w o r k  
access obligarions discussc.d above and t h a t  i t  faces  eEfective competicion in 
the e t a t t  where i t  a e e k s  tc, p r o v i d e  l ong  distance service While the FCC has 
u1t:mate responaibilicy f o r  deciding whether t h e  checklist conditions have been 
m e t  t he  FCC 1s required to f i r s t  consult with t h e  approprrate s t a t e  regulatory 
c o m i  s s 1 on 
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cumtomern with a full rangla of local and long distance ttlccommunicationn 
services. The dbillty of S ~ u t h w e s t c r n  Bell to provide long distance services is 
expected to be an addit ioni l l  noufCC of competition for  L I B .  

OTHER FEDERAL REGULATION 

The PCC regulatea our ~ n t c r a t a t c  and international B t r V i c t  offerings. Those 
eerv ice8  include our provitiion of interatate and international long distance 
rcrvicc and our provision crf interatate dcctam service. The FCC haa established 
di f ferent  l e v e l s  of regulation for dominant carrier8 and non-doininant carrieril.  
Incumbent telephone companies. such as the Bell operating cornpanrce and GTB. are 
currently coneidered dominant carriers.  and arc subject t o  extensive rate and 
operational regulation. while new ttltcolmnunicationa rcrvicc providere such as 
w e  are considered non-dominant carricre, and are subject to substantially leas 
regulation. 
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INTERSTATE M INTERNATIONAL LONG DISTANCE SERVICES 

f n t e r e t a t t  and international long distance acrviccs of non-dominant carr iers  
are s u b l t c t  t o  re la t ive ly  little regulation by the PCC.  Our provision of 
international long diatance services requirea prior authorization by the FCC 
under Section 214 of the TeLccomunicationa A c t ,  which w e  have obtained. We are 
dl80 required to file tarifla w i t h  the PCC for international Long distance 
eervict on an ongoing basis. 

Under t h e  F C C ' a  atreamlined regulation of non-dominant carriers ,  we may 
install and operate facilities for t h e  transmiseron of domestic interstate 
cormnumications without p r i o r  FCC authorization. 

tn addition, in October 1 9 9 6 ,  the FCC adopted an order i n  which i t  
e 1 i m i  na t ed the requ i rcmn t s that  non - dom i n a t  1 n t t r  e t a tt inte rtxchange carriers 
mdlntain t a r i f f 0  on file w1t.h t h e  FCC f o r  domestic in ters ta te  aetvice~. The 
order doea not apply to the switched and s p e c i a l  access services of t h e  Bell 
operating companica or other local exchange carriers .  The FCC order was i s s u e d  
under authority granted to t h e  FCC i n  the 1996 A c t  to "forbear" Erom regulating 
any telecommunacatlons ~ e r v : . c e ~  provldtr under some circumstances After a 
nine-month transition period, relationehipa between in ters ta te  carriers and 
their customera would be set: by contract .  A t  that p o i n t ,  long distance cornpanlea 
would be prohibited from f i . . i n g  tarrffs w i t h  the FCC for  i n t e r s t a t e ,  domestlc, 
interexchange services. S t w r a l  part i e s  filed notrcea f o r  reconslderatlon of  t h e  
FCC order and other  parties appealed t h e  decision On February 13, 1997. the 
United States Court of A p p c d l a  for the Dlstrict of Columbia Circuit s t a y e d  che 
implementation of t he  FCC order pending i t s  r e v i e w  of t he  order on A ~ S  m e r i t s  
Currtncly, that stay remainti in ef fect  and interstate long distance telephone 
companrea a r e  t h e r e f o r e  s t i ' . l  required to flle tariffs 

T h e  D . C .  Circuit heard oral argument  on t h e  merits of the FCC's detariffinq 
order on March 1 4 .  2000, but: has cot y e t  i s s u e d  an order. I f  the s t a y  i s  lifted 
and t h e  FCC order becomes e l i f t c t l v e ,  ttlccommunlcatlons carriers w i  1 1  no ionger 
be able to rely on t h e  f i l i n g  o f  tariffs with t h e  FCC a s  a means of providing 
notice to customers O E  p r lc r !s .  terms and conditions on which they o f f e r  t h e i r  
i n t e r 5 t a t e  s e r v i c e s ~  The  FCC has required that non-dominant i r . t e rexchange  
carriers post thelr rates. t e r m s  and conditions f o r  all t h e i r  I n t e r s r a t e ,  
domestic services on their : :nternec  web sites i f  they have one;  chis rule i s  
effective once t h e  FCC's ma:idatory detariff ing order t a k e s  e f f e c t  T h i s  m a ' i  
resu:t i n  significa~t admrn:.scratlve e x p e n s e s  f o r  u g .  The oblige-ion to provide 
non-discrimina:ory. lust and reasonable prices remalns ,mchangcd  under the 
Communications A c t  3 f  1 9 3 4 .  T a r i f f s  d l B 0  al?aw a carrier to :imlt :t9 llablilty 
to l t 9  ccstomers. in-luding i n  connecr:on with s e r v i c e  i a c e r r ' J p c l c n s .  I f  tariffs 
are elirninared. w e  may become 1iab;c for cost5 tha:  w e  ; u o ~ l d  have beer: ah?e :a 
L i ~ i :  -,r.rougr, r a r l f f  f : l i n 3 : i ,  a n 5  z'e :annor a s s d r e  : v ' o ~ ~  t F , a t  t h e  potentia; 
:labilities 4::; r.0: ha'de a materia: a3verse effect ST: O U T  r - c s u : r s  o f  c p e r a t i 3 r . s  
a;.d : i n a r . c i a l  zsndition 

ACCESS SER'JICES 
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Unlike dominant carrieirs, whrch are subject t o  extensive rate regulation, we 
and other non-dominant carrier8 arc aubject  to relatively little regulation of 
our i n t e r i t a t e  acceas menicest. The PCC haa eliminated the  requirement t h a t  
non-dominant carrier0 must file tariffs €or their accesm services.  while no 
longer mandatory, carriers may continue to file access t a r i f f a .  We have chosen 
to continut to do 8 0 .  

I n  August 1 9 9 9 ,  t h e  FCC granted incumbent telephone companies s u b j e c t  to 
price cap rate regulation. including the regional Bell operating companies, 
submtantial pr i c ing  flexibility with regard to some interatate access servicee. 
Among other things, the F C C ' s  new rules permit incumbent telephone companies, 
upon a showing that  the 8e:rvicce in queetion are aubject t o  sufficient levels of 
competition, to offer volume and term diecounca and contract t a r i f f s  for 
particular acceas services- The new rule3 also allow incumbent telephone 
companies, upon meeting a higher competitive etandard, to file tariff8 for their 
accc86 aervicta  f re t  from nlany rate Btructure requirements. To t h e  extent t h e s e  
regulatory 

2 0  

initiatives enable or require incumbent telephone companrca to o f f e r  seleceively 
reduced rates  for some accese services,  the fates we rnay charge for these  accesa 
aervicee will likely be conmtraincd. In addition, the FCC has recently initiated 
d proceeding t o  examine whether t o  regulate t h e  ratem that  new 
telecommunicatione service providera charge f o r  t h e i r  access eervicea. While the 
FCC hae received coneiderable opposition from the new telecommunications s e r v i c e  
provider industry and others to doing so, w e  cannot amsure you that the FCC will 
not adopt some form of regulation for  new telccommunicationa service provider 
accesa chargee. The timing of  the FCC'B deciaion is uncertain. 

In addition to t h e  pricing flexibility deilcribed above, the FCC is currently 
considering a j o i n t  propoeal from ATLT, Bell Atlantic, BellSouth, GTE, SBC 
Communications and S p r i n t  to lower significantly and dclcverage interatate 
acceas charqea for  participating pr i ce  cap local exchange carriers. The FCC 
could leaut an order on t h i s  propoaal in the first half of 2000. If adopred, 
t h e s e  pricing reforms could incraaae competition among carriers offering local 
exchange and exchange access serv ice  i n  our operating area. 

A D D I T I O N U  FEDERAL ISSUES 

ACCESS TO POLES, D U C N ,  CONDUITS PSID RfGKTS-OF-WAY. An area of t h e  law t h a t  
remains i n  flux concerns the  extent of a c a r r i e r ' s  obligations t o  provide access 
to poles, ducts. conduits and rlqhte-of-way. We arc obligated under Section 224 
of t h e  Communication~ A c t  to permit other carr lers  reasonable acccsa to our 
p o l e s .  ducts, conduit8 and rlghta-of-way and the FCC has adopted comprehensive 
rules governing how accts.8 is to be provided. The FCC i s  a l s o  c u r r e n t l y  
consrdering additional r u l e s ,  inc :uding  w h e t h e r  a c c e s s  to rooftops and space 
inside buildings. including buildings rluned by utr?ities, s h o u l d  be mandated 
under the Telecommunications A c t .  

EEO REPORT. T h e  FCC requirea UB to f i l e  an annual employment report to 
comply u r t h  t h e  FCC's equal employment opportunlty policies. 

TRWTH IN BILLING. The FCC has adcpttd new r u l e s  d e s ~ g n e d  to make i t  easler 
for customers t o  understand the b:lls of t e l e c o m . a n ~ c a t ~ o n s  carriers. These new 
r u l e s  eatablish requirements regarding :he formacting of b:l?s and t h e  
i n f o . m a t i c n  t h a t  m u s t  be included on bills These rules  have been appealed in 
federa l  ccurt, 
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CVSTCUER PROPRIETARY NETWORK INFORMATION In Pebruary 1998, t h e  FCC adopted 
rulen implementing Stc t io :n  222 of the Communieatione A c t  of 1934, which governs 
the u8e of customer propr.ietsry network infonnatlon by telecommunications 
carriers. Customer proprietary network information generally includes any 
information regarding a aubecriber's use of a telecommunications service, where 
i t  is obtained by a carrittr solely by virtue o€ the carrier-curtomer 
relationship. The FCC has c l a r i f i e d  t h a t  customer proprietary network 
in fomat ion  data n o t  include a aubscrrbcr's name, telephone number, and address, 
as t h i a  information i s  generally not  derived from t h e  carrier's provision of a 
t c~ccomunicat ion8  service to a cuatorner. Under t h e  PCC'a rules, a carrier may 
only u ~ e  a cuatomer'm proFrietary network information t o  market acrvicee that  
are "neccnsary EO,  or uaed in," the provision ol a service t h a t  t h e  carrier 
already provides to the customer, unleaa it receives the customer'e prior oral 
or written consent t o  UBC that  information to rnarkt t  other s e r v i c e s .  In 
December 1 9 9 9 ,  the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit vacated 
the FCC'a original and modified cuatomer proprietary network information rules 
on the grounds that they violate the FiY8t Amendmefit. However, Section 222 Of 
t h e  Cormnunications A c t  rem.aine the law and that aection. in addition to t h e  
PCC' 8 
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now-vacated rules ,  providrii BOW guldance  on the use of  customer proprietary 
network information rulee. Uncertainty regarding restrictions on t h e  uae of 
CuEtomer proprietary network information rules may impede our ability to market  
in tegrated packages of ecrvices e f f e c t i v e l y  and to expand existing customers' 
use of our s c r v i c t a .  

UNIVERSAL SERVICE. On Hay 8 ,  1997, t h e  FCC released an order establishing a 
8igniLicantly expanded federal universal  service subsidy regime under the 
Teltcomunicatione A c t .  The! universal service program provideo support to 
carriers nerving low- income customer6 and custmefo who l i v e  i n  a m a 8  where t h e  
Coat of  providing teleconumtmications mtrvices i e  high.  In addition, the PCC 
establiahed neu aubaidies for teltcormnunications and some information ~ e r v i c t s  
provided t o  qualifying schools and libxariea and f o r  services provided to rural  
health care p r o v i d e r s .  Providcra of interatate telecommunications scrvicea, as 
well a a  other entities, such a s  private carriers offering txce86 capacity tn end 
u ~ c r  customers, must  pay far these programs. Our contribution to the  federal 
support funda would be calculated based on a percentage of our gross  end-user 
interstate and international ttltcornmunrcations fevenuea. The aaseesmtnt rate 
for the second quartet of 2000 i n  5.7101% of i n t e r a t a t e  and international 
end-uecr telecommunications revenues .  T h e  contribution factor issued by t he  FCC 
v a r i e s  quarterly. T h e  amous.ta c o n t r i b u t e d  may be bllled to c u s t o m e r s .  Currently, 
the FCC is calculating assesementa basad on the prior year's revenues. Aasuming 
that t h e  FCC cant;nuca to c a l c u l a t e  contributrons based on t h e  pr ior  year's 
revenues, we believe that we will not 5e liable to contribute any material 
amount to these F r q r a m s  during 2000 because we had limited interstate and 
lnternational end user revenues i n  1 9 9 3 .  T h e  t h re sho ld  b e f o r e  w e  are required t D  

contribute is a S10.000 contribution, which translates I n t o  r o u g h l y  $l7S.OOO 
Interstate end user t t l e c o r r u n u n i c a t i o n ~  revenues  With  respect t o  subsequect 
y t a r a ,  however, we are currently unable to quantify t h e  amount of any 
contributions ttar ue vi11 be r e q u i r e d  :o make or the  effect t h a t  c h e s e  requir-d 
contributions w i l l  have on our financial condition. 

The  FCC has  recencly adopted t h e  cost model which i t  w i l l  use to determine 
t h e  support needed in high-coat areas and t h e  inputs for :he modei. T h e  new 
hAgh-cost support mechanrsni ,  whlch w e n t  into effect on January 1. 200Q for 
non-rural c a r r i e r s .  substastia1:y Lncreases  t h e  amount of high,czsc support 
provided to non-rcral c a r r : e r s  The gnited S:a:es C o u r t  of Appeal6  for t h e  F i f t b  
Circuit r e c e n t l y  ;ssued ar. order upholding : n  p a r t ,  a n d  r e . - e r s i n y  in p a r t ,  :he 
May 8th FCC order implementing t h e s e  fdnds Sdmerous FCC o r d e r s  r e v l s l n q  t h e s e  
f u n d s  are subzect r c  pctirlons for rec3nslderation ar.d fur:!-,er pec::icns f 2 r  
appea?. The o u t c o m e  of t h e E e  ~ r a c e e d ; ~ . ? ~  c r  rheir e f f e c :  :dEnot be pred:cted 

I n  additrzn ',3 t h e  universai s e r ' J i r e  7ec?,ar.;sr.s r l e s r r l k e d  a i o v e ,  : > e  FCC; : 5  

c u r r e n t : ;  ccns1der:r .g a ; o i n t  p r c p ~ s a ;  From Be;: A:laE:::, 3e:1So.;tP4;. C T E .  SB; 
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Comunicationa, ATLT. and Sprint to create a S 6 5 0  million fund to provlde 
universal service  #upport for interstate 1ccea8 charges. If adopted, this 
proposal could elgnificantly increase the contribution obliqationa of other 
Ke~ecormnunicatione carrier8.  

COMHUNICATIONS ASSISTANCE FOR L A H  ENFORCEMENT ACT. Under this act ,  
ttlecommunicationa carrier4 are required to: ( 1 )  provide law enforcement 
officiale w i t h  call content and call identifying information under a v a l i d  
electronic muveillance warrant. and ( 2 )  rtatrve a sufficrent number of circuita 
€or uae by law enforcement official8 ~n exccutlng court authorized electronic 
survciIIance. If wc provide facilities-baaed services, w e  may incur costa in 
meeting both of t h e a t  requirements. fn particular, regarding t h e  requirements 
related ta call content and identification, exctpt in very limited circumstances 
t h e  government is required to compeneate carriers only for the c o a t a  of making 
equipment installed or dcp.loytd before January 1 ,  1 9 9 5  compliant w i t h  thia a c r .  
While the ttlecomunicationa induatry iB attempting to negotiate legislative and 
adrniniatrativc changes to t h i s  reimbursement cut-off date. a9 i t  stand8 today, 
we will be financially rerponaible for ennuring t h a t  our post-1995 equipment i s  
in compliance. Regarding the circuit capacity requirements, the government will 
finance any necessary incrcaeca in capaci ty  f o r  equipment that we have 
specifically identified as installed or deployed prior  to September 8 ,  1 9 9 8 ,  and 
w e  arc responsible for  p a y h g  only for any necessary increases id capacity €or 
equiprncnc installed or deployed after that date. 

2 2  

STATE AND LOCAL REGULATXON 

In general, Etdtt regulatory eomiaeions have regulatory ~urisdiction over 
UB when our facilitieo and ncrvicer a r t  uecd to provide local  and other 
intrastate aervices. Under the Telccommunicatione A c t ,  e t a t e  com1saionB 
continue to set the rtqu:.rcmtntn for providers of local and in tras ta te  8trviccm, 
including qual i fy  of services criteria. State regulatory cornismione also can 
regulate the ratem charged by new tc lecomunicat ione  service providers f o r  
intrastate and local icrvices and can s e t  prices for interconnection by ncu 
tclecarrdnunicationa 6ervict providers w i t h  t h e  incumbent telephone company 
networks, in accordance with guidelines B e t  by t h e  FCC.  In addition, s t a t e  
regulatory commissions in many instances have authorit{ under s t a t e  law to adopt 
additional regulation8 governing local competition, .CJ  lonq a n  t h e  atate's 
actions are not  Inconsistent wlth federal  law or regulation. 

MOEt e t a t e  regulatory commisaiona require companies t h a t  w i s h  to provide 
intrastate common carrier ~ e r v i c c s  to register or be certified to provide t h e s e  
aerviccs. These ccrtificatlnns generally rcqurre a showing t h a t  t h e  c a r r l e r  has 
adequate financial, managerial and t echn ica l  resources to o f f e r  t h e  proposed 
scrvicclr in a manner consistent with t h e  public interest. In most states, we a r e  
alao required to file tariffs eerting f o r t h  the t erms ,  condltlons and p r i c e s  for 
services that  are classified as i n t r a s t a t e ,  and to update O K  amend O U K  tariffs 
as rates change or new products are added. We may also be s u b j e c t  t o  var:ous 
reporting and record-keeping requlrements. 

We a r e  currently certified by che Missouri Public Service Commlsslon, t h e  
Kansas Corporation C o ~ r i i s s i o n .  the Texas  Public Utilities Commiss~on and t h e  
Okldhoma Corporation Commission to provlde both local a n d  i n t r a s t a t e  lonq 
d i s t a n c e  s e r v i c e  in chose s t a t e s  We have tariffs on file in each of these 
StdLCS. 

I f  we choose to install o u r  OWE transmission faci?it:es. w e  nay be required, 
i n  some cities, to obtain s tree t  openlng and construction permits. permiss:or, t o  
use rights-of-way. zoning variances and other approvals [rom nunicipa; 
authorities. We alsc m a y  be r e q u i r e d  to obcarn d franchise t 3  p l a c e  facl1:ties 
i n  public r i g h t s  o f  way. I n  some a r e a s .  we may be required to Fa:/ license or 
franchise f e e s  :or t h e s e  approvals we cannot assilre -;'CL tP.ac fees w : l ?  rema-?. 
a t  c u r r e n t  levels. o r  that  s u r  compet:r:rs v : i :  f a c e  :be 5ame exper.sez a i t k c ~ g k  
t h e  Tele:cmmurAicatiohS A c t  req 'J ires  t ha t  a?.: fees :b,.a:?e3 h:,, ~ ~ ? . ; r : p & L : : i e s  be 
reasonab:e a:,d non-discriminatory 6s a7or.g te lezormur. :cat  L O T S  ca~r:ers 
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RISK FACTORS 

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSIX'ESS: 

WE HAVE A HISTORY OF OPERATING LOSSES. AND WE MAY NOT BE PAOFSTABLE IN THE 
m. 

We have incurred significant loeste eince we began operations an a 
competitive te lccomunicat iona provider and expect to continue t o  incur losses 
in the Iuturc a s  we build 'cur network. For the year ended kcember 31. 1999. we 
had operating loeree  o€ $43.7 million and a ne t  l o a 8  of $ 6 1 . 0  million. As o€  
December 3 1 ,  1 9 9 9 ,  ve had ,in accumulated deficit of  $ 7 9 . 8  million. We expect t o  
experience losats during our network and eervice deployment, w h i c h  w i l l  continue 
for the foremetable future .  Prolonged cffecte of generating lossca without 
additLona1 funding may re:l:rict our ability to pursue our bueineee strategy. 

I f  we cannot achieve profitability from operating activitiea, w e  may not  be 
able to meet: 

- our capital expenditure requirements; 

- our debt service obligatione; or 

- our  working capital needs 

OUR HIGHLY LEVERAGED U P I T A L  STRUCTLTRE LIMITS OUR ABILITY TO OBTAIN A D D I T T O W  
FXNANCIHG AHD COULD ADVERSElLY APFEtr OUR BUSINESS IN SLWRAL OTHER WAYS. 

The l e v e l  of our outsta.nding debt greatly exceeds t h e  l e v e l  o€ our revenue 
and stockholders' equi ty .  8.8 of December 31, 1999, ue had 5 1 2 5 . 8  mil l ion  of  
long-term indebtednean cutetanding, including $ 1 0 . 0  million outstanding under 
our renior cred i t  facility and $ 1 1 4 . 7  million of senior notes outatanding. This 
indebtedness rcpreienttd 1 0 3 . 5 %  of our t o t a l  capatalizatlon at that  date. W e  
may, and are also permitted. under t h e  cerms of o u r  debt inetrumenta to, incur 
aUb8tdntlal indebtedness i n  t h e  future. 

Our large amount o f  rndebtedneas could significantly impact our business f o r  
the follouing rea8ons: 

- i t  limits o u r  ability to obtain additional financing t o  complete our 
roll-out plan. to develop n e u  sexvices or to otherwise respond to 
unanticipated competitive pressures;  

- i t  means t h a t  we w i l l  need t o  dedicate a B U b 6 t a n t l a l  portion of o u r  
operating cash flow to fund interest expense on our senlor credit facility 
and our senior  notes ,  thereby r e d u c i n g  funds available f o r  working 
capiral, c a p i t a l  expenditures 3r other purposes, 

it makes us vulnerable to i n t e r e s t  rate fluctuatlons because our s e n i o r  
c r e d i t  facility loan5 bear i n t e r e s t  a t  variable races; 

it limits o u r  abllrty to compete w i : h  companres who are n o t  as highly 
leveraged. eepccially thoae who may be able to price t h e i r  s e n i c e  
offerings at levels t e l o w  t h o s e  r e  can  or ate vllllno t o  match: and 

i t  limics c u r  abillcy to expand i n t o  new markers and to r e a c t  to chang ing  
market  cordicions, cbanges i r .  our  i n d u s t r f  a ~ d  economlc d o u n t u r n s .  

OUR EXISTING DEBT I N C L V D E S  RESTRZCTIVE LW F : N M C I A L  C O V E N M S  THAT LIMIT CUR 
OPEFATING FLEXIBILITY, 
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- incur additional debt: 

2 4  

- pay dividends or diitributions on, or redeem or repurchase, c a p i t a l  stock; 

- c r e a t e  liens ox negative pledgee with respect to our a s s e t s ;  

- make investments, loans o r  advances; 

- iasuc, sell or al low distribution8 on capital stock of specified 
subsidiarrea; 

- enter  into sale and leaaebdck tranaactaone; 

- prepay or deLease specified indebrcdntes; 

- enter into traneactions with a f f i l i a t e e ;  

- enter into specified hedging arrangements; 

- merge, consolidate or  a e l l  our a s a e t a ;  or 

- engage in any  bumine:se other than t e l t c o m u n i c a t i o n e .  

The acnior notem also require us to o f f e r  to purchase t h e s e  dotea from the 
holders at 101t if ue unde:cgo a change of coi.tro1. In addition. the aenior 
credit f a c i l i t y  impoeea f inanc ia l  covenant8 that  require us to comply with 
apcci f ied  financial ratios and t c 8 t 8 ,  including minimum revenues, minimum 
EBITDA/mkximurn EBITDA loset!a. m i n i m u m  accesa lines, ecnior secured debt to t o t a l  
capitalization, maximum cap i ta l  expenditures. rruximurn leverage rat ioa ,  minimum 
interest  coverage ration aiid pro €orma debt rervice coverage ration. We cannot 
amsure you that w e  will be able to meet thcie rtquircmtnts or r a t i s f y  t h e e e  
C O V t n a n t 8  in t h e  fu ture .  If uc f a i l  t o  do EO,  our debts could become immediately 
payable a t  a t i m e  when we lire unable to pay them. Thin could advcrecly affect 
our ability to carry out our business plan and would have a negative e f f e c t  on 
o u r  financial condition. 

WE EXPECT TO GROW Pm, CANNOT G U W E E  TKAT WE WILL BE ABLE TO EFFECTIVELY 
MANAGS OUR FWURE GROWTH. 

If  w e  successfully implement o u r  buainess p l a n .  our operationa will expand 
r a p i d l y ,  and ut w i l l  be prcrviding packaged telecommunications services  on a 
widespread basis. This could place  a significant s t r a i n  on o u r  management, 
operational, financial and ocher resources and increase demands on o u r  systems 
and controls. Failure,to rnimage our future g r o w t h  effectively could adversely 
a f f e c t  t h e  expansion of o u r  customer base and service o f f e r i n g s .  We cannot 
assure  you t h a t  we w i l l  successfully ivplement and maintain efficient 
operational and financial siyaterna, procedures  and controls or successfully 
c b t a i n ,  integrate and manage the tmplojees and management, operationai, 
financial and o t h e r  reaourcea necessary to manage a deveiopir .g  and expanding 
business in our evolving, h, ighly reg’ lated and increasingly cornpecir ive  
industry 

TO E X P A N D  AM3 DEVELOP OUR ElUSIPIFSS WE WILL NEED A SIGNIFICANT AMOUNT OF CASH, 
W I C H  WE MAY SE ’JFIMLE TO O B T A I N .  

T h e  expanslon and dcvclopmenc of c ~ r  b u s i n e s s  ar.3 t t e  deployment of oux 
netwcrks. S e i - i C E S  a n d  S y s t e m 9  will require significant c a p i t a l  expendicures, 
working caprtai a.?d debt  s e r v i c e  a n d  g e n e r a t e  negati*.’e 3 p e r a t i r . q  cash flows 

T h e  a c r u a i  arnoun: and t . i m r E q  of z s~ r  f u t u r e  c a F : t a ;  req-i rerner . :~ may d r f f e r  
7,a:erial:j .  frzm G u r  e s t - m t c s  a s  a r e s u l :  of, ancr.g orhe: :;i:zgs, t!:e demand for 
C L K  s e r v i c e s  and r e g u i a t o r j -  teckn31a~:c~; a:.? ccmpe: 1: :*)e d e . i e l s p n e r , r s ,  
:cr!~dlnq addi r ;or .a l  marker. oe’Je:o;-ne:,:s ar.3 r . c w  c~por-:””:;:es ;E C’JL- i n A s : : : :  
3s: r e v e n u e  a n d  ::SCS ma.,, i b i s 3  ne depenoen: ~ p c n  factors t h a t  a r e  n o t  u i tk . : r .  ;LT 
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control, including regulatory and legislative dcvcIopmcntB, t h e  responac of  our 
competitors to the ir  1088 of cuatomre to us and t o  changes Ln technology, the 
nature and penetration of n c r v i c c s  that we m y  offer  and the number of 
subacribere and t h e  8trviN:ta €or which they eubmcribe. Due to t h e  unccrcainty of 
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theee factors, actual  revemuem and COSCB may vary from expected amounts, 
poesibly to a material deqrce, and these variations arc liktly,to affect  our 
future capital requirements. 

We ale0 expect that ue will require additional financing or may require 
financing 800ner than anticipated to complete our roll-out plan or if our  
development plane change or prove t o  be inaccurate. We may a l s o  require 
additional financing in order to develop n e w  service8 or t o  otherwise respond to 
changing busineas conditions or unancj,cipattd competitive pressures .  Sources OF 
additional financing may include commercial bank borrouinge, vendor financing, 
or t h e  private or public amale of e q u i t y  or debt securitita. If we decide to 
raiet additional funds through the incurrence of debt, our  intereat  obligations 
will incrtaet, and we may I>ecome subject to additional or more r e e t r i c t i v e  
Financial covenants, which could impair our abllity to develop our bueineee. Wc 
cannot amnure you that  uc will be succeesful in raising eufficient additional 
capital on favorable terne or at all. Failure to raise  aufficient funds may 
require us to modify, d e l a y  or abandon a o m  of our  future expaneion or 
expenditure plane. 

RESISTANCE BY POTEKTIAL CUSTOMERS TO ACCEPT US As A H E W  PROVXDER OF 
T E L E C O ~ I C A T I O N S  SERVICE9 M A Y  REDUCE OUR ABILITY TO INCREASE OVR R E V E N ? .  

Tht aucceBa of our service offerings will depend upon, among other things, 
the willingntae of additional cuatomcrs t o  accept us as a new provider of 
integrated communications s.ervicee.  We cannot ansure you that  ut w i l l  be 
mucccaaful in overcoming t b , e  reeistancc o€ potential euetomerm to change thtir 
a t n i c e  provider, particularly thorrc that  purchaae service6 from the traditional 
t c l ephme cornpanice, or that customera will buy our  services. A n y  lack of 
custc icceptancc would reduce our ability to zncrease our revenue. 

IF WF - W M L E  TO DEVELOP OR INTEGRATE OUR SYSTEMS OR PROPERLY HAXNTAIEI Apro 
U P G W b  THEM, WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO BILL OVR CUSTOMERS EFFECTIVELY OR PROVIDE 
ADEQUATE CUSTOMER SERVICE. 

Sophisticated back office informatton and processing syeterns are vital to 
our  growth and our ability to monitor costs ,  bill customers, provision customer 
orders, achieve operating eLfrciencice and m a i n t a i n  our operating margins Our 
plane f o r  t h e  developmcnc and implementation of these systems rely, for the most 
p a r r ,  on choosing products and s e r v i c e s  o f f $ r e d  by third parcy  vendors and 
integrating these products and services in-house to praduct efficient 
operational solutions. We cannot  assure you thac w e  will successfully i r n p l e m e n c  
these s y s t e m s  on a timely basis or thal: we will implement them ac a l l .  We a l s o  
cannot assure you t h a t ,  once imp lemen ted ,  these  systems wiil p e r f o r m  a s  we 
expect. Risks t o  our b u s i n e s s  associated w i t h  our systems rnclud- 

failure b y  thtie vendors  to d e l i v e r  their p r a d u c t s  and services i n  a 
timely and effective manner a n 3  at acceptable COSLS; 

- f a i l u r e  by us to identify al; = f  o u r  information and processing needs 
adequately; 

- f a i l u r e  o f  o c r  relaced process inq  or information s y s c e m s ;  o r  

- failure by us to tffectrvely :ritegrate r.ew products cr s e r v : c e s  
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Borne of these agreements, which may advtrecly affect us. 
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WE MAY HEED TO RELY ON THE ESTABLISHED LQCAL TELEPHONE c o w m m s  TO IHPLEMEKT 
OUR SERVICES SUCCESSFULLY. THEIR FAILURE TO COOPERRTE WITH US COULD ADVERSELY 
A F F E m  THE SERVICES WE OFFER. 

We arc a recent entrant into the local telecommunications services industry .  
The local exchange service:s market in moat a t a t e s  wan o n l y  recently opened to 
competition. There a f t  numl?roue operating complexiticr associated w i t h  providing 
theae services. ne w i l l  be required to develop new products, servicee and 
aystema and will need t o  d w e l o p  new marketing initiatives to sell these  
atrviccs. We cannot asaurc ycu that we will be able  to develop theat products 
and s c r v i c e i .  

we plan to deploy high capacity voice and data switches in moat of the 
markets we serve .  We initially intend to rely on the networks of encablished 
telephone companies or those of new market entrants for nome aspecfa of 
transmiaeion. Federal law requirea moat  of the traditional local telephone 
companies to lea8c or "unbundle" elements of their networka and permit us to 
purchaee t h e  clemcntm w e  need ,  thereby decreasing our operating expenses. Wc 
cannot atleure you that  th18 unbundling w i l l  continue to occur in a t i m e l y  manner 
or that thc prices for thcet elements w i l l  be favorable t o  UB. O u r  current 
strategy depends in large part on our ability to provide serv ice  to our  
CUBEOmeT8 by learing all of the network clement8 neccsracy to provide l o c a l  
telephone aervicc from the incumbent telephone company rather than through the 
ugc of our o m  equipment ansi facilities. UlE-P allow8 uo t o  minimize capital 
expenditurea and permite us t o  enter ncu markets quickly, while allowing us to 
maintain aignificant gross margins. I f  the incumbent local telephone corrrpaniea 
do not cooperate in making 1J'NE-P available, our ability to provide service to 
custornero could be mattria1:ly adversely affected. 

In addi t ion,  our  ability LO implement aucctsafully o u r  serv ices  will require 
the negot ia t ion of interconnection and collocacion agreement8 with established 
telephone compani .nd a t h t r  new market tntrant8 ,  which can take considerable 
time, e f for t  and f .8e and iB subject to f edera l .  a t a t e  and local regulation. 
Interconnection a .Rents iirt agreements between local telecommunications 
services providerb that  set f o r t h  the terms and conditions governing how those 
providers w i l l  interconnect t h e i r  networks and/or purcnase or lease network 
facilities and services. 

O u r  interconnection agrt:ements w i t h  Southwestern Bell prov ide  that our 
connection and maintenance orders w i l l  receive t h e  same attention as 
Southwestern 8 ~ 1 1 ' s  end-user cuatomcra and that Southwestern Bell will provide 
capacity a t  key te1ecommunic:at iona interaectiona t o  keep call blockage within 
industrj standarda. Accordingly,  we depend and will continue to depend on 
Southwestern Bell and. a s  we expand o u r  netuork. ue will depend on o the r  
traditional telephone companies to assure uninterrupted service and c o m p e t i t i v e  
serv ices .  Blocked calls result in c u a t m e r  dissatisfaction and risk t h e  lOS3 of 
business. Incerconnection a~ ireements .  s,Jch a s  oGr agreements wlch Southuesrern 
Bell, typically have short terms. requiring u6 t D  renegotiate frequently. Some 
o f  our agreements w a t h  Southwes tern  B e l :  have one ytar cr l e s s  remalninq before 
we w i l l  have to renegotiate them. We cannot assure you c h a t  w e  w i l l  be able to 
renegotiate these interconnection agreements  in s u r  existing markers,  or 
negotiate new i n t t r c o n n e c t i c s n  agreements ~n new markets .  on fa..rorable t e r m a .  In 
addition, t h e  prices s e t  f o r t h  in c';r interconnection agreements may be subject 
to aigniflcant ra te  i n c r e a s e s  a c  the discrttlon of the r e g u l a t o r y  auchorlty in 
each s t a t e  in which ue o p e r a t e .  O u r  profitability partially depends  on C ~ C S C  

state-regulated rate ~tructcreg We c a n n n t  a s s u r e  you t h a t  t h e  rates charged to 
us under t h e  interconnecrioc a g r e e m c n c s  rill. alluw us L O  o f l e r  low enough usage 
rates to atrract a sufficiert number of customers acd :c .:perate 3 u r  b u s 1 r . e ~ ~  
p~-!;tably cr 1: F a v y r a k i e  ~ r c s s  mar3:r.:; 

Many new carr:ers h a v e  exper ier :ed  3lfficu:ties 1:. w o r k ; r . g  'x:tt. t h e  
esrab::shed re lephone c=mpar:es d::k. re!jFec'.  f r  zr3er:nq .nrer:orneic:ng. 
leasing Fre.n;ses and impiernen:inq r.Ce s : i s f e r s  ',sed t i  t r . e s e  neu : a r r ~ e r s  to 
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order and receive unbundled network elements and wholesale e t r v i c e s .  we cannot 
assure you that established telephone companies w i l l  be accommodating to us. 
ut arc unable to obtain the cooperation Of an tstabllahed telephone company in a 
region,  our ability t o  offer local aervicei i n  thi6 region on a timely and 
cost-effective bani6 would bt advereely affected. In addit ion.  

I f  
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both prOp08ed and rcctnt1.y completed mergers involving regional Bell operating 
companies- and other compeliitora could facilitate a combined entity's ability to 
provide many of the services we of fer ,  thereby making it more difficult to 
compete againa t t h e m .  

DIGITAL SUBSCRIBER LINE TECHNOLOGY MAY NOT OPERATE AS EXPECTED ON INCVMBENT 
LOCAL CARRIER NETWORKS ANI) MAY IKTERFERI: WITH OR BE AFFECTED BY OTHER TRANSPORT 
TBCICNOLOGIES. 

Our ability t o  provrde digital suhacriber line e t r v i c e e  to potential 
cu8tomera depends on the quality, physical condition, availability and 
mintenance of telephone liner within  the control of the incumbent carriere. ~f 
the telephone lines arc not adequate, we may not be able to provide d i g i t a l  
aubecribcr line servicem to many of our target customera, and t h i r  will diminish 
our expected revenue. Ut believe t h e  current condition of  telephone lines in 
many--cascs m y  be inadequate to permit ua to fully implement theac services. we 
a180 believe that the inculnbent carriers may n o t  maintain or improve the 
telephone liner in a condhion  that w i l l  allow UB to  implement our digital 
submeriber line acrvicen dfcctively. Further, t h e  incumbent carriers may claim 
their linen a t e  not of sufiieicnt q u a l i t y  to allow un t o  fully implement or 
operate our digital aubscriber line e t r v i c c e .  In addition, eome C U E I ~ O ~ C P B  UBC 

technologier other than copper lint6 to provide telephone services, and an a 
r e e u l t ,  digital subicriber line services might not be availablt to these 
cuetamere. 

All transport technolcqier ueing copper telephone lines have the potential 
to interfere with, or to be! Interfered w i t h  by, other traffic on adjacent copper 
telephone l i n e a .  T h i n  inte l - fc -*nct  could degrade t h e  performance of our Btrvices 
or make ua unable to provide 'ice on selected l i n e a .  In addition, incumbent 
carriers may claim that  the, F tral for interference by d i g i t a l  aubscr iber  
lint t t c h n o l q y  p e r m i t a  thew ' rtatrict or delay  our deployment o f  this 
technology. The tclecommunications industry and regulatory agtncrea are still 
developing procedures to rebrolvc interference L B S U ~ B  bttvetn telecomunications 
prov idera .  and these procedures m y  not be effective. We may be unable to 
suecesefully negotiate interference resolucion procedurea with incumbent 
carricrn Interference. or claima of interference, if widespread,  would 
a d v t r e c l y  a f f e c t  o u r  speed of deployment. reputation, brand image, nervice 
quality and customer r e t e n t i o n  and satisfaction. 

TF WE ARE UNABLE TO ATTRACT AND RETAIN K E Y  W A G E M E m  RND PERSONNEL. WE MAY NOT 
BE ABLE TO IMPLEMENT OUR B L G I N E S S  P L U  

We believe thac our future Y U C C C ~ ~  will be due, i n  p a r t ,  to our experienced 
management t e a m ,  inc1udir.g Messrs, SCO:~, Goldman, H3llingsuorth. Labhon .  
Maline. Shackelford and Vranicar ,  each 3 f  whom is party to an employment 
agreement.  Losing the s e r v i c e 8  of one o r  more members of our managemenc team 
could adversely affect our buainess and our expansion e f f 2 r r . s  and possibly 
p r e v e n t  us from: 

- f u r t h e r  deploying and improving our operational, financia? and informatrcn 
s y s t e m s  a n d  cone rols ; 

hiring and retaining qualrf led s a l e s .  marketing. administrative. operating 
and  technical personnel;  and 

tra:r,:ng a n d  Tanaging r.eu Fersor.::e: 

:n additrcn. competitrcn l o r  qua!i!ied emF:sj..ees Cas : r , t e c s i f i e d  1' r e c e n t  
y e a r s  ar.d may become even r w t e  :nrer.se i n  :ne fut . ;re C,.JZ as:iity tz imp:cnent 
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our bunincsi plan depcnde on our ability to hire  and reta in  a large number of 
new employees tach year. Inabillty to hire sufficient qualified personnel could 
impair our ability to 1nCreAee revenue, and customer8 could experience delays  in 
inatallation of servxce or experience lower ltvtle of customer care. 
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WE H A Y  NOT HAVE THE hBILIT ' I  TO DEVELOP STRATEGIC ALLIANCES OR TO MAKg OR 
SUCCESSFVLLY IMTEGRATE ACQIJISITIONS HEEDED TO COMPLEMENT OUR EXISTrNG BUSINESS. 

Aa part o€ our growth Iitrategy, we seck to develop strategic alliances and 
to make investmcnte or acquire a a l c t e  or other businesses. We regularly engage 
in diacusaions relating to potential acquisitieno. We are unable to predrcc 
w h e t h e r  or when any prospective acquis~tions or strategic  alliances will occur 
or t h e  likelihood of a material transaction being completed on favorable terns 
and conditions. Our ability to finance acquisitions and strategic alliancce may 
be constrained by our degree OF ltverage at the time of t h e  acquisition. In 
addition, our senior credit facility and acnicr notes may significantly limit 
our ability t o  make acquiritions or enter into strategic alliancee and to incur 
indebtedness in connection with acqui8itions and strategic alliancea. 

In addition, if we w e r e  to proceed vith one or mrc significant strategic 
alliancee, acquisitions or invcetmnte in which t h e  conaideration c o n a ~ s t i  of 
cash. ve could uac a eubeta:ntial portion of our available Cash, to coneummate 
the strategic a l l i a n c e s ,  acipieitions or investments. The financial impact of 
acquiaitione, investmenti and strategic alliances could cause substantial 
fluctuations in our quarterly and yearly operating results. 

The integrat ion of any :future acquisitions o r  strategic alliances would be 
accompanied by t h e  riska coinmonly encountered in thenc tranaactione. These rrakr 
include, among othern:  

- the difficulty of assimilating t h e  acquired operations and personnel; 

- t he  potent ia l  dierupt:ton of  our  ongoing bueintss and divcraion of 
reBourcea and managemnt time; 

- the inability of manaqement to max . c  our  financial and strategic 
position by the mucceiieful incorpordLion of licensed or acquired 
technology and r ight8  into our service offerings; 

- the possible inability of mnagtrnent to m a i n t a i n  uniform standards, 
controls, procedures and policica; 

I the r i s k s  of entering markets I n  which w e  have little or no direct 'prior 
experience; and 

- the  potential irnpairrne:nt cf relationships with employees cr customers a;  a 
result of changes in management or otherwise arising out o €  t h e s e  
transact i o n s .  

We cannot assure you that WI! will be a b l e  to integrate a c q u i r e d  buslnesses or 
a s s e t a  successfully- 

A SYSTEM F A I L L T E  COULD ChUSI: DELRYS OR IFRERRUPTIONS CF S € R ' J I C E .  hX'H:CH C O l f i C  
CAUSE US TO LOSE CUSTOMERS. 

C J r  saccess will requirt: t h a t  our Retworka provide competic:ve rellahlil:y, 
capacity and security. Some of t h e  risks to our networks and infrastructure 
include: 

p h f s i c a :  damage tc acc:esa ::nes. 

?ewer s ~ r q e s  or outages, 

r apac :  r;. 1 : m i  tat ions, 
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- B O f t W a r C  deftcta; 

- lack of redundancy; and 

- dieruptiona beyond our  contrvl ,  

These disruptione may cauae interruptions in service or reduced capacity for 
cuatomcrs, any of which could cause u e  to lose cuatomcrs. 
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k L L  YEAR 2 0 0 0  PUOBLEMS W I  NOT HAVE BEEN ADDRESSED BY OUR SUPPLIERS, AND ANY 
SERVICE INTERRUPTION WE EXPERIENCE AS A RESULT OF THESE PROBLEMS H A Y  CAUSE US TO 
LOSE CUSTOMERS. 

The Year 2000 irsuc gtmtrally describe6 the vat ioue problems t h a t  may result 
from t h e  improper processing o f  dates and date-sensitive transactions by 
computera and other equipment as a result of computer hardware and eofruarc 
using two digits, rather than four d i y i t a ,  to identify t h e  year in a date. Any 
computer programs or ayeterna of our ai ippl icre that have date-sensitive aoftware 
may recognize a date  uaing " O O *  am the year  1900 rather t h a n  the year 2000. 
While we have experienced no Year 2000 i s a u e a  t o  date, and w e  are not aware of 
any rwtcrial issuea for our auppliers, w e  are continuing to evaluate and 
determine whether our iignificant suppliers azc in compliance or have 
appropriate plans t o  remedy Year 2 0 0 0  iasuti when the ir  syatcma interact with 
our eyeterne. We do not  expect that  t h i s  will have a material impact on our 
operations. However, ue cannot assure you that the  Byatems o€  other companies on 
which we rely are Year 2 0 0 0  compliant, that another company'rl fai lure to 
aucccamfully convert. or that another  company'^ conversion to a ayetem 
incompatible with our  syetema, would n o t  have an impact on our opcratione. The 
failure of our  principal suppliers to be Year 2 0 0 0  compliant could result i n  
dtlaya in service deliverice from those auppliers and materially impact our 
ability EO do bus inee l .  

OUR OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS EXERT SUBSTMIAL 1NFLVENCE QVER US. 

O u r  executive offlccra, directors  and entities a iated with them together 
beneficially own a eubatantial percentage of OUT' out ding common stock. As a 
result, these stockholders are able to t x e r c i m e  suba. ntial influence over all 
mattera requiring approval by our stockholders, includrng t h e  election of  
directors  and approval of significant corporate transactions. This concentration 
of ounership may also have the effect oL delaying or preventing a change in our 
control 

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INDUSTRY: 

WE MAY NOT BE RBLE TO C(IMP:ZTE EFFECTIVELY AGAINST OTHER C O U P M I E S .  

?he t e l cco rn rnun ica t lons  industry is h i g h l y  competitive and is affected by :he 
introduction of neu scTvlcscs b y ,  and  r h e  market a c t i v i t i e 5  of, mayor l n d u s t r y  
participanta. Several of mt competitors are substantially larger and have 
greater  financial, technical and marketing resource3 than w e  do We have not 
achieved,  and do not e x p e c t  t o  achieve. a signlflcant m a r k e t  share €or any of 
t h e  broadband telecommunications services we o f f e r  in our t a r g e t  markets. In 
particular. larger  competitors have advantages over ua t h a t  could cause us tc 
lose customers and impede 3ur abiliry tc a t t r a c c  new c ~ s t o m e r s .  rncludlng 

- long-standing relationships and brand recognition w i t h  customers: 

- f:nancial, t e c h n i c a l .  marketing. personnel and o t h e r  resources 
substantially g r e a t e r  t h a G  o x s .  

- m o r e  funds c 3  dep1c . j  te:eccnmunl cdfions s e r - ~ i c e s .  

- p o t e n t l a :  to lower p r i c e s  of ;mpec : t i ' i e  'elecommar.i-.a::cr.r 5 e r ' ~ : c e s .  3 ~ d  

. f u l l y - d e p l c y e d  n e : , d c r k s  
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We face competition i,rom other current and potential market entrants ,  
including: 

- domcstic and international long dietance provider8 eeeking to enter ,  
re-enter or expand e n t r y  i n t o  t h e  local telecommunications marketplace; 
and 

- other domestic and international t e l ecommunicat ions  providers, r t s c l l e r s ,  
cable televiaion coinpanics, electric utilitica and Internet companies. 

30 

A continuing t rend toward combinations and strategic alliances in t h e  
telecommunications industry could give rime to aignlficant nev competitors. This 
could cawe ua to lose c u t i t o m e f ~  and impede our ability to attract new 
customere. 

FCC AND STATE REGWLATIONS M A Y  LIMIT THE SERVICES WE CAN OFFER OR IMPACT OLTR 
ABILITY TO CONDUCT OUR BUS:IFEESS. 

Our network8 and t h e  Frovision of telecommunications mervice~ arc 
cXttn8iVely regulated at t h e  federal, sta te  and local levele. Existing and 
future govarnrnental regulationa may greatly influence haw w e  operate our 
burincee. our busincas ntrategy and ultimately, our viability. The costa of 
complying w i t h  federal, mtate and local  regulationa and t h e  delays in receiving 
required regulatory approvals or the enactment of new adverse r e g u l a t i o n  or 
regulatory requirements may bt greater than we anticipate and divert our  
resources from implementing our buaintse p l a n .  We cannot: predict t he  future 
regulatory framework for o u r  bueinees 

Our provieion of tclicommunications a e n i c c s  m y  be aubjcct to the 
requirement that we obtain proper authorizations from the FCC or s t a t e  
comieaions.  We cannot asnure you that. the FCC or state commiiaiona will grant 
the required authority or refrain from taking action against us if we arc found 
to have provided servicea ,without obtaining the neceasary autho -tions. i f  we 
do not fully comply with t h e  rules of the FCC or state rcgulatoi encies. 
third parties or regulators could challenge o u r  autho. i t y  to do  ne#^. These 
challcngear could cause us to incur subatantial legal and adminib :ative 
expenses. 

Federa l  l a w  governing the telecomniunications industry remains i n  a state of 
f l u .  The Te1ecommunicatio:ns A c t  remains s u b j e c t  to judicial review and 
additional FCC rulemaking. and thus it is difficult to p r e d i c t  what effect the 
legislatron or these FCC r,Ales w i l l  have on us and our operations. There are 
currently many regulatory ,actions underway and be ing  contemplated by federal and 
s t a t e  authorities r t g a r d i n q  interconnection pricing, universal service supporc, 
access charge reform, and , 3 t h e r  issat<: t h a t  could result in significant changes 
to t h e  business conditions in t h e  telecommunications industry 

Our c u r r e n t  business s ' r r a t t g y  depends rn iarge p a r t  on our ability to 
provide service to our cu8':omers t h r o L g h  U N E - P .  Our abiliry to prov ide  service 
to customera t h r o u g h  ' V E - P  depends in t u r n  on FCC and 9cate  commission r u l i n g s  
r e q u i r i n g  incumbent loca; rclephone cc~mpanits t o  l ease  us t h e  necessary network 
elements. If those rules a r e  changed by t h e  FCC or s t a t e  commiss~ons, or are 
s t r u c k  down by the c o u r t s ,  our ability to prov ide  service to our c u s t o m e r s  
through W E - P  could be m a t ~ ! r i a l l y  adversely a f f e c t e d .  For e x a m p l e ,  the FCC could 
remove one or more of  the  necessary  elements f r o m  the lLst of elements that :ne 
incumbent telephsne companies are r e w i r e d  to p r r v i d e  c u  u s .  The FCC could also 
expand the  scope of an existing e x c e p t i o n  :n i t s  ru le s  Ehat permits incumbent 
telephone companies c o  opt not to make UNE-P available in t h e  hrghesr densit', 
gecqrraphic area5 with:n t h e  largest 5CI metropolitan stat:sti:al areas i f  the);  
meet r e r c a i n  cond;::ms. I f  rhe FC: d c . f s  t~ e x p a z d  t h e  sccpe c f  t b , e  geographic 
cxcepcicr. f o  i n c l ~ d t  cur c a r q e t  n a r k e c s .  o u r  S u s i r . e s s  C L U L Z I  De ~ m t e r i i l l y  
a d v e r s e l y  affect-3. Some scares :r. Z'JI r'Jrrer.t opera t  ir.? regicn, 1nc1udir.g Texas 
and v::ssour:  na.,'e 3cr.e beyor.3 r t e  F C T ' ' s  ainimum requ:remer,rs axd :ndepender.t 17 
Grdered S o u t h w e s t e r n  Bell r~ make L T E - P  availabie t h r a q h c u t  t h o s e  s c a r e s  u n d e r  
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terms more favorable to new te lccomunicat iona service providers than thoee 
required by the FCC. Wc C ‘ B M O t  asaurc you that thoee favorable s t a t e  rulings 
will remain in place. If UHE-P does no t  continue to be avai lable  on the 
favorable terms ordered by t h e  ataten, our buaintae could be materially 
advtretly a€ftcted. 

The United States C o u r t  of AppCalB for the Eighth Circui t  is currently 
conaidering challenges to t h e  pricing methodology e e t a b l i a h e d  by the FCC f o r  
setting the ratea paid by t e l c c o m u n i c a t i o n a  n e w i c e  provider8,to incumbent 
telephone companies for a(:cess t o  network tlemtnte. I f  c h t  court  strikee down 
some or all of t h e  FCCa‘a pricing m e t h o d o l q y  and that methodology 18 ultimately 
replaced w i t h  

3 1  

a methodology that irnpmee higher rates  for network elements, we could be 
materially a d v e r s e l y  affcct+d. 

Federal univeraal service suppart mechanisms could increase the  costs of 
providing aervicc to our euatomera. We der ive  revenue from the provision of 
in tere ta te  and international telecommrinicationa acrvicefi to end ueera that may 
be aubject  to t h e  requirement that  we contribute to the FCC‘8 Univeraal Serv ice  
Fund-based on a percentage o€ t h i 6  revenue. The asncBamcnt for the f i r s t  quarter 
of 2000 i e  5 . 8 9 9 5 1 ,  and t B e  aaseaemcnt. for the second quarter o f  2 0 0 0  i a  5.7101t 
of inttrotate and international end u ~ e r  tclecormnunicationa revenue. The 
contribution factor variee  quarterly at a rate met by the FCC. To the extent the 
contribution f a c t o r  increa~mes, our c o s t a  of  providing etrvice will incream. 

Our Internet optrationi art not  currently regulated directly by t h e  FCC or 
any other governmental agency, other  than regulatione applicable to  bueineesea 
generally. However, t h e  FCC has recently indicated that t h e  regulatory statu8 of 
some s e r v i c e e  offered over the Internet may have to  be re-examined. New lawa or 
regulatione re la t ing  t o  1nt:erntt aerv iccs ,  or exirating laws found t o  apply to 
them, m y  adversely affect  our Internet operations. 

WE MAY BE UNABLE TO ADAPT TO TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE. 

The tclecommunicationa induatry i a  aubjcct to rapid dnd significant char 
in t e c h n o l q y ,  including cnntinuing development8 I n  digital aubscriber l i n e  
technolwy T h r a  technology does not p r e s e n t l y  have wide ly  accepted srandards, 
and a l ternat ive  technologies for providing h i g h  speed data tranaport and 
networking may develop The abeence of w i d e l y  accepted standards may delay  or 
increame :he c o a t  of our rnalrket e n t r y  due to changes in equipment specifications 
and customef needs and expectations We may a160 rely on ti third p a r t y  for 
accesa to new technologies. In addition. ; f  we acquire new technologies, we m a y  
not  be able to implement tk8ern a s  effectively a s  other companies w i t h  more  
experience v i t h  those techrologres and in t h e i r  markets 

WE MAY F A I L  TO ACHIEVE A C C E P T M L E  PROFITS ON OUR LONG DISTANCE BUSINESS DUE TO 
DECLINING PPlCES, LOW CUSTClMER RETENTION RATES ANE OUR CONTRACTUAL CaLIGATIONS 

P r i c e s  in t he  long d i s t a n c e  business have declined substantially an recenc 
years and art expected to continue to d e c l i n e .  I n  addition. t h e  long distance 
i n d u a t r j  has a ? o w  customer retentian r a t e .  a s  c u s t m e r s  frequently change long 
distance p r o v i d e r s  r n  respcnse ta the of fer ing  of lover r a c e s  or promotional 
i n c e n t i v e s  by competitors. We will rei.{ on o t h e r  c a r r i e r s  to provide us with a 
major portion of our long diatancc transrn:s8lon ne twork .  Agreements u r t h  these 
carrier3 typ ica l ly  provide for t he  r e g a l e  of long dis tance  services  on a 
per-minute basis and may c c n t a i n  m i n i m i A m  volume c c - n r n i t m e n t s  The negociation of 
these agreements icvolves egtimdtts of f u t u r e  supply and demand for tranemisgion 
capacrry. as we;: as estimates of r h e  c a l i r n g  patterns a n d  traffic levels o f  our 
Cilture C . A S ~ O ’ P . ~ ~ S  I n  rhe  event  t h a t  w e  fs:l to meet these rniri~r~urn volume 
~cmmitments. w e  may have t3 pay onderJri:.za:ion charges a n d ,  i n  t h e  event  w e  
underestlmate o u r  Keed for  t r a n s m i s 5 i o n  zaca:;cy. ue may h a l e  to obta:n r a p a c i t ’ f  
t h r o u g h  more expens i ’ . ’e  r.edns 

AS A ::E4 DATA TRkVSFISSI3N EhTRUY !N A UAilKET WE M A <  ::J:TIALL’i GENERATE LCW OR 
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HGGATIW GROSS MARGINS. 

Am p new entrant in the data transmiaeion buainema, YC expect t o  generate 
low or negative gross margins and nubetantidl atart-up exptnaei as we begin t o  
offer data  transmiasion at!rvicee.  The Bucceno of  our data tranamiaaion businesa 
will depend upon, among other thinga, chc effcctivcncae of our sales pcraonnel 
in t h e  promotion and #ale of our data rraneminaion nerv icen ,  the acceptance of 
these services by potential cuetomcrs, and our ability to hire and t r a i n  
qualified personnel and f u x t h t r  enhance our services in responac to  future 
technological changca. We cannot a a m r e  you that  we will be successful in these 
tndcavore. 
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THfS FORM 10-K COUTAZNS FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS THAT M A Y  NOT BE ACCURATE 
INDICATORS OF OUR FuTuflE P:SRPORHANCE. 

Th18 Form 10-K containa  fornsrd-looking statemente uithin t h e  meaning o€ t h e  
federal eecuritiee lava. Discusalone containing forward-looking Btattmcnts may 
be found in t h e  material m i t t  forth i n  this aection and under "Buainens* and 
"Hanagement'a Diacusaion and Analyaia of Financial Condition and Reaults  of 
Operatione," a8 well am in t h e  Form 10-K generally. The words "believe," 
"estimate, 'I "expect ,  " "intetnd, " "anticipate, "plan, " and similar expressions 
and variation8 of these exprcsaionr identify aome of theee forward-looking 
etattrnents that  speak only a d  of the dates on which chey were made. We caution 
you that  thene forward-loohing itatemcnta arc not guarantees of future  
performance and involve riilke and uncertainties. Actual cventa or results may 
differ materially from thosse diseuascd in the forward-looking statementa as a 
result  of varioue factors, including, without limitation, the risk f-ctars a c t  
forth above and the wttero 6et forth .in t h i s  Form 10-K generally. A 1 1  
pubeeguent written and oral forward-looking statemento attributable t o  us o r  
persona acting on our behalf are expreasly qualified in t h e i r  entirety by the 
cautionary n t a t c m n t a  included in t h i s  document. We undertake no obligation to 
publicly update or reviet any folward-looking mtattments, whether a8 a result o f  
new information, future events  or othexwiac. 

ITEM 2 .  PROPERTIES 

We lease 4 3 , 7 8 3  square feet i n  offLee space in Kanaas City, Mssscurr for o u r  
corporate headquarters. Thio l e a s e  expires December 2 0 0 6 .  Recently, we leased an 
additional 64,546 equarc feet of o f f i c e  space in Kansaa C i t y  to expand our 
corporate  headquarters. Thie lease expires February 2008. I n  Emporia, Kansas. we 
o m  t w o  buildings t o t a l i n g  58,500 square feet for our customer care center and 
provieioning divisions. In addition. we l ease  an aggregate o €  21,175 square feet 
to house our four c i r c u i t  switches An Kanaas City and St. Louis. Missouri and 
Wichita, Kanaa8. These l easea  expire March 2003, November 2008, August 2005 and 
June 2 0 0 8 .  We also l e a s t  space in 2 7  buildings, t o t a l i n g  approximately 110,823 
square feet, in Missouri, Kansas, Tcxari and Oklahoma for  o u r  sales offices and 
customer premises equipment sices Thet;e leases a r e  generally leased on a 
month-to-month or annual basis 

3 3  

ITEM 3 .  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

From r ime ta t i m e ,  w e  may be i n v o l v e d  rn claims or litroation c h a t  arise in 
t h e  ncrmal course of business We arc r io t  a party to any legal proceedings 
which, i f  decided adversely. would have a materia l  adverse effec: on o u r  
business or financiai condition or results  of operations 

ITEM I SL7BM:SSICN OF MATTERS TO A V O X  OF S E C L T I T Y  HOLDERS 

None 
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MARKET INFORHATIOW 

There is no eotablishtd public trading market for our common etock. However, 
on March 23, 2 0 0 0 ,  we filed a rcgietration s t a t e m n t  on Form 5-1 with the 
Securitiee and Exchange Conmtimaion, contemplating our m i t l a l  public offering in 
the oecond quartet of 2 0 0 0 .  

HOLDERS 

h a  of March 23, 2000, there were 81. holders of record of our common atock. 

DIVIDENDS 

We have never paid or declared any cash dividends on aur common stock and do 
not anticipate paying caah dividend8 in the foreaceable € u t u r e .  We currently 
intend t o  retain all futuxe  earnings, if any, fox use i n  the Tperation o f  our 
busintea and to fund future growth. The terms of our senior credit facility and 
senior n o t t a  indenture restr ic t  our ability to declare and pay dividends on our 
conmon stock. 

RECEKP SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURlTIES 

During 1999 w e  issued the fo l lcwing aecuritics which were not registered 
under t h e  Securitier A c t  of 1 9 3 3 ,  as amended. 

In February 1 9 9 9 ,  we acquired h e x i c a n  Local. a competitive local exchange 
carrier bared in the Dal lae ,  Texas metropolitan area. The acquimition included 
eubrtantially all aesets of American Local. The total purchase price was 
approximately 51.6 m i l l i o n  i n  caeh and $211,000 in etock representing 70,334 
e h a r c ~ .  T h i s  iaouance uaa 'exempt from rcgaatrstion pursuant to Section 4 ( 2 )  of 
the Stcuritice A c t .  

During July 1999 w e  completed a p r i v a t e  placement to appxoximatcly 5 5  of our 
existing investosa in our i i t r i e s  B preferred acock Qf 2 , 2 2 2 , 2 2 2  sharte  of 
g e f i t a  D preferred mtock ai: I purchaae price of $ 4 . 5 0  per share f o r  aggregate 
net proceed8 of approximati?ly $10 million. T h i s  iaeuancc warn exempt from 
registracron purauant to Sect ion  4 ( 2 )  of the Seeuriciea A c t .  

During huguat 1999, BT:t Vcnturee, L.L.C., an affiliate of K K R ,  purchaatd 
1 3 , 3 3 3 , 3 3 4  aharce  of our st!ries F preferred atock at a purchase price of S 4 . S O  
per share for aggregate nci: proceeds o€  $60.0 million. On March 23, 2 0 0 0 ,  KKR 
exercised its options to purchase an additional 5,263,158 shares of series F 
preferred stock a t  $ 4 . 7 5  p#?r share and 5,000,000 shares of series f preferred 
stock at $ 5 . 0 0  per share. : L E  connection with t h e  p r i v a t e  placernenc of  the 
series  F preferred stock t o  BTI Ventures ,  L . L . C . ,  which c losed  on August 5 ,  
1 9 9 9 .  and the relaced txtrc:ise of the FJX options, Lehman B r o t h e r e  

3 4  

I n c .  earned compensation wh ich  included 646,300 shares  of o u r  series 0 preferred 
stock. These issuances uert: exempt from registration pursuant  to 5 e c t i o r .  4 ( 2 )  of 
the Securities A c t .  

During August 1 9 9 9 .  l n  connectinn vith t h e  ser ies  F preferred s t o c k  
o f E c r r n g ,  w e  repurchased 2 , 2 2 2 , 2 2 2  shares of oux s e r i e s  C p r e f e r r e d  s t o c k  f o r  
$10 million from a board rnt:mber 

During August  1999. i n  connection u ~ t h  t h e  series F preferred stock 
offering. ut converted each oucstandrnq share of series B preferred s t o c k  i n t o  
one share of amended and rtbscattd  s e r i e s  8 preferred s t o c k  The holders of 
series B preferred stock, c ipproximate ly  70 accredited investors. surrendered 
t h e i r  e x : s t i n g  rede.npt Lon &rid partlcipacing l:quu;datlon preference :n exchange 
,Ccr 3 2 2 2 :  s h a r e s  3 f  our 8e:rles E p r e f e r r e c l  stock These ~ s s u a n c e s  cere exempc 
from reg~scracion pvrsuant to Sectlor.  4 ' 2  of t h e  S e c ~ r r t l e s  Ac:  i le redeernea 
:he s e r l e s  E preferred s t o r k  Lox a :oca; zf $ 8  6 rn:: l ;cx 
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In narch 1 9 9 9 ,  Hr. Jalkut ,  a mernbtr of our board of  directore, agreed to 
purchaac 2 6 , 6 6 7  ohart8 of our Conmmn atock for S Z O O , O O O ,  and Mr. Ejabat, a 
member of our board of directore.  agreed to purchane 6 6 , 6 6 7  ahares of our common 
atock for S S 0 0 , 0 0 0 .  

ITEM 6 .  SSLECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

The following table re!t8 forth  our  aclecttd consolidated financial and 
operating data f o s  the perioda indicated. Our ntatcmcnt o f  operations data and 
other financial data for the ytara ended December 3 1 ,  1 9 9 7 ,  1998 and 1999 and 
our balance sheet data a a  of December 31, 1998 and 1 9 9 9 ,  as  well as the 
Btdttment of operatione data. other financial data and balance sheet data for 
the predectaaor company as of and f o r  the year ended D C G t m b t r  31, 1997. have 
heen derived from, and is qualified by reference to, consolidated financial 
statements included elacwhert in thin Form 10-K. 

EBITDA C O n O i 8 t S  of eariainga before interest, income t a x e a ,  depreciation and 
amortizacian. EBTTDA is provided because it i r  a meaBure of financial 
performance conrmcnly uaed in the telecommunications industry. EBITDA i a  used by 
management and some investors as an indicator of  a company's hiirtorical ability 
to service debt. Management believer that  an increase in EBITDA is an indicator 
of improved ability to service exirting d e b t ,  to muats in  potential future 
incroaece in debt and to ribtiafy capital rtquirernente. We have prcaented EBITDA 
to enhance your underetand:.ng of our operating rcaulta. You ehould not construe 
it as an alternative t o  operating income, as an indicator of our operating 
performance nor as an alttimative to cash flovs from operating activities aB a 
m a n u r e  of liquidicy deterniincd in accordance with GAAP. We m y  calculate EBITDA 
differently from other companier. For Iurther information, are our consolidated 
financial mtatcments and the related notes elaewhcre i n  this prosptctue .  

The predecessor company i e  Valu-Line, which merged w i t h  ua in 
February 1998. Prior to Fetiruary 1948, Birch had no revenues and warn a 
development atagc company. 

We acquired Boulevard, Tclteource and TPSnct in 1990 and Arntrlcan Local and 
Capital in 1999. The atatenlent  OF operatione data,  other financial data and 
operating data in the table include t h e  operations of these companies beginning 
on t h e  date8 they were acqt,ircd. These acquiaitiona a f f e c t  t h e  comparability of 
t h e  financial data f o r  the perioda presented. 

For purposes of calcula,ting the ratlo of earnings to fixed charges, earnings 
are defined an loas before income taxes  plue fixed charges. Fixed charges 
consist of i n t e r e s t  expense and a reasonable approximation of t h e  in teres t  
factor included in rental Flaymcnts on operating l eases .  Earnings ucrc 
insufficient to cover fixed charges f o r  t h e  yeara ended December 31, 1937. 1998 
and 1999. Set Exhlblt 12.1 for t h e  computation of the rario of earnings t w  fixed 
charges. 
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ITEM 7 .  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL COMDDTTION AND RESULTS 
OF OFEMTIOMS 

YOU SHOULD READ THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION OF OUR FfNANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OP OPERATIONS TOGETHER WITH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W D  RELATED NOTES 
THAT ARE INCLUDED LATER IN THIS FORM 10-K. THIS DISCUSSION CONTAINS 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS THAT INVOLVE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES. OUR ACTUAL 
RESULTS U h Y  DXPFER WTERIAIALY FROM THOSE AKTICIPATED IN THESE FORWARD-LOOKING 
STATEMENTS A5 A RESULT OF VARIOUS FACTORS,  I F J C L M I N G  THOSE SET FORTH W E R  "RISK 
FACTORS'' OR IN OTHER PARTS OF THIS FORM 10-K. 

OVERVIEW 

We were organized on D~ccmtrcr 2 3  1996 to become a lcadlng provldtr of 
teltcommunicationa service:% f o r  small and mid-sized buslnesses i n  our target 
m a r k e t s .  From that dace unt : l1  t h e  February 1998 acquralcion s f  Valu-Lint. o u r  
prtdtccasor, w e  were a devt:lopment stage company u i t h  no revenue and principal 
activitica consistrng of pi-ocurrng governmental authorlzatlons. raisrng c a p i t a l ,  
hiring management and other k t y  personnel, d e s ~ g n l n g  and developing our 
telephone networks ,  acqulr:.ng equipment and facilltlea, negotiating resale and 
intcrconneccion agreements and pursuing acquiertlon opportunities We had no 
a s s e t s ,  1iabilit:es or  f i n m c l a l  a c t l v l c y  p r l o r  to January 1. : 9 9 7  

T h e  fs! io ,d:ny is a sumnary of 3 u r  m a j o r  transact~ons and e v e n t s  

DATE 
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February/Harch 1998 
preferred 

portion of 

debt and 

March 1 9 9 8  

May 1998 

metropolitan 

May 1998 

City, 

Hay 1998 
Wichita and 

June 1998 
ncnior 

September 1996 
i n  the 

February 1999 
based in 

March 1999 

Louia I 

May 1999-August  1999 

July :999/August 1999 

addl t iona 1 

December :999/February 2000 
corporate 

and 

$ 1 2 5  s 

Merged with Valu-tine Companies, Inc., a provider of 
switched long distance, resold servicei and cuBtomet 
premises equipment bales and a t r v i c t  in Kansas. 

Raised  $13.0 million From c h e  issuance of seriea B 

stock and convertible notes used t o  pay t h e  cash 

t h e  consideration in t h e  Valu-Line merger, to repay 

for  general corporate purposte. 

Launched St. Joseph, Missouri market .  

Acquired Boulevard Phone Company. a provider of shared 
tenant s e r v i c e  in t h e  Kansan C i t y ,  Mieaouri 

area. 

Acquired Trlcsourcc Communications, Inc., a customer 
equipment aalea and service provider i n  the Kdnsaa 

HiBaouri metropolitan area. 

Launched St. Louia and Kaneaa City, Missouri and 

Topeka, Kansas markets .  

Completed a S 1 1 S . D  million private offering of 1 4 +  

noten due June 2008 and 115.000 warrants to purchase 
1 , 4 0 9 , 7 3 4  shares of common mtock. 

Acquired TFSnet, Xnc. ,  a provider of Internet e trv lce  

Kanaaa City, Missouri metropolrran area 

Acquired American Local, a communications provider 

t h e  Dallas. Texas metropalitan area 

Acquired Capital  Cornmunicatzons Corporation, a customer 
equipment a a l e o  and ecrvice provider based in t h e  St. 

Missouri metropolitan area 

Launched 1 1  Texas markets 

Sold  560.13 million of s e r i e s  F p r e r e r r e d  stock fo an 
affiliate of KKR, granted o p t i o n s  to purchase an 

5 5 3  0 million of s e r i e s  F preferred s t o c k .  sold S l O . 0  
million of s t f l e a  D prcCerred s ~ o c k  and redeemed $10.0 
million of series C preferred stock and $ 8 . 6  million of 
s e r i e s  E p r e f e r r e d  stock 

Obcarned a 575.0 million d e b t  facility f o r  general 

~ u r p o s e s  of o u r  subsidiaries ar.d to finance 
telecommunicaeione equipment. inventory. network a s s e t 5  

back o f f i , r e  syscens. T h e  fai::;rty was i n c r e a s e d  :s 

n i l i i o r ,  d - r :ng  ryndicac:oc :r. February 2 5 0 3  
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March 2 0 0 0  

March 2 0 0 0  
for  

atock. 

KKR exercised i t 8  option6 to purchase an addrtlonal 
$50.0 million serree P preferred stock. 

Filed a registration a t a t t m e n t  on Form S-I with the SEC 

an underwritten i n i t i a l  public offering of common 
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FAmORS AFFECTING OPERATICINS 

REVENUE. We generate most of our revenue from t h e  s a l t  of OUK vo ice  and 
data products, including local and long distance telephone ~ e r v i c e ,  Internet 
acces i  and customer premises equipment: to small and m i d - a i z t d  b u s i n e s s  customers 
in varloua market6 in Misaouri, Kanaas and Texas. Revenue from local  services 
canerets of charges f o r  baaic local service and c u s t o m  calling features. We 
offer local telephone service a t  a discount to the competing incumbent  provider 
of telecommunications servicea and offer long distance a e r v i c e  a t  flat 
per-minute rates. We offer customer premises equipment and related s e r v i c e s  at 
negoLiatcd rate9 generally consistent uith other competitors. We also o f f e r  dara 
serv ice8  in select markets primarily at flat monthly rates .  We expect that  over 
t h e  near term these aervici?8 will cantinue to be the principal components oE o u r  
revenue. 

Our revenue consists of  month ly  recurring charges and usage chargee.  Monthly 
recurring charges include the  fees paid by our  customera for l i n e a  in mcrvice. 
additional features on thotie linea and collocation space. Usage charges consist 
of fees paid for each call made generally mtaeured by the minute but ala0 
measured by the call. Addit.ionally, revenue from cuatorner premises- equipment 
sales is recognized upon project completion. 

OPERATING EXPENSES. O u r  pr imary operating expense8 are cost of s e r v i c e s  and 
selling, general and administrative expenses. 

COST OF SERVICES. Our cost of s e m i c e a  includes the  cost of leasing 
unbundled network elements from t h e  incumbent telephone company for c o m b i n a t i o n  
into Birch-branded voice s e r v i c e s  and purchasing t h e  complete "bundle" of  
traditional incumbent telephone company s e w i c e s  for resale to our local service  
subscribera. We l ease  local telephone network components to provide service  f o r  
o u r  customers under an interconnection agreement with t h e  incumbent telephone 
company in our target markets .  I n  markets uhere we have a local circuit s w i t c h .  
w e  can avoid leasing t h e  switch and r e l a t e d  features from t h e  incumbent 
telephone company, which improvcs our q r o s a  margins. 

Incumbent telephone companies t y p i c a l l y  charge both ii start-up fee a s  weli 
as a monehly recu-ring f e e  f o r  u s e  of T h e i r  c e n c r a l  o f f i c e s  ~ D K  so:loza~;or. of 
transrniss;on equipment. Physically c o l  loca: i n g  o u r  transmissicn equipment i n  ar 
n e a r  existing incumbent telephone compar,y switching o f f i c e s  allows us to c0mbir.e 
leased d i g i t a l  subscriber l i n e s  uith our data t ran5mrssi :m switches to pror ' ide  
high speed data  services and.  e v t n t u a : l y .  co ice  and daca 5erv:res  over a singie 
d i g i t a l  subscriber line. we also invest :n transmission iknd distriburisn 
c lcc tron ics  equipment associated w k c h  ,:'~r s w i t c h e s  A i 1  c: these ccsts a r e  
r e f l e c t e d  i n  o u r  cost of s e r ' I i c e s  

O u r  pr:mary l o n g  discarce expenses a r e  expenses assot:;ated w i t h  r . ecuork  
acce98 and o u r  l e a s e d  long distance network. We purchase :o?? 3is:ance capacity 
from third p a r r y  ~ r o v i d e r g  f o r  a l i  c a l l s  c e r m n a t i n g  o u r t i i d e  of our  neruork .  

Our p r ~ m a r y  expense associated w i t h  prov id ing  data 3ervices  L D  O ' J ~  customers 
IS t h e  :;sf 3 :  :easir .g  t f d n s - , : s 5 i z r h  fa,::::t:es G d r  p r i n k r !  exFensc  asscciated 
u::!: c ~ s t ~ r n e r  p r e ~ i s e s  eq:iFrr.ent :s :he ccs:  of p ' ~ r c h a s i n g  e q u i ~ m e n t  f r c n  
Tanafactirers 3r.d ;a.!ccr f c r  servize a 7 . d  eq;:pner.t ~ r , s c a ; l a t  :or., 

.. . . 
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administrative cxptnacn  :include selling and marketing coats and customer 
service. billing, corporiite adminiatration, personnel and n e t w o r k  maintenance 
expenses, 

We employ a direct  sales force in each of our target markets. To at trac t  and 
retain a h i g h l y  q u u a l i f i t c l  sales force, we offer our sales personnel a 
compensation package that  emphaeizes comiemions.  U t  expect t o  incur significant 
selling and marketing coata  aa we expand our operationa. 

We have implemented and continue to reEine tailored s y s t e m s  for o p e r a t i o n s  
suppcrt syatcms and other back office systems t h a t  provision and track customer 
ordcra from point of salt to the installation 

3 8  

and testing of serv ice .  h:Long with the development costa  of these systema, w e  
alao incur ongoing expensi?a for customer s e r v i c e  and billing syaterns. A% o u r  
strategy a t r e a a e a  the importance of pereonalrzed cuBtorntr s e r v i c e ,  w e  expect 
that our customer atmice  department w i l l  become a larger part of our  ongoing 
administrative cxpenats. C l t  also expect billing C O B t B  to i n c r e a s e  a8  the number 
of our  customera and t h e  call volume increaac. We incur o the r  c o s t s  and 
cxptnaca, including t h e  cc la ts  aaaoclatcd with maintenance of our netuork, 
a d r n ~ i r t r a t i v e  overhead, clffice leases and bad debt. We expect  that these costa 
w i l l  grow significantly a8 we expand o u r  operations and t h a t  administrative 
overhead will be a large F o r t i o n  of the8e expenses during t h e  expansion phase of 
our bueineoa. Howtver. we expect these expcneca to become d emaller percentage 
of our revenue am ne build our customer base. 

We have experienced operating losaea  Bince inception u s  a result of efforts 
t o  build our customer baee, develop and construct network infrastructure, build 
internal staffing, develop myatema and expand into ntv market8 Wf expect t o  
continue to focue on increas ing  our cuntomcr base and geographic coverage. 
Accordingly, we expect that cost of s e r v i c c a ,  atlling, general and 
adrninietratlvc cxpcneea, and c a p r t a l  exptnditurcm will continue to increase 
aignificantly, a l l  of which may have a negative impact on operating rtsulta The 
p r o j e c t e d  increamts in capital expend1 tures will continue t o  generate negat ive 
CaBh flows for a t  least the next several years a8 we drvtlop and construct our  
voice and data n e t w o r k s .  We may a150 be forced to cha gt our prrclng policies to 
respond t o  a changing c o m p e t i t i v e  environment, and wr cannot assure you that W E  

will be a b l e  to mainta in  oJ r  groas and operating margins We cannot assure you 
that growth In our revenue or customer base will continue or that ue wlll be 
a b l e  to achieve or Sustain profitabll~ty or p o s i t i v e  cash flous 

RESULTS OF OPEFLhTfONS 

BIRCH TELECDM, INC. 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1 ,  1 9 9 9  E M P A R E P  TO YEXA EMDED D€CEM8EZ 31. 1998 

REVENUE Revenue increased 132.1% LO $ 6 0 . 5  million €or 1999 compared to 
$26.1 million for  1998. Thi? i n c r e a s e  ir. revenue was principally a resulr of new 
zustcmer sales i n  new and  xis sting markets and the acquisitions of Capical i n  
March 1 9 9 9  and American Locai  in February 1999 As a percentage of total 
revenue. Ccmrnunications se.:vices were B '  5 8  f o r  1999 and 8 3 . 5 i  f o r  1998. and 
equipment sales 'were 12.5% for i 9 9 3  an3 16 5 %  for  1996 

COST OF SERVICES. Cos': of s e r ' r : c e s  lncreased 1 4 5 . 5 8  to 5 4 5  4 milllon for 
1999 compared to S l e . 9  nill:on f o r  1996. The ~ n c r c a s e  ir. cost of se fv ices  war 
prirnari!;. t h e  result of  asroz ia :cd  r e v e n u e  increases Gross n a r g i n s  increased 
96 9 %  to S 1 Q  1 r n i : l ~ c n  f 2 3  4 \  of revenue! for 1 9 3 9  compared ta $7.2 million 
1 2 7 . 6 \  3 f  re ' JenueI  fc r  19913 T h e  dec1:ne i r r  gross marg in  as 3 percentage of 
revtni le  v a s  F r i n c 1 p a : l y  t h e  resu:t of a 9rea:er percentage o f  rever.ue b e i n g  
d e r i v e d  f r c n  r e s o l d  local ;er---:ce dur;r.g 1 9 4 9  cow.pared r >  1 2 9 9  Addicicna::; 
13ng d i s t a r . c e  ~ ~ a r 9 i r . s  declined a s  a :esu:r  c: :w;ecit  :-e >r:cir.g ~ r e s s ' ; r e s  

SZ',L:NG. ,GENERAL kW h : j Y : Y I S Y a T : ' . ' E  EXpEN3ES 2,:: i s g .  :en?:ra! and  
a d ~ , i c i s t r a : : - e  expenses :n,-.reaseA : : e  4 4  t~ S 5 3  : T,L:::ZC f:r : ? 3 ¶  r z r p a r e ?  T J  
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$ 1 5 . 8  million for 1998. The increase in expense vas prirrrarily a result of 
supporting and attracting customers a n t u  and cxieting markets, market launches 
i n  Texas and the acquisitions of Capital and American Local each of which 
affected vagea, rent and advertiaing expense. Additionally, w e  had 935 employees 
a t  Deccmbcr 3 1 ,  1 9 9 9  coryparcd to 3 4 5  employees a t  December 31, 1998. EBXTDA, a 
comonly ueed manure by securities analyst8 of earnings before deducting 
interest, taxem, depreciation and amortization. decreased 353.61 to a l o a s  o€ 
$ 3 0 . 9  million for 1 9 9 9  compared to a loes of $8.6 million f o r  1 9 9 8 .  

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION. Depreciation and amortization increased 
369.23: t o  SlO.8 million for 1 9 9 9  compared to $2.3 million for  1998. The increase 
i n  depreciation and amorti,zation was 

39 

primarily attr ibutable  to the depreciation of network assets added in o u r  
m a r k e t 8  and the arnortizatici of intangible aaaets  re laccd to acqursitiona. 

INTEREST. Intercat  expense increased 8 2 . 2 %  to $ 1 5 . 0  million For 1999 
compared to $ 8 . 3  million f o r  1 9 9 8 .  The increase in inrerest expense was 
primarily a reeult of a full year of interert  chargea on our senior n o t e s  eold 
i n  June 1998. I n t e r c a t  income remained virtually unchanged at $2.9 million in 
1999-.and 1998. Interest in=ome i s  primarily derived from pledged securities 
purchased in connection w i t h  our senior nocea. 

MET LOSS. Net loss increased 281.3% to $61.8 million €or 1999 cornpaied to 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1 . ,  1 9 9 8  COHPARED TO YEAA ENDED DECEMBER 3 1 ,  1997 

$16.2 million for 1998. 

REVENUT. Revenue uas $26.1 million for  1998, rteultrng €rom t h e  
acquiaitione of  Valu-Line. Boulevard, Telesource and TFSnct and n e w  cuatomer 
salcm Irom f i t w  marketa. Tht:rc wae no revenue f o r  1 9 3 7  because ut were in t h e  
developmental stage. In addi t ion to revenue generated aa a reeult of 
acquieitione i n  1 9 9 8 ,  reveriue wag generated from the aale of local telephone 

e r v i c t a  to new customers. 

COST OF SERVICES. Cost of services and gross margin totaled S18.9 million 
.id $ 7 . 2  million. respectively, for 1998 as a rtault of t h e  associated revenue 

increaacm. 

SELLING. GENERRL AFx3 AI~MIHISTRATIVF EXPENSES S e l l i n g .  qer-era1 and 
administrative expenses i n c r e a s e d  514.0 million to $ 1 5  8 million for 1998 
compared to $1 8 million f c l r  1997 T h e  increase i n  expense v a s  primarily a 
result of the Valu-Line, Bcsulevard, Te!esource and TFSnet: acquisitions and 
opening five new markets  ir 1998 Xddlticnally, we expanded our engineering and 
operations staff in preparation for swltch deployment EHfTDA decreased 3 8 2 . 4 %  
to a 1068 of $ e  6 million far 1938 compared to a loss of $1 6 mlllron for 1937 

DEPRECIATIQN AND AnORTIZATION Dcpre=iation and amortization increased io 
52.3 million for 1998 compared t o  S27.000 for 1 9 9 7 .  most of which was 
attributable to t h e  fixed and intangible assets acquired i n  t h e  T J a l d - L ; n t .  
Boulevard. Telesource and T F S n e t  scquis:tions. 

I K E R E S T  !ntereac expense was $ 8  2 million for 1 9 9 H  primarily f r o m  
i n t c r t a c  charges 3n c h t  senior notes. There was no interest expense r n  1997. 
Interest income uas $ 2 . 9  million I n  i99B :ompared to Sl4.00C f o r  199- prrmariiy 
as a result of invested funds rece i 'Jed  f r o m  t h e  senlor c o t e s .  

NET LOSS. Ne: loss -&as 5 1 6 . 2  mi:::cn for 1998 compared f 3  S I . 6  million Cor 
; 9 9 7 ,  
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$13.2 million €or 1996. The increase was primrily a renult of entering the 
local service market i n  March 1997 and long die tanct  volumes increasing faacer 
than the decline in long distance pricing. Cwtorner premiats equipment sales 
were 181 of revenue, or $ 3 . 0  million, f o r  1997 compared to 19.11 of revenue ,  or 
5 2 . 5  million, for 1996. 

COST OF SERVICES. COi l t  of eervicts increased 3 5 . 4 b  to $11.8 million for 
1997 compared to $ 8 . 7  mi1:lion for 1996. The incrtanc was primarily a reault of 
associated revenue increaser.  G r O e S  margin increased 11.01 t o  $ 5 . 0  million, or 
2 9 . 5 %  of revenue, for 199:' compared to S4.5 million, oi 3 3 . 8 %  of revenue, f o r  
1 9 9 6 .  T h e  decrcaee  in grofila margin as a percentage of  revenue was primarily a 
resul t  o €  low margins on resold l oca l  eervice. which started in March 1 9 9 7 .  

4 0  

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMIHISTRATIVE EXPENSES. Selling, general and 
administrative expcnaee increased 14.2% to $ 4 . 1  million for  1997 compared to 
$3.6 million for  1996. The increase i n  expense wao primarily a result of s a l e s  
commisaiona related to increaetd busintse volumea and increaaed customer service 
e x p e n d i t u r e s  a60OCldted with the commencement of local etrvice. EBXTDA decreased 
1 . 7 t  to S B 9 2 . 0 0 0  for 1997 cumpared t o  5 9 0 7 , 0 0 0  for 1996. The decrease in EBITDA 
was primarily a rcmult of iihc s t a t t - u p  cos ts  aaeociated with ofFering local 
seryjct. 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORT:[ZATIQH. Depreciation and amortization increased 9 6 %  
to $ 3 4 1 , 0 0 0  for 1 9 9 7  compared to S 3 1 1 , O O O  for 1996. 

WTERCST EXPENSE. Intereat  exptnee wan $ 9 7 , 0 0 0  for 1997 compared t o  
S102.000 for 1 9 9 6 .  

INCME TAXES. Income t .aXts  decreased 9.31 to SlB6.000 for 1997 compared to 
$ 2 0 5 , 0 0 0  for 1 9 9 6 .  

NET INCOME. Net income W d 8  $ 2 6 8 , 0 0 0  for 1997 compared to $ 2 8 9 , 0 0 0  for 1996 

LIQUIDXTY P' 1 CRPlTAL RESOCPCES 

Our t o f  , s a e t 8  ancreamed to $ 1 4 7  0 million at  December 3 1 ,  1'99 from 
5 1 3 4  1 m i ;  dn a t  December 31, 1998 Thie  increaac w a ~  primarily 'ne result of 
capital .  outlays for exparmion of our local and data networks and development of 
operation8 support ayotems and automated back office ayatems, partially offset 
by t h e  use of cash  to fund operations A t  December 31, 1499. o u r  c u r r e n t  a s s e t s  
of $ 3 8 . 8  r n i l l l o n  exceeded current liabilities of 5 2 5 . 4  m i l l i o n ,  resulting in 
uorking capital 3 f  $ 1 3  4 million. representing a decrease of 536.3 million 
compared to wcrking c a p i t a l  of $43 7 million at December 31 .  1998 A t  
December 3 1 ,  1996, our cur ren t  a a s e c s  of $61 1 million exceeded c u r r e n t  
liabilities of $11 4 m i l l i o n  The decrease i n  working capital waa primarily 
attrlbucablt to t h e  use of cash t o  f u n d  operations and capital outluya for  
expansion of o u r  n e t w o r k ,  support systems and back office systems Pledged 
securities ta satisfy i n t e r e a t  payments on our Benlor notes amounted to 
5 2 3  4 million ac December 31. 1999 and $37 B million at December 31. 1998 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES. N e t  c a s h  used in operating activities was 
5 5 3  2 million f ,3r  c h e  year ended December 31, 1999 compared t o  $10.6 r n i i l r o n  f o i  
t h e  year ended December 3 1 ,  1 9 9 5 .  N e t  cash  uaed i n  operating activities was 
primarily used to €und o u r  n e t  ? o s s e s  of 5 6 1 . 8  million in 1 3 9 9  ar.d 
S16.2 million i n  1998 

INVESTING ACTIVITTES Net cash used :n investizg activities uae 
5 3 1  8 milllon for t h e  year ended December 3 1 ,  1939 compared t o  $ 6 7  1 milLion foi 
t h e  year er.dcd Cectnbtr 3 1  1996 I n  :999, net cash used in investing a c t i v i t i e s  
was primarily used f o r  che purchase of property and equipment related to t h e  
expanilon cf su r  networks. s u p p o r t  s y s t e m s  ar.d back office s y s t e m s  of 
S a l  4 m i l l i o n  ar,d acquisitions of $ 4  B .nii;isn, partially cffset by n e t  ;rocecdr, 
from t h e  sale cf pledged 5ecurities cf $ : 5  : million f o r  the semi -ac f iua:  
: n t e r e s r  paymentS an t h e  s e n i c r  r,o:e~ I., - 9 3 8 ,  n e t  cash J s e d  lr: : r ; ' . 'est .7$  
a:t:v:r:es was ~r irnar: :?  used for t h e  p.r:hase ;f ~ : e d 3 ~ d  sccldr:::es r e : a t e l  :: 



our ren ior  noteo of $44.2! million, scquinitione of $7.8 mllllon and purchanta of 
property and equipment related to the cxpanaion of t h e  network. support systerna 
and back off ice  ryetems crf 5 2 1 . 6  million, partially offeet by net  proceeds from 
t h e  Bale of pledged recuritice of $ 7 . 7  m i l l i o n .  

F I W C I M G  ACTIVITIES. Net caeh provided by financing activltiea W ~ E  

$ 5 0 . 3  mi l l i on  for t h e  year ended December 31. 1999 compared t o  $117.3 million 
for  the year ended December 31. 1998. In 1999, net ca8h provided by financing 
activiticn warn primarily a result of $70.0 million in proceeds f rom the s a l e  of 
serica D and aeries F prclerrcd stock and borrouinga of $ 1 0 . 0  million under o u r  
senior credit facility, pi i r t ia l ly  offaet by the redemption of series  C and 
series E preferred stock of $ 1 0 . 6  million and the payment of financing costs 
related to the aeries D arid aeriea F preferred etock and on our sen ior  credit 
facility o€ S0.8 million. 

In 1998, net cash p r o v i d e d  by financing activitiea w a B  prlmarily a result o f  
prQCeedB of $114.7 million from the private offering o€ our s e n l o r  notes. These 
senior note8 bear intcremt at a f ixed  rate of 1 4 %  per annum and are due i n  
June 2 0 0 0 .  Subjec t  to limitations, we may redeem a portion of these etnior notes 
prior to the ir  maturity date if we pay a designated premium. The indenture w i t h  
reepect to t h e  senior notes containe a number of reetrictivc financial and 
operational covcnanta with which we must comply. 

In February 2 0 0 0 ,  we increased the capacity of our $75.0 million senior 
credit facility to $125.0 million. This credit facility provide8 for  a 
S Z S . 0  million reducing rcvr,lvcr and $100.0 million in m u l t i - d r a w  term loans. The 
revolver is available €or qtncral corporate purposes of our subs id iar i t e  and t h e  
term loam are t o  be used t o  finance telecommunications equipment, inventory, 
network a m e t a  and back off ice  8yatCm%. The senior credit facility in mecured by 
a perfected f i r e t  priority eccurity intcrtrt in rubstantially a11 of o u r  a a s e t a  
and capital etock of our submidiariea and contain0 a number of financial and 
operational covenanto w i t h  which we m u s t  comply. Among ocher things. the 
covenanto require UB t o  maj.ntain specified levcle of revenue, EBITDA, rat io  
level6 and acceas linr -ncl r e a t r i c t  our ability to incur additional 
indebtedncea, pay divl s i ,  enter into re lated party transactions or sell o u r  
a e a t t e .  

In March 2 0 0 0 .  KKR cxerciaed i t s  options t o  purchase an additional 
SSO.0 million of our ser ies :  F preferred s t o c k .  

The development and txflanaion o f  aur business will continue to require 
significant capital to funcl capital expendrtures, uclrkinq capital and debt 
aervice  and will generate c .egat ive  operating cash flows. 

O u r  principal capital expendlture requirements will include: 

- c h t  purchase, installation. and expanaion of  s w l t c h e s  and transmission 
equipment for our local and data networks; and 

- c h e  f a r t h e r  development of operations support 5ys:ems and amJtomated bark 
off ice systems. 

We do not be1:eve that t h e  growth  of o u r  long dis tance  a n d  c ~ ~ t z m e r  premlsts 
equipment b u a i n e s s  will reqyire significant cap i ta l  expcrtdic i lres .  

Our  business plan calls f o r  us to offer o u r  serv ices  I R  an additional 2 0  
markets b e f o r e  the end of 20G1. iie expert to expand ocr o p e r a t i m s  in Texas and 
into Cklahona in t h e  scccnd quarcer of t h i s  year and to commecce ser-$ice in t h e  
r e g i o n s  served by A r n e r i t c c h  and BellSouth I n  2001. We currcnrly estirnare that 
t h e  cash required to f u n d  t h e s e  capital expenditures w ~ l l  be a p p r c x i w t e l y  
5 2 2 5  0 nillizn 3 v e r  :he next f d 3  :,'ears 'ne wl:i need add:t:cr.a: cash. :: E d 5 3  ~ ' J T  

working cap:ca; n e e d s ,  dent ser:'ice r e T J l r c r e n r s  and  3 p e r a e i r . g  Izs ses  'cr.tl de 
D e g i n  t o  g e n e r a t e  pcs l t l \ . ' e  c a s 5  f l z w  !rcr, opcratrcns, rhcse :f~:d::;. 
~equ;remencs ' w L A L  need :c t e  I . r . a n r e d  ' d i t k  a d d i t : m a i  debt ar.d eqsi::: -a;::a; 
I n  additlor.. deper.dlng cr. preva:;:nq capita; -arise: cz-.d:t::rs, w e  r.a:; c t c c s e  t ?  

. .  



BIRCH TELECOM lhrC /MO - IO, K40.T -Annual Report Date Filed- 3/.iO/.?Q(M 

repurchase a l l  or  a portion of our senior notea. We believe that our c u r r e n t  
reaourcea, including avaiLability under our 8enlor credit facility, together  
w i c h  the net proceeds from our proposed initial public offering, planned for t .he 
accond quarter of 2 0 0 0 ,  w i l l  be ruf€icient to aatiefy our l i q u i d i t y  needs f o r  a t  
leaat t h e  next 12 months. 

Thereafter, ue w i l l  m e d  eubstantial additional capital to Finance o u r  
bueincaa plan.  If our plana or aasumpticns change. if our assumptions prove to 
be inaccurate. or i f  ne experience unexpected C O O t B  or competitive pricing 
presaurce, ue will be required to aetk  additional c a p i t a l  sooner than we 
currently expect. ~n parti.cular. if w e  elect to pursue acquisition opportunities 
or open additional marketii, our caeh needs m y  increme s u b s t a n t r a l l y .  We cannot 
aaBurc you that  our current projection of cash f low and losses from o p e r a t i o n s ,  
which will depend upon nunierous future fac tors  and conditionr, many of which are 
outside of our c o n t r o l ,  w i l l  be accurate. Actual resu l t s  w i l l  almoat certainly 
vary  materia l ly  from our c u r r e n t  projections. The comt of expanding our network 
aerv i ' les  and sa le s  efforta, funding 
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other B t r a t c g i c  initiatives and operating our bueAness w i l l  depend on a v a r i e t y  
of €actors, including, amo.ng other things: 

- the number of subscribers and the serv ice8  for which they  subscribe; 

- the nature and pent t :ca t ion  of  atrvices that  we may offer;  

- regulatory and 1eg is : ta t i - re  developments; and 

+ the rteponse of our corrrpetitora to t h e i r  loea o€ cuatomere. to US and to 
change6 in technology. 

We intend to reek addicional debt and equity f i n m c i n g  to fund our future 
liquidicy nttdm. We cannot  a s ~ u r c  you that ut will be a b l e  to raiat additional 
c a p i t a l  on adtiifactcry teimma or at all. I f  we d e c i d e  to raise additional funds 
through the incurrence of debt ,  r ' n e e r e s t  obligatione w i l l  increase and we 
may become subIect to addrt.iona1 >re r e s t r i c t i v e  financial covenants. In 
additlon, t h e  terms of our ~ e n i o ~  ' d i t  f a c i l i t y  and our acnior n o t e s  each 
reatrict our  ability to obt.ain adl.ticnal debt  financing. I f  we decide to  raise  
additional funds through the issuance of e q u i t y ,  t h e  ownership interests  
represented by t h e  common rirock w i l l  be d i l u t e d .  In t h e  event c h a t  we are unable  
to obtain additional c a p i t a l  or to obtain it on acceptable terms or i n  
s u f f i c i e n t  amounts, we may be required to d e l a y  t h e  development of our network 
and business plans or take o t h e r  act ions  that could  materia1;y and adverse ly  
a f f e c t  our business. operat.~ng results and f i n a n c i a l  c o n d i t i o n .  

I M P A C T  OF THE YEAR 2 0 0 0  ISliUE 

The Year 2 0 0 0  iasuc results from computer programs being written using t w o  
d i g i t s  r a t h e r  t h a n  f o u r  t o  d e f i n e  t h e  y e a r .  Any of our computer  programs or 
a y s t e m a .  or those o €  our s u p p l i e r s ,  that have date-sensitive software may 
recognize a date u s i n g  "00' a~ t h e  year 1900 r a t h e r  t h a n  t h e  year 2300. T h l s  
could rcault in a system failure or miscalculation causing the disruption of 
operations. ~nc:uding among o t h e r  c h i n g s :  

. a temporary inability to process rransactions: 

- a teTporary inability to send invoices: 

. a temporary inability to er.gagt in n c r m a l  business a c r i v i t i e 5 ,  and 

. : r , r e r rup t i=ns  of cust:omer cart 

xe d:d n o t  exper ience  iiny problems on Zanuar,. :, 2 O C O  ar .d  T S  date, '-'e h a v e  
not exper:enzed. nor  are w e  aware o f .  ar-y macerial Year 3;:C : s s ' ~ e s  'rlth an'; cf 
3 u r  1nrerr.a: 5 y s t e r . s  or O L I I  5 e r v : c e s .  a x 3  'de dc r a t  a n c l r i F a r e  exper:enc:nq any  
i s s u e s  l n  :he f s t u r e  Furtker. *'e a r e  u z a w a r e  sf ar.v : s x e s  ' x ; ~ k  03: *,'endc.rs, 
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mupplierm or cuotomerm that  will materially affect us. 

We believe that  ye have identified a l l  major computers, software 
applicatrona and related equipment umed in connection w i t h  our internal  
optrationa that  will need to be modilicd, upgraded or replaced to minimize t h e  
poaeibility of a material  disruption to o u r  business. We have completed 
aaaeseing t h e  potential impact of Year 1 0 0 0  imauce on theee cornputtre, equipment 
and appl icat iona and have modlficd. umraded and replaced major systems that  we 
believe have Year 2 0 0 0  i seuea .  

In addition to computers and related information, operation. and netuork 
aysttms, t h e  operarim of office eystema, facilities and equipnent, such a6 fax 
machines. security syactme and o t h e r  Common office dev icee ,  may have Year 2000 
iasuce that  have not y e t  surfaced. We will continue to monitor the performance 
of t h t a t  o f f i c e  systems, equipment and facilities. 

We expect that w e  will be able t o  resolve any aignificant Year 2000 i s s u e &  
we have identified with third party  suppliers of components of 
teltcommunicatlana aervice8 and our key eubcontractora. However, becauae w e  have 
no control over the actions of these p a r t i e s ,  they may not remediate any or a l l  
of t h e  Year 2000 issues identified. Any failure of  any of these t h i r d  parties to 
timely rceolve  Year 
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2000 i ~ r r u t s  with either theLr products sold to us, of t h e i r  systeme could have a 
material adverac e f f e c t  on our businesa, operating reeults and financial 
condition. In addition. the d e l i v t r j  of OUT services also dcpenda on the 
operation of the networke o f  many l oca l  exchange carriers and long distance 
carrierB w i t h  whom w e  must :interact a8 part o€ our normal bueincse optraticna, 
but with  whom we do n o r  haw! formal contractual arranqementa. Coneequtntly. 
failure of  theme carriers' netuorka to fully operate as a r e s u l t  of Year 2000 
isauca could also affect oui: operations. To our knowledge, none of thtoe 
networks experienced any problemo on or a ince  January 1, 2 6 0 0 .  

Our total coat to date t:o proactively addr 9 our Year 2 0 0 0  issues has not 
been material. The c06t of addreaaing Year 2 0 ~  a w n  is reported as a general 
and administrative expense. 

We believe ue i d e n t i f i e d  and resolved a l l  Year 2 0 0 0  iasues :hat could 
materially and a d v e r s e l y  a f f e c t  our business operations However. for t h e  
reasons discussed above, w e  b e l i e v e  that  i t  i a  not posaible to determine w i t h  
complete certainty that a l l  Year 2000 issue9 affecting us have been identified 
or corrected and we may not know t h a t  t h i s  is t r u e  for several  months A s  a 
result, we believe chat  the following consequences are possible. 

- operational inconveniences and inefficiencies for u s  t h a t  4 1 1 1  d i v e r t  our 
management's tlme and atrentLon ar.d o u r  financial and human r e s o u r c e s  from 
ordinav business a c t i v i t i e s ,  

- business disputes and claims f o r  pricing adlustmencs or  penalties by  o u r  
c u s t o m e r s  due to Year 2000 issues. w h i c h  we believe will be resolved i n  
t h e  ordrnary course of business: and 

- business disputes alleging t h a t  we failed t o  cornp::r < ; r h  t h e  t e r m s  and 
conditions of c o n t r a c t s  or industry acandards of perfor~ance t hac  r e s u i r  
in Litigation or contract t e r m i n a t l i m  

iit developed costingtncy plans to be implemenctd i f  o u t  efforts ta Ldentify 
and correc: Year 2 2 3 5  issues affecring oEr :ncernal systems were ineffective We 
have adopced t h e  Y e a r  2 0 0 0  c o n t i f i g e n c y  plans  as our standard operacional 
c c n t  :nger.cy p:ans Our c o n t i n g e n c ' j  plans are dtaigned to m l n i r n i z e  c h e  
d1srupt:cr . s  z r  o r h e r  adverse effec:~ 3 , ~ r  p:ans i n c l a d e ,  

- accelerated rep1acerner.t of a f f e c r e d  equipmect or s o f t w a r e .  

- s h o r t  := m e 3 : G n . t e r m  sxse of bacK-p eql:pr,ent and s o f t ' d a r e .  
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- increamed work hourri for our  pereonnel; and 

- u& OF contract ptreionnel to correct on an accelerated s c h e d u l e  any Year 
2 0 0 0  iaeuea that aririit or to provide manual vorkarounds for information 
B y a t e m a .  

Our implementation of any of these contingency plans could require US to 
expend additional fund# and could have a material adverse effect on our  
buaincse, operating rteulte and financial condition. Our c f€or t s  in this regard, 
if necessary, will be to minimize expenet aeaociaced w i t h  the implernentatlon and 
use of any contingency planning with  our objective to employ the least costly 
plan ncccaaary to addrcee the relevant operational issues. 

IMPAm OF INFLATION 

We do not believe that inflation has  had a aignifieanc impact on our 
consolidated operations. 

SEASONmITY 

Our busineer i a  not conaidered to be reaaonai 

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

In June 199.3, the FASB issued SPAS Ho. 133, "Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities," which lupcrstdea SPAS No. 80, "Accounting 
€or Puturea Contracte ,"  SFAS No. 105, 
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"Disclosure of Informatron About Financial fn6trumcnts w i t h  Off-Balance-Sheet 
Rimk and Financial Inatrumente w i t h  Conccnrration of Credzt Risk," and SFAS 
NO. 119, " D l 8 C l O ~ l u r e O  about Derivative Financial Instruments and Fair Value of 
Financial Instruments," and alao amends nome aspects of other  S F A S 6  previously 
asaued. SFAS No. 133 catabliahes accounting and r epor t rn r  'andarda for 
derivative inatruments and hedging activitlea. It require at an  entity 
recognize all derivativea as either asaets or liabiliticP the balance sheet 
and meaaure those  inatruments at fair v a l u e .  SFAS No 13. s effective f o r  our 
consolidated financial atattmenta for  t h e  year ending December 31. 2001. We do 
no t  e x p e c t  the impact of SFAS Ho 133 to be material I n  relation to our 
zonsolidated financial a t a t e m e r i t a .  

ITEM 7 A .  QUkMTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOVT MARKET Rf5K 

We do n o t  have operations s u b l e c t  to risks D f  foreign currency f i , x t u s t i o n s ,  
nor do ue use derivative financial instruments in our operations or LnvesLment 
portfolio. Our earnings a r e  affected by changes i n  i n t e r e s t  rates a s  our  
long-term debt under our Benior credit facility has  variable i n t e r e s t  r a c e s  
based on either t h e  p r ime  rate or LIBOR. Our exposure to variable i n t e r e s t  rate 
risk during 1399 was insignificant due to our level of floating r a t e  borrowings 
However, i f  L n t e r t s t  rate8 f o r  our long-cerm debt  under o u r  senior c r e d i t  
facility had averaged 101 more and the f > l ;  amount  available under our secioi- 
credit facility had been outstanding for t h e  entire year. o u r  i n t e r e s t  expense 
uould have i n c r e a s e d .  and loss b e f o r e  t a x e s  would have ircreasei by 
S12.5 million for  t h e  year ended Deccmher 3 1 .  1 9 S 9 .  These amounts a r c  determined 
by c o n s i d e r i n g  the impact of che hi . 'pothccical  i n t e r e s t  r a t e s  on our borrowing 
cost a?d ourscanding debt b a l a n c e s .  T h e s e  analyaes do noc  consider the effects 
af t h e  reduced level of overall economic activity t h a t  cuu;d  e x i . s t i n g  in t h i s  
e n v : r o n m n t .  F u r t h e r .  i n  t h e  e v e n t  of a change  sf  : h i s  magnitude. management 
wouid : i k e l y  r a k e  a c t L o n 5  to f u r t h e r  mitigate our exposure to t h e  change 
However. bL;e to :he uncertainty 3f :he specific actions : t a r  would be l a k e n  and 
tht:r possib:e effecrs. t h e  S e n s i t i ' J : : ;  analysis assures no r?.ar.ges :r, : A :  
fr-ancia: s t r ' J r t x r e  lie had S l L 4  7 ~ ~ i i l i o ~  0: senizr nates c c t s r a n d ; r . q  d s  c f  
December 3 ; .  1 5 9 5  These r,otes bear  :nreres:  a: a : . . < e 3  :ate ?f : A %  i~:i d:e L:: 

s ,Jb:ect  t o  r :sk from : r . t e r e s r  r a t e  !:uctuar:crs 
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ITEM e .  F I N A X I A L  STATEMENTS IWD SUPPLSMENTARY DATA 

For information required by Item 8 ,  rcfcr to the consolidated financial 
atatemcnt~a included i n  thlc Financial Staterncnte and Financial Statement Schedule 
acction f i l e d  as part of lihio document. 

ITEM 9 .  CXAtXLS IN AND DI!;AGREEHENTS WITH A C C O W A h T S  OM A C C O W I I J S  AM) 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None 

PART 1 1 1  

ITEM 1 0 .  DIRECTORS AND EXE,XlTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTPANT 

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICIZRS OTHER KEY EMPLOYEES 

The following table  s e t 8  f o r t h  information concerning our directors ,  
executive officers and o the r  key personnel, including their ages as of 
March 23, 2 0 0 0 :  

-. 

M E  

Richard A .  Jllkut . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  56 
David P. Scott -  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I O  
Wnald H. mldmm. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10 
David R .  Holl lngiwrTh . . . . . . . . . . . .  35 
Grtgoiy C. LJrhon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 0  

B r r d l r y  A ,  b l a n i  

JaCfrey 0 .  S h a c k e l r o d . ,  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
M v i d  Y .  Vranicar.. . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Henry H .  B r a d l e y . ,  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adam H .  C I a m m , , ,  . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Mry I].bbt , , , , , , . . . . . . . .  
Jamci H. G r t t n e ,  Jc.. . . . . . . . . . .  
H t n r y  1 .  K r 1 v l # - ,  , . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Almrandcr YaVaB, Jr . . . . . . . . .  
Th-m R .  Palnvr . . . . .  . . . . . . .  
George R RoDCtrs.,  , , , ,  . 

POSITICM . . . . . .  

Chalrrmn oi the Board 
Prrmidcnt. C h i e f  Exacutive officer m a  Dirtccor 
Extcutivc Vice Prb4rdtnt  and cnlef Dperac~nq Off ictc 
Senior V i c e  PremLdmnt ot Financial q3crrcronm 
Senior  v i c e  Premrdant  of PuBl Ic  Policy and C+neri: 
Counbtl 
Senior V i c e  Prcaidmnt o t  P i n l n c t  and C h i e f  ?inancis1 
Of ricer 
Ilnior Vice Premident of S a l t .  
Sen ior  V L C ~  Prtsidtnc rn4 C h r t f  Informcia Otficrr 
D i r * c t o r  
mr-ctor  
Dirtccor 
D i r e c t o r  
Direccor 
Director 
D i r t c c o r  
C r r t c c o r  

RTCHARD A .  JALKUT i s  aur chairman of  the board and has been a direccor s:nce 
March 2000 Since 1997, he has  been president and c h i e f  e x e c u r l v e  o f f i c e r  of 
P a t h n t t ,  d privately held t t l c c o m  company. F r o m  1 9 9 4  to 1 9 9 7 ,  Hr. Jalkut was the 
president. chief executive officer and chairman of t h e  board of Nynex 
Telecommunications Group. From :991 to 1994. he was t h e  p r e s i d e n t .  c h i e f  
e x e c u t i v e  officer and chairman O E  t h e  board of New York Telephone Company. and 
from 1990 to 1991, he w a s  t h e  executive v i c e  p r e s i d e n t  acd chief operatrnq 
of€irer. 

DAVID E S C O T T ,  a co-founder and director, L S  also o u r   resident a n d  chief 
executive otfictr. M r .  Scott h a s  17 y e a r s  of managerial exper-ence :n c h e  
telecommunlcacions induscry. Prior to jcrning us, M K .  Scott w a s  preaident and 
general manager o f  Kan9d8 City FibtrNet, a competitive local  exchange carrier 
owned l o i n t l y  by t h e  country's tiro iargesr cable operators, TCI and Time Warner 
Prizr to h i s  tenure at Kansas  Clty FibcrHct. M r  S c ~ t t  5165 v:ce p r e s l d e n t  of 
scratcgic development for S p r i n t .  rtspocsible for devt1oy:ng ;r.vestment plans 111 

t h e  e o r n p e r i t r v t  Local exchange, w i r e l e s s  ( P C S I  and international marketplaces 
M r .  S c o t t  a l s o  ser-;ed a s  director of s t r a c e g : ~  pianning fclr S p r i r , t  from 1 9 6 8  to 
1 9 9 1 .  M r  Scr?:: a l s o  s e v e a  IS a d i r e c t o r  of Bizspace, 1r.c , an I n f e r n e t  
F,Jbl;sh:r.a a n d  E - r : ~ m r c e  compan,  be ~ 3 - f z . i n d e d  with Donald U ,;-!ban 
8:zSpace. : z : .  pr-cdllces web sizes :hac ser'.'e a s  z r . - : i ne  ! r a d e  puS:icaci2ns 
Their f:rst websire. '4- clec :om, serves :he ccmpe:it;-,-e :oca:  excr.azqe :.~ZT:@T 
~ n d u s i r i .  M r .  Scst: hslds a 8a;tr:zr ~f 5:ier.ce d e g r e e  :r: e 1 e r r r : z n :  
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engineering, SUMMA CUM LAUDE. from the Univeraity o f  Missouri and a Master of 
Busineae Adminrstration degree from the Unxvereity of C h i c a g o .  

DONALD H. GOLDMAN joi.ned UI in March 1998 as eenior v i c e  president of 
Internet scrvicee and is #currently o u r  execut ive  vice p r e s i d e n t  and chief  
operating officer. Mr. Goidman has over 15 ytarrr of managerial experience in t h e  
tclecomunications indust::y. Prior to joining UB,  Ur. Goldman served a s  
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vice president.  corporate development a t  Sprint where he developed strategy and 
managed t h e  acquisition of  companies in the areas of ayetcms integration, 
Internet telephony, and u i r t l e e a  (PCSI services among others.  Hhile at S p r i n t ,  
Mr. Geldman l e d  the team that founded Sprint P C S .  Hr. Goldman also B e n e s  a s  
chairman of the board of Bizspace, Inc. Mr. Goldman h o l d s  d Bachelor of A r t s  
degree, w i t h  honors, from Johns Hopkina U n i v e r s i t y  and a Master of Business 
Administration degree from t h e  University of Chicago. 

DAVID H. HOLLINCSWORTH joined UB in Februarj 2 0 0 0  as senior v i c e  president 
of financial operations. Prior to joining u8, from 1998 to February 2000, 
M r .  Hollingsworth waa the v i c e  president OF finance and corporate development 
for GST Tclccommunicationa. From 1937 to 1998, Mr. Hollingsuorth waa a 
telecommunications analyst at George K .  Baum and Company. From 1993 through 
1 9 9 6 ,  Mr. Hollingaworth ecrved as director of finance and administration for 
Kansan C i t y  F i b t r N c t .  Before FibtrNct, M K .  Hollingworth was a mergers and 
acquisition8 manager for S p r i n t  Corporation. Mr. Hollingsuorth hold8 a Bachelor 
of A r t s  in Bueinese Adminilstration, CUM LAUDE, from Washington State Wniveraity 

GREGORY C .  I A W O N  j o i w d  us in January 1997 as senior v i c e  president of 
public policy and general counse l .  Prior t o  j o i n i n g  us. Mr. Lawhon practiced l a w  
for twe lve  years with the !)O-lauyer Kansas City firm o f  Spencer Fane Britt C 
Browne. A partner in ct? f.irm aincc 1 9 9 0 .  he wag head of the firm'e 
comunicat ione and media group and a mc-r of ita buaincae group. M r .  tawhon'a 
a r t a n  of pract ice  were mtrqtrs and acquisitione, with an empharis on 
communications induatry acquisitions.  cable tclevi~ion franchising. and 
commercial and regulatory :.BBUCS w i t h  respect to t h e  telecommunications 
induatry. Mr. Lavhon holds  a Bachelor of A r c s  degree 1,  Economics, MAGNh CUM 
LAUDE, from Vanderbilt University, and a law degree 'rom Columbia University, 
where he waa a Harlan Fiake!  Stone Scholar. 

BRADLEY A .  MOLINE joint:d ua in July 1997 a: 6cnior v i c e  p r e s i d e n t  of finance 
and chief financial officer From 1994 to 1997. Mr Moline was t h e  treasurer and 
c h i e f  financial officer of Covenant Tranaport, Inc , a transportation company i n  
Chattanoqga, Tcr.ncssce that. became publicly traded during t i s  tenure Prior to 
joining Covenant Transport Mr Holine uorked for Ernat & Young LLP I n  Kansas 
City, H i s ~ o u f i  and Grant Thorn ton  *n  Lincoln, Nebraska, prov id ing  customer 
s e r v i c e s  in the a u d i t i n g  and consulting areas M r  Moline holds a Bachelor of 
Administration degree in B u E i n e a S  Adm,nistration, with dlstlnctlon from t h e  
University cf Nebraska and IS a certified public accouncanc 

J E F F P E f  D SHACKELFORD, a c ~ - f o u n d e r ,  is senior v i c e  president cf s a ~ e s  
M r  Shackelfsrd has  1 3  years  of exper-encc in t h e  telecommun*carions r n d u s t r - j  
Prior to loining ua. M r  Shackelford served a s  d l r e c t o r  of s a l e s  and marketing 
for  Kansas Cicy FiberNet Pr io r  to j o i n i n g  Kansas City FibcrNet 
Mr Shackelford w a s  t h e  B r m c h  Manager for Sprint's commerclal sales office I n  
Kansas C i t y  and warn r t spon i srb le  for s a l t s  and serv ice  of small to large b u s l n e s s  
customerg 3Lring h i s  t e n u r e  at Sprint. w h i c h  began in 1 9 8 8 .  Yr Shackelford 
also developed the long distance rndustry's f irsc PC-based c a l l  m n a g e m e n t  
s y s t e m  F 0 F : I E X  Mr S h a c k c l f o r d  h o l d s  a Bachelcr of Science degree  l n  rornpLcer 
Science from cbe  U n i m r s i t v  of Kar.sas 
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aoftware and databaeea t o  major retail Companies. Hr. Vranicar was t h e  company*s 
ecnior executive in the Asia /Paci f ic  division, direetlng a staff of 
approximately B O  engaged in software development, computer graphics, and 
Cuetorner technical support. Mr. Vranicar holde a Bachelor of B U 6 i n e f i 8  degree in 
Marketing, with honors, From the Univtreity of Texas ut Auatin, and a Master o€ 
Business Adminiatration d e g r e e ,  with dietinction, from t h e  U n i v e r s i t y  of 
Michigan a t  Ann Arbor. 

4 7  

mNRY H. BRADLEY has heen a di rec tor  since January 1997. He is the chairman 
of t h e  board of NICWB-PTEBO 6r Gazette Company, or NPG. one of our co-€oundera. 
NPG i a  a f a m i l y - o w e d  company t h a t  owns and operate8 a daily newspaper, cable 
reltvieion syatCm8, network a€filiatc broadcast television 8tationn and FM and 
AN radio etatione. Hr. Bradley hae he ld  a number of other positione with NPG 
since joining NPG in 1971, including term as the editor and publisher of t h e  
S t .  Joacph Hews-Prcae. Mr. Pradlcy h o l d s  a Bachelor'a degree From t h e  University 
o€ Missouri. 

hDAM H. CLAFMER has been a director since Auguet 1999. P r i o r  t o  j o i n i n g  KKR 
in 1995, he was with Morgan S t a n l e y  & Co. in i t n  rnergera and acquisitiona 
dcpartmnt .  A t  K K R ,  M r .  C1,a-r has  been involved in investments in Intermedia 
Communieatione. Inc., CAIS Internet, Inc.. Zhone Technologies, RELTEC and 
Borden. He i O  also a direc':or of AEP Induatries. I n c .  and a number of  private 
companica. 

MORY EJABAT ha8 been a director since March 2 0 0 0 .  Since September 1999, 
Mr. Ejabat ha0 been the c h i l i m n  and c h i e f  executive ofFieer of Zhont 
Ttchnologiem, Inc .  Prior ti) joining Zhone, M r .  Ejabat served a6 the president 
and chief executive off icer  of h c e n d  Communicationm, Xnc. from June 1 9 9 5  to 
June 1 9 9 9 .  Before becoming the preaidtnt  and chit?€ executive off icer of Aacend 
in 1 9 9 5 ,  Mr. Elabst had s e w e d  a a  v i c e  president, Operations from 1990 to 1992 
and as executive vice prcnj.dcnt from 1992 t o  199s. 

JAMES H. GIEENE, JR. has been a d i r e c t o r  since Auguet 1999 and is a member 
of the limited liability company which serves a s  the general partner of KXR and 
a general partner of KKR Amaociatcs .  He 1s alro a director  of Accuridc 
Corporation, Owens-Illinoisi, Inc.. Safeway Inc., Shoppers Drug M a r t ,  Inc.. 
Intermedia Communications, Inc., CATS I n t e r n e t ,  I n c . ,  Tenovis. formerly a 
division of Boach Telecom, and Zhone Technologies. 

H E N R Y  R. KRAVIS has been a director since March 2 0 C O .  He is u founding 
partner of KKR and aince Jamuary 1936 a managing member of the executive 
committee of t h e  limited liabiiicy company that  serves as the general partner of 
Kohlberg Kravis Robert6 & C'o.,  L . P .  He i s  also a director of Accurrdc 
Corporation, Borden, I n c  , The Boyds Collection, t t d . ,  Evenflo Company I n c . ,  T h e  
Gillcctc Company, IDEX Corporation. KlnderCare Learning Centers, InC., KSL 
Recreat ion  Group, Inc.. Owtna-Illinois. :nc.. PRIMEDIA Inc., Regal Cinemas, 
Inc., Safeway, I n c . ,  S o t h e t i y ' s  Holdings, Inc.. Spalding H o l d i n g s  C o r p o r a t i o n .  
and T I  Group p l c .  M e s s r s .  Kravis and Roberts are f i r s t  cousins. 

A L E U N D E R  NAVAB, ; R .  has  been a d l rec to r  since August  1999. He h a s  Seen an 
executive of K K R  and a limited partr.er -,f Y J J ?  Associates since 1993. From 1991 
to 1993. U r ,  Navab was an a88ociatt at James D. Wolfensohn, Inc. He is a i s 0  a 
d i r e c t o r  ol Borden, I n c . .  R S L  Aecrcaticn Group. I n c . ,  : n t e r r . e d ~ a  CommunLcations. 
i n c . .  CAIS Lnterncr, Inc., Tenovis, formerly a division (:I Bcsch Telecom, and 
Zhonc Technalogies. 

THOMAS R .  PALHER has been a director s ince  A p r i l  1 9 9 9 .  S ince June 1997, 
M r .  Palmer h a s  been a general p a r t n e r  at Kansas C i t j  E q u i t y  Partners, and 
focuses on investments in the te1ecommunrcat:ons and ~ n f o r m a t l o r ~  ccchnology 
a t c t o r .  He loined :fit firm in Augusr : 9 9 5 .  Frior to ]o:nir.g Kansas Clty Equity 
? a r t n e r s .  r.e P.e:d pos;t;ons at . h e r : t e = h  3r.d Trans N a t i o n a l  croup Mr Falmer 
also serves an t n e  boards cf Net Sales, ':::or. ar.d s e v e r a :  other p r r v a ~ e  
compar.;es M r .  Falrr,e:- :$ d graduare cf :artmd;:t ;z::ege and r_Ce Kellcqq Schoo i  
3 C  Nanagemert at N o r c h u e s t e r n  vr.ivers:r;. 
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GEORGE R. ROBERTS ha8 been a director aincc March 2 0 0 0 .  H e  i s  a foundrng 
partner of  KKR and since January 1 9 9 6  a managing member of t h e  executive 
committee of the limited 1 . iab i l l ty  company that  eervea as the general partner of 
Kohlberg Kravi8 Roberta & C o . ,  L . P .  H e  i# also a director of Accuride 
Corporation, Borden, InC.. The Boydm Collection. Ltd.. Evenflo Company I n c . ,  
IDBX Corporation, Kindercare Learning Center, Inc., KSL Recreation Group, Inc., 
Ovens-Illinoie. I n c . ,  PRIMEDIA Inc., Regal Cincmao, Inc.. Safeuay, f n c .  and 
Spalding Holdinge Corporation. Meaars. Kravin end Roberts are f i t e t  couBin#. 
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SECTION 16 ( A ]  BENEFICIAL O l a E R S H f P  REPORTING COMPLIANCE 

During the  yeas ended 13eccmber 3 1 ,  1 9 9 9 .  we did not have equity securities 
regietered pureuanc t o  Section 12 of the Exchange A c t  and t h i 8  itcm i s .  
therefore, non-applicable. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

D f RE CTOA COMPENSATION 

Directors who are also our executive officers do not receive any additional 
compmsarion far oesving a0 membcra ot the board of directora or any of lts 
cornitteen. Beginning i n  2000, non-employee director8 are expected to receive a 
cash stipend of $ 5 , 0 0 0  payable annually and reimburcemcnt of expensea for 
serving on tht board of directors and any comittcee of t h e  board, am well a s  an 
annual option t o  purchart 5 , 0 0 0  shares of common etock.  Each non-employee 
director currently on the board will receive an option to purchase 
10.000 eharea of c o m n  stock upon completion of our initial p u b l i c  offering at 
the offering price. Thclre o p t i o n e  w i l l  vest  i n  equal annual inatallmento over 
t h e  next four yeare. In addition, MCS8t-B. Ejabat and Jalkut each received on 
March 2 2 ,  2 0 0 0  an additional option t o  purchase 3 0 , 0 0 0  8harcs of comon atock a t  
an exercise price of S 7 . S O  per share. Thene option. will veat  in equal annual 
installmento over the next ':YO yearn. 

COMPENSATION OF EXECVTIVE OlPFfCERS 

The following table s e t ! i  forth the cash and non-caah cornpensarion p a l d  or 
incurred on our behalf t o  oiir chief executive nfficcr and each of the four other 
most h i g h l y  compenaated executive officers that earned more than $100,000 during 
1999: 

!SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 

: I  3 . :  
_ r  -, 

.< ;-  

: - I  2 , ;  

1 : 5 1  . -,. . .. 
-.6 

. ^ ,  

4 - ,  
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( 1 )  lncludcs options t o  purchaae shares of our common ~rock, which uere leeued 
under our 1998 employee stock option plan. Prior t o  t h e  pr ivate  p laccmnt  of 
Our rcries B preferred stock, w e  were a party to various stock optlon 
agreemente w i t h  our employtea, all of which were governed by our 1 9 9 7  stock 
option p l a n .  In connc'ztion with the 1998 pr ivate  placement of series B 
preferred stock. the '1997 stock option p l a n  was replaced with t h e  199B stock 
option pian, and a l l  irtock option agreements governed by t h e  1 9 9 7  etock 
option plan  were terminated.  Options i s r u t d  to  the members of management 
during 1 9 9 8  were grant.td under our 1 9 9 8  employee stock option plan and were 
exercieable immediately on grant a t  an exercise price  of S0.00i per share. 
The shares issued under these options vest  over a four-year period, at a 
rate of 6.251 per quarter. Optiona issued during 1 9 9 9  were also granted 
under our 1998 atock option plan and v e i t  25.t at t h e  I i r s t  anniversary of 
the  grant, then 6 . 2 5 2  per quarter thcreaLter. All stock op'.ione have been 
adjusted to r e f l e c t  a stock dividend made on June 23, 1998. Holdcre o f  
cxerciaed options have voting power with respect to all shares of c o m n  
etock underlying the olptione. Upon termination of employment, we have t h e  
right to repurchaac a l l  options which have not versted da of t h a t  date. 
aubjtct  to Borne txccptrons. 

( 2 )  Reflects matching cont1:lbUtlOnE made by u9 under o u r  4 O l l k l  plan. 

1 3 )  Reflects compensation p a i d  to M e B 8 r 8 .  S c o t t  and Lawhon commencing rn 
January 1997. 

( 4 1  Mr. Goldman joined urn i n  March 1998 as senior vice president of Internet 
rclvices. In Auguet 195l9 Mr. Goldman waa named senior v i c e  president of 
operationr and c h i e €  operating officer. 

IS) Reflecrs cornpeneation paid to UK. Vranicar commencing in March 1997 

1 6 )  M r .  Saudcr loincd UIL after the Valu-Line acquisition and currently serve8 a s  
v i c e  president .  Cornpeneation listed wan paid by Valu-Line from January 1997 
to February 1998. 
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OPTIONS G W S  

T h e  following table seta  f o r t h  summary information r e g a r d i n g  option grants 
made during 1999 ta o u r  chief e x e c u t i v e  officer and each of osJr f o u r  o ther  
hlghly paid  e x e c u t i v e  officers. T h e  exercise p r i c e  per share 1s equal to the 
€ a i r  market value of our common stock on the date of g r a n t  a 8  determined by o u r  
board of d i r e c t o r s .  
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1998 employee itock option plan. In the event that  a purchaacr ceamcs to 
provide BerVlce to UB and our a f f i l i a t e e .  we have the right to repurchase 
any of that  peraon's mveetcd shares Of C o m n  r t o c k  at t h e  original option 
exefc isc  pr ice .  Gcner4i l ly ,  theae  options v e s t  2 5 %  on t h e  f i r s t  anniversary 
o f  the grant date and quarterly thereafter a t  a rate  O f  6.25.b. 

( 2 )  The percentage of total Option8 w a s  calculated based on options to purchase 
an aggregate o f  1 , 7 9 4 , 8 0 0  aharcs of common atock granted to employees under 
t h e  1998 stock option plan in 1939. 

( 3 )  The potential realizable value wae calculated based on t h e  t en -yea r  term of 
the optiona and assumed rates of atock appreciation of 5 t  and lo%, 
compounded annually from t h e  date the options were granted t o  t h e i r  
expiration date based on the f a i r  market value  of t h e  common stock on che 
date of grant. 

51 

1 9 9 8  EMPLWEE STOCK OPTION PIAM 

Under our L998 employee! stock oprion p l a n ,  a8 amended, options to purchase 
sharee of our common stock in t h e  form of both incentive Stock options and 
nonqualificd 8tock optianr were granted to our employees or tmploycea of  c e r c a i n  
of our aubsidiariea. A totail of 7 , 7 2 0 . 8 4 5  shares of our  comnmn atock were 
reserved far isauance under this option plan. AB o f  December 31, 1999, options 
to acquire 2,030,850 shares, were issued and outstanding w i t h  a weighted average 
extrciee price of $ 3 . 5 7  per share. These optione generally v e s t  251; per year 
over four yeare from the date of grant.  Under a reeolution o f  our board of 
direcrora, no nev options may be granted under thie option plan.  

We have adopted a tax-qualified employee savings and retirement plan. or 
4 O l O r l  plan, covering all of  our full-time employees. Under t h e  401(kl plan, 
cmployece may e lect  to reduce their current compensation up t o  the statutorily 
prescribed annual limlc and have t h e  amount of t h e  reduction contributed to t h e  
401(k) p l a n .  The 401fkl p l a n  i s  intended to qualify under Section 401 of the 
Code so that conrrlbutioni by employees to t h e  4Oltk) plan and income earned on 
plan contributlona are not  taxable to employees until uithdraun from the 401(kl 
p l a n .  T h e  trustee9 under t h e  401(k) plan, at t h e  direction of each participant. 
i n v e s t  t h e  participant's a s n e t 8  in t h e  4Ol(kl plan in selected investment 
o p t  ions. 

1999 OPTION VALUES 

T h e  following table ahomds €or t h e  fiscal year ended Cecember 31, 1999. 
informacion regarding o p t i o i s  granted to, exercised by, and held  a t  year  end by, 
o u r  chief e x e c u t i v e  o f f i c e r  and each of cur four o t h e r  m o s t  hlghly pard 
e x e c u t i v e  officers during 1399. 

6.1 9 l O  

... 

6 . 5  L 1 6  

< : I  - - v  
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(1) For purposes of this table alone. “txerciac” meanr an employee’a acquisktaon 
of ehaare8 oL c o m n  a t o c k  which have already vested, “exerc isablenu manB 
optiona t o  purchase 8harcs of comon stock which are oub]ect to exercise and 
“unexerciaab~t” meane- all other optiona to purchase .hares of common stock. 

( 2 1  Amounte shown under the “Value Realized“ and “Value o€ Unexercised 
In-the-Honey Options” are based upon the estimated December 31, 1 9 9 9  
tetimatcd f a i r  marktt value of our c o m n  stock of 5 7 . 5 0  p e r  share minus the 
per ahare exerciee price multiplied by the number of shares underlying the 
option. 

(31 Include8 option8 to purchase shares cf c o m n  stock, which were i s s u e d  under 
the 1 9 9 8  employee atock option plan. Options isautd during 1998 under t he  
1 9 9 8  employee atock option p l a n  were granted at an exercise price of $0.001 
per share. Option8 iaaued during 1999 under the  1998 mtock 
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option plan were granted a t  an exercise price of 5 4 . 5 0  per share. All 
o p t i o n a  v e a t  2 5 %  on tht! f i r s t  anniversary o f  rhe grant date and quarterly 
thereafter at a rate of 6.25k. 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS 

Each of Mesars. Scott, Goldman, Lawhen, Molint, Shackelford and Vranicar 
entered in to  an amended and restated employment agreement with ua in October 
1999. In addition, Mi-. Sauclcr entered into an ernploymcrrt agreement w i t h  us in 
February 1990, and Hr. Hollingsworth entered into an employment agreement with 
us in February 2000. 

The base ealary under tach of theet agreemcnte is $ 2 0 0 , 0 0 0  per year, except 
that  Mr. Scott‘s baee ealary is $ 2 5 0 , 0 0 0  per year. Mr. Goldman‘e i e  $ 2 2 5 , 0 0 0  per 
year and Hr. Sauder‘n i e  $213,000 per year.  Each of the executivcn is eligible 
for a bonum based on achievtmcnt of performance c r i t e r i a  catabliahcd by the 
board for that executive. 

Each of t h e  employment agreements provides that upon termination of 
employment by us, other than for cause, disability or death .  or termination of 
the employment by t h e  e x e c u t i v e  for good reason, we w i l l  pay the executive the 
following severance. W e  will pay the executive’s s a l a r y  for  the  remainder. i f  
any, of the calendar month in which the termination i s  effective and. in the 
case of each of Mesmrs S c o t t ,  Vranicar, Shackelford and Goldman. 24 calendar 
months t h e r e a f t e r  and, i n  t h e  c a s e  of each of M e s s r s .  Lauhon, Sauder. 
Hollingaworth and Holine, 12 calendar months thereafter. In addlrion, w e  wlll 
pay each execut ive  h i s  prorated targeted incentive compensation for the year 
during which t h e  termination i s  effective plus. in t h e  Cd8e o f  each of 
Meaars S c o t t .  Vranicar, Shackelford and Goldman, two t i m e s  t h e  execuc ive ’ s  
targeted incentive compensation for t h a t  y e a r ,  acd,  i n  the case of each of 
M e s s r e  Lauhon, Hollingaworth and Molinc. t h e  full amount of t he  e x e c u t i v e ’ s  
targeted incent i - re  compensation f o r  t h a t  y e a r  Upor. t e r r n l n a t i o n  o f  employment 
for  drsabil:t> we w i l l  pay t h e  empiz,ee s 6alary through t h e  remainner o f  t h e  
calendar month duri.?g which t h e  term:nat:on 19 e f f e c t i v e  and for t h e  lesser of 
111 sax calendar months t h e r e a f t e r  or  1 2 )  t h e  p e r i o d  until disability insurance 
benefits commenze UFon termination of employment from d e a t h ,  w e  will pay t h e  
employee s salary t h r o u g h  t h e  end of t h e  calendar month in whrch hls d e a t h  
occurs Each agreemen t  provides  f o r  soncompetltion. nonswlicitat1on and 
nondisclosure covenants 

COHPESSAT ION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AN3 1 NS I DER PAETI CI PAT ION 

None of t k . e  menhers cf t h e  cmpcr . sac :on  committee of the bcard of d i r e c t o r s  
- s  r ~ r r c r . t ; y  sr :,as Leer. a t  an] time s:nce x r  foraat:on o ~ r  zfficer or 
e mp 1 o y  e e 

PEPCR, 2 F  THE CCMPENSATZCK CCMMITTEF SF T U E  S2RRD CF 3TRECTORS 
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The folloving is a rspart of the Cornpeneation Committee of o u r  Board of 
Directorm (Ccml t tee ) .  dcacribing t h e  comptnsatlon pollciea applicable to our 
executive officers durinq the fiecal year ended December 31, 1999. 

GEN!Z:RAL POLI Cf ES 

The Cornittee i s  rcsponeiblc for aaaisting the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
in devising general compensation policies and comptnaation plans, as well as t he  
specific cornpen~ation levela for indlvidual executive officera. The Committee 
also administers t h e  stock option, employee atock purchase and 4011k) plan6 and 
determines the terms and conditions of granta thereunder. The Committee consists 
of Mcssrs. Bradley, Grernls, Navab and Mr. Scott, Birch's CEO. Prior to h i s  
departure from t h e  board in Auguac 1999, fan Bund Was a member of t h e  Committee. 
Mr. Scott does not part i c ipate  in Committee deliberations or deciaion8 involving 
h i a  own cornpeneation. 
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The goals of the Cormnittee are to: 

- align cornptnaation kith buaineas objectives and performance; 

.: adopt p o l i c i e s  t h a t  enable U B  t o  attract, r e t a i n  and reward executive 
officer8 and other key employees who contribute to Birch'e long-term 
S U C C ~ B B ;  and 

- m t i v a t e  executives and employees as wc seek to enhance long-term 
stockholder v a l u e . .  

fn order to m e t  these goals,  the Committee ha8 adopted the following 
pol iciera : 

- Offer pay that  ie coinpctrtavc w i t h  the practrcco of t h e  leading 
teleconununications cmpanice with which compete for talent. To ensure t h a t  
pay i s  competrtivt, :he Committee regularly compare8 i t s  pay p r a c t i c e s  
w i t h  these companies and B e t e  it pay pararnctcra based on this review 

- Maintain annual i n c e n t i v e  opportunities auffrcicnt to provide m o t i v a t i o n  
to achieve  specific o p e r a t i n g  gcala and to generate revards t h a t  bring 
t o t a l  compenaation t i 3  competitive l e v e l e .  

- P r o v i d e  significant equi ty -baaed  inccntlvea for executives and other  k e y  
employees tc ensure v-hae they art motivated over t he  long-term. T h e  
C o m i c t e e  wants B i r c ! l ' s  executives and employee8 to respond to b u s l f i e s s  
challenges and opportunities as owners and n o t  3uat as employees 

The compensation mix o f f e r e d  to employees r e f l e c t s  a balance of annua', cash 
payments. consisting of b a s e  salary and L n c e n c l v e  bonua payments and long-te-a 
stock-based incentives in !:he f o r n  of s t o c k  options 

BASE SALARIES 

T h e  sa lar , .  ccmponent 0:: executive cornpensat ion 1 s  b a s e d  cn the e x e c u r l v e ' s  
level of respons:bility fa:: meeting t a r g e t e d  cbjectrves ar.d t h e i r  overall 
perforr.ance Base sa lar ie s  for e x e c u t i v e s  a r e  rtvlewed ar.d ad:usted at least 
annually based :n informatton regarding conperitive saiaries, :he results c f  
i n d u s t r ;  cornpensat i o n  survciys, :r.div:dual experience and p e r f o r m a n c e  

CASH BCVLJUSES 

C u r  incent :ve program ?or e x e t l j t  : - J P  officers pr=v ldes  dlrcct finarclal 
:ncentives i n  :?.e form of c a s h  bonuses based  on previcus jear Ferformanre 
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typically have vcetrng periods of four y e a r a ,  encourage k e y  employees to 
continue their service w i t h  Birch and motivate their performance. Executlvc 
officers receive s i g n i f i c a n t  e q u i t y  lnctntivte t o  b u i l d  long-cerm stockholder 
value. Grants are made a t  1 O O t  of f a i r  market v a l u e  on chc date of grant. 
Employee8 receive v a l u e  fxom these grants o n l y  i f  Birch'a common stock 
appreciates over t h e  long-term. The aizt of option grants 18 determined baaed on 
competi t ive p r a c t i c c a  a t  leading companica in t h e  telecommunications induetry 
and our  philosophy of linking executive cornpeneation with stockholder interests. 
The Cornittee b e l i e v e s  thio approach crcatea an appropriate focus on longer t e r m  
objectives and promotes executive rttention. 

COMPENSATION OF THE CHIEF E X E m f V E  OFFICER 

Mr. Scott ha8 served am Birch'a Prceldtnt and CEO since inception. I n  
February 1998, Mr. S c o t t  entered into an employment agreement, the  terms of 
which are described in mort: detail in "Employment Agreements . ' '  
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During f i s c a l  1999, Mi. Scott r e c e i v e d  aggregate e a l a r y  af $203,846, which 
reflects the Auguet 1999 islcrcaac in Mr. Scott's base salary from S L 7 5 , O O o  to 
$250,000. In addition, M r .  Scott was g r a n t e d  optione t o  purchase an aggregate of 
200,POO aharce of our commc~n stock in 1999. This compensation reFlecta the 
Auguet 1999,increaat in Mr. Scatt'a baae aalary from $175,000 to $ 2 5 0 . 0 0 0 .  
M r .  Scott did not receive a caeh bonua in 1999. In reviewing the cornpenearion 
pa id  co Mr. Scott in 1999, t h c  Committee coneidered a number of factors ,  
including competitive market  comptnaation packages, Mr. Scott'a past performance 
and the reeponsibilitiea he ha8 aasumed dB CEO. Baeed on its internal review and 
informal information reviewed by the Committee, the  Cwnmittee believte that t h e  
ba6t e a l a r y  level for M r .  Scot t  is c0mcn8urate with aaiariem p a i d  to chief  
e x e c u t i v t  officers of Comparable companies in similar industrite. 

Overall, the Committee helicvce that Mr. 
compeneatcd in a manner that i n  conristcnt w 
stockholdera. 

;us I ON 

signi€icant portion of t h e  Committee's 
Mr. Scott's compensation, a r e  contingent on 
realization of benefits is closely linked to 
value. The Commlttte remains committed to th 

Scott ie being appropriately 
t h  t h e  long-term intereats  of 

compensation program, including 
ndrvidual performance. and t h e  
increases in long-term stockholder 
s philosophy of pay for .~ 

performance, rccognlzing t h a t  t h e  competitive market for talented executives and 
t h e  volatllity of t h e  Company's businesrr may result in highly variable 
compensation f o r  a particular time period. 

T h e  members of t he  Committee submit t h e  foregoing r e p o r t .  

COMPENSATION CLHMITTEE: 

Henry H. Bradley 
James H .  G r e e n t ,  Jr. 
Alexander Navab, J r  . 
David E. S c o t t  

ITEM 1 2 .  S E C L q I T Y  OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL C W E R S  W C  MANAGEMENT 

Tke fo:lowing t a b i e  p r c v i d e s  summary informacior. regard:ng t t e  benef ; c i a :  
ownership of our  outs tandi f ig  capital s t o c k  a 3  of March 2 1 ,  :COO f o r ,  

- each  person  cr g r z u p  wno beneficially awns more t h a n  5 %  c;f o u r  capltal 
s t o c k  on a f u l : ~  diluted b a s i s ;  

. e a c t  zf : C P  execut;\re cfficers aric :he f o r n e r  exec . i r : - J e  :!f:zpr r . a m e d  1:. 

:he Summar;' Ccnpensatrcn Table. 

- e a c h  o f  o u r  direcrors. ar.d 
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- a l l  oE our directoxm and execut ive  o€fictrr a5 a group. 

Bcneficiai  ownership of sharca i s  determined under t h e  r u l e s  of che 
Securities and Exchange Commission and generally includes any shares over which 
a person exescisce sole or Bhared voting or investment power. Except as 
indicated by footnote, and subject t o  applicable community property laws, each 
person identifled in t h e  table poaeesees mole voting and investment power with 
reepect t o  all shares o f  Icommon stock h e l d  by them. Sharee of common stock 
a u b j c c t  t o  optiona currcn1:ly exercisable or excrcieablt within  60 days of 
March 23, 2000 and not  subject t o  repurchase a s  o €  that date are deemed 
outstanding for  ca lcu la t ing  the percentage of  outatanding shares of t h e  person 
holding these optione. but. art  not deemed outatanding for calculating t h e  
percentage of any  other per son .  Unless otherwise 

5 5  

noted, the addreas for each director  and executive off icer  i s  c/o Birch 
Telecom. f n c . .  2 0 2 0  Baltimore Avenue, Kansas City. Missouri 6 4 1 0 8 .  

MRtaER OF SHARES NAnE hhD ADDRESS OF 
BDIEFICIAL OWER!A. I  BEHEPICIALLY OWNED 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ... 

PREFERRW STOCK SERIES 
C o m N  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
STOCK [B) B C 3 F 

. . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  

OIRLCTORS W D  EXECVTIVE OFF!-S 
Richard A Jalkat (c1 
David E Scott 
Donald H Cnldrran 
Grcqory C Lawhon 
Bradley A ~olincldl 
Jcftroy 0 Shackmltord . 
David Y Vranicrr 
Uienry H BradlcyIcl 
&dam H Clamnerlt) f '  
Mery €]&bat (cl 
J a m s  H Grccne J r  1) 
Henry R Kravia ( f  > 
Alexander Navab, J. 1 1  11) 
ThoMm R PaAmer(g1 cml 
George R Robartrtf) (11 
Etcphce L Sauderlhl 
All directors a n d  c x c c u t i v t  

offictro aa 4 group $ 1 6  
persona 

5\ OWNERS 
HewB P r e a n  4 G a z t c r e  Companyrl) 
advancage Capital nlssouri 

Farcncre :. t P 111 
Advarcdgt Cbp.Cd1 Y i s ~ o u r .  

P a r t n c r s  I 1  L P ] I  
Paciflc Capital L P ' k l  
BTI icnrure+ L t C f ' 1 1  
Kansas tit, E c p i c y  F a r r n c r s  I 

K m s d s  C i t y  Em.:{ Pdrtncrs 
Vcr,trlrts  :: L P sg> l m  

White P i n t s  L i m i r t d  
7 s r r n c r s P . i p  l -, 

&: sroup :?c  5 

L P $ 3  Irnl 

NAME W D  ADDRESS OF 
BENEFICIAL 3 W X R i A i  

........................ 
. . . . . . .  

1 6 . 6 6 7  
1 , 1 9 0 . 7 6 B  

2 6 3 ,  ?SO 

2 9 7 , 9 3 2  
794 .16Z  

>no, 1 1 7  

116,781) 

6 6 . 6 6 7  

1 .  136.862 

- .  .. 

.. 199.900 

4 9 . 1 5 3  .. 
7 4 , 5 0 9  _.  

.. 1 ? 6 , 6 0 0  
3 6 . 2 b 6  .. 

1 . 9 1 0 ~ 1 2 8  1 , 5 0 2 , 5 0 0  

.. .. 

. .  .. 

.. .. 
, .  

. .  .. 
9 1 5 . 1 0 8  .. 

8 5 .  719 4 , 0 8 9 , 5 7 5  

5 5  
. .  

3 3 1 . 1 3 3  - .  

2 3.596, 4 9 2  

.. 2 3 , 5 9 6 , 4 9 1  
, .  2 1 ,  5 5 6 , 4 9 1  
' 2 1 . 5 9 6 . 4 9 2  

. .  

- .  . .  

6 6 6 . 6 6 7  
- 2 1 . 5 9 6 . 4 9 2  

1 ,  O g O ,  0'3C 2 3 ,  5 3 6 ,  4 9 ;  

IERc'ENTk3E CF CLASS C W E D  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

FF.C'fL'FT.EI S T C C K  SEPIES 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .................... 
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DIRECIOAS W G  EXECCfiIVE OPFICIZRS: 
Richard A .  Jalkat(cl . . . . . . . . . . .  
David E .  ScoCt 

Adam H -  C 1 a m r l f l : l )  . . . . . . . . . .  
Mv E j a b a t i c !  
Jamu H ,  Grcene. Jr. i f1  (1;. . 
Henry A .  Kravlslflili. . . . . . . . .  
Alexander Navab. Jr. i f  I k l 1 .  
Thomam R ,  Palmer  ig 1 (m: . . . . . . . . .  
George R .  Roberrsif; 11' , , 

Stephen L. Saudcrlh! . . . . . . . . . .  
A l l  d irectors  and execut ive  

cffaccrs au a group ( 1 6  
persons) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , .  

5 b  OWNERS: 
Hewe-Preas L Gazette Company!i!.. 
Advanrage C a p l t u l  Mrarrouri 

Partners I .  L. P .  (1  . . . . . . . .  
Advantage Capital Miniourl 

Partner. 1 1 ,  L.P.(]I . . . . . . . .  
P a C l f l C  CApltal. L . P .  lk). . . . . .  
RTI Venture0 L.L.C. ( f )  ( 1 ! ,  , . 
Kanaao C i t y  Equity Partnefm I, 

Ventures 1 1 ,  L . P  :gl i m : ,  , 

Y h l t e  Pints Limice 

MI Group, I n c .  ( 0 )  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

STOCK i B :  
......... 

2 4 . 9  
5 . 6 8  

6 . 2  
16.6 

6 . 6  

8 . 0  

- - t  
.. 

1 4  

. .  

.. 

. .  

- .  

69.8 

.. 

- -  

.. 

.. 

.. 

.. 

5 6  

N M E  AhD ADDRESS OF 
E R E F I C I A L  OWNER [ A I  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

B 
...... 

- - t  
-. 
.. 

- .  
.. 

2 3 . 1  
.. 

.. 

- .  

:1 .0  

1.0 
.. 

37.0 

1 9 . 2  

l S , 4  

.. 

1 4 . 2  
.. 

11.0 

.. 

1 1 . 5  
.. 

C 
...... 

- - I  
3.0 
._ 
.. 
.. 

2 . 0  

2 5 . 1  
.. 

.. 

.. 

.. 

.. 

.. 

65.2 

9 5 , 5  

2 5 . 2  

.. 

.. 

- .  
. .  

.. 

- .  

.. 

.. 

D F 
...... - - . .  

11 . 6  
.. 

23 2 

.. 

34.9 

7 . a  

5 . 1  

1 4 . 6  

.. 

.. 

100.0 

1 0 0 , D  

100.9 
. .  

. .  

100,o 

1 O O . d  

.. 1 . 9  

1 9 . 4  

2 0 . 5  

P E R C W A G E  OF TCTAL VOTING W W E R  OF 
F G I Y  S i L ' R E 3  C3mCN STClCK 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

.\ 
1 0  
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IACEP) lgl Im)  
Uhitc Pane. Limited Partntrahlp f In1 
LBI croup, rnc  io) 

1 2  
2 2  
1 3  

Lea8 than one percent 

la) Beneficial ovnershrp ita determined i n  accordance w i t h  the SEC's rules and 
includes voting and iiivestment power with respect to t h e  8hareB. 

(bl Includea options t o  purchaee shares of the common stock, whlch vere l s e u e d  
pursuant to our 1998 Sltock Option Plan. Certain options are exercisable 
immediately on grant a t  an exercime price of $.001 per ahare, and veat over 
a four-year period, a t  a rate of 6 . 2 5 *  per quarter. A l l  o t h e r  optiona are 
exercisable a t  a price of $ 4 . S Q  per share subject to a four-year vestlng 
p c r i d ,  a t  a rate of 6 . 2 5 9  per quarter. Holdera of exercised options have 
voting power w i t h  reepcet t o  a l l  aharea of common stock underlying t h e  
optione. Upon termination of employment w i t h  U B ,  ut have the right to 
purchaae all options w h i c h  have not vented as of that date. subject t o  
certain exceptione. 

I c l  In  March 1999, Hr. Jalirat, chairman of our board of directors, agreed to 
purchant 2 6 , 6 6 7  shares of  our common 6tock for $200.000 and Ur. Ejabat. a 
member of our board of  directors,  agreed to purchaat 6 6 , 6 6 7  shares of o u r  
cornon rtock f o r  $ 5 0 0 , 0 0 0 .  

( d )  Includes 1 9 , 2 7 5  aharee  of S e r i e a  B Preferred Stock h e l d  by M r .  Hsline's 
immediate family e u b l t e t  to optaone txtrcieable w i t h i n  60 dayo of 
Pebruarj 29, 2 0 0 0  

l e )  Includes 1 , 6 4 8 , 4 3 6  shares of Seriea B Preferred Stock, 1 , 5 8 2 , 5 0 0  eharee of 
Series C Preferred Stoc:k and 2 2 2 , 2 2 2  aharce of Series D Preferred Stock h e l d  
by Nevi-Prtes L Gazet te ,  Company. 

H r  Bradley and h ie  brother hold VG ing power a i  News-Press & Gazette 
Company. Alao includca 329,690 shares  of Series B Preferred S t o c k  and 
1 1 1 , 1 1 1  eharee of Series D Preferred Stock h e l d  by various trusts and 
rclativea of the Bradley family. 

( f l  All of t h e  shares indicated are owned of record by BTI Ventures  L.L.C and 
are included because 3 f  Mtssra Clammcr'a, Grecne's. Kravis'. Navab's and 
Roberta' affiliation u i t h  BTZ Venturea  L . L  C These individuals disclaim 
beneficial ownership  of the s h a r e s  u i t h i n  t h e  meaning of R u l e  13d-3 under 
the Exchange A c t  

(g l  Includes 945,108 shares of Series B Pre€erred Stock and 11:,111 s h a r e s  o€ 
Seriea D Preferred S t o c k  h e l d  by Kansas C i t y  Equity Partxers Venturta I and 
5 5 5 , 5 5 6  sharee of S e r i e s  D P r e f e r r e d  Stock h e l d  by Kansas C l t y  E q u l t y  
l arcntrs  Ventures I1 P r .  Palmer h c l d s  voting power of Kansas C i t y  Equrcy 
Partners V e n t u r e s  

( h )  Inciudes 6 5 , 9 3 7  shares  of Series B Preferred S t o c k  h e l d  by M r .  Sauder's 
f a t h e r ,  1 . 5 4 4 . 7 8 7  shares of Series C P r e f e r r e d  s tock  held :n trust by his 
wife and i.OOO.030 s h a r e a  of Series C Preferred Stock h e l d  in t r u g c  by S L 
Sauder  L T P .  L L.P. 

' i i  The pricc:pa: buslness address of News-Press & Gazette Company 1-9 9 2 5  Edmont l  
S c r e e : .  St Scseph, MO 6 4 5 0 1 .  

; ,  The p r i r . c i p a l  business address zf Adva?, t>qe  Capita: U:SSCUT~ ?ax-tr ,ers  L P 
:s l - 3 3  Fors ; ' th  3 o ~ i e v a r d .  5aice :?S:  c f  L o ~ i s .  HC 6 3 1 2 5  
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Ik) The principal business address of Pacific Capital. L . P .  is 2 4 0 1  Plymouth 
Road, Suite B, AM Arbor, HI 4 8 1 0 5 .  

11) The principal buaineaa address of BTL Ventures L . L . C .  i s  9 W .  57(thl Street ,  
Suite 4 2 0 0 ,  New York, H y  10019. 

( m )  The principal buainca,s addre88 of Kanaaa City Equity Partner8 is 233 Weest 
4 7 ( t h l  Street, Kansaa C i t y ,  MO 6 4 1 1 2 .  

In)  The principal bueinca~i  addrcsa of Whrte Pinee Limited Parcntrshlp 1 is 2 4 0 1  
Plymouth Road, S u i t e  € I .  Ann Arbor, HI 4 8 1 0 s .  

( 0 1  The principal business, addrcsa of LBf Group, Inc. is 3 World Flnanclal 
Center, 2 0 0  V e e e y  Street. New York, NY 1 0 2 8 5 .  
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS RELRTED TRANSACTIONS 

SERIES D PFSFERRED STOCK OFFERING 

I n  July  1999, w t  completed a p r i v a t e  placement of 2 , 2 2 2 , 2 2 2  8harte of 
aeries D preferred etock 11'. a purchase price of $4.5.0 per ahare for aggregate 
Frocceds of  approximately :$lO.O milllon. The transaction wuz coneurnmated 
purnuant t o  t h e  pUrChaEerB r ight8  agreement described btlou and t h e  Eerie8 D 
preferred stock purcha8c agreement. Under t h e  aeries D preferred stock purchase 
agrctmcnt, NPG, a stockholder that owned i n  exctrrb of S +  of o u r  voting 
accuritiee a t  the t i m c  of !:he series D preferred stock offering, purchaecd 
$1.0 million of eeriee D preferred stock, and partiee affiliated w i t h  N E ,  
including Henry H .  Bradley, chairinan of our board of directors at that  time and 
of N E ,  purchaicd $ 5 0 0 , 0 0 0  o f  aer ie s  D preferred stack. Advantage Capital 
Himsouri Partnerr I, L . P . ,  a stockholder that owned i n  excenn of 5 %  of our 
voting securities at the  t i m e  of the a e r i e e  D preferred 8COCk offering, 
purchamtd $ 6 5 5 , 0 0 0  of the alerice D preferred n t o c k .  Ln addition, Ian R .  N. Bund,  
one of our directore  a t  the! t i m e  of the ser ies  D preferred etock of€ering, 
purchased $@2,000 of the sc irrea  D preferred stock ffiliatts of KCIP I and 
KCEP 11 aleo purchaaed $3.0 million of our series  :forred s t o c k .  
Hr. Palmer, one of our  director8 at t h e  time of th  riee D p r e f e r r e d  stock 
offering, holda voting power of KCEP I and KCEP I. 

SERIES F PREFERRED STOCK OFFERING 

In August 1 9 9 9 ,  we i s s ~ e d  and sold 1 3 , 3 3 3 . 3 3 4  s h a r e s  of o u r  series  F 
preferred stock a t  a purchase price of 5 4 . 5 0  per share t o  BTI Ventures.  L t C . 
an affiliate of KKR. for aggregate p r o c e e d s  of $ 6 0 . 3  r n l l l r c n  KKR rcccrved t h r e e  
s e a t s  on our then eeven-seat board of d i r e c t o r s  Additionally, on March 23. 
2000, KKR exercised i t s  options to purchaae  5 , 2 6 3 , 1 5 8  sharea of aeries F 
preferred stock a t  $ 4 . 7 5  p e r  share and 5,000,000 sharca of s e r a e a  P preferred 
scock a t  5 5  00 p e r  a h a r t  C i v i n g  effect to this exerci~e KKf's investment wodid 
h a v e  represented a 5.1 2 %  equity interest a s  of March 23. 2000 In connection 
with t h e i r  e x t r c i a e  of  t h e s e  opcions. KKR rece ived t w o  additional s e a t s  on o u r  
eleven-scat board of d i r e c t o r s  

I n  connection w i t h  t h e  seriee F preferred stock offering we rtpurchaaed 
2 , 2 2 2 , 2 2 2  shares of  o u r  sexies  C preferred stock from Stepher. t Sauder.  a 
stockholder who owned mort than 5C of our voting securities at t h e  time o f  the 
series F p r e f e r r e d  s t o c k  offering, f o r  $10 0 millron 

A l e c ,  in connection with the s e r i c a  F preferred stock offering. we conl+erted 
each outstanding share of clur s e r i e s  B preferred stock into one share of amended 
and restated series B preferred s t o c k  In addition, t h e  holders of series B 
p r e f e r r e d  stcck surrendered  t h e i r  existing redemption and parcicipat:ng 
liquidaclon p r e f e r e n c e  L I I  exchange f o r  0 2 1 2 2  shares of v u r  series E preferred 
s r o c k  we redeemed t h e  series E p r e f e r r e d  S ~ ~ C K  issued to :he s e r - e s  B F r e t e r r e d  
s t o c k  holders f o r  a t o t a l  o f  5 8  5 r n i l i l z n  T h e  r :ghcs  and Freferences 3 f  '.he 
series B p r e f e r r e d  stock were amended and r e s t a t e d  tz remove mr.daror; .  
rederption r :ghts  and ztanqe t h e  :.qu.darlcr. r i g h t s  
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In connection with the series F preferred stock of fer ing ,  N P G ,  a etockholder 
that owned in excema of 5 1  of our voting securitiee at the t i m e  of  the  seriea F 
preferred stock offering, received 3 6 6 , 3 2 0  shares of series E preferred stock, 
which were redeemed for  an aggregate rota1 of $1.6 million, and partlea 
affiliated with NPG, inc;.uding H e n q  H. Bradley, chairman of OUE board of 
directors and of NPC. received 7 3 . 2 6 4  shares o f  aerie8 E preferred e t o c k ,  which 
were redeemed f o r  an aggregate to ta l  of  $ 3 2 9 , 6 9 0 .  Advantage Capital Missouri 
Partnera I ,  L . P . ,  a atackholder which owned in eXceS8 o f  5 1  of our voting 
securities at the t ime  of che series F preferred s t o c k  offering, received 
2 9 3 . 0 5 6  ahareB of the o€ the eerie8 E pre€erred stock, which were redeemed for 
an aggregate total of $ 1 . 3  million. Bradley A .  Holint, our senior vice preaidenr 
of finance and chic€ f ina .nc ia l  officer, received 1 5 , 3 8 5  shares of aerles  B 
preferred stock, which we:re redeemed f o r  an aggregate to ta l  of $ 6 9 , 2 3 4 .  Pacific 
Capita l ,  L . P . .  a etockholrier which owned in excetas of 5 %  of our vot ing  
atcurities a t  t h e  time of the s e r i e s  F preferred stock offering, received 
2 7 1 , 0 9 5  aharea of t h e  of t h e  e t r i t e  E prtferred stock, which were redtented for 

s e  

an aggregate total  of $ 1 . 2  million. Steven t. Sauder, our v ice  president,  
together w i t h  his f a t h e r ,  Earl W .  Sauder, received an aggregate of 1 9 , 0 4 6  shares  
of aeries  E preferred stock. which were redeemed f o r  an aggregate to ta l  of 
$85,718. KCEP I and KCEP I 1  together received an aggregate of 2 1 0 , 0 2 2  shares of 
s t r i e e  E preferred s t o c k ,  which were redeemed for an aggregate t o t a l  of 
$ 9 4 5 , 0 9 9 .  

PURCWASERS RIGHTS AGREBHEW'r 

Our current stockho1de:rn art partice to the purehasera righte agreement, 
which provides that  they  vote  their respective sharee in a manner aa ta elect  
peraons specified i n  t h e  agrccmnt to meme ao directorr.  The holders of  
aeries F pre€errtd atock hiwe agreed to vote the ir  share6 t o  e lect  
M c a a r e .  Gretne, Navab and Clammtr. The tuo additional deaigneee of the holders 
of rtriee F preferred stock are M c a ~ r a .  Kravis and Roberta. In addition, t h e  
holdern o f  aerie8 B preferred stock, series C preferred atock a aeriea D 
preferred s t o c k  have agreed to vote  t h e i r  sharea to e l e c t  Henr Bradley and 
Thomas R .  Palmer. The  holders of common atock  have agreed to v Lhcir shares 
for  t h e  e l e c t i o n  of David E : .  S c o t t .  So l ong  a a  the  purchaaers qhts agreement 
i s  i n  effect, theat lnveatcsrs will e f f e c t i v e l y  con t ro l  the e l e c t i o n  of our board 
of directore. 

REGISTRATION RIGHTS 

The p a r t i c s  to the  purchdeer8 r i g h t s  agreement, subjtcr. to some conditions, 
have registracicn r ighte  w a t h  respect  to shares of common stack, including 
shares o €  cornon stock issuable upon conversion o r  redtmptlon of shares of 
s e r i e s  F preferred stock or upon convcfsim of a h a r e s  of s e r i e s  B preferred 
s t o c k ,  series C p r e f e r r e d  stock, or s e r i e s  D preferred stock. These purchasers  
have. sublect  to some conditions. demand and "piggy-back" tegistration rights 
The purchasere rlghte agreement p r o v l d e s  chat each purchaser of atcck i s  sub?tct 
rr lock-up rcstricriona in t h e  e v e n t  of a p u b l i c  offerrng o f  our 9 e c u r l c i e a  

RESTRICTIONS ON T W S P E U  

Our outstanding comon stock (including shares issued pLrsuant to options > 
and each scricB of preferred stock are s u b j e c t  to restrictions cn transfer 
Holders of common stock and each seraes of preferred stock t h a t  a r e  partlea to 
t h e  p u r c h a s e r s  rlghts agrc tn tnc .  sub jec t  to Borne txzcptions, m a y  not transfer 
t h e i r  shares without firsc q i v i n q  us t h e  opportunity to purchase the shares In  
addbtion. sub3ect  to 6 0 m t  exceptions. the holders of csmmon stock or any series 
of preferred ecock t h a c  a r e  p a r c l e s  to t h e  p u r c h a a c r s  r i g h t s  agreement  may n o t  
rransfe; : h e i s  s h a r e s  without f : rs t  glving t h e  o t h e r  p ' ~ r c r . a s e r s  u n d e r  t h e  
purchasers rights agreemcnr r h e  opporr;n;r'; :c parcicipatc i n  t h e  t r a n s f 6 . r  

?RE - EMPT: VIE R GHTS 
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Holdera of our c o m n  stock and each series of preferred atock that  are 
partice to t he  purchasers righta agreement have t h e  right to purchase a p r o  rata 
portion of any c m n  etock or preferred atock that  we propoae to sell and 
isaue, subject to some exceptione. 

SIZE OF THE BOARD OF 13fR8CTO- 

The purchaaera righta agretmtnt provides that 8 0  long as a t  least 6 . 6 6 6 . 6 5 7  
shares of aeries F preferred stock remain outstanding, the holders of aeries F 
preferred atock arc entitled to elect and remove directors in accordance w i t h  
o u r  rcatatcd certificate. In t h e  event that  lesa than 6 , 6 6 6 . 6 6 7  sharee of 
series  F preferred stock remain outstanding. but BTI Ventures L.L.C. and i t s  
a f f i l i a t e a ,  which include KKR, beneficially o m  a t  l e a a t  10% of our outstanding 
common stock, BTI has the r ight  to designate t h e  number of persons to aerve as 
members of the board determined in accordance w i t h  a formula act f o r t h  i n  the 
purchasers r i g h t s  agreement. Currently there a r t  five BTI nornineca sitting on 
our eleven seat board of directors. 

5 9  

For ao long as at least 8,532,394 aharea of  B c r i e s  B p r e f e r r e d  stock, 
a e r i t a  C preferred stock and ssrica D prcferrtd atock remain outstanding, the 
holders of this etock, vor:.ng together a8 a c l a s e ,  are entitled to elect and 
remove directors pursuant to our reatated certificate. 

BTI DRAG-ALONG RIGHTS 

Holders of common stock. and each eerics of prtferred stock that arc parties 
t o  the purchaecrr rights aqrtement are required to eel1 the ir  shares in the 
event that BTI Venture0 L . L , . C .  or i t 6  affiliates agree to ee l1  or transfer their 
shares, or to sell all or eubetantially a l l  of our asetts, t o  a third party .  

BTI VETO RIGHTS 

T h e  purchasers rights agreement provides c h a t  f o r  so long as BTI or any of 
i t a  affiliate8 beneficially o w n  at leaat 6 , 6 6 6 , 6 6 7  ahares of our  common -ck 
or  a e t i e a  F preferred atock. the approval of at least one BTI nominee on 
board will be required f o r  OUT board of directors to approve and auchori7 f 
of t h e  following. any changes in OUT capital structure, such as increases r 
decreases in t h e  total authorized ehares of our common stock and issuances of 
our capital stock,  any payment of dividends or diatributiona on our capleal 
stock, subject to limited exceptlone, any reclassification. combinacion, split, 
redemption or o t h e r  acqureition of any eharts of our  capital etock; any 
incurrence of indebtedness exceedrng $5 0 million, any change in the s i z e  or 
composition of our board or any board committee or creation of any board 
cormnitcee. subltct to llmited e x c e p t i o n a ,  any affiliate transaction, any hiring 
or termination of a c h i e f  executive o f f i c e r  or other key officer, any adopt ion 
or modifrcation of our annual budgec and business p l a n ,  any amendment or 
modification of any material provision of o u r  senior n o t e a  lndencure. s e n i o r  
credit facility or any o t h e r  maLerral c m t r a c t  any adoption, r e n e u a l  nf 
material modification af  any nacerial compensation or benefit plan or 
arrangement, any authorization of entericy into a neu line of business o r  the ,  
expansion o u t s i d e  of Missouri, Kansas  and Texas any consolidation. 
reorganization, recapitalization, merger or aimrlar transaction any transfer 3f 
o u r  a s s e t s ,  incltdiny by p l s d g e  ~n excess of S S . 0  m:llion. s~blect to !&rnitcd 
exceptions. any acquisition of assets or securities for more t h a n  S S  0 million, 
any amendment to 3ur cerrificatc of :Ecorpoiatlon or bylaws, acy votlng or 
s:milar arrangement r e g a r d i t g  our  c a p i t a l  srock. any payment, iisc"arge or 
satisfaction of any m a t e r i a l  c l a i m  or liability or t h e  cornencement cf a 
m a r t r i a l  suit a n i  j o i n t  ve7ture  involving naterial a s s e t s  or t h e  payment or 
r e c e i p t  of m o r e  t h a n  $ 5  0 miliion, any material license. c o n t r a c t  or agreement 
or anf liquidaticn 51ssolu:ion or d,.nd*nq up of o u r  company 

CTHER TRXVSACTISNS WITH AFFILIATES 
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As of December 31, 1997, Valu-Line of Kansaa. I n c . ,  which merged inKo us on 
February 10, 1 9 9 B ,  had nctes  payable of  $ 2 4 0 , 0 0 0  in the aggregate from Stephen 
L. Sauder and nr. Saudcr'r f a t h e r .  M r .  Saudcr was the president and principal 
atockholdtr of Valu-Line at t h e  time the loan was made and currently owns more 
than S t  o€ o u r  voting eecuritice. The loanu were due on demand. Ae of 
December 31, 1998, the a m D u n t e  outstanding under these loans were fully repaid. 

DEALINGS WITH VALU-BRIXDCASTING, INC. 

In 1999, 1998, and 1997 ye. and o u r  prtdtceseor, Valu-Line, provided 
a c r v i c t a  principally re lated to rent and operating costa to 
valu-Broadcasting, Xnc . ,  a m  affiliate of Valu-Line, which LS awned by Stephen L. 
Sauder. one of o u r  atockhcblders who owned more than 5 2  oE o u r  voting securities 
a t  t h e  t i m e  of the transactions, in the arnounta of $29,167, $30,000 and $al.ooo, 
respectively. Valu-Line also received ecrv icee  principally related to 
advettiming from Valu-Broadcasting in the amounts of 530,360. S r 0 . 0 0 0  and 
$ 4 1 , 0 0 0  in 1999. 199B and 1997, respectively. 
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SHARES ISSUANCES TO DLRECTORS 

In March 2000, Mr. Jallrut, chairman of our  board of  directors ,  agreed to 
P U r C h a E e  2 6 , 6 6 7  sharee of o u r  common a t o c k  €or $200,000. and M r .  Ejabat, a 
mcmber of our board of dirtctore,  agreed to purchase 6 6 . 6 6 7  shares of oux common 
stock €or SSO0,OOO. 

PART I V .  

ITBH 14. EXHIBITS, FINhNCfU SThTEMEKT SCHEDULES hND REPORTS ON FORM 8 - K  

(al Documente filed a~ pamt of thio report 

(1) Financia l  S t a t t n i e n t s  

S e t  "Item 8 .  Financia.1 S t a t e m e n t s  and Supplementary Data" for financial 
mtatemtnta included with t t . i s  Annual Report on Form 1 0 - K .  

( 2 )  Financial Statement Schedule6 

Schedule If--ConsoliCattd Valuation and Qualifying A c c o u n t s  

BIRCH TELECQH, INC. 
SCKEDULE 11--CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING A C C V m S  

YEARS ENEED DECEMBER 3 1 ,  1997, 1 9 9 B  ANI2 1939 

ADD IT IONS 
. . . . . . . . . . . 

B h L m C 6  CUARGED C W G P :  T3 

GF Y D R  IHCDRE A C C O U W S  DECGCT:ONS 
BSCIUNING TO K H E R  OTHER 

. . .  . . .  

:N 7MCUSAJ4>$ 

S 5 G  

5 1 1 1  
. .  

S I  

S I  

5 1 P  : 5 : ! I  
, .  

s 5 ' 9 9  - -  , I  
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11) Accounta written o f f .  net of recoveries. 
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( 3 )  Exhibits 

2 . 1  

3.1 

3.2 

10.1 

10,2 

10.3 

IO 4 

19.5 

10 6 

:3 7 

i c  a 

DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBIT - - -  

Agrt!cment and plan o f  merger among B i r c h  T e l e c m .  fnc.. 
Valu-Line Companies, Inc., Stephen L. Saudtr,  Paula K. 
Saucer, Richard L. T i d w e l l ,  Sarah J. Tidwell, Stormy Supiran 
and Carla S .  Supirar.  (incorporated by reference t o  Exhibit 
2.1 to B i r c h  T e l e c m ,  fnC.'8 regiatration statement on Form 
$ - 4 ,  a s  amended tSEC F i l e  NO. 333-6279?>, originally filed 
September 3, 1 9 9 8  (Form S - 4 1 1 .  

Rcetaced certificate of incorporation o f  B i r c h  feltcan. Inc .  
(incorporated by reference t o  Exhibit 3 1 to Birch Telecm 
Inc.'s rcgiatration atatement on Form S - 1  filed Murch 23. 
aooo.1 

Reutatcd bylaws of  Birch Tclecm, Inc (incorporated b y  
reference t o  Exhibit 3 2 to the Fom S - 4 )  

Birch Telecom. I n c .  aecuritiem purchaac agreement 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form S - 4 )  

Blrrh Tclccom, Inc amended and restated purchasers  rights 
agrci?mcnt, dated August 5 .  1 9 9 9  Ilncorporated b y  reference 
to Exhibit 10 2 to the Form lo-Q) 

Amended employment agreement dated ae of October 1999 
betut.cn Birch Telccm.  Inc and David E Scott 
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 3 to Birch Telecorn 
Inc 9 registration statement on Form S 1 filed March 23 
2000 ) 

Amended employment agreement dated a s  of October 7 ,  1999 
betut:cn Blrch T e l e c m  Inc and Gregory C Lawhon 
cincorporatcd by reference to E x h i b i t  10 4 to Birch rclecom 
Inc ' a  registration statement on Form S - l  filed March 23 
2000 

Amended employment agreement dated as of Occoker  7 ,  i999 
betwcten Birth Telecm,  Inc and Donald H Goldman. 
( i n c t i r p o r a t t d  by  reference to EKhibrt  10 5 eo Birch Teitcom 
Inc ' B  rcgiscration Mtdtement on Form S . ?  filed March 23. 
2000 > 

Amended employment agreement dated a9 of October 7 ,  1999 
b e t w e e n  Birch Telecom, I n c  and R a v k d  W 'Jranicar 
rlncorpcraced by reference t o  E x h i b i t  10 6 to Sirch Telecom 
I n C . ' g  registration srattmtnt on Form S-; f i l e d  March 2 3 ,  
2000 ) 

€mpIc~ynent  agreemer.: d a t e d  as o f  FebrJar:r 1 3 ,  1 9 9 8  betwcer. 
a:rch ?e:eCGm. 1r.z and Stephen L Sauder  i r . c c r ~ ~ r a t e d  C-; 
r e f e r e n c e  t c  E ~ ~ , i k ~ t  :: T C  :he Form S . 4 '  

Genera: agreeme?.: berveer. B l r c h  Te .ec,:,n I:.c ar.5 1,~::ex: 



n 

Technologit8 Inc. Iincorporatcd by reference to Exhibit 
10.12 to the Form S - 4 1  

1 0 . 9  

1 0 , l O  

10.114 

l a ,  12 

EXHIBIT 
NO,  

LO. 13 

10 15 

10. i6 

i o  1: 

13 :0 

i c  : 9  

Xntcrconncctron agreemcnt under Sections 251 and 2 5 2  of the 
TeLtcOnmUnlcatrona Act of 1996 by and between Southvestern 
B e . t l  Telephone Company and 8 irch  Telecorn of Misgour1. 
(R..aaourl Interconnect ion Agreement1 [incorporated by 
rcicrcncc t o  Exhibit 10 13 to the Form $ - 4 )  

Amendment No. 1 dated Hay 2 7 ,  1998 to Misscurl 
interconnection agreement (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibat 10 10 to Birch Telecom. 1nc:a annual report on form 
10-K tor the fiecal year ended December 31 1998, originally 
f i l e d  on March 31. 1999 (Form 1 0 - K I )  

Inc 

Sof,:uare licenee agreement between B i r c h  Tele.com. Inc. and 
Saville System8 I n c .  (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.:14 t o  the  FOITI S - 4 1 ,  

1ntc:rcormtction agreement under Sections 2 5 1  and 252 of the 
Te1e:cormnunicat ions A c t  of  1996 by and bttween Southvestern 
B e l l .  Telephone Company and Birch fticcom of Kansas, Inc. 
lincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 Eo the  Form 
l o - $ ) ,  
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DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBIT 

Intcceonnection agreement under Sections 2 5 1  and 252 of the 
Tc1t~:munications A c t  of 1996 by and between Southwcactrn 
Bell Telephone Company and B i r c h  T c l e c m  of Texas Ltd., L L P .  
Iincorporated by reference to t . i t  Exhibit 10.13 to the  Form 
1 0 - K t  

1998 atock option plan (incorporated by reference to E x h r b i t  
1 O . l d t  t o  Birch Tclccm Inc. ' a  annual report  on Form 10-K for 
the :fiscal year  ended December 3 1 .  1990. as amended, filed 
on HAY 7 ,  1999 [Form l O - K / A i ) ,  

Form of incentive stock o p t i o n  agreement under 1 9 9 5  stock 
s p t i o n  plan (incorporated by reference t a  Exhibit 10 1 5  t z  
the ilonn l O - K / A I  

Form of nons ta tu tory  n t o c k  option agreement d n d e t  199B stock 
optirm p l a n  ( incorpsrated by reference ta E x h i b i t  10 :6 to 
the I:om l O - K / A >  

L e ? w  agreement between Francor. t L C arid 9irch Telecom. 
Inc dated July 20, 1 9 9 8  [ incorpora ted  b j  reference to 
E x h i b i t  10 11 t o  cbc Form l O - K / A )  

Scr i t :a  D prelerred a t a c k  purchase agreement dated July 2 .  
1999 [incorporated by reference t o  Exhibit 1 0  :B to B i r c h  
Telet-om Inc  ' 9  quarter ly  report of Form 10-Q f o r  the period 
cndccl 5cptembtr 30. ;999. filed November 15. 1 9 9 9  ( F o r m  
IO-Ql 1 

Serr t ! s  F preferred stock  purchase agreemezr 3 a r e d  JL:, ;? 
1999 ' :nc7rFzrd:e3 Cy r e f e r e n c e  :: Ex.C.ib:t 1: :? r 2  :he F3r-r 
I C - G I  
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1 0 . 2 1  

10,22 

LO. 23 

1 0 . 2 4  

1 0 . 2 5  

10.26 

1 0 , 2 7  

E X H I B I T  
NO 

. . . . . . . 

LO 29 

1 3  3: 

klm Cmmcrcial Paper Inc.. Bankers  T r u s t  company knd ~ a n k  
of America, I n c . .  a s  agents and lenderr. and the other 
lendere party thereto dated February 2 ,  2 0 0 0 .  lincoqmratcd 
by reference to Exhibit 1 0 . 2 0  to B i r c h  TclccOm Ine.'s 
reerietration Btaftmtnt  on Porn S-1 f i l e d  March 2 3 ,  2 0 0 0 . )  

Amended and reatatcd guarantee and collateral agreement, 
dated as of February 2 ,  2 0 0 0 ,  among Birch Teltcmn Finance. 
Inc., Birch Telecocn. Inc. and Lchman Commercial Paper. I n c . .  
a8 collateral agent. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 0 . 2 1  to Birch T c l c c m  Inc:o registration etatemcnt on 
Fonn S.1 Iiled March 23. 2 0 0 0 .  I 

Amended employment agreement dated a8 of October 7 .  1999 
between B i r c h  Telecom, Inc. bod Bradley A .  Moline. 
(incorporated by reference t o  Exhib i t  10.22 to Birch Ttlccom 
fac.'s rcgietration atatement on Porn S - 1  filed March 23. 
200c1.1 

Amec,drd employment agreement dated de of October 7 .  1999 
between Birch Telecwl. Inc. and Jeffrey D. Shackelford. 
(incorporated b y  reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Birch Telecom 
Ine.'a registration atatement on Form S-1 f i l e d  March 23, 
2 0 0 0 .  ) 

Employment agreement dated a8 of February 2 0 0 0  bctutcn Birch 
Teltcom, Inc .  and David M. Hollingsuorth. (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.21 t o  Birch Telecm Inc.'a 
registration at&trrnent on Form S - 1  f i l e d  March 23, 2 0 0 0 . 1  

rnde:nture, dated as of June 2 3 ,  1 9 9 8 ,  bttuctn Birch Telccom. 
Inc. and H o r n t m t  Bank Mimenot&,  Hatiom1 Aeaociation, a s  
true':ea, relating to $ 1 1 5 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0  aggregate principal  amount 
of l m t 8  ecnror notes due 2048 (incorporated by reference to 
E K h i h ~ t  4.1 t o  t h e  Form S - 4 ) .  

Specimen ccrtrficatc of 1 4 I  senior notes due 2008 (Exchange 
Note!sl (included in Exhibi t  4 , l ,  which is incorporated by 
reft::cncc t o  Exhibit 4.1 t o  the Form S - 0 ,  

Collikteral pledge and aecurity agreement, dated a s  of June 
23, :1998 from Birch Telecm. I n c . ,  Pledgor. to Norwest Bank 
Minnesota, Nat i o n a i  Aasocrat ion ,  T r u & t t e  (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4 . 5  to the Form S - 4 1 ,  

Ltttttr agreement dated as  o f  March 2 2 .  2200 between B l r c h  
Tclet:m, fnc. and Mory 

6 3  

DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBIT 
-... ................................. ".".......... 

E y a b i i t  , lncsrpcrared by reference to Exhlbl: LO. 2 8  to B i r c h  
Tcleccm I n c  ' 8  registration scaccmcnt on Fom S - 1  filed 
March 23, 2300. / 

L c t t r ! r  agreement d a t e d  aa of March 2 2 .  2 0 3 0  between Blrch 
Te1er:om. I n c  and Richa.'d A Jalkut. irncotporated by 
rcfei:er.ce to Exhibit 1 C  2 9  to B i r c h  Tclecom Inc.'a 
r e g i s t r a r i c n  s t a r e l e n :  on Form S - l  flied Marrh 1 3  2 0 0 0  ! 

Amenrlmccr number or,e ja :ed  a9 of M a r c h  2 3 ,  2.233 :o tk.e 
anentied arid resta:ed pi ;rchasers  righ:s agreement  
sincdrpcrated b; referer.:e t z  E x h i k ~ t  :C  3: : o  Q i r c h  fe:ecom 
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Xnc.'a regiltration ataterncnt on Form S - 1  filed March 23 
2 0 0 0 . 1  

12.1" 

21.1 

21,1* 

27.1. 

Computation of Ratio of Parninga to Fixed Chargca. 

Subsidiaries af Birch Telecom, fnc. (incorporated by 
rcfsercncc t o  Exhibit 21.1 t o  the Form S - 4 ) .  

Powi?r of attorney (included on t h e  signature p&gcl, 

Financial data schedule, 

Filed herewith. 

+ Portions of t h i 8  exhibit: have been omitted pursuant to a request for 
confidential t r e a t m e n t .  Such portiona have been filed separately with the 
Comieaion.  

(bl Rcporte on Form B-K.  

On March 2 3 ,  2000 we I i l e d  Form 8 - K  with respect to a registration atatcrnent 
filing with the SEC as p4rt of a proposed initipl public offering of cormnon 
stock. We attached d copy cmf our press re l ease  issued that  Barn day.  

SIGNATURES 

PVRSWAHT TO TztE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECTION 13 OR 15IDI OF THE SECURITIES 
AND EXCHANGE ACP OF 1 9 3 4 ,  AS MENDED,  T H E  RECISTWUJT HAS DULY CAUSED THIS REPORT 
TO BE SIGNED ON ITS BEHALF BY THE UNDERSIGNED, THEREUNTO DULY AUTHORIZED, IM THE 
CITY OF KANSAS CITY, STATE OF MISSOURI. 

SCOTT 

scot t 

EXECUTIVE OFFZCER 

BIRCH 7ZLECOM. INC. 

By : ,'s/ DAVID E .  

David E 

PRESIDENT ANE CHIEF 

D a t e :  March , 2000 

POWER 3F A T T O W Y  

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE P R E S E N T S .  t h a t  each person whcse signature appears 
below constitutes and appornta Dav;d E S C ~ C C  and B r a d l e y  A Mo!rnc, and each :f 
them. h i a  attorneys-in-fact and agents, wirh f u l l  power cf 5 , ~ b s t i t u t l o n  and 
resubstrtution. f o r  h i m  and i n  h i s  name, p l a c e .  and stead. ;n a n y  and all 
capacities, t 3  s i g n  any and all amendments t o  this Report on F z r m  1 0 - K ,  a n d  t o  
file t h e  same. w i t h  txhiblts thereto and o t h e r  documents in connection 
thertw:th. w:th t h e  Securities and Exchange  :crmmissicn gra~:::.g >,nto such 
attorneys-in-fact and agents and each of them. Full power and a u t h o r i t ' j  L O  dc 
ar,d ~ e r f 0 r . n  each and e v e r y  a c t  ar,d rh1r.g reqursite ar.d n e c e s s a r j  tc be done .L 

connection t h e r e u i : b .  a s  fu! ly  t =  a:: : r . ' . en~s  and  ; J rposes  a s  r.e rr1gk.t 3: c c ~ I d  
do :n person. Cereby rat:fyrng ar.d con : :nL-a  :ha: a:; sur!# artarneys-in f a z :  
ar.d a g e r , t s  ar any 3 f  them or their 2: t i s  ~ ~ ~ s t i f u t e  cr s L c s r i r d r e d  T,a'J 
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lawfully do or cauaa t o  bc done by v i r t u e  hereof 

PURSUlwT TO THE REQUIREMEImS OF THE SECVRITXES AHD EXCHANGE A C T  OF 1934, THIS 

REGISTRUT IN THE CAPAC1TI:ES AND AS OF THE DATES INDICATED. 
REPORT HAS BEEN SIGNED BELOW BY THE FOLLOWING PERSONS OU B5HALF OF THE 

S IGNATVRB 
DATE 

. 
March 3 0 ,  2000 
THOMAS R .  PALMER 

TITLE 

- - _ _ -  

Preaidcnt, Chief Executive 
Officer and Director 

LPrincipil Executive Officer) 

Senior Vice President of 
Finance and Chief Financial 

Officer (Principal 

and Accounting Officer) 

Director 

Director 

Di rtc tor  

Direcror 

Director 

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AN3 rINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE 

BIRCH TELECOM. INC. 
R e p o r t  o f  Independent A u d l t O r s .  , . . . , , , , . . , , , , . , . . . , 

Consoildated Balance Sheets a s  of December 31, 1990 and 

Conso1lda:ed Statements of O p e r a t i o n s  for  t h e  years ended 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders '  E q u i t y  IDeflcrtl 

;onaolidated S t a t e m e n t s  of Cash F l o w s  lor t h e  y e a r s  ended 

N c t e s  t o  'Consolidated Finant:lal  Statements.. , , . . . . . 
S c h e d u l e  I 1  - Tanso l idaced  ',ra:L.at ion and Qua:ifying 

1999 . . . . . . .  . .  . . . . . .  , .  , . . . . . . .  _ . . . . . . . . . . .  . , . , , .  . 

December 3 1 ,  1997, 1998 arld 199g . . - .  , , .  . . , , .  

f o r  the years ended Decemher 3 i .  1 9 9 7 ,  i998 and 1999 . . 

December 31. 1 9 3 7 ,  1998 arid 1999. . . . . . . .  . , . , , , . , 

. .  , .  , . .  Accounts 

F -  2 

F -  1 

F . 4  

F - 5  

F - 7  
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t h e  y e a r  ended December 31, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  F-24 

December 31, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  F - 2 5  
F-26 

Coneolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 

Notccl to Consolidated Tinimcial  Statementa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

F-1 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS 
BIRCH TELECOM, INC. 

We have audited the acl-ompanying conoolidated balance sheets of Birch 
Teltcom, Inc. (Birch) as o:! December 31. 1990 and 1999, and the related 
consolidated atatcmcnts of operations, s t o c k h o l d e r s ’  e q u i t y  Idefrcitl and cash 
flour for each of the threi! year8 in the period ended December 31, 1999. Our 
audit  ala0 included t h e  f i n a n c i a l  statement echcdulc listed in t h e  Index to 
Financial Staternente and Financial Statement Schedule. Theac financial 
atattment8 and s c h e d u l e  are! the rtEpOn@lbility of Birch’s management. Our 
reaponeibility is to txprefis an opinion on t h e a e  €inancia1 s t a t e m e n t s  and 
schedule based on our audi t .9 .  

We conducted our audita, in accordance uirh auditing standards generally 
a c c e p t e d  in t h e  United S t a t e e .  Thoet  standards require that  we plan and perform 
t h e  audit to obtain rcaeona.ble aaaurance about whether the financial s t a t e m e n t s  
art free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on d test basil, 
evidence aupporting t h e  amounts and diaclosuren in the financial etatemente. An 
audit aleo includes aseeeeing the accounting principles used and significant 
e s t i m a t e 8  made by management, a s  well a s  evaluating the  overall financial 
8tatement preecntation. We believe t h a t  our  audita provide a reaeonable-basra 
f o r  our opinion. 

In our opinion, t h e  financial statement8 referred to above present fairly, 

lecom, f n c .  at December 31, 1998 and 1999, and t h e  consolidated r e a u l t s  of i t s  
erationa and i t a  caah f l o w s  for each of t h e  three years in the period ended 

Ucctmbcr 31. 1 9 9 9 ,  i n  conformity w i t h  accounting principles generally accepted 
i n  the United Statea. Also, in our opinion, the re la ted  financial 8tatement 
schedule. vhen considered rn r e l a t i o n  to the  b a s i c  consolidated financial 
atatcments taken a8 a whole, presents fairly in all material aspects the 
information s e t  forth cherern. 

~n a l l  material respccte, t h e  consol idated financial position of Birch 

Ernst b Young 5LP 

Kansas C l t y .  MABeDUrA . 

February 1 7 ,  2 0 0 0 .  except for  note 1 9 .  a s  t o  
which the date 1s March 2 3 ,  2 0 3 0  

BIRCH TELECOM. INC 

CDNSOLIDATED B-CE SHEETS 

i IN T H O U S m S  , EXCEPT SHARE ;AIA ~ 

: ; 9 e  1 9 9 4  
. . . . . . .  . - .  . 

ASSETS 
:d rzer . t  assets 



Caah and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . .  
Pledged accurrtiea . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accounts receivable, n e t . .  . .  
Inventory. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Prepdid exptnatm and other. .  

Total current u n i t s . . .  . . . . . . .  

Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Property and equipment . . . . . . . .  

P r o p e r t y  and equipment, net . . .  
Pledged aecuritlem--noncurrent 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total asseta  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

LIAaILfTXES AND STOCKHOLDEFS DEFICIT 
CUrrent liabilities: 

Current maturities of 1oc.g- term debc and capital leaae 
ob1 igat  ions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accounts payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accrued expenaea . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1 4 *  senior notem . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capita l  lease obligatione. net o 

Series 0 redeemable preferred stack, 8 , 5 7 2 , 0 3 9  e h a r t a  issued 
and outatanding in 1990 (stated at redemption and 
aggregate IiquidAtion value) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Series F redtemablc preferrisd rrtock, 13,333,334 aharee 
issued and outstanding in 1999 [ s t a t e d  at redemption and 

Senior credit facility . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other long-term debt, net of current maturrtita . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

aggrege . iguidatlon vall lc)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Stockholdr deficit : 

Series ' 2ferrtd stock, 8 , 5 7 2 , 0 3 9  shares i s e u e d  and 

Series C preferred s t o c k ,  8 , 4 9 2 , 7 4 9  and 6 , 2 7 0 , 5 2 7  shares 

Series D preferred 
outscanding in i 

Common s tock,  S.00 
authorized. 5,016,869 4 , 6 8 7 , 7 6 7  shares zsaued and 

outst=..ding in 1999.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

issued and outetandlng . . . . . . . . . . . .  

outstanding. . . .  . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

t a l  . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accumulated d e f i c i t .  . , - ,  , , , , - . , . , , . . , . , .  

T 3 t a l  s t o c k t o l d e r s '  d c f  icit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Totai iisbllitles a n d  s t o c k h o l d e r s '  deficlc . , . , .  

s 39.745 

4 + 039 
916 
52 6 

61,114 
26.900 

f 4  7 

1 5 , m 8  

- - - + _ _ _ _  

2 6 . 1 5 3  
21.897 

7 , 6 2 0  
5 0 2  

$134.149 

15, e63 

--___-.. 

= . - C = - L S =  

.$ 3 3 s  
8,503 
2 I 5 5 6  

11,394 

114,681 
7 7 8  
332 

I . _ _ _ _ - -  

_ _  

11,063 

5 

5 
3 3 7  

1 0 . 5 4 8  
' 1 7 , 9 9 7 )  

! T ,  0 9 ? )  

- - - - . 

51-4.1.19 

$ 5 , 0 5 3  
15,936 
11,612 

3 , 7 3 5  
2 , 4 4 3  

$ 1,300 
13.300 
10,793 

2 5 , 3 9 3  
10.000 

114,715 
836 
2 3 4  

- - - - - . - 

63.550 

B 

6 

1 

...... 
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(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 

I997 :99a  1999 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Revenue : 
Comnunicacions 8 e r v i c t s . . - - -  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Equipment $alee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total r e v e n u e . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost of aervlcee: 
Cost of comunlcatione services .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost of cqulpmtnt sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Toral coet o f  Bervicea . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Selling, general and a d m l n A t I t I ~ a t l V C  expenses . . . .  . . . .  
Grds i  margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Depreciation and armrtizatlon expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Loea from cperatlons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Interest income.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest exptnat . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  

Net lose . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Preferred atock dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
A m r t i z a t i o n  o f  preferred o t o c k  iseuancc COBCB . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Loss applicable to c-n a t w k  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

b e 8  per cowmn mhars--baelc and diluted 

Weighted average number of canmn sharee outstanding . . . . . . . .  

5 - .  s 21.703 
-. 4 , 3 0 4  

2 6 . 0 8 7  

16.339 
2 . 5 4 7  

....... . . . . . . .  

..... ........ 
i k , a u 6  

....... ........ 
7,201 

1,776 15.769 
2 7  2,308 

(1,803' ( 1 0 . B 7 6 i  
- .  ( 8 . 2 5 4 1  

; i . T e g !  ; 1 6 . 2 0 8 1  

....... ........ 

14 2 . 9 2 2  
....... ........ 

.. ;1.6961 
( 2 9 ,  

S(1.799, S ( l T 9 3 3 '  

s ( 1 . 4 5 1  s : 4  71) 

.. 

....... ........ 

1111.11 1.11 I... 

1111.1- .... 1.1- 

1 . 2 3 5  3 , 0 0 9  

S 5 2 , 9 8 0  
7. 5 5 8  

....... 
60.538 

1 1 . 8 7 2  
4 . 4 8 8  

4 6 .  3 5 8  

........ 

. . . . . . . .  
1 4 ,  1 B O  
53. a 4 5  
10. d28 

i 4 9 . 6 9 3 '  
,15.036: 

2 , 9 2 5  

. . . . . . . .  

....... 
(61, EI04' 
,I. 553) 

; 2 3 2 !  
........ 
. 5 ( 6 5 . 6 4 6 %  

S ( 1 3 . 2 5 1  
...... 1- 

-3- ... 1. 
4 . 9 5 6  

See accompanying notee .  
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BIRCH TELECOM, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STA,TEMENTS OF STOCICHQLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 

YEhRS E K ' E D  DECEMBER 31, 1947, 1998 AND 1999 
( IN THOUSANDS) 

5 



n 
BIRCH TELECOM INCMO - I OX405 -Annual Repon 

Date Filed J/3012WO 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 
YEARS ENDED 

... 

ADDITTE.rU 
PhtD.lw 
CAPIT= .......... 

r 

1 . 7 1 1  

....... 
1 0 , 5 4 4  

A-TCD 
DEPIClT . . . . . . . . . . .  

f 1. ? @ P i  

' 1. '191 

....... 

F - 5  

TOTAL ........ 

5 .. 
1 . 0 1 1  

(I. 7191 . . . . . . .  
1 9  

1 4 ,  150 

.. 

117 

1 4 . 7 5 0 l  
.. 

4 

4 6 4  

1 2 9 1  

1141, 

1 1 . 5 1 1 1  

( i 6 . a o 1 1  ....... 
I f .  3 V 1 )  

BIRCH TELECOM, INC. 
OF STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (CONTINUED) 
DECEMBER 31, 1 9 9 7 .  1398 AND 1 9 9 9  

IN THOUSANDS) 

4 6  

. .  

5 

2 

S C R [ E S  c 
P l E m l R E D  

ETOCX . . . . . .  

5 

3 ... ... 

' 

... 

..:*. 
I . 2; 

. -, . . . . . .  

r .  

... .... .... j k  ... 
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' 2 6 1 .  

I ) .  5 5 5 ,  

. . . . .  
0 1 1 . 6 1 6  ........ 

1 6 1 , 8 0 4 ~  . . . . . .  
I ' f g . l O l l  ........ 

See accompanying notes,  
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BIRCH TELECOM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEUBER 31, 1997, 1998 AND 1 9 9 3  

IN THOUSANDS) 

1937 1 9 9 0  1999 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
. . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  

h umcd in 

Dcprcciatinn . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . .  

PrOVlSiOn for lonaeu on accoun~. receivable . . . . . . . . . . .  
other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  , , .  

Changes i n  operatlng asaeca and iiabilicier, n 
effects of acquisitions, 
Account. r e c e i v a b l e  . . . . . . .  , . .  

Inventory . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  
Prepaid txpenaee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - - . - . .  
Other incangrbles  . , .  , .  

Other aaoets . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  . . .  

Acc0un:s payable . 

Accrued expcnees . . . . . . .  

N e t  c a m  used in operat ing I i c t i v i t l e s  

Purchase O C  property and eq i ipment  
Busrness acquiaitiana, net (:I cash acqLired 
Amortization of 3.i8count on pledged secLr':it:es 
H a t u r i r y  of pledged aecuric . e a  
PurcP..ai+e ot  pledged necurit . e s  

N e t  cash used in investing ~ ~ i v i t i e ~  

Proceeds !ram lung - cerm dec.. 
Proceeds f r o m  : 4 1  B e n i o r  n o t e s  
Proceeds [rum cnnvert i b i e  n o t e a  
Proceeds from isaudnce o f  p i - e f e r r e d  9 ~ 0 c k  
Prsceeds from . b ~ u d n t e  of ctmmen a : x <  a-.j varran:s 
P a p e n c  s l  financing ~ 0 8 ~ s  
Repayment 3f  ::nq term d e t r  
L e p a T e n t  o f  : a p , t a ;  lease 20.a33:.~r.5 
P a F e r . :  :: ser.es A p r e f e r r e d  s t o c x  dibidends 
Borrzr:ng r e p a p e n t  3 f  n m e s  payat:e IO s:cc&no.ders 
RedemFtiz:. cf p r e f e r r e :  s t w k  
RedeFp: .zr. :f :>nmc?. s : ? f ~  

IKVEST!NC ACTIVITIES 

F I W C I  NC ACT: V I T I ES 

, .  

. .  
, .  

, .  

2 7  

50 

7 

e 7  

2 5 5  
. .  , .  

. . . . . . .  

, .  1 . 5 5 1  

-, : 
& _ .  

7 2 0  

1 4 C  
16 

1. s a a  
7 , 9 4 8  
2 . 8 8 0  

56 1 
1 4  



AND CASH EQUIVALEKTS A t  BEGINHINc OF ‘I- . . . . . . .  

a s n  AND u s n  EQUIVALENTS AT END OF Y W  

Supplemntary  schedule of nor)-carh investing and Iinancing 
act  ivi t l t e  : 
AmOunte recorded in eonntct,ion wlth acq111altlnnn: 

F u r  value of net a m e t a  acquired. ne t  of cash 
acquired . . . . . . . . . . .  

F a i r  value of Lntang 
Aeeumption of Irabll 
Aaaumption of long-r 

leauance of series A . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
tsnuanct of eerie# C prchrred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Iaauance of connwn 8tock . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

C o m n  stock iasucd i n  
Property and equipment addil:ione acqulrtd through capita 

leanc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Property and cqulpment addit.ior., lncludcd ~n account 

psyablc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Supplcmcntal diacloaure of canh € l o w  information: 

Caah paymenc €or i n t e r e e t ,  ne t  of lntertst capitalized of 
5 4 3 6  in 1998 and $ 1 . 3 2 4  i r ~  1999.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2 1 0  3 ¶ . ? 4 5  

s 210 5 3 9 , 7 4 5  S 5 . 0 5 3  
....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

......= T 1 . . L . - .  11-1-11. 

s - ’  S 5 . 0 6 4  5 2 . 5 9 1  
, .  2 0 , 9 0 0  4.130 
. _  : 1 , 1 3 0 ;  : 3 3 9 1  

.. ;1,027i : 8-71 
:, 4 , 7  5 0 1 

I10.000~ 

. .  

1211’ . .  .. 

. .  . .  5 0  

7 2 8  2 . 0 9 9  

2 . 1 5 7  5 .  a 7 3  

7 . 7 2 5  l J ,  690 

See accompanying notes. 
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BIRCH TELECOM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F I N M C I A L  STATEMEWTS 

1. THE Co13PAKy 

Birch Telccom, Xnc. wail incorporated on December 23. 1996, as a Delaware 
corporat ion for the purpoet: of provrding local, long EI m c c ,  Internet ~ C C C B S ,  
and other c o m ~ n i c a t i o n ~  st!rv~cea eo business and r t ~ 1 t  a1 customere The 
con8olidattd financial %tat.cmenta of Birch Tclecorn, In i c l u d t  the accounts of 
Birch Tclecorn. I n c .  and tht! accounts of i t s  whclly-our, subs~daaries 
Icollectivcly, Birch] Birch currently a e r v t a  c e r t a i n  markets rn Missouri, 
Kanea% and Tcxaa.  Sirch’r hueinesa 13 highly compet i t ive  and i n  subject to 
various federal, 6tate and local regulationa. 

Birch was i n  t h e  develr~pment s t a g e  f o r  t he  p e r i o d  from December 2 3 ,  1996 
Idate OF inceptionl t o  February 10, 1998. Accordingly, B i r c h  had no operating 
revenue and incurred o p t r a t i n g  losses and opcratrng cash flow deficlta during 
that period 

2 .  SUMMARY OF S f G N I F I C A F i T  ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a s n  AND CASH EQUIVALE~TTS 

For purposes of rcport1.ng cash flows. Birch i n c l u d e s  as cash and c a s h  
tquivaLents highly liquid r n v e s t m e n t s  w i t h  origins: maturities o t  chree months 
or less. 

REVENVE RECWNXTION 

Revenue i o r  c o m u n i c a t : . o n s  s e r v i c e s  i a  reccqnized  when c u s ~ ~ m e r s  u s e  t h e  
associated s e r v i c e s ,  Equipricnt revenue l a  recognized when s y s t c m a  or s e w i c e s  
a r t  substantially c o m p l e t e  Revenue on b;;l:nga to c ~ 5 t o r n e r s  :n advance of 
providing s e r v i c e s  i s  d e f e r r e d  and recognized when rarncd. Cuscomers a r e  not 
c h a r g e d  fees to a c t i ’ d d t c  l n i t  i a l  s e z ’ f L c e .  

COST CF S E R V I C E S  
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incumbent local exchange carriers. interexchange tarrier8 and certain providers 
of fibcr optic telephone netuorke. Cost of acrv icen  also include8 costs 
associated w i t h  the aslc and installation of telephone syatcma. 

Inventory i a  carried at t h e  lower oL average coet or market determined on a 
€iret-in. firEt-OUt baaie and conrriets pr imari ly  of parts and equipment used in 
t h e  maintenance and installation of telephone eyetems. 

ADVERTISING COSTS 

Advertising coste are expenetd aa incurred and totaled $ S 9 5 , 0 0 0  in 1998 and 
$3.0 million in 1 9 9 9 .  There uere no advertieing coete  i n  1 9 9 7 .  

BIRCH TELECOH, INC. 

MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINVSD) 

2 .  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT R C C O W I N G  POLICIES ICONTINIIED) 
PROPERTY AND E Q U I P W N T  

Property and equipment i a  Stated at cost and depreciated using the 
straight-line method over ,:he following estimated ulreful lives of the assets: 

Comunicationr network.. . . , . . , , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , I . 
Buildinge, furniture, f ixt i ires  and equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . 

2-10 
2 - 4 0  

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES 

Goodwill represents the! cxccsa of t h e  purchaae p r i c e  pas? 4ver -he f a i r  
v a l u e  of the n e t  a s s e t a  acquired i n  Birch’a acquisitiona. Goodwill I B  being 
amortized over 25 years ueI,ng t h e  straight-line method. Accumulated amortization 
on goodwill totaled $599,000 at December 3 1 ,  1998 and $1.4 million a t  
December 31, 1999. 

O t h e r  in tangib les  c o n s i s t  primarily of customer l s s t a  r e l a t e d  to Birch’s 
acquiaitiona, d e € e r r e d  frnamcing c o B t s  and deferred line installation c o s t 8  
Cuatomcr l i a t a  are amcrtizcd over 5 years using t h e  straight-line method. The 
deferred financinq coats  axe amortized over 5 to 10 years, t h e  term of the 
assoc ia ted  financing, u s i n g  t h e  a t r a i g h t  -iine method. Deferred line instal?ation 
c o s t s  a r e  being amortized over 2 y e a r a ,  t h e  approximate average life of customer 
con t rac ts ,  using the straight-line method \ see  Note  6) 

B i r c h  revieus i t s  long-lived asset8 in accordance w i t h  Statement of 
Financial hccounting Standairda (SFAS) No. 1 2 1 ,  “Accounting for t h e  Impairment o f  
Long-lived A s s e t s  and Long-lived A s s e t s  to be D i s p o s e d  of.” f o r  impairment 
whenever  e v e n t s  or changes i n  c i r c u ! ~ s t a n c e s  indicate t h a t  the c a r r f r n g  amount of 
an asset may not he recoverable .  I f  such cYenrs or changes i n  circumstances a r e  
p r e s e n t ,  a loss i s  r c c c q n i i : t d  i f  t h e  carrying v a l u e  of t h e  a s s e t  :s :n excess- 0 1  
rhe s u m  of c h e  undiscounted cash f ! w s  expecced f o  r e s u l t  ! r m  t h e  use of t h e  
aascc and 1:s e.rent,Jal d i s p o s i t i o n .  A n  i r n p a i r ~ e n t  1 0 5 s  i s  measured a s  t h e  amount 
by w h i c h  t h e  c a r r y i n s  amour i c  of t h e  assef exceeds t h e  f a i r  va!ile 3 f  t h e  asse:. 
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financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax a ~ s e t s  and 
liabilities arc determined based on the diffcrencea between t h e  financial 
statement and tax  bases of a n a e t a  and liabilities uslng e n a c e d  tax rates in 
effect for the year in which t h e  differences arc expected to reverse. Net 
deferred t u  asecte  a r t  reduced by a valuation allowance when approprlatc [me 
Mote 14). Deferred t a x  aeseta  and liabilities are adjunted for the c f f ec ta  of 
changes i n  tax l a w  and ratem on the date of enactment. 

STOCK OPTIONS 

Birch has adopted the diecloaure proviaions of SFAS NO. 123, Accounting for 
Stock-8ased Compensation, which ertablishca a fair value based method f o r  t h e  
financial reporting of i t i i  stock-baaed employee compensation p l a n s .  However. a s  
allowed by SFAS N o .  123, Elirch ham elected to continue to measure compensation 
using t h e  inrr ine ic  value baaed method a5 prescribed by Accounting Principles 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINhMCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINLED) 

2 .  SLMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT A C C O W I H G  POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Board Opinion No. 2 5 ,  Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. Under thia 
method, compeneation l a  meaeured am the difference between the market value of  
the etock on the grant date, l e e a  the amount required t o  be paid  for the ntock. 
The difference, i f  any, is charged t o  expense over the vesting per iod  of the 
options. The estimated market value uaed for the BtOCk option6 grunted was 
determined on a periodic b r e i s  by Birch'n board of directors. In accordance w i t . h  
APB No. 25, Birch  haa recorded no compenmation expense re la ted  to options 
granted h c a u e c  the exerci ic  p r i c e  is equal to the estimated market value of t h e  
stock on t h e  date  of grant (nee Nott 1s). 

PAIR VALUES OF PINANCLU INSTRUMENTS 

The carrying amount of camh and cash equivalent6 approximatee f a i r  v a l u e  r' 
t o  t h e  6 h O r t  maturity of t n e  instrurnente The fair value o f  Birch's pledged 
sccuritice uaa $ 3 8  million at December 31, 1 9 3 8  and $23.3 millron a t  
December 31, 1 9 9 9  The f a i r  value of Birch's aeni@f nottB i s  estimated to be 
$106 million at December 31, 1 9 9 8  and SllS millLon a t  December 3 1 ,  1999 based on 
the quoted market r a t e a  for the debt. The fair value of other long-term d e b t ,  
account8 recervable, account8 payable and accrued expensee approximates the 
recorded value 

USE OF ESTIMATES IH FI:IIAEICIAL STATEMENTS 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that a f f e c t  t h e  reported amounts i n  t h e  consol ida ted  f1:iancral 
s t a t e m e n t a  and accornpanyin~3 notes Actual results could dlffer from those 
estimates 

MSS PER SHARE 

The n e t  loss p e r  share amount reflected on t h e  consolldatcd statement of 
optratlons 1s based on r h c  weighced-average number sf common shares outstanding 
Stock options ar,d c o n v e r t i b l e  preferred stock a r e  anti-drluti.de, and r h e r e f o r e  
excluded from t h e  comFstatlon of earnings ?er share .  I n  the future, t h e s e  stock  
equivalents may become dilutrvc. 

RECLAS S Z F I S T  I 3N S 

Cer tar r .  i t e m s  i n  t h e  :9¶7 and : 3 4 3  ccr.so:idaced f;nancial sratements ha'le 
S e e n  re:lassif;ed ',c bc c o n s i s t e r . t  w i r h  r t e  c!assif:cac:cn i n  :\.e 1 5 9 9  
yonso: idare3 f i r . anc ia !  ecarements, 

. 
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In June 1998, the Firiancial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) iaaued SFAS 
No. 133,: Accounting for Ekrivative Instrument0 and Hedgrng Activitlcs, which 
supersedes SFAS No. B O ,  A.ccounting f o r  Futurer Contrac ts ,  SFAS No. 1 0 5 ,  
Disclomure of Information About Financial Inetrurnente with Off-Balance-Sheet 
Riak and Financial Instrument8 with Concentration of Credit Riak, and SPAS 
No. 119, Diecloeures about Derivative Financial Inetrurnente and Fair Value of 
Financial Inatrumente, and aleo amends certain afipccte of  other SFhS'e 
previously ieeucd. SPAS H.3. 133 cetablishe~ accounting and reporting dtandards 
for derivative inetrumentk- and hedging activltiea. 
recognize all derivatrvts as e i ther  a a e e t a  or liabilities in the balance sheet 
and measure those instrument8 at fair v a l u e .  SFAS No. 1 3 3  1 s  effective for  our 
conaolidated financial stiittmenta for the 

It requires that an entity 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COmINUEDI 

2 .  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( C O h T I W D )  
year ending December 31, 2001. We do n o t  expect the impact of SFAS No. 133 to be 
material in relation to ita consolidated financial statements. 

3 .  ACQUISITIONS 

In February 1 9 9 8 ,  B i r c h  merged w i t h  Valu-Lint Companies, Inc. (Valu-Line) in 
a transaction valued at  5 1 9 . 5  million, conaieting of 5 4 . 7 5  million i n  cash, 
2 , 9 6 8 , 7 5 0  shares of s e r i t e  A preferred etock having an aggregate liquidation 
preference of $ 4 . 7 5  mi1lio.n and 6,250,000 aharea o€ ecries C preferred s t o c k  
having an aggregate l i q u i d m a t i o n  preference of $ 1 0 . 0  million. Since 1982, 
Valu-Line has  been primarily providing switched long dintancc servieca, cumtomer 
premieea equipmnt ( C P P )  r8nlce and a e r v i c e n  and. mince March 1997, lacs1 
service. 

In May 1 9 9 8 ,  Birch acqi ircd Boulevard Phone Company (Boulevard), a shared 
t enan t  s e r v i c e  provider i n  t h e  Kansae City metropolitan area, for $300,000 in 
caeh and Teleeource Communications, I n c .  (Telcaourcc), a CPE provlder i n  the 
Kansas C i t y  metropolitan a:rea ,  f o r  $325.000 in cach. 

In  September 1998, B i r c h  acquired TFSnet. I nc .  ( T F S n e t ) ,  an Internet service 
provider based in t h e  Kansa%a C i t y  metropolitan area, for  5 2  6 5  million 

In February 1999, Birch acquired American Local Telecommunications, LLC 
( A L T ) ,  a competitive local exchange carrier based in t h e  Dallas. Texas 
metropolitan a r e a .  The a c q i i i s l t i o n  included substantially all a s 6 e t s  of ALT. T h e  
total purchase p r i c e  wag s]?proximately 5 1 . 6  million in cash and $211,000 i n  
common stock. 

I n  March 1999. Birch a c q u i r e d  the s t o c k  of Capital Communications 
Corporation rfapitall , a rclecornrnunrcatlcna equipment prov ider  based in t h e  St 
Louis. Misaouri m e c r o p o l r r 4 m  area T h e  tctal purchase price *as approximate:y 
$3.0 mil:icn plus additional cash cons1derat:on. recorded a s  additlonal purchase 
price. based on l oca l  Btrvice lines conver ted  t n  Birch's serv ice  from Capital's 
existing cuatomer baec. whrck. r o t a l e d  appraxrrcately $161.000 through 
December 31. 1999 

All of t h e  acquisicion:g r e f e r e n c e d  above were recorded u s i n g  t h e  purchase  
method o f  accounting. AccocdAngly, t h e  operatrons of each  are included :n t h e  
consolidated statements of operaticns and cash flovs f r o m  t h e  ddce of 
a c q u i  g i t  :on. 



n 

YEARS ENDED 
DECEMBER 31. 

1 9 9 7  1998 
- - - - l _ _ - - _ _ _ - - - _ _ _ _ _ _  

- - _ - - + _ _ _  _ _ . _ - _ _ _ _  
I IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT 

PER S W E  DATA1 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Revenue $ 1 6 , 8 4 7  $29,193 
Net 1088 1 9 , 3 2 5  28,921 
Loss per c o m n  share 1 5 . 6 5  B , 0 5  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

The impact of t h e  193!) acquimitions was not material  to our results o f  
optrationr . 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COWTINUEDI 

4 .  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

The compoaition of accounts receivable, net as of December 31, 1998 and 1999 
i 8  a o  followe: 

Billed . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Unbilled. . . . . . . . . . .  

Leas allowance for 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3 , 1 4 4  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.129 

4 , 2 7 3  
doubtful accounts . . . . . . . .  2 3 4  

$4.039 

- .____ 

___-- .  

E = = = = =  

S 9,312 
2 , 7 5 6  

. - . - - 
12,068 

456 

$11.612 
....... 

===== I1  

5 .  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

T h e  composition of property and equlpment a s  of December 31. 1998 and 1 9 9 9  
is as follows: 

: 9 9 B  199'. 

\IN T H O U S M S )  
............... 

Communications network . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S 5 . 9 6 6  
Bullding8.  L u r n l t u r t ,  f l x t i i r e s  and equipmect.. . . . . . . . . . . .  6 , 5 2 9  
Construction i n  prcqrcee .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  14,405 

....... 
2 6 , 9 0 C  

L e s s  accumulated depreciation a n d  amcrLizaticn . . . . . . . .  -17 

P r o p e r t y  a n d  equipmer.: r.e': 5 2 6 , 1 5 3  
.... . . .  

= = = E % * =  

5 2 8 . 5 2 5  
39,662 

3 , 0 0 5  

70,192 
....... 

B , o a o  
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6 .  OTHER IKPIUJGIBLES 

The composition of other intangible aaaeta ,  net as of December 31, 199s and 
1 9 9 9  ie as follows: 

Cuetomer lista.. 
Preferred stock 
Deferred € inanci  
Deferred inetall 
Other.  . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $3,525 
3 2 5  iaeuance 1 o a t ~  

ng c o o t # . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 . 6 3 0  
ation C O B ~ ~  

153 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

_ -  

- - - _ _ _  
8.633 

Le88 accumulated amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,013 

Other intangibles, n e t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 7 , 6 2 0  
- - _ _ _ -  

.--=== 

$ 4 , 2 2 5  
6 , 9 6 9  
6 . 4 1 2  
2,363 

3 3 0  

20,319 
3 . 4 0 0  

. - - - - . 

7 .  DEBT, PLEDFED SECUR1TIE:S AND WARRANTS 

During Dccemkr 1 9 9 9 ,  B i r c h  completed a $ 7 5  million senior c r e d i t  facility 
which incrcaeed t o  $ 1 2 5  million during syndication in February 2 0 0 0 .  The 
financing provides for  a $ 2 5  million reducing revolver and $100 million in 
multi-draw ttnn loans. The revolver is available €or general corporate 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINWCIAL STATEMENTS ICONTINUEDI 

7 .  DEBT, PLEDGED SECURITIES AND WARRANTS (COLTTINUED) 
purpoaea of Birch's subsidiaries and t h e  term l o a n s  are to be uaed to finance 
the development, design, in~tallation and acquisition of telccomunications 
equipment, inventory  network a s a e t s  and back office s y s t e m s .  A t  Bitch's 
election, t h e  borrouings bear interest  at either t h e  Prime Rate plus a margin 
ranging from 1.SOt to 2.5Ot or the London Interbank Offered Rate [LIBOR) p l u s  a 
margin ranging from 2 . 7 5 %  to 3 . 7 5 k .  T h e  applicable margins are based upon 
Birch'n debt to EBITDA r a t i o .  a a  defined by t h e  acnior credit facility. I n t e r e s c  
i s  paid quarterly i n  arreara for l oana  bearing interest b a s e d  upon P r i m e  an:l/or- 
on t h e  last day of each relevant interest p e r i o d ,  f o r  periods n o t  in e x c e s s  ;f 
t h r e e  months,  f o r  LIBOR loans. For  LIBOR loans with interesc periods of longer 
than t h r e e  montha, interest  ia paid each day w h i c h  1s three months after t h e  
f i r s t  day of such i n t e r e a t  period and the lasc day of such i n t e r e s t  period. 
Commitment fees are p a i d  quarterly i n  arrears  on t h e  average unused committed 
portion of the Facility. ranging from 0 . 7 5 C  to 1 , 2 5 # ,  T h e  applicable percenraqcs 
arc based upon Birch's average borrowings in rtlacion to t h e  average  borrowing 
availability. a s  defined by the senior cred i t  f a z i l r t y .  F o r  t h e  year ended 
December 31. 1999 commitment f e e s  t o t a l e d  S25. 174. Principal payments beg in  
March 2C03 and t h e  c r e d i t  facility matures Decernbcr 30. 2006 The s e n i o r  c r e d i t  
facility 1 9  secured by a perfected f i r s t  priurity security i n t e r e s t  i n  
s u b s t a n t i a L l y  a l l  of Birch's assets and capital stock. Deferred financing C O S ~ S  

:r,curred amounting : o  5 1 . 5  million at neccnrber 3 1 .  1999 a r e  being amortized over 
t h e  liLe of t h e  credit facility u s i n g  t h e  s t r a i g h t - l ~ n e  method. Amortization for 
:he j e a r  er.ded 3tccmbcr 3 1 ,  1 9 9 9  w a s  not  s:g?. i f icanC 

3ur:r.g Jur.e 1998, B i r c h  ccmplcted a 5::C r.::::an r;r:.:ate ? f f e r : n g  s f  : A t  
ser.iDr notes due June Z O O B  and 1 ? 5 . 3 G C  'uarran:5 t c  Fsr:r,ase : . - 1 2 3 . ' I - l  s r .ares  31: 

zomnon stcck : n t e r e s t  cn t h e  s e n i z r  "3tes 1 s  pa:ab:e se-,;-ac:;al:y 1:; 3:rer i rs 



on June 15 and December 1 5  of each year. Warrantr arc exercisable at $ O . o i  pet 
share and expire June 2 0 0 8 .  Birch received n e t  proceeds from the senlor nettn of 
S110.2 million and concurrently purchaeed pledged securities of $ 4 4 . 2  million. 
The pledged securities art rcntricted for interest payments on the BenLor notta 
and, t q e t h t r  with the in t trce t  accruing thereon. will be used to satisfy auch 
intereat  paymenta through June 2 0 0 1 .  Birch c l a s e i f i e n  its pledged eecuritits, 
consiating of $37.8 million at December 31, 1996 and 523.d million at  
December 31, 1999 of U . S .  Trcaeury eccuritice, am held to maturity recorded at 
amortized cost and maturiiig between E l X  and eighteen months. A portion of the  
proceeds from the ecnior 1i0te8, $337,000, wa8 allocated to t h e  warranta, and the 
resulting debt discount in being amortized over t h t  lift of the debt on the  
atraight-line method, which dote not  d i f f e r  materially from the effective 
interest  method. Unamorrixed diBcount was $ 3 1 9 , O D O  at December 31, 1998 and 
$ZSS,OOO at Oecenrber 31, 1999 .  The  amount allocated t o  the warrants represents 
t h e  entimated fair value of the warrants a t  the date of ieauancc. Deferred 
financing c o a t a  incurred amounting to $ 4 . 9  million ac December 31, 1999 are 
being amortized over the lift of t h e  senior notce using t h e  straight-line 
method. Accumulated amortization on t h e  financing coetm totaled 5 1 . 5  million at 
Dtctmbcr 31, 1 9 9 9 .  The senior notes rank pari paru in r i g h t  of payment to a l l  
existing and f u t u r e  aenior indtbtedntee of Birch and rank senior in the right of 
payment to a l l  txieting and future subordinated indebtedneae of Birch. 

A Rtgietration Statement en Form S - 4 ,  registering Birch's 14t senior notes 
and-exchanging the outatan,ding senior notes for exchange notes, was declared 
effective by the Securitiee and Exchange Commiseion (SEC)  i n  March 1 9 9 9 .  The 
t e r n e  and conditione of t h a  exchange notes art identical to those of t h e  senior 
notem in a11 material r e a p m t e .  

The renior credit Laci'lity and the ~ e n i o r  n o t r a  indenture contain certain 
covenante which. among other thingo, rtatrict the ability of Birch t o  incur 
additional indcbtcdnems, pity dividends or make 

P-13 

BIRCH TFLECOM, INC 

NOTES TO COKSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( C O N T T W D )  

7 .  DEBT, PLEDGED SECVRXTIE!; AND WARRANTS (CONTINUED) 
distr ibut iona of Birch's 01' i t e  subsidiarleB' atock, enter into sale and 
leaseback transactions, crr:atc liens, enter i n t o  transactions with affiliates or 
r e l a t e d  pcraona,  consolidate, merge or sell all of i t m  a s 8 e t s  B i r c h  was I n  
compliance with t h e s e  coverrants at December 31, 1 9 3 9 .  

Birch's debt conerated of t h e  following at December 3 1 ,  1998 and 1399: 

14I senior notes . 

Senior cred i t  facilrcy 
Equipment term l o a n s .  . 

Total senior c r e d i t  f a t r a l i t y  

O t h e r  long-term d e b t .  interest a c c r u i n g  berwten B 6 i  and 

Less c u r r e n r  macurirics 
9 e % ,  maturinq t h r o u g h  2013. secured by buildings f 345 

1 3  

s 10.000 

s :o,ooo 
. . . . . - . 

l i i l l l S l  

5 2 4 4  
10 
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Assets eccuring t h e  nther long-term debt totaled $ 8 1 4 , 0 0 0  at December 31, 
1998 and $ 7 6 6 , 2 3 7  at December 31. 1 9 9 9 ,  net of accumulated depreciation of 
$19,000 a t  December 3 1 ,  1 9 9 6  and 5 3 5 , 0 3 7  a t  December 3 1 ,  1999. 

Principal paflCntR required on t h e  cutetandmg debt during tach of the next 
Iive ytara are & E  follows (IN THOUSANDS) : 

2000. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  
2003. . . . . .  
2004  . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
- - - - - - - - - 
5 1 2 4 , 9 5 9  

8 .  CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIOl!lS 

Birch Leases t t l t c o ~ u ~ ~ i c a t i o n e  equipment, computer equipment and 
autcmobilen under capital :Leases with imputed interest between 8 . 0 t  and 12.01. 
A S S t t U  under capi ta l  l eaaen  totaled $1.5 million at December 31, 1 9 9 8  and 
$3.6 million at December 31.. 1999, n e t  of accumulated amortization of S210,Qoo 
at December 31, 1 9 9 8  and S l . 1  million at December 31, 1 9 9 9 .  The f u t u r e  minimum 
l eaac  
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NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

8 .  CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUEUI 
paymenta under the capital leasea and t h e  pres--: value of  t h e  n e t  minimum least: 
payments a8 of December 31, 1999 are a s  follows (IN THOUSANDS):  

2 0 0 0  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2003. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2 0 0 4 . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

, . , , , . . I . , . . , , . , , , , , , . 

. . . . . . . . .  

Tocal minimum :ease payment 3 .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Less amount rcpreaenting 1n ' : c r t a t . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Present v a l u e  of net m i n i m u m  lease payments 
Less c u r r e n t  maturitiea.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

51,528 
5 4 5  

9 2  
57 

2 , 2 2 2  
96 

2,126 
1.290 

S 8 3 6  

. .__.. 

.._.._ 

- * * = = I  

Amorcizatian expense f . 3 1 -  assets under capical leases w a s  $ : 5 7 , 3 0 0  for 1 9 9 B  
and $974.165 for 1 9 9 9 .  
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The varrante entitled t h s  holdere to purchaee an additional 1.8 million sharei 
of cornman stock a t  $1.00 per share. 

During February and March 1 9 9 8 ,  Birch insucd $ 9 . 5  million of series  B 
preferred s t o c k  at $ 4 . 5 0  per share and $ 3 . 5  million of convertible notea 
generating net procecda ckf $12.4 million, converted a l l  cxiating common mtock to 
aericm C preferred stock, terminated common stock warrants. canceled the 1997 
atock option plan, created the 1998 stock option plan and iaaued 474.750 shares 
of common stock t o  employees o f  Birch. Also during February 1 9 9 8 ,  Birch iasued 
S 4 . 7 5  million of seriee A preferred etoek and $10.0 million of'scries C 
preferred stock in connection w i t h  t h e  Valu-Line merger. B i r c h  redeemed t h e  
series A preferred stock in June 1998. A l s o  in June 1 9 9 B ,  t h e  convertible notes 
were converted into aeries B preferred stock. 

During July and Augus't 1999, Birch raaued $10 million of series D preferred 
stock and $ 6 0  million of ireriea F preferred stock at $ 4 . 5 0  per share. Options 
were granted t o  purchase $ 2 5  rillion of a e r i e 8  F preferred stock at $4.75 per  
share and $25 million of 11crit8 F preferred rtoek at $ 5 . 0 0  per share which 
expire on April 13, 2000. Additionally, Birch repurchased $10 million o f  
eeriea C preferred atock at $4.50 and recapitalized t h e  series  B preferred stock 
converting it into a new iieries B preferred Eitock and a new aeries  E preferred 
stock. The scrien E preferred stock uae then redeemed for $ 8 . 6  million. Net 
proceeda generated from these transactions- totaled $ 4 4 . 4  million. 

AUTHORIZED SHARES 

A t  December 31, 1999,  Birch had shares authorized totaling B O  million shares 
of comnwn stock and 55 million aharee of preferred stock.  T h e  preferred otock 
h a s  demignaticna of 8 . 7 5  million shares of merit8 B, 6.5 million sharee of 
aeries C ,  2 . 2  million ohares of aeries D, 1 . 9  million sharee of aerie8 E and 
30 million bharGB of eer ie8  F. 
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9 CAPfThL STRUCTCTRE (CONTINUED) 
RIGHTS 

All classes of preferred stock arc convertible and c o n t a i n  certain vo t ing  
rights. The common stock also has  voting r i g h t s  similar to t h e  aerie8 C 
preferred stock. The S t r i e 6  B ,  series t) and series F preferred stock have 
additional v o t i n g  r i g h t s  in c e r t a i n  clfcumstances Additionally t h e  series F 
preferred stock contains mandatory redempticn r ights  baaed on certain s e n i o r  
management retention In the event of mandatory redemption, the shares are 
redeemable for amounts eirbilar to t h e  lrquidation preference discussed below 

LIQUIDATION RIGHTS 

Birch's series  D and a e r i e s  F preferred  acock have a liquidacion preference 
over t h e  s e r i e s  B and scriea C p r e f e r r e d  s t o c k  and  commor. sccck at t h e  greater 
3 f  I i I  t h e  purchase p r i c e  plus accrued  but unpaid d i v i d e n d s  or \ i ~ l  t h e  amount 
rhe  holdtra would have r e c e i v e d  upon liquidation i f  such shares  of seriea D a n d  
s e r i c a  F preferred stock Fad been c o n v e r t e d  to common Brock : m e d i a t e l y  prior ::o 
liquidaticn Birch's s e r i e s  B p r e f e r r e d  s t o c k  haa a 1iqutdatiDn p r e f e r e n c e  o n l y  
over  aeries C p r e f e r r e d  stock  and common stock a t  an amount equa l  to the sum of 
t h e  purchase p r i c e  p l u s  accrued  b u t  ur.paid drv-dends S e r i e s  C p r e f e r r e d  s t o c k  
has preferecce  ccly o v e r  c ~ m m o n  s t z c k  a t  an a m o u n t  equa: to t h e  sum of the 
purrhase  p r i c e  p l ~ g  accrued  but unpaid div ic ' ends  
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mandatory dividend rights and now rht series B cumulates cash  dividends a t  1st 
per annum. amounting to $814,000 a t  December 3 1 ,  1 9 9 9 .  The ieriea C prcfexred 
stock has a 10% non-cumulative caah dividend and the aeries D preferred atock 
cumulatlcs caeh dividend8 at  a rate o f  1 5 t  per annum. t o t a i i n g  S 7 S 0 , o O O  a t  
December 3 1 ,  1 9 9 9 .  Only the series  F preferred etock containa mandatory drvidend 
r i g h t o .  Accrued cash dividendo on ecriea P preferred stock totaled $3.6 million 
a t  December 31, 1 9 9 9 ,  aa reflected i n  atockholdcrs' equity. Common stock 
dividendo, if any, will 13t declared at t h e  diecretion of Birch's board of 
directors.  Birch  has not  paid any Cash dividtnde on common etock sinre inception 
and does n o t  intend to ply any l n  the forceeeablc future. Rcstrlctions contained 
in t h e  senior credit fac i . l i ty  agreement and t h e  eenior notes indenture prohibit 
Birch from paying certain dividends on i t a  capital stock. 

On June 23, 1998, Birch paid a stock dividend, in t h e  amount of 0.055 shares 
per share, to t h e  holders of Birch's serite B preferred Btock, r t r i e a  C 
preferred etock and cornon atock a8  of June 15, 1998. Dividends paid on 
meries A preferred stock i n  1 9 9 0  totaled $168,000. 
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10. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACPIONS 

During December 1947, Birch borrowed S250,OOO from Birch's principal 
etockholder under a note payable.  The note payable vaa I u l l y  repaid in 
February 1 9 9 0 .  

Birch acquired note8 payable to Valu-tine shareholders totaling $274,000 in 
the Valu-Line merger. Thcrie notes were fully rtpald during 1 9 9 8 .  

A broadca8ting company owned by one of t h e  Birch's ahartholdcra rented 
office epace from Birch for 530,000 during 1998 and $29,187 during 1999. Birch 
p'' .hared advertising from the broadcaeting company totaling $40.000 in 1998 and 
S. 0 in 1 9 9 9 .  

A r e a l  e s t a t e  company owned by t h e  President :f Birch's zqurpment division 
was paid S 3 , 5 8 8  for building maintenance in 1998 and $ 1 2 , 5 8 7  in 1999. 

11. COMMITMENTS AND C O h T I h l G E N C f E S  

Future minimum rental commitments at December 31, 1999 f o r  all noncancelable 
operating leases, conaist~ng mainly of leases f o r  office space and equipment, 
a r c  a s  follous (IN THOUSAhh'DSI : 

2000.. . . - -  , . .  . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 2 . 7 6 6 . 7 9 4  
2001. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . , .  . . . . . .  3 , 3 4 2 . 8 2 3  
2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  , . , , , , , , . 2 , 9 2 5 , 9 4 0  
2003. . , .  . - , .  . . . . .  , .  . . . . . . . . . . .  2 , 5 6 7 , 2 9 5  
2004, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 , 4 4 3 . 3 1 2  
Thercafctr. . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ' , - 6 3 . 6 5 5  

........... 
Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - ,  . . . . . . . .  

Total r e n t  expense w a s  S81.000 r n  :99*, 5 4 8 5 . 0 C O  in 193B a n d  5 :  5 m i l l i = . n  i n  
1499. B:rch -a7 renew leases o n  i t 5  c o r p o r a t e  off;ces :n r e m s  ranqlng from 
t n r e c  to ter .  y e a r s  at r a T e s  apprcxiT.a:izg : b e  prevailing m a r k e t  Renewal  r e r . r a ? s  
a r e  exc l . Jde3  fr3m :be table 
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B i r c h .  Management chnnot predict the final outcorn of t h e  actions, but believes 
they will n o t  be material to Birch‘s financial statements. 

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT P U N  

Birch rponaorm a 4 0 l ( k )  profit-rharing plan covering substantially a l l  
employees under which enrploytta can contribute up to 1 5 4  of the ir  annual s a l a r y  
subject to annual maximum limitations. Employees can participate a f t e r  meeting 
the plan’8 eligibility requiremenrn.  Birch may a180 make discretionary 
contributione. Birch cont:eibutions to the p l a n  were $ l d s , O O O  i n  1938 and 
$ 5 9 4 . 9 1 5  in 1999. 

13. EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS 

Birch has entered intcr employment agrcemtnta with certain executive 
employeea which provide fclr payments t o  be made in connection w i t h  certain 
termination o€ employment or change of con t ro l .  The benefits include caeh 
compensation, immediate vesting of ouratanding etock optiona and coverage under 
Birch‘s group hea1,th p l a n .  
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NOTES TO CONS3LIDATED FINMCIAL STATEMENTS ICONTIFiVZD) 

1 4 .  INCOME TAXUS 

Net deferred taxee  conlsist of  t h e  following a8 of December 31. 1999 and 
1 9 9 9 :  

Deferred t a x  ;a : 
Nr+ operati,., loas carryforwards.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S 5 ,  528 

O t h e r ,  6 6 8  
Accruals and reserves not: currently deductible.. . . . . . . .  91 

6 . 2 8 7  
Valuation allowance.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (5,799) 

4 8 8  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
....... 

- - _ _ - - -  

Deferred t a x  liabilities: 
Property and equipment.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 8 8  

s - -  
. _ _ _ -  .. 

_ - - -  . _ _ _ _  

N e t  income t a x  benefic:; o f  approximately 5 5 . 1  million in ; 9 9 8  ar.d S 2 2 . 9  in 
1999 have been offstc by i n c r e a s e s  in t h e  valuatlon allouance A t  December 3;. 
1999, B i r c h  had operating loss carryforwards  f o r  federal inccrne t a x  p u r p s e s  of 
approximately $ 7 1 . 9  m i l l i o n ,  expiring ir, 2013 and 2014. 

T h e  primary difference t h a t  caused t h e  effective t a x  race TO vary from t h e  
s t a t u r o r y  federal income talx rate of 3 5 i  was t h e  valuation allowance. 

1 5 .  S T K K  3PT:C.N P t A N  

A t  2ecenber 3:. 1997, Ellrzh had grar-tcd cpcions to p u r c h a s e  corr.mcn s:ock 
,s;nder t h e  1 9 9 7  s:ctk  option p l a n  The  cpt:ons graxted had d t e r m  of :3 y e a r - s  a n d  
‘Jes ted  over  d !cur-year p t r - l c a  f t i s  pLaz ‘-as t e r r , i r . a t e d  and superseded in 1 9 9 8  



by the 1998 employee ettrck option p l a n .  No options were or ever urll be 
cxcrciecd and no eharee were or will ever be issued under the terminated and 
superecded 1 9 9 7  stock opltion plan. 

Stock option a c t i v i t y  under t h e  1997 Btock option p l a n  uas as follows: 

WEIGHTED - 
AVERAGE PER 

SHARE EXERCfSE 
SMRES PRICE 

__-___.___ .____-___- -___  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  s 1.00 
Exercised. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _ _  - _  
Farfestcd . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _ _  _. 

Outstanding at December 3 1 ,  1997.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,783,000 
Terminated. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ( 2 , 7 8 3 , 0 0 0 )  

Granted 2,783.000 

_ _ f _ _ - . _ _ _  

1.00 
1.00 

Oueetanding a t  December 31., 1998. . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  
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NOTES TO CONSm3LfDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

15. STDCK OPTION PLAN (COWINUEDI 

fol lova : 
Stock option a c t i v i t y  imder the 1 9 9 8  employee stcck option plan was as  

WFIGHTED- 
AVERAGE P E R  

SHARE EXERCISE 
SKRRES PR I CE 

....................... 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S C ,  2 4 2  Granted 5,093,064 
0 301 

Forfci~td 1 4 . 2 5 0  2.500 
E x e r c i s e d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 . 5 6 6 . 8 8 9  

Outstanding at December 3 1 ,  1998. 5 1 1 , 3 2 5  2 , 3 3 4  

G r a n t e d  1,794,800 3 945 
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - .  . -  

3 038 F o r f e i t e d .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 7 5 . 9 7 S  

Cutstanding at Eecemhtr 3 1 ,  1999 . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  2 , 0 3 0 . a 5 0  3 .  E 7 4  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. _ -_  - . -__  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. - . - - . . 

1 1 1 1 = 1 1 - 1  

A t  Ceccmber 3:. ?998. 5.363 opt:ons were cxercisabie with d weighted average 
exercise p r i r e  of S O  001. A': December 3:. 1 9 9 9 .  107,468 opclons were exercisable 
vith a weigfrccd average cxc ' rc lse  p r i c e  of S2 175 

The 1 9 9 E  emplcyee s t c c k  o ~ t l o r .  ?:a:: a'J:r,cr;zed t t e  g r a n t  2 :  cpt::r.s f c r  LF 
to 6.;95,845 shares = f  B : T C 1 1 ' S  cmmon s t c c k .  The c~ : i a r . s  have  a t e r m  of 
13 years and ' J e s t  over d f o u r - y e a r  pericd A l l  cptiscs exerc:sed during 1 5 9 8  
'uere f o r  o~:;ons granted w i ~ . . h .  ar. ear:; exer;:se prov:s;or. The 5 k . a r e s  fr;r 
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exercised optiona continume t o  be eubject to the four-year vesting period.  Ho 
option0 expired during 1998 or 1999. 

Cptiona granted in 19138 and 1999 had exercise prices  approximating t h e  
market value o f  t h e  corrm~n stock. Gxerciee pricer  for optiona outscanding a t  
Dtecmber 31, 1999 ranged from $0.001 to $ 4 . 5 0 .  The weighted-average remaining 
contractual life of those options is 9 . 4  ycare. The weighted-average f a i r  values 
of optione granted during the ytara ended December 31, 1998 and 1999 equaled 
$ 0 . 0 5  and 5 0 . 7 3 ,  rtmptct ive ly .  A t  December 31. 1 9 9 9 ,  Birch hda reserved 
1 . 6 2 8 , 9 5 6  shares o f  commc1ri stock for isruance under the 199% atock option plan. 

Birch est imated  the € a i r  value of each option grant using the  minimum v a l u e  
method permitted by SPAS No. 123 for entities not publicly traded.  Birch used 
the Following aisumptions in t h e  calculation: riak-fret interest rate o f  5 . 2 5 + ,  
expected life of four years and no dividends being paid over t h e  life of  t h t  
options. Under t h e  minimum value method, t h e  volatility factor is excluded. Had 
compensation came for the stock based compenration plan been determined a s  
prescribed by SFAS No. 123, the net loss and losa per common share would have 
been a s  f O l l O W 8  for the yt,Sra ended December 31, 1997, 1998 and 1 9 9 9 :  

1997 1998 1999 
_ _ _ - - - - _ -  _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE 

DATA 1 

Net loaa--ae reported.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $11,784) $(16,208) S(61.804I 

Lm80 per eharc--Baeie and Diluted--Pro Po rma.... (1.56) ( 4 . 7 5 1  (13 ,361 
Met loss--pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (1,9711 ( 1 6 , 3 8 4 1  (62,411) 
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16. SIGNIFICAPPT SUPPLIERS 

Birch purchaaed telephcrnc Betvices from Southwestern B e l l  Telephone 
amounting to 35% of cost of aervices i n  1998 and 6 5 %  in 1999. Birch as dependen: 
upon incumbent telephone ccrmpanies, such aB Southwestern Bell, f o r  t h e  supply of 
fiber optic netvorke that we uae .  B i r c h  purchased awitchcs and other  network 
equipment and software from Lucent  T e c h n o l q i t a  amounting to S12.9 million i n  
1998 and 5 9 . 9  million i n  1994 

17. YEAR 2000 I S S U E - U N A U D I T E D  

The  Year 2 0 0 0  issue i a  the  r e s u l t  ol computer programa being written uerng 
C W D  d i g i t s  rather  than four. to d e f i n e  t h e  applicable year. m y  of Birch's 
computer programs t h a t  h a v e  date-sensrcive software may recogr.ize t h e  date u s i n ' 3  
"00" a s  t h e  year 1900 rathclr t h a n  t he  year 2000. Birch cornpleced all Year 2 0 0 0  
readiness work and experienced no significant p r o b l e m  a5 a r e s u l c  D f  the n e w  
y e a r .  Birch does not believe i t  h a s  Continued exposure to t h e  Year 2 3 G O  problem 
and does n o t  cxpecr f u r t h e r  coats incurred in relation to tte Year 2000 issue C D  
be substantial. 

; e .  QUARTERLY DATA--LWAUDITED 

The foll3uing :ab:e i r ,c : lades  summarized q x a r t c r l y  f inancral d a t a  f o r  t h e  
years ended 3ecemcr 3 : .  



n A 

....................... 
THIRD MIIRTH 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ....... 
THOUSANDS. EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA1 

1998:  

C m o .  r m r g m . .  1,063 1 , 6 3 0  1 . 1 0 5  2 . 1 0 5  
b o +  from operrtlonl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15671 ( 1 . 4 8 6 )  12 ,996)  1 5 . 6 2 7 )  
N e t  1080 ( 6 2 3 1  11.7661 l 5 . 4 6 8 1  ( 8 ,  is11 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  $ 1 , 7 O S  S 6 . 0 6 0  $ 7 , 1 7 8  S 8 . 8 4 4  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . .  LOma p t r  c-n mharc--brrlc and diluted I O  7 9 )  ( 0  5 5 1  1 1 . 1 9 )  1 1 . 7 6 1  

1 9 9 3 .  
Revenue.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 1 0 . 6 3 6  5 1 3 . 9 - 1 5  $ 17.022 5 : 8 , 9 0 5  

Gcomi mrrgrn 2 , 7 1 1  3 , 5 7 4  3 . 7 5 1  I ,  1 4 2  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
L o s n  from op.raclonn . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  17 .1281  19 .5251  113,7101 i : 9 .  3101 
HCt lo.*.. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  { 9 , 9 3 6 )  {12.619) (16.690) 22.5>9) 
LOB. per c-n andre--baaLc and dilured., , . . , , , , . ( 2 . 0 6 1  1 2 . 5 9 1  1 1 . 1 3 1  (5.301 

19. SUBSEQVEKP ELTGKTS 

S i n c e  December 31. 19!39, Birch ha8 borrowed an additional 5 4 0  million 
through March 23. 2 0 0 0  under t h e  term loan portion of the senlor credit 
f acr-lity . 

On March 23, 2 0 0 0  an a f f i l i a t e  of Kohlberg Kravir Robert6 h Co. exerciaed 
i t o  optione t o  purchsnc ark additional $ 5 0 . 0  million of Birch's eerie6 F 
preferred stock (see note 9 ) .  

Alao  on Harch 23, 200C1, Birch filed a rcgiatration statement  on Form S-1 
relating to d proposed i n i t i a l  public offering of it8 c o w n  etock. All 
out8tanding mhares of Birch'e  preferred stock will automatically convert into 
nhares of comon stock upcn completion of the proposed offering. In addition 
Birch expects t o  declare a 1.795 for 1 split of i t e  c ~ m m ~ n  stock prior t o  
completion of the offering. Theeonversion ratio for the preferred 6tOCk will be 
adjumttd accordingly. 

F - 2 0  

REPORT OF INOEPENDEKP k-3ITORS 

The Board of DLrectora 
Valu-Line Companies, f n c .  

We have audited t he  accompanying consolidated balance sheet  of tne Valu-Line 
Companies, I n c .  Ithe Company) as of December 31. 1997, and t h e  r e l a t e d  
consolidated statements of income and retained earnings ,  and cash f l o w s  for t h e  
year then ended T h e s e  financial stactments are t h e  responsibility af the  
Company's management Our responsibility is t o  cxprees an op in ion  on these 
Linancial statements based on our a u d i t  

We conducted our a u d i t  i n  accordance w i t h  auditing standards generally 
accepted in t h e  United States. Thoac ~ c a n d a r d s  require t h a t  we plan and perforni 
t h e  audit to obtain reasonable a s s u r a n c e  about uhcchct the financial atacemenrs, 
a r e  free of material m i B s t a t e m e d t  Rn audi t  i n c l u d e s  examining, on a t t s :  basis, 
evidence supporting t h e  amounts and d i s c l o s u r e s  in the financial statements &I 

audit d l 5 0  i n c l u d e s  aaaesaing the accountlng principles used a n d  signif lcant: 
estimatta made by management. a 9  vel1 as evaiuating t h e  overall frnancral 
s t a t e m e n ?  presentation We believe c h a t  our audit provides a reasonable basrs 
€or o u r  opinion 

In o u r  op:r.:on, t h e  financial s t a t e m e f i t s  referred t c  above p r e s e n t   fair:^, 
i n  all mater-a1 respects, che cor.solida:ed f inan:ia? pos:c~on of Va!u-tinc 
C3rnpar.rcs :F.: a: 3ecember 3: 143' a . d  t h e  r o r . s s l i d a t e d  r e s u l t s  of :ts 
operations and i t s  cash fl3vs for :he y e a r  t k e n  er.ded -7, confor?ity u l t h  
a c c o u n t i r . g  ~r;n::ples generall, acce;:ed :n :he L'r.i:ed Sfate5 

E r T s t  b YC"r .2  L L i  
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ICaneae C i t y ,  Wleaouri 

Hay 1 5 ,  1998 
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VALU- LINE COUPANIES, INC . 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 3 1 ,  1997 

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHRRE DATA) 

ASSETS 
C u r r e n t  asmet8 : 
Cash and caah tqurvalcnl :e . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accounts receivable, net: of allowance of $ 7 0  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other rectivablce--relat.td parties.. 
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Prepaid expensea, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income taxes receivable . . . . . .  
Other d s n c t e . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred income taxes. .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  

T o t a l  current 1 8 n c t a  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Property and equipment, n e t .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other aesets.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total a p a c t s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

LIABILITXES N l D  STOClCHOLDERS ' EQUITY 
Current Liabilititm: 

Current maturitite of long-term debt and capital lease 

Note8 payable-  - re la ted  p , i r t i t s . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Accrued expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Customer depoaite.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accrued salaries and comin iss ions.  . . . .  
Deferred revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

ob1 i ga t ion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Accounts payable. . . . . . .  . .  

T o t a l  current liabllleice . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Long-term d e b t ,  net of  cur::ent maturitae8. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capital lease o b l i g a t i o n ,  net of c u r r e n t  maturities . . . . . . . .  
Deferred income taxea  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY 
Common fa tock,  no p a r  v a l u e ,  1C0,OOO shares authorrzcd, 

10,360 issued and oucatanding .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tat a 1 5 tockh.01 de rs ' equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tocal 1iabi:ir:ts a n d  s t o c k h o l d e r s '  cqulty 

$ 2 5 0  
1,790 

3 7  
5 3 0  
37 
30 
6 0  
71 

2 , 0 7 3  
1 I 612 

3 17 

_ - - - - -  

3 110 
2 4 0  

1,262 
2;s 
39 

266 
2 8 7  

2 . 4 2 ¶  
34s 
3 3 6  

2 7  



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

KEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 

(IN THOUUSP8DS EXCEPT SHARES AND PER SHARE DATA) 

Revenue : 
communications aerviccs,  n e t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Equipment e a l e a ,  net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost of S C ~ V I C C B :  

Cost oE communications wrvices  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Coat of equipment e a l e e . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total coet of a e n i c e # .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Groae margin..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
selling, general and adrnin~atrat ive  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
D e p u c i a t i o n  and amortization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income from operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest errptnae . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income before income taxem..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income t a x  expcnee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

N e t  income.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Retained earnings, bcgiiding of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Retained earningo, end of year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Earnings per s h a r e - - b a s i c  a n d  diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Common shares outstanding- -basic and diluted. . . . . . . . . . . .  

See accompanying n o t e s .  
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V a U - L I N E  COMPANIES,  INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMEKT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED DECEUBER 31. 199: 

I P I  THOUSANDS \ 

OPERAT I HG ACT I\' I TIES 
N e c  income 
A d j u s t m e n t s  to reconcile n e t  1r.comc to n e c  cash from 

operating activities 
Deprec1at:on and  amortization 
D e f e r r e d  : n c C m e  t a x e s  
Income t a x  expense  
; tanqes  I n  o p e r a r i n g  dsse:s and :lat:.rt.es 

X c c o ~ n r s  r e c e i  - ' a n ~ e  
2: r.er r e  ze;rabLes . rela :ed Far: .e5 
: ::)e r. : 3 r : 
:nrcr-c raxes  i t : e i ~ a b ; c  pa.abie 

5 5 1  
97 

4 5 4  
186 

2 6 6  
1,216 

$ 1,101 

$ 2 5 . 8 7  

10,360 

_ _ _ _ _ *  

- - - - - - 

= = I - - - -  

* = P I - = =  

S 2 6 B  

3 4  1 
1 i J )  
' 3  

6 6 :  

5: 
9 :  
'E 
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Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accrued expenires and Other current llabilitite . . . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

N e t  cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchane of property and equipment.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net caah used in i n v e r t b g  a c t i v l t i c r  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Payment of notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Payment of notes payable--related parties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Payment of capital lease obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net caah used in financin.g actrvitles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

N e t  increaee i n  caah and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ca8h and cash equivalents, beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

5 2 0  
3 0 4  

( 1 4 2 )  

4 0 8  

- _ - -  

( 2 4 3 1  

12431  

- _ _ -  

See accompanying notes. 
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VALU-LIKE COMPANIES, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 

1. THE COMPANY 

T h e i t  consolidated financial statements include t h e  account6 of Valu-Lint 
Companieo, Inc , a Kaneae Corporation, and i t s  wholly-owned subsidiaries 
(collectively, the ~~Company"l, Valu-Line Of K m B a B .  Inc and IS Advertislng The 
Company waa acquired by Birch Ttlecom, fnc in February 1948 (see NOTE i o ) .  T h e  
accounta of V a l u  Broadcantang. I n c .  and Steve Sauder Real E s t a t e ,  respectively. 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of and a d i v i s i o n  of Valu-Line Companies. Inc , b o t h  
of which were spun off in December 1997, have been excluded for all periods from 
these conaolidatcd financial a t a t t m c n t s  i n  order to reflect financial position 
and operating results  on a b a s i s  consistent with the businesaes acquired by 
B i r c h  Telecorn, Inc A:l intercompany b a l a n c e s  and tran$actions have beer, 
eliminated i n  consolidation. 

The Company providce local. long distance, Internet. c u s t o m e r  premises 
equipment and o t h e r  communications s e r v i c e s  to business and residential 
c u s t o m t r s  in t h e  state of Kanaas. 

2 .  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFXCRPIT . R C C C K I N G  POLICIES 

C A S H  Mi3 CASH EQUIVALE.MTS 

For purposes of  reporting cash flows, t he  Company includes a s  c a s h  and c a s h  
cqui - , ' a lecrs ,  cash and mark,etsble  sezuritits with o r i g i : . a l  maturities of t t r e e  
months of less 

RELT.VJE R E COGN I T I ON 

Revenue from conrnunica: ions services :s r e c c q n i r e d  uten  :he services  a r e  
prov ided .  Revenue on b i 1 L i : i g s  to c ~ s t ~ m e r s  :n advance cf ~ r o v ~ d i n q  s e r v ~ z e s  1 s  
deferred and recogr . rzed w h s t n  e a r n e d  

C C N C E N T M T : C N  OF Z R E 3 I ' T  R:SK 



The Company is cxposemd to concentrations of credit risk principally from 
cu~tomer accounts receivable. A t  December 31, 1997, the Company's customers are 
located in the s t a t e  of K m s a a .  The Company performe ongoing c r e d i t  evaluationa 
of i t 6  CUsLomerm am a mcu11n to reduce credit risk. 

F A I R  VALUES OF FIHAHCXL INSTRLMENTS 

AE of December 31, 1997. the fair values of the Company's financial 
inrtrumcnte, including ear,h equivalents and notem payable--related parties, 
approximate their carrying v a l u e ,  

INVEMTORIES 

Inventories, which consist of customer premises communications equipment 
held  f o r  sale and supplita. are valued a t  lover of average cnst or market .  

PROPERTY ANI> EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment, including a e a t t e  held under capital Icasce, are 
s t a t e d  a t  cast and are depreciated uaing the straight-line method over t h e  
eetimattd urcful l i v e a  o€ the related asactm or ltaat term. 
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VALU-LINE COMPANIES, I N C .  

NOTES TO CONSCIL I DATED F IHANC IAL STATEMENTS ( COKP INUED ) 

)'EAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 

2 .  S W Y  OF SIGLIPICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (COMTINUeD) 
US8 OF ESTIMATES IN FIhANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to m a k e  estimates 
and aeaumptiona that a f f e c t  the reported amount% i n  t h e  c o n s o l i h t e d  financial 
statements  and accompanying notes. Actual reaulte could differ from those 
cst imtcs.  

3 .  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The components of property and equipment at December 3 1 ,  1997 a r e  as 
follows: 

EST I MATED 
U S E F t n  LIVES 1997 
.......................... 

\ IN THOUSANDS I 

Telecommunications and other  equipment, . . . . . . . .  5 y e a r s  S ? , ' 9 3  
Cffice equipment.  f u r n i t u r e  and o t h e r . ,  . . . . . . . .  3 - 7  years L ,  1':B 
Bu: ldzngs  and improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  40 y e a r s  6 8 3  

Z . $ & 4  

.............. 

Accumulaced depreciation and amort;zat:or, . . . . . . . .  1 i , 3 I, 2 , 

.............. 
S 1.612 
= = = = 3  = =  = E i: = 
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amortization expense. Intarreat expense aaliociated with t h e  obligations under 
these leasca  dnwWKed t o  : $ 4 7 . 0 0 0  in 1 9 9 7 .  

4 .  CAPITAL LEASE OBLXGATION 

The Company leases tcl .tcomunicationa equipment under a capital lease. The 
future minimum leaac paymebntn under the c a p i t a l i z e d  lease and the prtment value 
of the n e t  minimum ltaat payments as of  December 31. 1997 are as follows (IN 
THOVSANDSJ : 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
1 9 9 9  . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2 0 0 0  . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . .  . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  

T o t a l  m i n i m u m  l caec  paymcni:e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  
Lees amount rtprtetnting intcreat . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  

Prcaent value of net minimum l e a s e  payments with interest at 
1O.Ob.. . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

 lea^ current rnaturitiea . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
4 3 5  
( 9 9 )  
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V A L u - L f w  CmlPAHIES. fNC. 

NOTES TO CONSClLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COHTINVED) 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 

5 .  LONG TERM DEBT AND NOTES PAYABLE 

The Company entered into a note payable w i t h  a financial institution in r h e  
amount o f  $300,000 in 1992 to finance t h e  remodclrng of a building The n o t e  is 
payable in monthly lnstallaents through 2 0 0 7  Interest i s  payable at prime p l u s  
1 1/2* (10 O k  at December 31. 1997) The note 1 8  secured by t h e  building and t h e  
deposit accounts of the Corrpany w i t h  t h e  financial insritution The outstanding 
principal balance on t he  ncce was $262,000 at December 3 1 .  1997 

In 1996, t h e  Company iasued a note payable of $100,000 to finance t h e  
purchase of  an office building. T h e  note 1s payable i n  monthly ~ n a t a l l r n e n t s  
through  2011. I n t e r e s t  1 9  Fayable at a variable rate 1 8 . 9 O t  a t  ntcember, 3 1 ,  
1997). The n o t e  A S  stcuscd by the building. The  outstanding principal baiance on 
t h e  n o t e  was S 9 4 . 0 0 0  a *  December 31. 1997. 

Maturities cn the aforcmentloned n o c e s  payabie a r c  a s  fo!l3ws (IN 
T H O U S r n S )  : 

1 9 9 8  
1999. - 
2000. . . . . . . . . . . .  
2031 
1 c 3 1  
Thereafter 

. . . .  
. . . . . .  

s 1: 
1 3  
1 4  
1 5  
: ?  

2 P C  

Z ? j c .  
.... 
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The Company a l s o  ha8 iiotes payable tu officers of t h e  Company and members o€  
the ir  families. The notcm art unaccurcd and payable on demand. Intereat  i a  
payable a t  the treaeury riitc ( 5 . 8 5 *  a t  December 31, 19971. The oucstanding 
principal balance on them! notes Ya8 $ 2 4 0 , 0 0 0  a t  December 31, 1997. Principal 
and interest paymcnta were! $128,000 in 1 9 9 7 .  

Tota l  interest p a i d  in 1997 was $ 9 7 . 0 0 0 .  

6 .  EMPLOYEE BEWZFIT PLAN 

T h e  Company spensora a 401(k) profit-sharing plan covering substantially all 
employees under uhich employeerr can contribute up to 155 of the ir  annual s a l a r y  
subject  to annual Internal Revenue Code #x imum limitatlone. Employees can 
participate after  meeting the plan's eligibility requirements. The Company may 
make a d r e c r e t i o n a q  contribution. Company contributione to t h e  plan were 
$81,000 in 1997. 
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V U U - L I N E  COMPWIES, ZNC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED PINAHCIAL STATEMENTS (COmXNVeD) 

lcEAR ENDED DECEUBEL 31. 1 9 9 7  

7 .  INCOME TAXES 

The income tax expense {benefit) consisted of the following: 

YERR ENDED 
DECEMBER 3 1 .  1P97 

I IN THDUSRNDS 1 
................. 

Current: 
Federa 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
S t a t e . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tcta l  C u r r e n t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred : 

Federal .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total deferred . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income t a x  expense . . . . .  

s:75 
2 5  

2 a @  
_ _ - -  

The difference8 betwccr. t h e  amount computed by applying t h e  s t a t u t o r y  
federal income t a x  race  to income b e f o r e  income taxes a n d  c h e  provision € o r  
income t a x e s  are a 3  follows: 

YEAR EN3E3 
3ECCYBEP. j: , l3?7 

:s ,f;;,3w3s 
................. 



BIRCH TELECUM INC /MO - I O-KIOS -Annual Repon 
Dare F t l d  3/30/?000 

Tax computed a t  s ta tuto ly  rite.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
S t a t e  taxea ,  net  of federal effect . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Lncomc t a x  expense.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$159 
2 2  

5 

$ 1 8 6  
- = * -  

Deferred income taxmi reflect t h e  net tax ef fects  of tempo'rary differences 
between the carrying amoiinte of assets and 3iabilitlee for financial reporting 
purpoaerr and t h e  amunts  used for federal  and a t a t e  income tax  pUrpOBeS. 
Significant components o€ the Company's deferred tax a s s e t s  and liabilitres at: 
December 31, 1997 are as fo~lous IIPI THOUSANDS): 

Deferred t a x  aearts (currlcnt) : 

$32 
2 8  
11 

Accrued 1 i abil i t ies  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Inventory c a p i t a l i z a t i o n .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Allowance for doubtful accounta 

Deferred tax liability Inancurrent) : 
2 7  Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net deferred t a x  ansetn . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

N e t  cash paid for income t a x e s  €or the year ended December 31, 1997 was 
$ 2 2 5 , 0 0 0 .  
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VALU-LINE COHPMJNIES. INC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEmS (COWTINWED) 

'EAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 

8. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INI~ORMATIOEI 

RELATED PARTIES 

fn 1997 Valu-Line provtded services principally re la ted  to r e n t  and 
operating c o s t a  to Valu-Brrladcaatlng,  Tnc , an affiliate of Valu-Line at  the 
t i m e  of t h e  transactions, :.n t h e  amounc of S B 1 . 0 0 0 .  Valu-Line also received 
services principally re1atc.d to advertising from Valu-Broadcasting, rnc in c h e  
amount of $41.000 in 1997 I n  F e b r L a r y  1 9 9 P ,  Valu-Line merged w i t h  a r d  into t h e  
Company pursuant t o  the Merger 

W J O R  SUPPLIER iNFORMA?'ION 

Cost of c2nmunicat:ons services provided by Southwestern Bel: approximated 
4 0 t  3 f  the toea !  cost of communlcaticn s e r v i c e s  f o r  r h e  year ended December 3 1 ,  
1997. Equipment purchases i ' r o m  Toshibn approxlmated S 9 t  of COS: of equlpmcnt 
s a l c a  f o r  t h e  year ended 3tctmber 3 1 ,  1997. 

9 COMMITMENTS Rpm CONTINGENCIES 

M L ~ L T . ; ~  :-enra; r s m m i t w n L s  at ,{ear-cnd 1 9 9 7  f c r  a ? :  -oncancclab:e z p e r a t i r . g  
:eases, c o n s i s t i r . g  mainly crf :eases f z r  oif:ce spare  ar.d . r e t : : i e s .  a r e  a s  
f 0 1 1 ovs ', I N  Tlr.OLTSrnS I 



n 

1 9 9 B . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
1999. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2 0 0 0  

Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

T o t a l  rent expense for 1997 uaa S 5 6 . 0 0 0 .  

10. SUB5EQUEm EW3m 

In February 1 9 9 8 ,  t h e  Company w a 8  acquired by Birch Telecorn, Inc. f o r  
$19,500,000. Shareholdere of t h e  company received 5 4 , 7 5 0 . 0 0 0  of cash and 
$ 1 4 , 7 5 0 , 0 0 0  of preferred stock in Birch Telecorn, Inc. 

11. Y W  2005 COMPLIANCE--UNAUDITED 

Year 2000 issues arise from computer programs written using t w o  d i g i t s  
rather than four to def ine  the applicable year. Any of t h e  Company's computer 
programs that  have time-etnsitivc eoftwarc may recognize a date uaing 00 a9 t h e  
yearA-1900 rather than the ylear 2000. Thia could rteult in a a y e t e m  failure or 
miscalculation causing dienipt ion8 of operations, including, among other thinge, 
a temporary inability to procees traneactions, etnd invoices or engage in 
similar normal buaintsi a c t i v i c i e s .  

Based on ongoing dUBC891Rtf1tS. the Company determined t h a t  i t  w i l l  be 
required t o  modify or replace portion8 of  i t e  eoftwart so that i t s  computer 
syetemm will function properly with rerrpcct to  d a t e s  in rhc ytar  2 0 0 0  and 
thereafter. The Company preriently belitvea that with modifications to exieting 
eoftwart and conversionr to ncv Boftuarc, the year 1 0 0 0  insue will not pose 
significant operational problem for  i t a  computer syetemm. The Company estimates 
i t  will incur m i n i m a l  expenrice t o  modify and convert i t s  systeme and anticipates 
completing t h e  year 2000 project by the ytar  ending December 31, 1998. 

F-29 

i 'ALU-LINE COMPANIES, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

yE:AR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 

11 YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE- -UhlAUGITED iCOPrTINLED) 
While t h e  Company b e l i c \ e s  t h a t  i t s  systems will be year 2 0 0 0  compliant. 

there can be no a s ~ u r a n c t  L r , t i l  t h e  year 2000 occurs  that a l l  s y s t e m s  will 
function adequately. I n  addition. tk .e  Company interconneccs and uaes various 
local exchange companies' f a c i l i t i e s  t o  s e r v i c e  i t a  cu~t~rners, and such 
I acilit l e 5  currently utilize numerous. d a t e  -sensitive computer a p p l ;  c a t  i c n s .  I f  
chese facrlit*te a r c  n o t  year 2000 compliant, or i f  the s y s t e m s  of o t h e r  l oca l  
exchange companies. long dratance carrier8 and o t h e r s  upon which t he  Company 
relies are not y e a r  2 0 0 0  conipi iant .  i t  c o u l d  have d materral e f f e c t  on t h e  
Company's business, opcrat i r ,q  re5L:ts and financia; condition 
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BIRCH TELECOH.  INC. 
SCHEDLZE I I - - C O N S O L I D A T E G  VALUATION A l X  QUAL1 FY ING ACCOUNTS 

YEARS E N ! X D  DECEHEER 3 1 ,  199'. 1990 AXE 1999 



n A, 

BIRCH TELECOM INC/MU - IO-K4OS -Annual re par^ Date Filed .V30/2000 

1 9 9 7  
Valuat ion rlleranc.- -dmrerrmd l.nco9y tax 

rl4ttl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1 9 9 B  
hl lowncc  Cor doubttul bccouncm 

Valurcron allowrnc*-.defcrrcd i r ~ c u r a  tax  
a m * e t i . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1999 
Al lorance  for  doubtful accounts 

Vrluition rilo-rncc- . d e f e r r e d  i r . cme  t a x  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  r ~ m e t m . . . .  - . ,  

OF YEAR 
........ 

s o  -..-.. 

$ 0  ...... 

s 61: ...... 

S 214 . . . . .  

$ 5 , 7 9 9  
...... 

INCIcow ACCOUMTS OlUUCtIOtiS 

I I Y  THousmsI 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

I 6 1 1  $ 0  s o  ....... .... ..... 

1 l 4 P  $ 1 3 3  S ( 1 9 1  (11  ....... .... . . . . .  

f 1 ,111  $ 0  s o  ....... . - . .  ..... 

S 5 1 1  5 1 2 5  $ 1 4 6 4 1  1 1 1  ....... ... ..... 

~ a a . t i a  s o  s o  

Y U  
....... 

S 6 1 1  
. . . . . .  

5 2 3 4  ....... 

s 5 . 7 9 9  ....... 

5 1 1 6  

S I B ,  1 4 1  
. . . . .  

(1) Accounta written o f f ,  :net o€ recoverice. 

EX-12.1 
a 

EXHXBTT 1 2 . 1  

EXHIBIT 12.1 

COMPVTATION OF RATIO OF EAFiNINGS TO FIXED W G E S  

Y P I J I S  PIDSD D E C U l E R  11. 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

THE PU6DtCESSOR, 1, B r a m i  

1q95  l99b 1997 1 9 9 7  1991 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
1 W  ThOUShNDS 6XCfGT UATIOS 

I 9 4  I l l 9  1 1 6 0  S 1 7 1 9 ,  5 ' 1 6 . > 0 0 ,  

. . .  .. . .  

;15 1 9 4  1 5 4  , 1  119 16 1 0 0 ,  

5 8  : G i  9 1  
;1  :6 1 9  

7 1  ::I i16 
. .  

5 1 b 6  1 6 : 1  5 5 1 7  I 1 1 8 9  I 16 2 0 1  ..=. .... ........... - ....... 
1 1 6 X  5 :Pa 1 9 1 x  

5 1 ' 8 9  5 1 6  

1999  

I 6 1 , 0 0 4  

6 1 . 8 0 4  

S 6 1  I C 4  ........ 
I 4: 801 

N o t e .  For purposes of calculating t h e  r a t i o  of earn ings  t o  fixed charges. 
earnings are d e f i n e d  a s  loas before income t a x e s  pius fixed charges .  Fixe:: 
charges Ccnsist of i n t e r e s t  expense  and a reasonabie approximation af the 
:nterest fartor i n c l u d e d  in r e n t a l  payments on operacing l eases .  

......................... 

( 1 1  ?he ?redtcesssr company :s 7a lu -L : r . e  :zrr;panies which a d s  Teraed  . r : th .  JS 

dur ing  Febr'Aary 1998 Fr:cr ts Februar.; : 4 3 8 .  'de r.ad ?.o re';enues acd 'sere :IT 

t h e  developmental s t a g e  
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PAR'P I - FINANCIAL INFORKATION 

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

BIRCH TELECOM, INC. 
CQNDENISED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In thousands, except share datal 

March 11. D C C C m C r  11. 
2 0 c o  1 9 9 9  

. . . . . . . . .  . . .  . . .  
:Unaudited 

AS SETS 
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Current rmattm. 
C m h  and camh equiu.lentP ............................................... 
Pledged stcuritirs . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
ACcounLn rect ivlble .  neL . . . . . . .  ....................... 
Invenra ry ....................... 
Qreprid txpcnmem and o t h e r . . .  ... 

Totrl current r m r e t s .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Lam: accumulrted dmprscirtion ................. ...................... 
PrqorCy 4nd rquurpmenr. n e t . . .  .... 
Pledged Iecuriti@n . noncurrent . . .  
Goodui 11. net. ................................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other incangiblc.. net. ........................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Othmr 4mattm.. .................................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Tot41 Iw.tt= ..................................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

LI*BILlTIIS W, S'PDC+XOLDERS' DBPtCIT 
CURREKT LIlBLLITIDSi 

Current m t u r i t i e .  of long-tcrm debt and c i p i c a l  lcsse d l igs trono  . . . . . .  
AccOunL. payable ........................... , 
hccrued crpenpen ............................ 

........................... 

Total current liabil 
Senior credlt f a c i l i  
1 4 1  mtnior notea. . . .  
O t h e r  long-term debt and csprtal l ~ a ~ r  ~ ~ l i g a t i o n r .  net of current maturities 
Serics ? redeemable preferred mtock. 13 333,351 nhdrt8 Iw.ucd and outstanding 

rmtated at redamptien and aqgrrgntt :.iqvidatlon v. luc)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Stockhol&'rm, d e f i c i t  I 

Scritm B preferred mtock, @ . 5 7 3 , 0 1 9  rrharra issued and outscandins . . . . . . .  
Series c preferred ItQck. 6 . 1 7 0 . 5 2 7  i1narem ierued and outstanding . . . . . . .  
StrIeL D preferred EtDCk.  1 . 6 3 2 . 1 2 2  alnd 2 , 1 1 3 , 3 2 2  share= i s s u e d  and 

outstanding. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
C m o n  stock, S.001 par v a l u e ,  8 O , O O C ~ . O O O  sharer authorized. I .  5 8 1 , 1 0 1  and 

8 . 4 1 4 . 5 4 1  mharcs isaucd and ourrtmnding. ............................ 
warrantm . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
h d d i t i o n s l  paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accumulated deficit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Less rtcelvablc from stoc*holderr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total atockho:dcrs' dttacit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Tata: 1:sb~liries and stock3 qers' deficit . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  

I 8 . 0 1 1  
1 6 , 1 5 1  
1 2 , 9 0 2  
3.510 
3.299 

4 3 . 9 6 1  

11, *Pa 

72,669 
7 . 5 0 7  

2 9 . 3 3 3  
21.176 

1 . 1 0 9  

$ 1b6 0 9 6  

............. 

84.  i s 1  

............. 

............. 

............. 

$ 5 ,  as3 
15.936 
11.612 
3.115 
3 . 7 5 9  

4 0 , 0 9 5  
7 0 , 1 9 2  
I ,  PI0 

............. 

61,112 

19.316 
16,911 
1.053 

9 1 4 6 , 9 7 1  

7 * u d  

............. 

............. 
..................... 

1 . 3 8 1  s 8 
7 .156  

1 1 . s 2 1  

2 6 . 1 S 8  

111,713 
1.033 

............... 
5o.aoo 

1,300 
13,100 
1 0 , 7 9 3  ........ 
2 5 . 1 9 3  
1P.000 

114,YlS 
1.070 

5 
3 3 7  

1 1 . 7 6 1  
1103, 1 4 4 ,  

............. 
i S l . 0 1 B '  

............. 
700 ............. 

( 9 1 . 7 1 6 '  . . . . . . . . .  
S 166.096 
. . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

S 
1 3 7  

11.686 
I ~ 9 , O D l '  ......... 
1 6 7 ,  7 5 1 )  ........... 

............. 
t 6 1 . 7 S f '  

............ 
5 146.971 
. . . . . . . . . . . .  
............. 

See accompanying notes to condensed consclidated financial statements. 
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BIRCH TELECOM, INC. 
CONDENSED CQNSOLI3ATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIOMS (Unaudited) 

(In th lwsands ,  except p e r  share d a t a )  

Three month6 ended 
March 3 1 ,  

2003 1999 

........................ 

........ ........... 

R t v i n u e  : 
C o m u n i c a t i ~ n s  menices  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Equipment s a l r s . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ..... 

. . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  Tczai revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
COS2 Of b C T Y l C t 6 -  

C o B t  cf c u r ' J n i c a ! l 3 r . s  services-, , , , , , . . , .  . . . .  
CoBt of cquiprr.er.t sa;cs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . .  

. . . . .  

Total  COB^ of a C N i i t s  , , , , , , , . , . .  , , , , . , , . . , .  
. . . .  

C r O B b  Nrgl l l  , . , , . 

21.286 
2 , 5 2 2  ....... 

2 3 ,  a o B  

1 5 ,  6 9 7  
i ,  6 3 9  

:7 136 

6 4 7 2  

. . . . . . .  

....... 

S 9 . 3 0 R  
1 . 3 2 8  

. . . . . . .  

- 1 .  9 2 ' 5  

2.71: 
. . . . .  
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Selling, general and a d m i n l s t r a t i v ~ o  expensem.. 
Ceprcciation and amortization txpel?ac..  . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . .  
21 .201  

4 . 4 6 0  

Lon* frm o p e r a t i m a  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest txpanme . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Intereat  ~ o c  ................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

MCt lDPB., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Preferred m dends. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Amortizattcn of praterred i t o c k  iwuance  cornti . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
LDPS mpplicrblc t o  c o m n  #Lock ....................... 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

I19.191) 
( 4 . 5 9 8 1  

4 4 6  ............ 
t 2 3 . 3 1 3 1  

( ? , 2 5 0 1  
11751 

5 t 2 5 , ? 6 l l  
............ 

............ 

L a o n  per e-n .hart-- basic  4nd d i l u t e d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S 1 3 . 0 6 )  

Weighted average number of c-n .harem eurstsnding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8 . 4 1 5  

8 . 1 9 6  
1 , 5 4 3  ........... 

i 7 , 1 2 8 )  
{ S ,  7151 

9 0 7  
........... 

19,9361 
(4931  

tal ........... 
S l10.4111 ........... 
........... 

$ ( 1 . 1 5 1  

'See accompanying notes to condeneed consolidated financial statements. 
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BIRCH TELECOM, INC. 
CONDENSED CONSOL1:DkTED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS IUnaudited) 

(In thousands) 

...... 

NET CASH FRDF: OPERATING A C T I V I T I E S  
tNVESTK8G ACTIV1T:ES 

Purchase cf property and tquipmcnt . . . . . . . . . . .  , , , . , , . , . 
Buointii scquisitlons, ne: o f  cash acquired . . . . .  , , . . , . , , 

)rmortizat:on of disccunt on Ipledgcd f i t c u r i c ~ e s . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash from Inve6::ng a t t i ' i i t l e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
FINANCIh'S AiTiVlTIES 

Proceeds from long-term debt and c a r l r a l  l ~ a s c  financing . . , . . , , . . 

P a r , e n t  ei financ.ng C a s t a . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  
Prcceeds from ~ s s u ~ n c c  of Cn i rmOn mtock..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Repayment of l a n g ~ t e r m  debt ,hnd capital l e a s t  ob 
Repayment Of bhort.ttx7P notal  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
N e t  caah from fLnsnclng a c r i v i r i c a  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

WET IUCRFASE I D E C R U S E .  IN CAS4 AND CASU E~JIVALENTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
CASH AHN3 CASH EQUIVALENTS hT B . L G I N N I N G  OF PERIOD.... . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  
CASH NTC CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 6 I C  OF PERIOD 

S d p p l t m n ~ a r y  schedule o f  nen-#:ash invcstlng sod financing a ~ c i u i c i e s :  
AmOunLm recorded in connection w i t h  acquisitions: 

F a i r  value of n e t  a s s e t s  ,~cquuired. n t t  of c a i h  acqurred . . . . . . . . .  
Fair valuc of I n C l n g l b l c  d u m e t s . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
AS6UmptlOn at liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Assumption of l o n g - t t m  dlibt  rnd c a p i t a l  l c a s c  obligsc~ons . . . . . . . .  
lesuanct of c m o n  a t o c k  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

P r o p e r t y  and ewipmenc additions included In accounts p a y a b l e . .  . . . .  
S e r i e s  3 p r e f e r r e d  stock l a s J c d  for FdymCr.r of p r e f e r r e d  6 t ~ c k  165uantt 

c o a t s . ,  , . . . ,  , . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
S e r i e s  3 preferred E r O C k  to 3c i s s u e d  f e r  Faym'cnt of p r e f e r r e d  ~ t o c k  

I B S L ~ I I C C  c o s r ~  , . . . ,  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Recclvahle f r m  etockholders  f c r  comon m t O C k  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
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Supplemental disclosure of cash f l o w  information: 
Cash payment for interest ,  n e t  of interest capitalized of $203 in 

2000 and $ 2 8 5  i n  1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
1 6 4  2 5 4  

See accompanying note& t o  condensed consolidated financial statements. 
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BIRCH TELECOM, mc. 
NOTES TO CONDENSED C‘ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEKTS (Unaudited) 

Three Months Ended March 31, 2 0 0 0  

1 .  BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements 
of B i r c h  Telecom, fnc. (“Birch”) have been prepared i n  accordance w i t h  g e n e r a l l y  
accepted accounting principles for i n t e r i m  financial information and t h e  
instructions to Form 10-0 a d  Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, t h e y  do 
n o t  include all of t h e  information and footnotes required by generally accepted 
accounting principles for complete financial statements. I n  t h e  o p i n i o n  of 
management, a l l  adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered 
necessary for a f a i r  presen ta t ion  have been included. Operating results for the 
three months ended March 31. 2 0 0 0  are no t  necessarily indicative of t h e  results 
t h a t  may be expected f o r  t i e  year ended December 3 1 ,  2000. For f u r t h e r  
information, refer to the c o n s o l i d a t e d  financial statements and footnotes 
t he re to  included in Birch‘s annual report on Form 10-K fo r  t h e  fiscal year ended 
December 31. 19f9. 

2 .  LOSS PER S W E  

The n e t  l o s s  per share  amount reflected on the c o n s o l i d a -  d statements 
of operations i s  based on the weighted-average number of common shares 
outstanding. Stock options and convertible preferred s tock  are anti-dilutive, 
and therefore excluded f r o m  t h e  computation of earnings per  share. In t h e  
f u t u r e ,  these s t o c k  equivalents may become dilutive. 

3 .  RECLASSIFICATIONS 

C e r t a i n  items in the 1999 condensed consolidated financial statements 
have been reclassified to be consistent w i t h  the classification i n  t h e  ZOO0 
condensed consolidated financial statements. 

4 .  CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

During March 2000, t h e  following equity transactions occurred: 

0 Birch filed a registration statement on Form S-l with the 
Securities ,and Exchange Commission ( S E C )  f o r  an underwritten 
i n i t i a l  public offering o€ common stock. In cocnection w i t h  
t h e  filing, Birch‘s board of di rec tors  approved a 1.79s-for-1 
split af  common s t o c k .  All prior period share and per share  
information has been restated to r e f l e c c  t h e  split. All 
o u t s t a n d i n g  shares of Birch’s p r e f e r r e d  stock will 
a u t o m a t i c a l l y  convert into s h a r e s  of common stock upon 
completion of t h e  proposed offering. Additionally, t h e  
conversion r a t i o  on the preferred stock h a s  been adjusted in 
accordance w i t h  t h e  1.795-for-1 comTp.on scock split; 

0 BT; Ventures, L . L . C .  IBTI), an affiliate of KDklberg Kravrs 

.. . 
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Roberts 6: Co. ( K K R ) ,  Birch's largest stockholder, exercised 
its opticins to purchase an additional 5 , 2 6 3 , 1 5 8  shares of 
series F preferred stock at $ 4 . 7 5  per share and 5,00~,000 
shares of series F preferred stock at $ 5 . 0 0  per share, 
totaling $ 5 0 . 0  million. The transaction was funded and the 
associated shares were issued in April 2 0 0 0 .  In connection 
with the private placement of series F preferred s tock  to BTI, 
which closed on August 5 ,  1999. and the related exercise of 
options i n  March 2 0 0 0 ,  Lehman Brothers, Inc., Birch's 
placement agent, earned compensation which included 400,000 
shares of aeries D preferred stock, totaling $1.8 million, 
issued in March 2000 and an additional 246,316 eharea of 
scriea D preferred s t o c k ,  totaling $1.2 million, ireued in 
April 20011; and 

0 Richard Y a l k u t ,  a member of Birch's board of d i rec to r s ,  agreed 
to purchafic 4 7 , 8 6 7  shares of common stock for  $ 2 0 0 , 0 0 0 ,  and 
Mory Ejaba,t,  a member of Birch's board of directors, agreed to 
purchase 1 1 9 , 6 6 7  shares of common stock f o r  $ 5 0 0 , 0 0 0 .  
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5 .  LONG-TERM DEBT 

In February 2000, B i r c h  increased i t s  5 7 5 . 0  million senior  c red i t  
facility tu S125.0 million. 'The c red i t  facility provides for a S 2 S . O  million 
reducing revolver and $100.0 million in multi-draw term loans. The revolver 16 
available f o r  general corporate  purposes of Birch's subsidiaries and the term 
loans  are to be used to f inance  telecommunications equipment, inventory, network 
a s s e t s  and back office systeins.  

ITEM 2 .  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSS[ON AND hNhLYSIS OF F I N h i l A L  
CONDITION AND RESULT!; OF OPERATIONS 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

THREE MOFTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2000 COMPARED TO THREE MONTHS ENDED 
MARCH 31, 1999 

REVENLT.  Revenue increased 123.8% to $23.6 million for t h e  2000 period 
cornpared to $10.6 million fo:r t h e  1999 p e r i o d .  The increase in revenue w a 6  
principally a result of new customer sales in new and e x i s t i n g  markets  and 
partially due to a full quarv-er of revenue for Capital Communications 
Corporation (acquired in March 19991 in t h e  2000 period. As a percentage of 
t o t a l  revenue, communicationa services were 8 9 . 4 %  for t h e  2000 period and 8 7 . 5 %  
f o r  t h e  1999 p e r i o d ,  and equ:tpment s a l t s  were 1 0 . 5 %  f o r  the 2000 period and 
12.59: for t h e  1999 period. 

COST OF SERVICES. C o s t  of services  increased 118.8% to $17.3 million 
f o r  the 2 0 0 0  period compared to $ 7 . 9  million f o r  the 1999 period. The increase  
in coat  of services was p r i m a r i l y  t h e  result of associated revenue increasca.  
Gross margins increased 138.'1% to $ 6 . 5  million ( 2 7 . 2 %  of revenue) for 2000 
compared to 5 2 . 7  miLlion ( 2 5  5 %  of revenue) for  1999. The increase in gross 
margin as a percentage of revenue was prima ti!.^ t h e  result of a greater 
percentage of revenue  being derived f r o m  h i g h e r  margin facility-based local 
services a s  compared to reso:.d services i n  the 1 9 9 9  period. 

SELLING, GENERAL ANll ADMINLSTFATIVE E X P E N S E S .  Selling, general and 
administrative expenses increased 1S5.6% to $21.2 million f o r  t h e  2000 period 
compared to $8.3 million f o r  t h e  1999 period. The i nc rease  I n  expense was 



primarily a result of supporting and attracting customers in new and existing 
marketa, market launches i n  Texae and having a f u l l  quarter of expense in the 
2000 period for Capital Cormmications Corporation. which affected wages, rent 
and other  expensts. Additionally, we had 1,130 employees a t  March 31, 2000 
compared to 5 0 6  ernploye@s i i t  March 31, 1999. EBITDA, a commonly used measure by 
securities analysts of earriinge before deducting i n t e r e s t ,  taxes ,  depreciation 
and amortization, decreased 1 6 3 . 0 %  to a loss of $14.7 million for t h e  2000 
period cornpared to a lose of $ 5 . 6  million for the 1999 period. 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATXON. Depreciation and amortitation increased 
189.0I to $ 4 . 5  million for the  2000 period compared to $1.5 million for the  1999 
period. The increase in depreciation and amortization was primarily attributable 
to the depreciation of a larger base of network a s s e t s ,  the amortization of 
intangible assets related t3 acquisitions and the  amortization of financing 
costs related t o  our senior debt facility. 

IKTEREST. Interest expense increased 23.8% to $ 4 . 6  million for the 2 0 0 0  
period cornpared t o  $3.7 m i l l i o n  for the 1 9 9 9  per iod .  The increase in interest 
expense was primarily a result of borrowings on our senior credit facility, 
which began December 1 9 9 9 .  ::nterest income decreased 5 0 . 8 %  to $ 4 4 6 , 0 0 0  for the 
2000 period compared to $ 9 0 : r , O O O  for t h e  1999 p e r i o d .  The decrease in interest 
income is primarily a r e s u l t .  of the m a t u r i t y  and sale of $16.1 million o€ 
pledged securities f o r  the payment of i n t e r e s t  on t h e  14% s e n i o r  notes .  
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N E T  LOSS. Net loss i nc reased  134.91 to $23.3 million f o r  t h e  2000 
period compared to $ 9 . 9  million for t h e  1999 period. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

O u r  total a s s e t s  increased to $166.1 million at March 3 1 ,  2000 from 
$147.0 million a t  December 3 1 ,  1 9 9 9 .  This increase was primari1:- ' P  resu l t  of 
capital outlays f o r  expansion of o u r  local ar.d data networks and tloprnant of 
operations support systems and automated back office s y s t e m s .  A t  Maich 31. 2000, 
our  c u r r e n t  a s s e t s  of $ 4 4 . 0  million exceeded c u r r e n t  liabilities of $26.3 
million, r e s u l t i n g  i n  working c a p i t a l  of $17.7 million and a $3.0 million 
increase compared to working capital of $14.7 million at December 31, 1999. A t  
December 3 1 ,  1999, our currer, t  a s s e t s  of $40.1 million exceeded c u r r e n t  
liabilities of $ 2 5 . 4  million. The inc rease  in working capital was primarily 
attributable to proceeds received from borrowings on our senior credit facility 
t o  fund c a p i t a l  purchases. Pledged s e c u r i t i e s  to satisfy i n t e r e s t  payments on 
our senior no tes  amounted t o  $ 2 3 . 7  million at March 3 1 ,  2000 and $23.4 million 
at December 3 1 ,  1999. ' 

OPEPATING ACTXVITIES. N e t  cash used in operating activities was $ 2 1 . 0  
million for t h e  2 0 0 0  period compared to $5.7 million for t h e  1999 period. Net 
cash used in operating activities was primarily used t o  fund our n e t  lasses O f  

$ 2 3 . 3  million f o r  t h e  2000 period and $ 3 . 9  million f o r  the 1999 period.  

INVESTING ACTIVITIES. Net cash used in invegting a c t i v i t i e s  was $14.3 
million f o r  the 2000 period compared to $11.8 million f o r  t h e  1999 period. Net 
cash used in investing a c t i v i t i e s  waa  primarily used f o r  t h e  purchase of 
property and equipment r e l a t e d  to t h e  expansion of our networks, support systems 
and back offlce systems,  totaling $14.0 million in t h e  2000 period and $7.0 
million in the 1993 period. Additionally, $ 4 . 4  million was spent on acquiBitione 
in t h e  1999 period. 

F I N k l C I N G  ACTIVITIES. Net cash provided by financing activities was 
$ 3 8 . 3  mlllion f a r  t h e  2300 period compared to n e t  cash used in financlng 
activities of $974,000 f o r  t h e  1999 p e r i o d .  In tne 2000 period, n e t  cash 
provided by financing activities w a s  primarily a result of $40.0 million i n  
proceeds from borrowir.as on o u r  sen ior  credit facility. I n  the 1 9 9 9  period, net 
cash used in financing activities was used  €or t h e  repayr,ent of debt. 
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In February 2000, w e  increased the capacity of o u r  $ 7 5 . 0  million senior 
credit facility to $125.0 i n i l l i o n .  This credit facility provides for a $ 2 5 . 0  
m i l l i o n  reducing revolver iind $100.0 million in multi-draw term loans. The 
revolvex is available for general corporate purpose6 of our aubsidiariea and the 
t e r m  loans are to be ueed t o  finance telecommunicationa equipment, inventory, 
network assets and back office systems.  The Benior credit facility is secured by 
a perfected first priority secuiity interest in substantially a l l  af our aanete 
and capital stack of our subsidiaries and contains u number of financial and 
operational covenant8 with which w e  must comply. Among o t h e r  thinge,  
covenants require us to maintain specified levele of revenue,  EBITDA, ratio 
levcle and access lines and restrict our ability to i n c u r  additional 
indebtadnees, pay dividends, enter into related party transactions o r  sell our 
asseta. We were in compliance with all covenants a t  March 31, 2000. 

the 

In March 2000, an affiliate of KKR exercised its options to purchase an 
additional $50.0 million of our series F preferred f i tock .  The transaction was 
funded and t h e  associated B;’lares were issued in April 2000. 

The development anti expansion of our business will continue to require 
significant capital to fund capital expenditures, working capital and debt 
service and will generate nt!gative operating cash flows. O u r  principal capital 
expenditure requirements w i 1 . l  include: 

0 

0 

t h e  purchase, installation, and expansion of awitches and 
transmission equipment for our local and data networks; and 

t h e  further  development of  operations support systems and 
automated back office systems.  

We do n o t  believe that  the growth of our long distance and customer 
premises equipment business will require significant capital expenditures .  

0 

Our business plan calls f o r  us to o f f e r  our services in additional 
x a r k e t s .  We expect to expand o u r  operations in Texas and into Oklahoma in t 7 

second quarter of this year and to commence service in the regions served by 
Ameritech and BellSouth in 2001. We will need additional cash to fund our  
working c a p i t a l  needs, debt service requirements and operating losses. Until w e  
begin to generate  positive cash flow f r o m  operations, these liquidity 
requirements will need to be financed with additional debt and e q u i t y  capital. 

Durina the second quarter 2000, we will begin to re-negotiate t h e  terms 
of o u t  existing senior credit facility and rrake corresponding changes to t h e  
financial covenants. We believe that our current resources, including 
availability u n d e r  our senior credit facility, will be sufficient to satisfy 
o u r  liquidity needs f o r  t h e  next  12 months. I f  o u r  p l a n s  or assumptions change, 
i f  our assumptions prove to be inaccurate, or if we experience unexpected 
c o s t g  or competitive pricing pressures ,  w e  will be required to s c t ~  
additional capital sooner than w e  currently expect. In particular, if  w e  
elect to p u r s u e  acquisition opportunities or open additional markets, our  
cash needs may increase substantially. We cannot assure you that o u r  current 
projection of cash flow and losses f r o m  operations, which will depend upon 
numerous future factors  and conditions, many of which are outside of o u r  
c o n r r o l ,  will be accurate. Actual r e s u l t s  will almost certainly vary 
materially from our current projections. The c o s t  of expanding our network 
services and s a l e s  efforts, funding o t h e r  strategic initiatives and operating 
our  business will depend on a variety of factors, including, among other  
things : 

0 

0 

t h e  number of subscribers a n d  t h e  services €or which they 
s u b s c r i b e ;  

rte nature and penetration of services  that we may o f f e r ;  



n h. 

0 

0 

regulatory and legislative developments; and 

the resplmse of our competitors to their loss of customer6 to 
us and t o  changea in technology. 

We intend to seek additional debt and equity financing to fund our  
future liquidity ncede. We cannot aesure you t h a t  we w i l l  be able to raiec 
additional capital on sat i t : factory  terms or at a l l .  If we decide to raise 
additional funds through the incurrence of debt, our intertst obligations will 
increase and w e  may become aubjcct to additional or more restrictive financial 
covenants. In addition, the terms of our senior credit facility and our senior 
noter each restrict our ability to obtain additional debt financing. f f  we 
decide to ra i se  additional funds through the issuance of equity. t h e  ownership 
interest8 represented by t h e  common stock will be diluted. In the  event that we 
arc unable to obtain additi3nal capital or to obta in  it on acceptable terms or 
in sufficient amounts, we m,ny be required to delay t h e  development of our 
network and business plans  or take other  actions t h a t  could materially and 
adversely affect  our b U B l n e l ; 8 ,  operating results and financial condition. 

IMPACT OF THE YEAR 1 0 0 0  ISSUE 

The Year 2000 issue results f r o m  computer programs being written u s i n g  
t w o  digits rather than four to define t h e  year. Any of our computer programs or 
systems, or those of our suppliers ,  that have date-sensitive software may 
recognize a date using "00" as the  year 1900 rather than the year 2000. We have 
assessed t h e  potential impact of Year 2000 i s s u e s  and modified, upgraded and 
replaced our systems as necessary. we did aot experience any problems on J a m a r y  
1, 2000 and to-date, we have not experienced, nor a r e  WE aware of, any material 
Year 2000 issues with any of our i n t e r n a l  systems or our services. Although we 
do not  anticipate ekperiencing any Year 2000 re la ted  issues in t h e  future, we 
will continue to monitor the situation and imp lemen t  contingency plans  if 
needed. O u r  toral cost t o - d a t e  to proactively address o u r  Year 2000 issues has  
n o t  been material. T h e  c o s t  of addressing Year 2000 issues is reported as a 
general and administrative expense. 
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RECENILY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

In December 1999, the SEC i s s u e d  Staff Accounting Bulletin I S M )  No. 
101, "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statemenrs ' S k B  KO 101 provides 
guidance  on t h e  recognitron, presentation ar.d disclosure of revenue in financial 
statements. SAB No 101 is effective f o r  our consolidated financial s t a t e m e n t s  
beginning I n  t h e  second quarter 2000. We do n o t  expect che impact of SAB No. 101 
to haL-e a m a t e r i a l  e f f e c t  in relation to our  consolldated financial statements. 

In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASBl issued 
Interpretation No. 4 4 ,  "Accounting f o r  Certain Transactions Involving Stock 
Compensation: An Interpretation of Accounting Principles Board ( A P B )  Opinion NO. 
2 5 "  { t h e  FASB I n t e r p r e t a t i o n ) .  The FASB Interpretatlon poses  and answers 20 
separate questions dealing with APB No. 2 5 ,  "Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees," implementation prac t i ce  issues. The FASB I n t e r p r e t a t i o n  will be 
effective beginning J u l y  1, 2000, and we are currently determining i t s  impact i n  
relation to our consolidated financial statements. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Certain statements ,contained in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q are 
forward-looking statements. 'These statemtnta discuss, among o t h e r  things, 
expected growth, expansion strategy and an intended public stock offering. The 
forward-looking s t a t e m e n t s  are  subject to risks, uaceztainties and assumptions. 
and actuai r e s u l t s  may d i f f e r  materially from anticipated results described in 
these forward-looklng s ta tems?nts .  The factors that could cause actual results to 
differ materially include, b, i t  arc n o t  limited to. revision of expansion p l a n s ,  
availabiliry of financing. c:nanges i n  l aws  and regulations, t h e  number of 
potential customers in a tarl3et r.arket, t h e  existence of strategic alliances or 
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relationships, technological or other developments i n  our  businesa. changes in 
t h e  competitive climate in which w e  operate, overall economic trends  including 
interest rate and foreign currency trends, stock rnarktt activity. litigation and 
the emergence of future  opportunities. We under t ake  no obligation to publicly 
update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information, future  events nr otherwise. 

ITEM 3 .  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

No material changeis in our exposure to certain market risks have 
occurred from the discuosior~ contained in I t e m  7A.  “Qualitative Disclosures 
About Market Risk,” f i l e d  aei part of our annual report on Form 10-K f o r  the year 
ended December 31, 1999. 
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PART If - OTHER INFORMATION 

ITEM 1 .  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

From t i m e  t o  t i m e ,  w e  may be involved i n  c l a i m s  or litigation that 
arise in t h e  normal  course of business. We are not a party  to any legal 
proceedings which, i f  decide3 adversely, would have a material adver6e effect on 
our business or  financial condition or results of o p e r a t i o n s .  

ITEM 2 .  CHANGES IN SECURITIES AM) U S E  OF PROCEEDS 

Since December 31, 1999, we have issued and sold unregistered 
securities a s  follows: 

0 

0 

0 

I n  March 2000, BTI, an affiliate of K K R ,  our  largest 
stockholder, exercised i t s  0ptior.s to purchase an additional 
5,263.158 shares of series F preferred stock at $ 4 . 7 5  per  
share and 5,000,000 shares of ser ies  F preferred stock at 
$ 5 . 0 0  per sha re ,  totaling $ 5 0 . 0  m i l l i o n .  The transaction was 
funded and t h e  associated shares were issued in April 2000. In 
connection w i t h  the p r i v a t e  placement o f  series F preferred 
stock to B T I ,  which closed on A u g u s t  5 ,  1 9 9 9 ,  and the  related 
exercise of options in March 2000, Lehman Brothers, Inc., our 
placement agent, earned Compensation which included 400.000 
shares o f  series  D preferred s t o c k .  totaling $1.8 million, 
issued in March ZOO0 and an additional 246,316 shares of 
s e r i e s  D preferred stock, totaling $1.2 million, issued in 
April 2 0 0 0 ;  

In March 2 0 0 0 ,  Richard Jalkut, a member of our board of 
d i rec to r s ,  agreed to purchase 4 7 , 8 6 7  shares  of our  common 
stock f o r  $200,000, and Mory E j a b a t ,  a member of our board of  
directors ,  agreed to purchase 119.667 shares of o u r  common 
s t o c k  for $500,000; and 

In March 2 0 0 0 .  o u r  board of directors approved a 1.795-for-1 
split of o u r  common stock. 



~ l l  sales were made i n  reliance on Section 4 { 2 )  o f  the Securities A c t  
and/or Regulation D promulgated under the Securities A c t .  Theee sales were made 
without general s o l i c i t a t i o n  or advertising. Each purchaser was a sophisticated 
investor w i t h  access to a1.l relevant information necessary to evaluate the 
investment and represented t o  us that the shares were being acquired for 
investment only and nct w i t h  ct v i e w  to or for sale in connection w i t h  any 
distribution thexeof and appropriate legends w e r e  affixed to t h e  securities. 

ITEM 4 .  SUBMISSION OF mTTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITIES HOLDERS 

During t h e  f i r s t  quarter of 2 0 0 0 ,  t h e  following matters were submitted 
to a vote of our securities holdere: 

a On March 0, 2000, in connection with compensation earned by 
Lehman B w t h t r s .  I n c . .  our placement agent, f o r  t h e  private 
placement of our series P preferred stock with BTI, w e  
obtained the written consent of our stockholders with rtapec; 
to the rcrjlervation and issuance of 646,316 shares of series D 
preferred stock, t h e  amendment of OUT Certificate of 
1ncorporat:ion to designate 3,000,000 shares of our authorized 
preferred stock as serieB D preferred stock and t h e  amendment 
o f  our Amemded and Restated Purchasers Rights Agreement. O u r  
s tockho lders  also approved an i n c s e e s e  of common stock 
available f o r  issuance of options under o u r  1998 Stock Option 
P l a n .  
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For : 62,752,611 

Withheld: 2 2 6 , 6 2 6  
A g a i n s t :  0 

0 On March 30, 2 0 0 0 ,  i n  connection w i t h  t h e  proposed i n i t i a l  
public offering of our  common stock. WE obtained t h e  written 
c o n s e n t  of o u r  stockholders w i t h  respect to t h e  amendment of 
our  Certificate of Incorporation to reclassify our common 
s t o c k ,  i nc rease  t h e  amount of our authorized s t o c k  and 
increase t h e  size of o u r  board of d i r e c t o r s .  O u r  stockholders 
approved our  2000 Equity Participation Plan and o u r  2000 
Employee S t o c k  Purchase Plan and approved t h e  reservation of 
shares of common stock for  issuance under  e a c h  of those plans. 
The stockhalders a l s o  approved an amendment to our  Amended and 
Restated Purchasers R i g h t s  Agreement. 

For : 5 3 , 4 3 7 . 4 6 8  
Against: 0 
withheld: 10,259,769 

The number of stockholder v o t e s  s t a t e d  above r e f l e c t s  the 1.795-€or-1 
common s t o c k  split and t h e  am3justed  preferred s t o c k  conversion ratio. 

ITEM 6 .  EXHIBITS AND REPORT,j ON FORM 8-K 

( a )  Exhibits 

The following exhibrts are i n c l u d e d  herein: 

3.1 C e r t i f i c a t e  of amendment of r e s t a t e d  certificate of 
incorporation of  B i r c h  Telecom, Inc. 

... 
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27.1 Financj.al  Data Schedule. 

(hl Reports on Form 8-K 

On March 23. 2 O C O  we filed Form 8-K with respect to a registration 
statement filing w i t h  the  SEC as part of a proposed i n i t i a l  public offering of 
common stock. We attached a copy of our press release iasued that same day. 
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SI GNATVRE 

PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES EXCKPJGE ACT OF 1934, AS 
AMENDED, THE REGISTRANT IUG DULY CAUSED THIS REPORT TO BE SIGNED ON ITS BEHALF 
BY THE UNDERSIGNED, THEREUNTO DULY AUTHORIZED. 

BIRCH TELECOM, INC 

DATE : WAY 15, 200C 

13 

BY: /S/ BRPSLEY A .  MOLINE 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - ~ - -  

BFADLEY A .  MOLINE, SENIOR VICE 
PRESIDENT - CHIEF FIl’Lh’CIAL 
OFFICER [PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL 
OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER) 

E X - 3 . 1  
i 

EXHI3IT 3 . 1  

EXHIBIT 3 . 1  

BIRCH TELECOM, INC . 

CERTIFICATE OF AMENUDMENT 
OF 

RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

\Pur€,uant to Sect ion 2 4 2  of the General 
Corporation Law of  the  State of Delaware) 

Birch Te lccom,  I r i c . ,  a corporation organized and existing under  t .he 
General Corporation Law of the State af Delaware ( t h e  “Corporation”) does hereby 
certify as  follows: 

A .  This Amendment. amends t h e  provisions of t h e  Restated Cerrlficate of 
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Incorporation of t h e  Corporation set  f o r t h  below and was duly adopted in 
accordance with S e c t i o n  :242 of t h e  General Corporation Law of the State of 
Delaware by the directom and stockholders of the Corporation. 

B. The t e x t  of the  Reatated Certificate of Incorporation is amended as 
set f o r t h  below: 

1. A r t i c l e  4 ( A l  is amended to read in i t s  entirety as follows: 

A .  The tota l  number of shares that the Corporation shall have 
t h e  authority to issue is 208,403,275 shares.  The total number 
of shares of common stock t h a t  t h e  Corporation shall have 
authority to i s s u e  is 150,000,000 shares ( t h e  "Common S t o c k " ) ,  
and the par value of each share of Common Stock is $0.001. The 
total n,amber of shares of p r e f e r r e d  stock that t h e  Corporation 
shall have the authority t o  issue is 5 8 . 4 0 3 , 2 7 5  shares ( t h e  
"Prefsr:ced Stock"), and the  par value of each share of 
Prefermd Stock io $0.001. 

Effective upon filing of t h i s  Amendment to t h e  
Restdtecl Certificate of Incorporation w i t h  t h e  Secretary of 
S t a t e  of- t h e  S t a t e  of Delaware ( t h e  "Effec t ive  Date"), each 
share of- Common Stock outstanding on the Effective Date, par 
value S.001 per share ( t h e  "Old Common Stock"), shall 
automatically and without any action on t h e  part of the holder  
thereof be reclassified as and changed i n t o  1.795 shares  of 
the  CorLoration's C O ~ Q T I  Stock, p a r  value S.001 per share { t h e  
"New Comnon S t o c k " ) ,  subject to t h e  t r ea tmen t  of 

fractional sha re  interests as described below. Each h o l d e r  of 
a certificate or certificates that, immediately p r i o r  to t h e  
Effective Date represented outstanding shares of Old Common 
Stock  (the " O l d  Certificates," whether one or more)  shall be 
entitled to receive upon su r rende r  of  such Old Certificates to 
UMB Bank, n . a .  (the "Transfer Agenti ' )  for cancellation, a 
c e r t i f i c a t e  or Certificates [ t h e  " N e w  Certificates," whether 
one or more) representing t h e  number of whole shares of t h e  
N e w  Common S t o c k  formerly represented by such  Old Certificates 
so surrendered and reclassified under t h e  t e r m s  hereof. From 
and a f t e r  t h e  Effective Date, O l d  Certificates shall represent 
only the r i g h t  to receive New Certificates ( and .  where 
applicable, cash in l i e u  of fractional shares, as provided 
below) pursuant to t h e  provisions h e r e o f .  No certificates or 
s c r i p  representing fractional share interests in New Common 
Stock will be issued, and no such fractional share interest 
will entitle the holder t he reo f  to v o t e ,  or t o  any rights of a 
stockholder of t h e  Corporation. In lieu of any fraction of a 
share, the Corporation shall pay to t h e  Transfer Agent or i t a  
nominee a s  soon as practicable a f t e r  t h e  Effective Date, as 
agent f o r  the accounts of a l l  ho lde r s  o f  Common Stock 
otherwise entitled EO have a fraction of a share issued to 
them in connection with t h e  s t o c k  split, t h e  amount equal tO 
t h e  fair market value of t h e  aggregate of all fractional 
shares otherwise issuable (rounded, i f  necessary, to the  next 
highes t  whole share) ( t h e  "Fractional Share A m o u n t " ) .  The f a i r  
market  v a l u e  of the fractional shares shall be determined in 
accordance wi th  Article 4 ( ~ ) ( 2 )  (il of t h e  Restated Certificate 
of Incorporation. 

A f t e r  t h e  Effective Date and t h e  r e c e i p t  of payment 
bf t h e  Corporation of t he  Fractional Share Amount, t h e  
Transfer Agent stall pay to t h e  stockholders entitled to a 
fraction of a share their pro r a t a  share of t h e  Fractional 
Share Amaunt upon surrender  of their O l d  Certificates. f f  more 



than ont! Old Certificate shall be surrendered a t  one time €or 
t h e  account of the Bame stockholder, t h e  number of full shares 
of N e w  E:ommon Stock for which New Certificates shall be issued 
shall be computed on the basis of the aggregate number of 
share8 r'epreeented by the O l d  Certificates surrendered. In  t h e  
event that a holder surrenders O l d  Certificatee after the 
Effective Date but prior to the date on which t h e  Fractional 
Share Amount is determined and paid t o  the Transfer Agent, the 
Transfer Agent shall carry forward any fractional share o f  
such holsder u n t i l  the Fractional Share Amount is paid to the 
Transfer Agtnc.  In the event that tho  Corporation's Tranefer 
Agent determines that  a holder of Old Certificates has n o t  
tendered a l l  of h i 8  certificates for exchange, 
Agent s h a l l  carry 

t h e  Transfer 

forward any fractional share until all certificates of that  
holder have been presented for exchange EO t h a t  t h e  payment 
for fractional shares to any one person shall not exceed the 
value of one share .  If any New Certificate is to be issued in 
a name o t h e r  than chat in which the O l d  Certificates 
surrendered f o r  exchange are  i s s u e d ,  t h e  O l d  Certificates so 
surrendered shall be properly endorged and otherwise in proper 
form fo r  transfex ,  and t h e  person or persong requesting such 
exchange :shall affix any requisite stock transfer stamp6 to 
the O l d  C e r t i f i c a t e  surrendered, or provide f u n d s  for the ir  
purchase, or establish to t h e  satisfaction of t h e  Transfer 
Agent t h a t  such t a x e s  are not payable. From and after t h e  
Effective Date, the amount of capital represented by t h e  
shares of New Common S t o c k  into which and f o r  which t h e  shares 
of the  O l d  Common Stock are r e c l a s s i f i e d  under the terms 
hereof shrill be the same as t h e  amount of capital represented 
by t h e  shares of  O l d  Common Stock so reclassified, until 
thereafter reduced or increased i n  accordance with applicable 
law. 

2. Article 5 is amended t o  read i n  i t s  entirety as follows: 

FIFTH:  The Board of D i r e c t o r s  s h a l l  have that number of 
Directors set out in the Bylaws of  the Corporation as adopted or as set 
from time to t i m e  tiy a d u l y  adopted amendment t h e r e t o  by t h e  Di rec tors  
or stockholders of the Corporat ion,  and, nacwithstanding any other 
provision of this Anended and Restared Certificate of Incorporation, 
t h e  authorized nunther of Directors may be changed only by a resolution 
of t h e  Board of Directors. Vacancies on t h e  Board of Directors 
resulting f r o m  death, resignation, removal or otherwise and newly 
created directcrships resulting f r o m  any increase in t h e  number of 
directors may be filled o n l y  by a majority of t h e  d i r e c t o r s  then i n  
o f f i c e  (although less t h a n  a quorum) or by t h e  Bole remaining director,  
a n d  each director so e l e c t e d  shall hold office until t h e  next annual 
meeting of t h e  s t o c k h o l d e r s .  

3 .  A r t i c l e  6 is amended to read in i ts  e n t i r e t y  a s  follows: 

SIXTH: In furtherance and n o t  i n  limitation of the powers 
conferred by B t a t u t e ,  t h e  Board of Directors is expressly authorized to 
adopt,  repeal, alter, amend and rescind Bylaws o f  the Corporation. 
N o t w i t h s t a r * d i n g  the foregoing, the bylaws may be rescinded, a l t e r e d ,  
amended o r  repealed in any respect bv t he  affirmative vote  of the 
ho lde r s  of at l e a s t  a majority of the outstanding voting stock of t h e  
corporation, voting together as a single c l a s s .  

4. Article 7 is amended to read ~n i t s  e n t i r e t y  as follows: 



SEVENTH: The Board of Directors s h a l l  be and is d i v i d e d  into 
three classes, C l m a s s  I, Class I1 and Class 111. The number o f  directars 
i n  each class shall be the whole number contained i n  t h e  quotient: 
arrived at by div.iding the number of directors by three, and i f  a 
fraction is d B 0  contained in euch quotient then if such fraction i 8  
one-third (1/3), t h e  extra director shall be a member of Clase III and 
if t h e  fraction i i i  two-thixde (2/3), one of the extra directore s h a l l  
be a member of Clrrss XI1 and the other shall be a member of Class I f .  
Each director shal.1 B e m e  far a term ending on the date of t h e  t h i r d  
annual meeting following the annual meeting a t  which such director was 
elected; provided. however, that t h e  directors of the Corporation on 
the  datc  o f  t h i e  Amendment to the  Restated Certificate o f  Incorporation 
shall tach be assigned to a c l a m  at t h e  time of this Amendment, and 
the directors ass igned t b  Class I ahall serve for a term ending on t h e  
datt of t h t  first annual meeting next fallowing April 6 ,  2 0 0 0 ,  t he  
directora assigned to Class I1 s h a l l  serve  for a term ending on the 
date  of the second annual meeting next following April 6 ,  2 0 0 0 ,  and the 
directors assigned t o  Class I11 shall serve for a term ending on t h e  
date of t h e  th ird  annual meeting next following A p r i l  6 .  2 0 0 0 .  

In the event of any increase or decrease in t h e  number of directors ,  
( a )  each director then s e r v i n g  a s  such ghall nevertheless continue as a 
director oi t he  class  of which he is a member until the expiration of 
his current t e r m ,  or h i s  p r i o r  death,  retirement, resignation or 
removal, and Ib) the newly  created or eliminated directorships 
resulting from such increase or decrease shall be apportioned by t h e  
Board o f  Directors to such class or classes  as shall, so f a r  a6 
possible, bring the  number of directora in the r e s p e c t i v e  classes  intn 
conformity with the formula in this Article, as applied to t h e  new 
number of directora . 

Notwithstanding any of the fo rego ing  provisions of  t h i s  Article, each 
d i r e c t o r  shall serve until h i s  succes5or is elected and qualified or 
until his death, retirement, resignation or removal. Should a vacancy 
occur o r  be cre- 4 ,  t h e  remaining d i rec to r s  (even t h o u g h  l ess  than a 
quorum) may f i l .  * vacancy f o r  t h e  full term of t h e  class in w h i c h  
t h e  vacancy occ' >r i s  created.  

The Board of Directors a s  existing on t h e  da te  of this Amendment to t h e  
Restated Certificate o f  Incorporaticn is as follows: 

Adam H. Clammer 
Mory Ejabat 
T h o r a s  A .  Palmer 
Henry H. Brad ley  
HFI-~L-Y R. Kravis 
George R. Roberts 
Sames H .  Grcene, Jr. 
Richard A .  , Ja lkut  
Alexander Navab. Jr . 
David E. S m t t  

C l a s s  
Class 
C l a s s  
Class 
Class 
Class 
C l a s s  
Class 
Class 
Class 

I 
I 
I 
I1 
I1 
I1 
I I I  
I 1 1  
III 
I f 1  

5. Article 8 is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

EIGHTH: E l ' E c t i o n s  of directors at an annual or special meeting 
uf stockholders nee13 not be by written ballot unless t h e  Bylaws of the  
Corporation shall S ~ J  provide. 

6 .  The fo l lowing  Articles are added to t h e  Restated 
Certificate of I n c o r p o r a t i o n  and s h a l l  imrredia te ly  follow A r t i c l e  9 
thereof: 

T E N T H :  A director shall not he personally l i a b l e  to t h e  
Corporation or i t s  ! s t o c k h o l d e r s  for rr=.netary damages for breach of 
f i d u c i a r y  d u t y  as a director, provided t h a t  t h i n  Article shall not 
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eliminate or limit t h e  liability of  a director (i) for any breach of 
h i s  duty of l o y a l t y  to t h e  Corporation or its stockholders, (ii) f o r  
a c t s  or omissions not i n  good f a i t h  or which involve  intentional 
misconduct or a knowing violation o f  the law, f i i i )  under Section 1 7 4  
o f  the  Delaware General Corporation Law, or (iv) f o r  any transaction 
from which t h e  d i r w t o r  derives an improper personal benefit. 

If the Delaware General Corporation Law is hereafter amended 
t o  authorize corporate action further limiting or eliminating t h e  
personal liability of directors, then the liability of the director to 
the Corporation sha, l l  be limited or eliminated to t h e  fullest extent 
permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law,  as ao amended f r o m  
time to time. Any repeal or modification of this Art ic l e  by the 
stockholders of t h e  Corporation shall be prospective only, and shall 
n o t  adversely affect any limitation on t h e  personal liability o f  a 
director of t h e  Corporation existing at the time of such repeal or 
modification. 

ELEVENTH: :No a c t i o n  s h a l l  be taken by the stockholders except 
at an annual or 6pt~:ial  meeting of stockholders, except if such action 
is taken by unanimous written coneent. 

-. TWELFTH: S l ~ c i a l  meetings of the stockholders of t h e  
Corporation for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time only 
by t h e  Chairman of the Board of Directors, the  Chief Execut ive  Officer 
of t h e  Corporation, t h e  President of t h e  Corporation, or a majority of 
t h e  members of the  I3oard of Directors ,  and such s p e c i a l  meetings may 
not be called by any other person or persons; provided, however, that 
i f  and KO the extent: t h a t  any special meeting of stockholders may be 
called by al?y other  person or persons specified in any provisions of 
t h i s  Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or any amendment 
hereto or any certificate filed under  Section 151(g) of t h e  Delaware 
General Corporation L a w ,  then such special meeting may also be called 
by t h e  person or persons, in the manner, at the t imes and f o r  the 
purposes 60 specified. 

THIRTEENTH: The Co a t i o n  reserves the right to amend, 
a l t e r ,  change or rerleal an. Lovision contained i n  this Restated 
Certificate of Incorporation, i n  t h e  

manner  now o r  hereafter prescribed by stature, and all rights conferred 
on s tcxkholders  herein a r e  granted subject to this reservation; 
provided, however, that no amendment, alteration, change or repeal  may 
be made to Article V I ,  VII, X I  or XIXI without the affirmative vote  of 
the holders  of at least s i x t y - s i x  and two-thirds percent (66-2/3%1 of 
t h e  o u t s t a n d i n g  vocing stock of t h e  Corporation, voting together as a 
single c l a s s .  

FOURTEENTH: Each reference in t h i s  Amended and Restated 
Certificate of Incorporation co any provision of t h e  Delaware General 
Corporation Law r e f e r s  to t h e  specified provision of the G e n e r a l  
Corporation Law of t h e  State of Delaware, as t h e  same now exists or a6 
i t  may h e r e a f t e r  be amended or euperaeded. 

2 .  Such Amendment of t h e  Restated Cer:ificate of Incorporation has been 
d u l y  adopted in accordance with the  provlslans of S e c t i o n  2 4 2  of t h e  General 
Corporation Law of t h e  State of Delaware The Board of Directors of t h e  
Corporation adopted a resolutron by unanimous written consent approving t h i s  
Amendment on March 3 0 ,  2000, declaring i t s  advisability and calling fo r  
submission of such Amendment to t h e  ho lde r s  of t h e  Corporatlon's Cormon Stock. 
Ser ie s  B Prefer red  Stock, S e r l e s  C Preferred Scock. Series  D Preferred S t o c k  and 
Ser ies  F P r e f e r r e d  S t o c k  The holders  of t h e  Corporationls Common S t o c k ,  Series 
€3 Pre fe r r ed  S t o c k ,  Series C €referred Stock,  Series D p r e f e r r e d  Stock and Series 
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F Preferred Stock approved such Amendment by the written conaent by t h e  required 
numbtx of such holders datcd March 3 0 ,  2000. The capital of t h e  Corporation will 
not be xeduced under or by reason of such Amendment. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, t h i s  Amendment to the Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation h a s  been exel-uted on behalf of the Corporation this 6th day of 
April, 2000. 

BXRCH TELECOM, INC 

/ S /  Gregory C.  Lawhon 
Gregory C .  Lawhon, 
Senior Vice President 
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Mr. Scott has 17 years of managerial experience in the telecommunications industry. Prior 
to joining us, Mr. Scott was president and genera1 manager of ICansas City FiberNet, a 
competitive local exchange carrier owned jointly by the country’s two 1,argest cable 
operators, TCI and Time Warner. Prior to his tenure at ICansas City FibcrNct, Mr. Scott 
was vice president of strategic development for Sprint, responsible for developing 
investment plans in the competitive Iocal exchange, wireless (PCS) and international 
marketplaces. Mr. Scott was vice president of strategic development for Sprint, responsible 
for developing investment plans in the competitive Iocal exchange, wireless (I’CS} and 
international marketplaces. Mr,, Scott also served as director of strategic planning for Sprint 
from 1988 to 1991. Mr. Scott also serves as a director of Bizspace, Inc., an Internet 
publishing and E-commerce company lie co-founded with Donald H. Goldman. Bizspace, 
Inc. produces web sites that  serve as on-line trade publications. Their first website, 
clec.com, serves the competitive local exchange carrier industry. Mr. Scott holds a 
Bachelor of Science degree in electrical engineering, suwzPZma cam l a d e ,  from the University 
of Missouri and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of 
Chicago. 

Mr. Goldman has over 15 years of managerial experience in the telecommunications 
industry. Prior to joining us, Mr. Goldman served as vice president, corporate 
development at Sprint where he developed strategy and managed the acquisition of 
companies in the areas of systems integration, Internet telephony, and wireless (PCS) 
services among others. While ,at Sprint, Mr. Goldman led the team that founded Sprint 
PCS. Mr. Goldman also serves as chairman of the board of Bizspace, Inc. Mr. Goldman 
holds a Bachelor ofArts degree, with honors, from Johns Hopkins University and a Master 
of business Administration degrte from the University of Chicago. 

Prior to joining us, from 1998 to February 200, Mr. Hollingsworth was the vice president 
of finance and corporate development for GST Telecommunications. From 1997 to 1998, 
Mr. Hollingsworth was a telecommunications analyst at George K Baum and Company. 
From 1993 through 1996, A h .  Hollingsworth served as a director of finance and 
administration for Kansas City FiberNet. Before FiberNet, Mr. Hollingsworth was a 
mergers and acquisitions manager for Sprint Corporation. Mr. Hollingsworth holds a 
Bachelor of Arts in Business Adrninistration, cum l a d e ,  from Washington State University. 
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Prior to joining us, Mr. Lawhon practiced law for twelve years with the 9O-lawyer Kansas 
City firm of Spencer Fane Britt 8r Browne. A partner in the firm since 1990, he was head 
of the firm’s communications .and media group and a member of its business group. Mr. 
Lawhon’s areas of practice were mergers and acquisitions, with an emphasis on 
communications industry acquisitions, cable television franchising, and commercial and 
regulatory issues’ with respect to the telecommunications industry. Mr. Lawhan holds a 
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics, mcr;~~na c m z  Zaude, fiom Vanderbilt University, and 
a law degree from Columbia University, where he was a Harlan Fiske Stone Scholar. 

From 1994 to 1997, Mr. Moline was the treasurer and chieffinanciaf oacer of Covenant 
Transport, Inc., a transportation company in Chattanooga, Tennessee that became publicly 
traded during his tenure. Prior to joining Covenant Transport, Mr. Moline worked for 
Ernst & Young LLP in Kansas City, Missouri and Grant Thornton in Lincoln, Nebraska, 
providing customer services in the auditing and consulting areas. Mr. Moline holds a 
Bachelor of Administration degree in Business Administration, with distinction, from the 
University of Nebraska and is a certified public accountant. 

Mr. Shackelford has 13 years of experience in the telecommunications industry. Prior to 
joining us, Mr. Shackelford served as director of sales and marketing for ICansas City 
FiberNet. Prior to joining Kansas City FibcrNet, Mr. Shackelford was the Branch Manager 
for Sprint’s commercial sales office in Kansas City and was responsibk for sales and service 
of small to large business custo.mers. During his tenure at Sprint, which began in 1988, 
Mr. Shackelford also developed the long distance industry’s first PC-based call management 
system, FONVIEW. hlr. Shackelford holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer 
Science from the University of Kansas. 

Prior to joining us, Mr. Vranicar was vice presidenr, international business development, at 
Sprint. Before joining Sprint in 1992, Mr. Vranicar was vice president, Asia/Pacific 
operations, at MPSI Systems Private Ltd., based in Singapore. MPSI is a s o h a r e  and 
information services company that develops and markets decisions-support software and 
databases to major retail companies. Mr. Vranicar was the company’s senior executive in 
the Asia/Pacific division, directing a staff of approximately 80 engaged in software 
development, computer graphics, and customer technical support. Mr. Vranicar hoIds a 
Bachelor of Business degree in Marketing, with honors, from the University of Texas at 
Austin, and a Master of Business Administration degree, with distinction, from the 
University of Michigan at Ann AI bor. 
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